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Ms. Ann Cole, Commission Clerk -

Office of the Commission Clerk

Florida Public Service Commission

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, FL. 32399-0850

Re:  Docket No. 090258-TP: Complaint of dPi Teleconnect, L.L.C. against
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc, d/b/a AT&T Florida for dispute
arising under interconnection agreement

Dear Ms. Cole:

Enclosed is BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. d/b/a AT&T Florida’s Motion to
Include Items in the Record, which we ask that you file in the captioned docket

Copies have been served to the parties shown on the attached Certificate of
Service.

Sincerely,
Manuel A. Gurdian
cc: All parties of record
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Docket No. 090258-TP

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served via
Electronic Mail and First Class U.S. Mail this 23" day of December, 2009 to the
following:

Theresa Tan

Jamie Morrow

Staff Counsels

Florida Public Service
Commission

Division of Legal Services

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850

ltan@psc.state.fl.us

imorrow(@psc.state.fl.us

Christopher Malish

Malish & Cowan, PLLC
1403 West Sixth Street
Austin, Texas 78703

Tel. No. (512) 476-8591
cmalish@malishcowan.com

Norman H. Horton, Jr.
Messer, Caparello & Self, P.A.
2618 Centennial Place
Tallahassee, FL 32308

Tel. No. (850) 222-0720
nhorton{@lawfla.com
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In re : Complaint of dPi Teleconnect, L.L.C. ) Docket No. 090258-TP
against BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. )

d/b/a AT&T Florida for dispute arising under )

)

Interconnection agreement Filed: December 23, 2009

AT&T FLORIDA’S MOTION TO INCLUDE ITEMS IN THE RECORD
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. d/b/a AT&T Florida (*AT&T Florida”) files this
motion to include two items in the record of this case. Those items are:

1. the transcript of the deposition of dPi’s designated witness in this case (Mr. Thomas
O’Roark); and

2. the transcript of the November 12, 2009 hearing before the North Carolina Utilities
Commission (“NCUC”) of a case involving the same issues and parties.

Inclusion of these items will assist the Florida Public Service Commission (“Commission”) by
enabling the parties to streamline and expedite cross-examination' as well as giving the
Commission additional relevant information regarding the matters at issue in this docket. There
can be no reasonable concern regarding the authenticity of these official transcripts, and dPi
Teleconnect, L.L.C. (“dPi”) will not be prejudiced by inclusion of its own sworn prior testimony,
which testimony was given in the presence of counsel for dPi. Neither item is voluminous.
Finally, as discussed more fully below, inclusion of these items raises no evidentiary or
procedural issues. For the following reasons, the Commission should include these two items in

the record of this case.

' Rule 28-106.211 provides that the prehearing officer “before whom a case is pending may issue any orders
necessary...to prevent delay, and to promote the just, speedy, and inexpensive gptpqmjlgaitionf-pf*aﬂ laspetts: of the
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ARGUMENT

L The Deposition Transcript

On August 25, 2009, Mr. Thomas O’Roark was deposed in the companion case in North
Carolina where dPi has raised the same claims that are the subject of this case. The transcript of
Mr. O’ Roark’s deposition is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. As he was in the North Carolina
case, Mr. O’Roark is the sole witness designated by dPi to present testimony in this case. The
transcript of that deposition consists of 167 pages (or 43 pages in the four-page format) of
testimony and contains nine exhibits. AT&T Florida anticipates that both parties to the case will
benefit from citations to this testimony in briefing. Inclusion of the transcript in the record will
assist the Commission in having a more complete record on which to evaluate the legal and
factual arguments made by the parties. AT&T Florida has attempted to reach an agreement with
counsel for dPi about inclusion of the deposition transcript (and the hearing transcript) in the
record in this case, but dPi’s counsel has declined and indicated that dPi’s position is that the
transcript constitutes inadmissible hearsay.

Florida Statutes § 90.803 plainly states those instances in which certain types of
statements are not inadmissible as evidence, even though the declarant is available as a witness.

Florida Statutes § 90.803(18)2 includes among these many exceptions “admissions,” which are

*“The provision of 5. 90.802 to the contrary notwithstanding, the following are not inadmissible as evidence, even
though the declarant is available as a witness:

(18) Admissions. A statement that is offered against a party and is:
(a) The party’s own statement in either an individual or a representative capacity;
(b) A statement of which the party has manifested an adoption or belief in its truth;

(c) A statement by a person specifically authorized by the party to make a statement concerning the subject;



statements offered against a party and are “the party’s own statement in either an individual or a
representative capacity.” All of Mr. O’ Roark’s (as well as Mr. Malish’s) statements in the
deposition transcript clearly fall within this hearsay exception. See e.g., Castaneda, ex rel.
Cardona v. Redlands Christian Migrant Ass’n, Inc., 884 S0.2d 1087, 1090-91 (Fla. 4th DCA
2004)(“Because Castaneda was offering excerpts of the deposition testimony against Redlands as
admissions, they were permitted by the Florida Evidence Code and thus admissible regardless of
the availability of the witnesses”). See also, LaTorre v. First Baptist Church of Ojus, Inc., 498
So.2d 455, 458 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986)(“The deposition of a party or of anyone who at the time of
the deposition was officer, director, or managing agent [of a corporation that is a party] ... may
be used by an adverse party for any purpose.”).’
IL. The Hearing Transcript

Like the deposition transcript, the hearing transcript contains-testimony from the same
parties on the same issues that are raised in this case, and AT&T Florida anticipates that both
parties to the case may benefit from citations to this testimony in briefing. The transcript of the
hearing before the NCUC is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. Inclusion of the transcript in the
record will assist the Commission in having a more complete record on which to evaluate the
legal and factual arguments made by the parties.

All of the statements in the transcript made by dPi’s counsel or witnesses are admissible

as admission of a party opponent for the same reasons discussed above in connection with the

{d) A statement by the party’s agent or servant concerning a matter within the scope of the agency or
employment thereof, made during the existence of the relationship; or

(e) a statement by a person who was a conspirator of the party during the course, and in furtherance of, the
CONSPIracy...
3 Florida is not unusual in its rule allowing such evidence to be admitted. In fact, under the federal rules,
such an “admissions by a party opponent™ are specifically carved out of the hearsay definition and are not
considered to be hearsay at all. See Fed. R. Evid. 801(d}(2).



deposition transcript. AT&T Florida has no objection to including only the portion of the
transcript in which Mr. O’Roark testified, if that will satisfy dPi, but AT&T Florida expects that
the Commission and the parties would be better served by the inclusion of the entire transcript.

In addition, the entire transcript is the record of a “public agency” and sets forth matters
observed by the agency in connection with a complaint filed by dPi. As such, the NCUC had a
legal duty to conduct the hearing and to record it. For these reasons, the transcript also falls
within yet another one of the many hearsay exceptions set forth in Florida Statutes § 90.803.
Specifically, the transcript is a public record under the terms of § 90.803(8).*

Finally, like the deposition transcript, inclusion of the transcript will not create an
unmanageable record because the transcript from the one-day hearing is not lengthy (281 pages).
CONCLUSION

As discussed above, the two items AT&T Florida seeks to include in the record are not
inadmissible hearsay. It is worth noting, however, that even if the items were hearsay, they are
nevertheless admissible in this proceeding.

The rules of evidence in administrative hearings are liberal. See In re: Petition for
determination of need for electrical power plant in Taylor County by Florida Municipal Power
Agency, JEA, Reedy Creek Improvement District, and City of Tallahassee, Docket No. 060635-
EU, Order No. PSC-07-0033-PCO-EU (Issued January 9, 2007). The types of evidence that may
be received in administrative proceedings are as follows:

Irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded, but all
other evidence of a type commonly relied by reasonably prudent persons in the

4 “(8) PUBLIC RECORDS AND REPORTS. —Records, reports, statements reduced to writing, or data
compilations, in any form, of public offices or agencies, setting forth the activities of the office or agency, or matters
observed pursuant to duty imposed by law as to matters which there was a duty to report, excluding in criminal cases
matters observed by a police officer or other law enforcement personnel, unless the sources of information or other
circumstances show their lack of trustworthiness. The criminal case exception shall not apply to an affidavit
otherwise admissible under s. 316.1934 or 5. 327.354.



conduct of their affairs shall be admissible, whether or not such evidence would

be admissible in a trial on the courts of Florida. Any part of the evidence may be

received in written form, and all testimony of parties and witnesses shall be made

under oath.

Florida Statutes § 120.569(2)(g). See also, In re: Complaint by DPI-Teleconnect, L.L.C. against
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. for dispute arising under interconnection agreement,
Docket No. 05083-TP, Order No. PSC-07-0820-PCO-TP (Issued October 12, 2007). Section
90.401, Florida Statutes, defines “[R]elevant evidence [as] evidence tending to prove or disprove
a material fact.”

Thus, evidence admissible under the Florida Rules of Evidence is admissible in an
administrative hearing, and evidence inadmissible in civil courts but “of a type commonly relied
upon by reasonably prudent persons,” F.S. 120.569(2)(g), is also admissible in administrative
hearings.

Based on the foregoing authority, even if the subject materials could be considered
“hearsay” as dPi contends, the materials would still by admissible because “[i]n administrative
hearings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, hearsay is admissible” and “hearsay evidence may
be used for the purpose of supplementing or explaining other evidence but it shall not be
sufficient to support a finding unless it would be admissible over objection in civil actions.” F.S.
120.57(1)(c). See also Rule 28-106.213(3), Florida Administrative Code (“Hearsay evidence,
whether received in evidence over objection or not, may be used to supplement or explain other
evidence, but shall not be sufficient in itself to support a finding unless the evidence falls within

an exception to the hearsay rule in Chapter 90, F.S.”).



WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, AT&T Florida requests that the transcript of
the deposition of dPi’s witness, Mr. Thomas O’Roark, and the transcript of the November 12,
2009 hearing before the NCUC involving the same issues and parties be included in the record.

Respectfully submitted this 23rd day of December, 2009.

AT&T FLORIDA
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E. EARL@EBIFIELD, JR.
TRACY W. HATCH
MANUEL A. GURDIAN
c/o Gregory R. Follensbee
AT&T Southeast Legal Dept.
150 South Monroe Street, Ste. 400
Tallahassee, FL 33130
Telephone: (305) 347-5561
Facsimile: (305) 577-4491
Email: ke2722(@att.com
th9467@att.com
mg2708(@att.com

PATRICK W. TURNER

1600 Williams Street, Suite 5200
Columbia, SC 29201

803 401 2900

JOELLE J. PHILLIPS

333 Commerce Street, Suite 2101
Nashville, TN 37201-3300
615214 6311



THOMAS O'ROARK

Page
BEFQRE THE

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION

In the Matter of

dPi Teleconnect, LLC,
Vs, Docket No, P-55,
Sub 1744

BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc.,
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ORAL DEPOSITION OF
THOMAS O'ROARK

August 25, 2005
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ORAL DEPOSITION of THOMAS OQ'ROARK,
produced as a witness at the instance of the
Respondent, and duly sworn, was taken in the
above-styled and numbered cause on August 25, 2009,
from 9:01 a.m. to 2:11 p.m., before April L. Struck,
CSR in and for the State of Texas, reported by machine
shorthand, at the Hampton Inn, 4505 Belt Way Reoad in
Addison, Dallas County, Texas, pursuant tc the Texas
Rulaes of Civil Procedurs and the provisions stated on

the record oxr attached hereto.
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THOMAS QO'ROARK

Page 2 Page 4
1 APPEARANCES 2 EHCHAS ORI
2z 2 having boem flest chaly swomn, ectified as follows:
3
3 EXAMINATION
4  APPEARING FOR THE CLAIMANT:
5 MR CHRIS MALISH 0p:01:48 4 BYMR TURMER:
FOSTER, MALISH & COWAN 03:01:48 5 Q. Moming Mr. OBourk
6 1403 W. 6th Street 09:01:52 6 A Moming.
Austin, Texas 78703
49:01: 7
0 e 9:01:52 Q. Beore we get started, 1 noed 1o put couple of
8 09:0%:54 8 things oo the reoord for houskerping purposet, and
9 050156 % wa'll ger back 10 our discussion.
10 . A
09:01:%8 10 MR, TURNER; This deposition is being
APPEARING FOR RESPONDENT:
W THE 08:02:00 11 makn pursuant 1 the notios of deposition deted Augrst
MR PATRICK TURNER 09:02304 12 1ash, 2009, issue docket porber P-53, Sub 1744 baliore
12 ?ga?mmﬂsmomja 08:62;:12 13 theNorth Caroline Public Thilites Commistion. Itia
trect
13 Smite 5200 09:02:16 14 eing tken pursuant to the North Carolina Commission'’s
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 DREDIE2Y 15 rubes wod to flw oxtont ot expreasly modified by those
14 B03.401.2004 05:02:22 15 e, e North Cwroling Rules of Civi Proceduns.
15 Pt1235@ntt com 09:02:26 17 Parties have antered into no stipalations
16 05:02:28 1s ot other agrooments that would sher o affect the
17 09:02:30 19 application of thoss rulms 10 this deposition,
18 09:02:34 26
1
zg 09:02:34 21 Q (ByMr. Tume) Mr. ORoark, oy e s
09:02:36 22 Pavick Tumer. 1 BellSouth
21 rptusent
22 09:02:38 23 Tescommmications, Inc., doing business a3 ATET North
gi 09:02:42 24 Carclim
25 09:02; 44 25 “Today I will refar to that entity s ATRT
Page 3 Page 5
1 INDEX 09:02:48 1 Nah Caroline or ATET or occasionally BellSasth,
2 09:02;50 2 unless you object 0 that
2 1. Appearsucos 2
s 2 Thew: T —— 09:02:52 3 A Thars foe,
5 Examination by Mr. Tumer 4 09:02:52 L] Q. [also will refir o &8i Teleoommecy as dFf,
€ 1. Signmure Page 162 o(PER P
1 4 e T 3:63;00 5 \miess you would fike me to refix 10 it otherwise.
8 Repo 09:03:02 & A That'e fine.
1: 09:03:02 k] Q. Do you understeed you're testifying vnder
11 EXHIBITS o8:03:04 ® oo, ey aemsoqeed w ety sl
12 Ex# Description Pg Ln 03:03°0E g A Ya
13 . e - 09:03:08 10 Q. Sinoe our comvenmtion is heing recerded by .
] Appiicaria 09:03:10 11 o reparier, 1 need 10 ask you to be gore w0 respond
s 2 CV 19 20 09:03:12 12 10 my questions verbally, &3 you beve been, mcher than
3 aiweb page info " m 09:03:14 13 by abead nod or gestures that canaot be mken down by
16 03:03:18 14 ot COUTY TEpINLEr.
4 Service agrecment 24 2 09:03:20 15 A Tundersand
By 5 Pl serviccs - 09:03:20 16 Q. Thank you.
18 09:03:20 17 Fix the sama rexson, iy important for
1 6 Plan services basic lifeline 3 09:03:24 18  both of us oot 4o talk over each other becanse it makes
7 Hypothctical ¢ a1 09:03:26 19 it ifficult for her 10 get down what's being said. So
20 09:03:28 20 ['will commit 1o waiting uet you finish your snywers
" 8 Lost Koy 8/2/04 letter 134 16 09:03:32 21 hefire ] bogin oy questions, and I'd ask you to wait
9 nd 1 1 159 10 09:03;:34 22 il I finish my questicas in their eativety befiore
22 09:03:36 23 ‘hegioning your answer.
z: 09:03:38 2 Unlens yru say otherwise, Mr. OfRoari,
25 09:03:40 25 Im going to assume that yeur understend the Guestion
2 (Pages 2 to 5)
DepoTexas
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THOMAS O'ROARK

Page 6 Page 8
09:03:42 1 Tmasking. 09:06:02 1 bedenig an eligile 1ebeph
09:03:44 2 So will you agree that you wil ker me 09:06:08 2 cmrier befors the staic commission?
09:03:46 3 Iknowifyou don't understand or ane confimed by & 09:06:10 3 A Not that I recall.
©9:03: 50 4 question thet I aak? 09:06:24 4 Q  Mr. ORoark, before I farget, Ffat any time
09:03:50 5 A [agree 08:06:26 5 youneed to take a break — T tend to forget. Fust
0903154 5 Q. Are you taking sy medications today that 09:06:28 6 plow nowight through
09103156 T might sdversely impect your ability fo concentrate and 09:06:30 ? 1 you need o break, et me know, please.
09103758 ¥ acourstely angwer My questions? 0%:06:32 ] A Okay
09:04:00 9 A No, £9:06:32 9 Q. Mr. ORoark, for the next few mitmtes § just
09:04:00 1o Q. s there mrything cive you'rt xomrs of tha D%:06:36 10 want to talk abom your beckground 80 we can get &
08:04:02 11 might sdversely impact your shility 10 concantrire and 09:06:38 11 better iea of what you've done
09:04:C6 12 ly mrswer My cuestions? 08:06:42 32 Could you state your Full name for the
09:04:08 13 A Mo 09:06:42 13 record?
09:04:10 14 Q. Seated beside you today is sttorney Chris 09:06:42 14 A, Thorrms Gectge ORowk.
09:04:12 1S Malish 09:06:48 15 Q. And by whom are you currently avployed?
£9:04:12 16 T8 he rep ing dPi fox the purp 09:06;50 16 A, DPi Teloonneet,
05:04:14 17  of todey's deposition? 09:06:54 17 Q. What is your title o capacity st dPi?
09:04:16 18 A Ye 09;06:58 18 A, Vicepresidar of finarce.
09:04:1F 19 Q. Have you reviewed anry docurrents prior to this 09:07:04 19 Q. Are you an officer of dPi Teleconnoct?
09:04:20 20 deposition in order to prepere for it, Mr. O'Roark? 09:07:10 20 A DPiTelsconmect is an LLC, I's managed by a
09:04:24 21 A Yes 0g:07:16 21 bowd of managers. Tmnot on that boand. 8o Fma
09:04:24 22 Q. Canyou deseribe those documants for us? 09:07:20 22 menager of the company, but I'm not 4 board member,
09:04:3C 23 A Ireviewed the testimony thet 1 had given 09:07:22 23 Q. Okay.
09;04:32 24 previously inthis casr. And | reviewed sore: of the 0g:07:24 24 A So I'm v technically an officer of the
09:04:36 25 testimoy that ATET hes given previcusly in this case. £89:07:26 25 compeny.

Page 7 Page 9
09:04:44 1 Q. Ay other documents that you reviewed befiors 09:07:28 1 Q. Have you referred to yourself s the chief
09:04:46 2 coming m bere indey for the purposes of gesting ready 09:07:42 2 Gewgyial offiou of 4P Ttictonneet n any wetiings?
09:04:48 3 foris depositicn? 09:07:46 3 A T'vo bees refired to as that. Becuuse we
09:0¢:50 4 A Ne 29:07:50 4 don't have n chief francial officer per 1e. Soas
©9;04;50 5 Q. Did you bring agy notes or other documents 09:07;56 5 vice-president of finance, T fil that capacity, but
09:04:52 6 withyou1o this deposibon? 09: 07158 6 that's not roy official tils
09:04:54 7 A Ibrought the & that T've desaribed, 09:08:C0 7 Q. Todasy who — ir: the same manner that you just
09:04:58 8 Ilrought a notepsd that has a fow aotes on 05:08;04 B described, a5 you're flling the capacity of CFO, who
09:05:02 -] Q. Have you eves testified i any court 09:08:08 9 tocley fills the cspacity of chief excnive officer of
09:05:04 16 procectings bofae? 09:08:10 1¢  dPi Telecomnect?
09;05:08 11 A Tmuyhe Tobe howes, 1 doit recall. 09:08:14 11 A Today I fill that capscity, aithough I dont
09:05:12 12 Q. Okey. And I not sterested in sny cnmt D9:0B:16 17 have thet official title.
©9:05:20 13 proceedings Yoy naey huve tearified in in o gyersonal 09:08:29 13 Q. Who ETied that capacity immdiately bufiore
09:05:24 14  capacity, like as & witness or in 8 persorl nmditer 09:08:22 14 you?
09:05:26 18 B do you recall segtifying as & JFi 09:008:24 15 &, David Dowan,
09:05:28 16 preversative in any court proceedingy? 09:00:26 15 Q. Bow do you spell thst last name?
09:05:20 17 A Tve— pever a4 & 4P represcntative. 09:08:28 17 A D-O-W-A-R-T.
09:05:32 18 Q. Thankyou, Hive you wver testifled before sy 0%:08:34 18 Q. When did Mr. Dowart cease filling that
DF:08:36 19 wate desions as & 4P rep i 09:08:36 12 capacity s CEQ of dPi?
09:05:40 20 A No 09:08142 20 A [ believe it was April
09:05:42 HY Q. Have you ever filed writtez: tesimony with any 08:08:46 21 Q. Ofthis yosr?
09:05:48 22 oy fisnioms u3 a AP rapy five} 09:08: 48 22 A Yes.
0%:05:52 21 A, Noo cha | recall. DR:08:4% 23 Q. 20097
05:05:54 24 Q. Dovorrecll Sling testimony befors the: 09:08:48 24 A Yes
09:05:58 25 Arkansas Public Service Commistion in dPFi's attempt to 09:0A:52 25 Q. Did be cease ~ is he still an employee of dP

3 (Pages 6 to 9)
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THOMAS O'ROARK

Page 10 Page 12
09:08:38 1 Teleconnect? 09:11:58 i Q. Under aducation certificstions there's in
09:09:00 2 A No. 09:12:02 2 indi that you graduated in 1977 fom Pirsburgh
09:09:02 3 Q. Did b Lswve vobsotarity? 09:12:06 3 Sute University with 2 BS BA.
09:09:02 4 A Yes. 00;12:08 1 Can you te)t us wiet u BS BA is?
09:09:02 5 Q. Do you know what he's doing now? 09:12:10 E A Bachelor of Science in Busi
09:09:04 L] A No. 09:12:14 6 Adminstration
£9:09:08 1 Q. Do you know why he left? 09:12:16 7 Q. Inthe sy partion of the CV, ther's &
0%:09:08 ] A No. 09:12:20 8 stalement about three lines down, Have won over
03;08:16 9 Q Would you describe his keaving cn good terms 09:12:26 $ 75,000,000 in telocomn aost recovery.
09:09:18 10 or'ad tenms or indiffesent? 09:12:30 10 Could you tell us what you mean by that?
09:09:22 11 A, Tmpot swmre of the ferms under which he left 09:12:32 11 A, Busically muditing I EC invoices, idemifying
09:09:30 12 the compay, 5o | cant really describe those sither 09:12:44 12 overhilling on ILEC invoices, filing disputes with
09:09:34 13 wey. 09:12:50 13 ILECs and recovering sctilements of those disptes.
05:08:36 14 Q. And did you ever have a conversation with him 09:13:06 14 Q. For which of the entities listed on the CV
09:09:38 15 about why he wes leving? 0%:13:10 15  were you involved in recovering telecom costs, as you
09:09:46 16 A Tmayhave, You know, T worked with Deve for 05113:14 16 just desoribed?
09:09:54 17 uwoumber ofyears. 09:13:16 17 A DPiTek CoVita G Y
05:09:38 18 Q. Mr. ORoxrk, it just striles me as interesting 09:13:20 18 Nostel Telocom.
09:10:04 19 thum you would not have n coovenation with him shout 09:13:48 1% Q. Based oo whwt yous sid sartier sbows, dPi being
09:10:06 20 why balefl the company. 09:13:50 20 mLLC, L etmume that dPi itself is pot s publicly
08:10:08 13 That's why Tm smiang if you know it was 08:13:56 21 traded company?
0%:10:08 22 on good 1S or oK. 09:13:56 22 A, That's comest.
03:10:12 232 A. Ibelieve it was on good torms. |- 1 dont 09:13:5B 23 Q. My understanding is vhat it i currently owned
09:10:14 24 ~Tdon't heve — I not privy 1o the details of his 09:14:00 24 by publically traded company. Is that ?
09:10:18 25  leaving the company. So— 09:14:04 25 A Yo
Page 11 Page 13
09:10:20 1 Q. Al ight What is your current business 03;:14:04 1 Q. And what's the neme of that publically traded
08:10:22 2 addreny? 09:14:06 2 comparty thet cumently oo @957
09:10:24 3 A 2997 LBJ Freawsy. 09:14:08 3 A Rem-a-Center.
09:10:30 4 Q. And that's in Dallas, Texas? 08:14:10 ] Q. How long has Rent-a-Center boen the ewner of
09:10:30 E A Y 09:14:14 5  d4Pi?
09:10: 42 5 Q. Em poing to ask the court reporter mark 09:14:14 6 A Ibelieve since Navember of 07.
09:10: 48§ 7 this s Depoeision Exhitit 1, please. 09:14:28 1 Q. Just in ganeral could you describe what
09:11:04 8 {Eodhibit | mrid ) 09:14:30 5 Rent-a-Cemter is?
09:11:04 9 Q. Mr. ORoark, the court reporter has handed you 09:14:32 9 A Rent-a-Center is & ront to own compumy.
09:11:08 10 what has been marknd as Deposition Exhibit 1. P ask 09:14:42 io Q. Areyou involved in sity of the business of
09:11:10 11 youto take your time, fip through thet document. And 09:14:46 11 Rent-a-Centar other than &P Teloconnect?
0911:12 12 qoceyoubve teviewnd il 0 yous satfsfaticm, Tm going 0F:1d:34 12 A Mo
09:11:16 13 40 eak you'to et us know If you bave ever seen it 09:15:00 13 Q. With dPi Teleconnect do you have
69:11:18 14 before. 09:15:02 i4  mmpommibilities that go any broader than the
©9:11:22 b A Yeab Clvioumby Tvewenit Ttigadic 08315504 15 telecommumications industy telf?
99:11124 1é Q. Olay. What is thar document? 09:;15:08 1€ A Well, I'm ible oy being vice-presic
08:11:28 17 A Appiication for amendment to s service 09:15:12 17  of finance for dPi Telecormect, and T'm acting in my
09:11:30 18 provider centificatr of oparating sutharity, 09:15:18 18 cument capacity s CEQ briefly. And -« and it
D¥:;11:32 19 Q. Okay. Would you o with u3 to page 15 of that 05:15:28 19  subsidiaries
05:11:42 20 document. And I'm going bry the Buwa staeip pamber oo G9:15:28 20 Q. I guass what I'm asking is, in your daily
09:11:46 21 the botom fight corer of the page. 0$:15:30 21 operstions are you limited to the Seld of
09:11:50 22 A Yo 09:15:32 22 velosonxrunications, oy doyou sk get recheed in
05:11:52 23 Q. I'want touse that document you just 09:1%5:36 23 dPi's activities in the clectric markets and the other
0%:11:56 24 referenced to 1k questions sbout youxr background. 09:15:38 24 markess thet it gets isvolved in?
08:;11:58 25 A Olay. 09:15:40 25 A DPj has s mbsidinry culled dPi Energy that's
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05:15544 1 involved in the electric mket of Teas. 09:19:10 1 youwst
09:15: 48 H Q  And do you have sy responsibity for that 09:19:32 2 Q. (ByMr. Tumer) Mr. ORowrk, doyou know
©9:15:50 3 entiny? 09:14:12 3 todey how many costormens dP: Tdecomect es in North
08:15:50 4 A T'm vice-presiden of finarce for that 09:19:26 4 Curcline?
08:15:54 S  company. 09:19:26 5 A Wall, again, T don’t hve scoass 1o those
09:15:54 [ Q. Aside from that electric entity and the 09:19:28 §  dutmbesss. S T'd hate to.comemit oo & mumber vithout
0§:15:58 T telocom entity, sre there apy other mpecty of dPfs 09:19:40 7 having sccess to the duts,
09:16:02 8  operstions that you're responsible for? 09:19:42 8 Q. Understanding G and und ing that
09:16:06 ] A Thars — that's the entire scope of dPi's 09:19:44 $  wefll get s more acourwte mymber, do you have s
£9:16:12 10 mctivities. 05:19:48 10 balipark fige in mind, o are ¥O4 806 £ven
089:16:16 11 Q. Lot to talk & Siethe bit now about dPi 09:19;:5¢ 11  comRutabie doing that oday?
09:16:22 12 telecowm operations o the State of North Carcline 09:19:52 1z A I—[ renily meed t0 look t my databases to
09:16:24 13 Mr, O'Roark, 1'm just going to show you & 09:19:58 13 get you an schuriie menbar. T'd rether not quats o
©9:16:28 14  respomse 1o discovery that gives numbers of dPi 0$120:02 14 mumber under cath
03:16:34 15  customers in the State of North Caroline.  And I want 09:20:02 15 Q. Olay.
09:16:38 16 totalkto you sbout that for just & moment. 02:20:02 16 A And heve it act be scourte.
09:17:02 17 1 dowit harve an extrs copy of this, but 08:20:04 17 Q. Olxy, Whatis— is there & specific aspect
09:17:04 18 for the record this is dPi's Grst supplemants) 09:20:18 18 or segment of the market that dPi targets in North
09:17:08 1% respomse 1o ATAT North Cyrolina's Gt set of 09:20:28 1% Corclinm?
09:17:10 20 gatocies wnd requests for proda of 08:20:28 20 A Well, dPi focuses on — is exclutively a
09:17:12 21 docuoents. T duted — it's not daved. Ii'sa 020132 21 prepaid provider. Qur customens sre for she most part
09:17:24 22 threspage document. 09:20:42 22 the working poor of this contry. They — about
09:17:28 23 T'm going to hand it to Mr. Malish  Jt's €9:20:50 23 0 percent of <ax subsacriber base are Lifciine
09:17:28 24 onfile. Tm bappy to make it & dopo exhibit. But 08:20;54 24 cusomers, mening they're participating in some sort
09:17:32 2%  that's the only copy L have. 08:20:56 25  of fedenlly subsidized program, low inoame housing,
Page 15 Page 17
09:17:54 1 Wis, O'Roars, ook x fhat docoment and 09:21:00 1 food stucpa, independent chiidren. They're basically
09:17:58 2 1ell me when you're ready for pie 10 a8k my questions, 09:212:04 2 peoplethat arc at or below poverty level.
09:18:04 3 A Oy 09:21:10 a Our cumomens are basicaily cash
09:16:04 4 Q. M. ORoark, that doauonens sayy tha it gives 09:21:14 4 or that need #nd require
09:18:10 5  the mmber of dPi customers ip North Carciline on two 09:21:20Q 5 access to services ms cheaply as poasible. And 28 ~
09:18:16 € specific dates. 09:231:20 € snd they need a dependable, refiable provider whe can
o0p:18;18 ? Firg thing I need 0 wk you, do those 09:21:32 T alfer deem basically x flat raw service with no idden
09:18:22 -] TRNkATs soucD MCOTME 10you from just » perpeciive D9:21:38 ? charges, lidden fees &nd no morprises in uvm of post
09:18:24 2 frombeing ooly the North Carclits marnbery as cppossd 09:21:42 9 billing for usage charges, that sart of thing.
09:16:28 10 wodPi Tek ct's overall bers ot 09:21:48 10 Our customary see the kind of people tut
09:18:32 11 poire in time? 09:21;50 11 ofttimes have 1o make decisions between baving teesd,
05:18:34 12 A, 1=Td haeve 00 - Td have to po ook 1 09:21:54 12 milk medicine for their children ar having home phone
09:18:30 13 don't have thet kind of infanmation committed to 09:21:56 13 mervice. They are — basically they pay cash for the
09:18:42 14 memary, 0$:22:06 14 most part, and they pay a1 agent locations troughat
09:13:44 1% Q. Sure IFie i tet scmething you o do 09:22:10 15 themates
05:18:48 16  chaing u broak, thals fine. 09:22:32 16 1n mmy capes our customers dom have
09:18:52 17 Ts thae soosetiing that might be shie o £9:22:16 17  ‘bkng scrounts. They don't — fhey dont buv debit
09:18:54 16 bedone during u breek in & deposition, ar would it 08:22:20 Y] cards, crodit cards. Like I sxy, they're the working
03318156 19 sake you kanger to ook it up? D8:22:26 15 poor.
05:18;:58 2¢ A Td have to go back to my offios and fave 09:22:26 20 Q. Doya have a feel for what percemags of your
09:19:00 21 BOCER 10 iy datebases. 08:22:40 21 bhave been & d for pcng o
09:19:04 22 Q. Olay. a9:22:42 22 services provided by annther Jocal exchange compemy?
09:19:04 23 MR. TURNER: Chris, is tht something you 09:22:48 23 A Well, cirviosly | don't have sccess to that
09:19:06 24 wguld work with ua on? 09:22:52 24 informesion,
09;1%:08 25 MR. MALISH: Yeah. We can supplemnent, if 09:22:54 23 Q. In your experience, do your cusiomens ofice
5 (Pages 14 to 17)
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08:23:00 1 baves choice betweh going and getting service fram & 09:27:00 1 Q. M. ORowrk, I will vell you thax that is.
09:23:02 2 local exchange company and dF, or is dFi the — and 09:27:04 2 Exkibit A 1o prefiled tostimony that has your asme on
09:23:10 3 other prepaics, e & praciical mster, the coly choice 09:27:08 3 it before the Arkenses Public Sarvice Coanmission
09:23:12 4 avaiighle to them? 09:27:12 4 1f Tien remeenbering comectly, it's im the
09:23:14 5 A Well, they bave al the ssmo choices the you 09:27:14 $ 2007 time frame. Acd that corinly is subject to
09;23:16 6 aod Thave, ax iong an they can afford it And as lng 09:27:16 6 Deing reviewed snd chacked
09:23:20 T sathey chn pey cash for those services. 09:27:20 7 A Ohy.
09:23:34 ] Q. With regard to what yoo; heve just spolke shaut 09:27:22 8 0. At the top of that version of your CV, there's
09;23:38 9 a3 frasdPis ‘would thes iafk ion be 02:27:26 9 anindication of a atiber of Captomers that dFi serves.
0s:2314 10 powbly different in say state other than North 09:27:30 L Coull you ressiind 14 bow many thet is?
09:23:50 11 Carclim? 0p:27:36 %) A 25000,
09:23:50 12 A Wall, I o aware of, you koo, how the 09127138 a2 Q. And }halive it indicates they're in 48
D%:23:54 13 demographics of Nerth Caraline. compare to other stuies. 09:27:42 11 Sies?
08:23:%8 14 Lile every state bas paroentage of their populstion 09:27:46 it A Right
09:24:04 15  thet sre working poor pecple thet parGicipase in D9:27:46 15 Q. Sothar's why I was asking if dPi bas
09:24:08 16 federal subsidived housing, fiood stemps, eldaly, 09:27:50 16 decressed the munbar of states it operaies i in the
09:24:10 27 resired peapls, Sxed income pecple, tingle mothers. 08:27:54 17 pust couple of yesrs.
09:24:18 19 You know, working ~ the weriing poor. 09:27:54 18 Can you expiais for s why it wont from
09:24:22 1% 1 think those people are just in every ¢9:27:58 19 48 inthe CV you provided in Avkansss 40 30 {n the
09:24:24 20 maa £9:28:02 20  inforonation provided to the Texas Comenission recently?
©9:24:26 21 Q. Do you kmow bow your prices for the pervices 09:28:08 21 A Wall, one, It says licensed. The cther is
£9:24:30 22 you providein North Cardlim compare v the prices 09:23:14 22 (aiking sbout where we actually have customers,
09124132 23 ek ATAT would charge for similer services in North 09:2B:16 23 Q. Okay.
08:24:40 24 Carolica? 09:28:16 24 A And so we don't have custamers ia every spte
03:24:40 25 A No. Ymonot pwme of ATATS prices. §think £9:28:20 25 thatwerelicensed
Page 19 Page 21
09:24:46 1 we— weoffer a heavily discounsed product. We offer 09:20:20 1 Q. Okay. Going back to Exhibit 1. under the
09:24:52 2 2 product as cheaply 88 we can posaibly »fford. And we 09:28:34 2 introdciion of the third peragraph, Mr. ORowk, s 1
D9:25:00 3ty to make products &nd services availabie 1o our 09:2B:40 3 read this, it's imended to sy that afler the proposed
0$:25:02 4 customers st the lowest price possible. 09;28:48 ¢ business transaction that's describod in this
08:25:16 5 Q. M. ORoark, ould you go back b Extiibit 1 09:28:50 5 wpplication, there are no plama for dPi 1o changn s
09:25:20 6§ forus. And Tm going 10 esk you 30 look st page 3. 09:28:54 6 pricing, is business plany, names or any other aspacta
09:25:26 7 A. Extibit 1. Ties iemn? 09:28;56 7 of the business.
09:25:10 ] Q Yer D9:28:58 ] Do you see that?
09:25r34 9 A Dy 09;28:549 9 A YesIdo
09:25:39 10 Q. Socond parsgraph in the introduction it s1ys 09:29:00 10 Q. Would that be accure in the Stete of Nerth
$9:25:42 11 hat dF s over 50,000 customers across some 30 09:29:02 11  Carolinm s well?
09:25:46 12 stes. 05:29:02 12 A Asfar x| know, yes
09:25:46 11 Toes thar sound secacems o you't 09:29:28 13 Q. Oo with o 1o page 7 of that docsrne,
09:25:48 14 A Approsimerly, 05:29:40 14 There's an indication there under section 2, item 4B
09:25:50 15 Q. Has the numbex of states thar 4P operues in 03:29:44 15  that & provides plain, old telephone seTvice to both
09:25:58 16 decreasad is the st several yours? 08:29: 50 1§ business and residential sutwcrib
09:26:04 17 A Na 09:29:54 17 Do youy sas that?
09:26:22 18 MER. TURNER: Again, I don't have an extra 09:209:56 18 A Yes.
09:26:22 1% copy of this, b I'm poing 10 sk the oot reporter 09:29:56 19 Q. I that the same in North Carolina?
09:26:26 20 tomark S 45 Exhibit 2. 09:30:00 20 In other words, it North Carpiina does
09:26:48 21 (Exciabit 2 aarkond ) 09:30:04 21 dPiserve both residential and busi becribors?
DY:26:48 22 Q. (By Mr. Turner) M. OFRoark, Fm going to ask 09:30:08 22 A 'We serve rimarily rmidential. 'We have
09:26:50 23 youtotakealook srthet Let o know when you're 09:30:10 23 g with third party o7 where we can
09:26:54 24 ready W aiswer quesions sbout fhet document. 09:30:14 24 offer busiriess sarvices throwgh & thind party provider.
B9:26:54 25 A Okay. 09:30;18 25  But dFi itself doss not offer — doss not — s nat »
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08:30:24 1 - not ~ i not in the busines to offer business 09:35140 1 Q. Mr. ORowk, when you've had a chance to
09:30:38 2 o 09:35:42 2 review Deposition Exchibiz 4, let me know, sxd I ask
09;30:32 3 Q. To the best of your knowledge, are sny of the 09:35:46 3 YO T CSEIonS.
09:30:34 4 promotional credit disputes in this docket ssociaicd 08:35:46 q A. Okay.
09:30:38 5 with Inginess lines in North Carolina? 09:35:58 5 Okay.
09:30:42 3 A No. 09:35:50 6 Q. On the first page of Depoaition Extubit 4, s
09:31:10 1 Q. Mr. ORoark, s [ understend it, dF'i is not 05:36:02 T zip eode of 28202 has been entered,
05:31:12 B required to and does not file tariffs or price listy 09:36:06 [ Do you see that?
29:31:18 5 for the servioes it offers in North Carolina. 08:36:06 9 A Yap
0§:31:20 19 Is thit sccurate? D9:36:08 10 Q. T tell you that is & Carione, North
08:31:24 11 A, Trmnot & tefecom attorney. T'm not sure what 09:36:10 11 Carolina zip code.
09:31:28 12 the rules and regulations xre for North Carolina, T 09:36:10 12 A Okay.
D9:31:34 13 deferto Cheis on thm. 09:36:12 13 Q. There is a.question that says, Do you qualify
093131535 14 Q. Okny. There is a dPi Teleconnect website 09:36:12 14 fir Lifeline mxistance?
09:31:38 15  though, isn}t there? 05:36:16 15 And I believe you tokt us earlier that in
09:31:42 16 A Yes 09:36:18 16  Narth Carolina roughly 75 percent of your cesidential
08344 17 Q. And thet website desoribes your services and 09:36:22 17 customers wre Lifeline customers?
09;131:46 18 prioes for those services in various stxtes. Is that 09:36:28 18 A Tdon't believe I said in North Carcline.
[EXEIEE L] 1% cprrmct? 09136129 192 Q. Okay.
09:31:48 20 A, 1 befiave thet you oxh do price and product 09:36:28 20 A Isid our customer base in general. About
09:31:56 21 jookup cm that website, yes. 09:36:32 21 70 percent of our custormer base is Lifeline customers.
03:31:58 22 Q. To the beet of your knowledge, # the pricing 09:36:26 22 Q. Do you know whether thit percentage &
09:32:00¢ 23 inforrmation oo dP; Tel £4's website and 09:36:38 23 pignificantly different in North Carolina then it i
09:32:04 24 up $o dete? 09:36:40 24 in-—-
09:32:08 25 A, Tothe best of my Jmowiedge, #is. T~]— 05:36:40 25 A 1don't know.

Page 23 Page 25
09:32:14 1 TI'dhevetolookstit 09:36:42 1 Q- And the last line o the left, it says,
09:32:22 2z Q. AsTunderstand it, P pever raquires 4 09:36:44 2 *Custoovers of Narth Carcing are requiced to complae
09:32:24 3 depositalits customers. Ty that soriae? 09:36:48 3 Naoth Carolioa service sgroement Please chiok bere”
09:32:28 4 A That's scourate. 693136350 [} Do you poe thar?
a9:32:30 $ Q. Doey dPi neod & costormr's resl nme in ooder 09:3§:%2 5 A Yep
09:32:34 € Sor that custnoer o sign up Sor home phone service? 0%:36:52 6 Q  Now, that's not typical af dPi, as !
£8:32:40 7 A We require 1 name, yes. 08:36:56 7 understend it
D9:32:42 8 Q. Do you require the resl oame? 09:36:56 ] As S understand Exhibit 3, usually no
09;32:46 L) A Well, how would we know if it's the resl name: 09:37:00 9 confracts are recuired.
09:32:48 10 ornot? We require a name W don't require 09:37:02 16 Can you explain tous why + contrect it
09:32:52 11 identification. 09:37:04 11 required in Morth Caroline where it's not requined in
09:33:42 12 (Exhibit 3 marked ) 09:37:06 12 most cther states?
09:34:08 13 Q. M. ORoark, o Extibit 3 ofyot deprsivion, 03:137:08 13 A Na
08:34:12 14 ook toyour right-mnd cobumn to the QdcAs. There's s 09:37:12 14 Q. Bafire today e you aware that the contmc
09:34:18 15 question that says, Do you need my real name to sign up 09:37:14 15 v requined in North Caroline?
08:34:20 16 for home service? 09:37:24 16 A No Isuppose taat that's » Jegal regulatory
09:34:22 17 What's the answer oa dP{'s wobsine? 09:37:30 17 s
09:34:28 18 A Ubbwh, 09:38;08 18 (Exhibit § oaried )
09:24:28 19 Q. Could you read the snswer? 09:30:12 19 Q. Mr. OReark, 1edl me when you've had & chance
09:34:30 20 A, Absohunely not All we need is your sddress. 09:38:14 20 1o review Exhibit 5 and are ready for me o ask my
09:34:52 21 Q. N, yous welbsive allows 3 CUROMET T LR 3 09:38:16 21 questions.
09:34156 22 North Carclina #ip code and soe what services and 09:38:16 22 A Olay.
09:34:58 23 ices AP offery in thet sen. Carreer? 09:38:36 23 Q. Mr. ORoark, Il reprement to you that this
9:15:02 24 A Ve 09:38:40 24 infiymation is whet's populsted after you put in the
09:35: M 25 {Exchibit 4 soarked.} 039;38;46 25  Chesiote zip code that wa looked at earfier.
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05:38:48 1 Haves you seun this type of informsion 09:43:56 1 First of all, 1 tuke it given that you
09:38:50 2 before? 09:44:00 2 said chat the business sorvioes wers provided by &
09:39:58 3 A Yer 03:44:04 3 thind party, that this page is addresting residential
09:29:02 4 Q. Based on your review of that document, do you 09:44:08 4 pervices in North Carclios,
09:35:06 5 wen anything that would suggest thet the pricas that 09:44:08 5 T that eoprect?
08:29:08 & e quoted in this document are inaccurate? 05:44:00 L A Upduh
09:41:10 ? A. Well, without having my product catalog in 09:44:10 ? Q. Iyl
09:41:12 8 ot of me, it would be impossible for me to verify 09:44:10 e A Yt itis
09:41:16 9 ali thewe prices. But 1 dont see anything that jumps 03:44:12 ? Q. Thwnkyoa Soinmooth oo the basic sesvice
09:41:20 10 out of me & just obviously, glaringly inncourate. 09:44:16 10 reteic 3999, Corect?
G9:41:44 11 B, again, I'd hewe to -- I'd have ta g 09:44:18 11 A Correct.
09:41:48 12 back to my affice, pull up my product catalog, go C9:44:18 12 Q. There ia 5 2ore on the sacvice activation
08;41:50 13 through every ore of these prices to verify whether or 09:44:25 13 chamge
08:41:54 14 oot it was 100 percent accurmis ar net. 09:44:26 14 Do you wee that?
09:41:56 15 Q. Fuir encugh. And subject to that, let's go 09:44:26 15 A Ida
09:41:58 16  through this doctment, and 1 sk you soene questions 05:44:28 1§ Q. Does dFi charga any sarvice comnection charges
09:42:02 17 showit 05:44:32 27 witsaustwars in North Carolins?
09:42:02 18 A. Okay. 09:44:34 18 A, We pass through the LOCW waiver to our
09:42:04 19 Q. On the quote cokumn on the ledt side of the D5:44:42 13 costomens. Sosince we are shlt to qualify for that
09:42:08 2D first puge of Exdubit 5, theee's an upgradies section. 09:44:48 20 promaticosl coedic from Ball Sovth, then we are abie w
09:42:14 21 Do you see that? 09:44:34 21 pot charge  custome? activation fee. Were it not for
09:42:16 22 A VUbhuh 09:45:10 22 e LOCW wiliver, we would hive to chenge & custaser
09:42:18 23 Q. And it sppears to me that this web page 09:45:14 23 ectiveion fee:
08:42:22 24 muxometically pleces the & Chob Prigram on the 09:43:16 24 Q. 'Whatis —would the customer sctivation fee
08:42:26 25  customers bill, uniem that customer gocs in and 09:45:20 25 bethat you would charge bant for the LOCW waiver?
Page 27 Page 29
05:42:28 1 dicks retnove. 09:45:24 1 A. Td lave to pull up my —~ I'd bave to g0 look
08:42:30 2 Is that right? 09:45:28 z vy cost shwets. Wit do cost-based pricing.
03:42:32 3 A, Tmnoxmre T bavetn—Tdheveto 03:45:36 3 Q. The North Casoline Conrission rasently decided
09:42:36 4 check ~ C9:45: 40 4 # dispute betwoen dPi North Caroling regarding — I'm
09:42:38 s Q. Okay. 09:45:44 £ 20my ~betmen & and ATAT Notth Carclina regarding
09:42:46 6 A~ ifthe person wha prepared this checked the 09:45;50 (1 credic P bud requesnad for that lne charge waiver.
09:42:48 7 code program. OB:45:54 7 Corret?
09:42:52 ] Q. T tell you that ia the way it populates 09:46;00 B Are you swere of ter?
09:42:56 9 ‘when you initially g on the page. I populates as 09:46:00 9 A, That Narth Caroling tas decided that case?!
09:45:00 10 upgradefremove, 1o where oty understanding is you have 08:46:04 16 Q. Yes, st The Commission
09:43:02 11 inclick the ranove in arder 1080t pay the $3 & mootk. 09:46:12 1 A o oot an attomay, and T oot ine.
09:43:086 12 ¥ thet's insccurate, T'd like you to 09:46:14 12z iy & 5o 'm sot iy o
09:43:08 13 supplemens tha with yoay mtomey. 09:46:18 12 all of the rulings in North Carolim Commission.
09:43:10 14 A Allright Iwill We'd have to brvestigate 09:46:24 u 1 dou't emderstand what you're saking me.
04:43:16 15 ther and respond back 1o you 03:46:28 1% Q. Wal, s 1 understand i, Nocth Carcling
09:33:18 16 Q. I you wonid go now 10 O third page o 05:46:34 16 Connmision niled ageinst dPi in 2 dispecm regarding it
09:43:24 17 Exhibit 5. A? the 1op Jeft iy entided "Ovder 09:46;:38 17 shility 10 get certain requasted ke connection waiver
09:43:30 18 gyt 08:46:44 12 charges.
09:43:24 19 A Thlah 09:46: 44 13 A You'resn ATET atkorney, right?
09:43:40 20 Q. Aod what Td Ske o dos foos on the manth 09:46:48 20 So you would be ina positica to keow
DS:¢3:46 21~ cne month, two manth Grough xine month — ares 09:46:48 21 the
99:43:48 22 cight thare in. the midde of the page. 09146198 22 Q. ‘Well, Y'm naking you if indepsndent of what I
D9:43:50 23 Do yau sae whero T am? 08:46:52 23 jo waidl you sow in the position to know that
09:43:50 24 A Uhiwh G946+ 54 24 A 1 om Bnd ou,
09:43:52 25 Q. And ler's start with month one. 05:46:56 25 Q. But teday you don't know?
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©9:46:58 1 A No, todey | dan't kesow. 09:51:10 1 Q. For the first nannth below thes, the dPi Club
09:47:02 2 Do you want me to get tack to you oo 09:51:12 2 Program is free.
£9:47:04 3 that? 09:51:20 3 Down three lines from the top there you
09:47:04 4 Q. No,sir. 08:51:22 4 soe sub toml product is 25.147
09:47:06 5 A Clay. 08:51:26 5 A Yes.

08:47:14 § Q. Twrenld ke you 10 gt backc tous anthe Q9:51428 [ Q. And then your taoces are 6,87 for - so the
09:47:16 7 amount that dPi wonld change for a servics scrivation 09:51:32 7 total price for basic service in month aoe is £32.04,
€9:47:20 B charge in North Caroline, i it were unahle to get the 09:51:38 8 comect?
qg9:47:26 2 Yme coonection wiiver charge. 08:51:38 L A Yes
09:47:26 10 A Oy 09:51:50 10 Q. Allright Cao the mouth two column,
C8:47:34 11 Q. Guaing bazk 10 the month oae cobumn in D9:5L:56 11 everything is basically the smme until we got the first
C9:47:38 12 Exhibit 5 - and well me when you're ready. 09:151:58 12  month promotional credit
£9:40:10 13 A Olay. Goabesd 09:52:00 13 There obvicusly is no credit in month twe
05:48:12 14 Q. In monih one the prompt pay discount does not 09:52:02 14 and beyond, right?
09:46:18 15 apply ye!, Correct? 09:52:04 15 A Correct
03:48:20 16 A Thefs careet. 09:52:10 18 Q. In motith two the dPi Club Program fee of 53
09:48:22 17 Q. Balow thet tere iv 3 first roonth, peoenosional 03:52:24 17 also kidos in. Comect?
08:48:26 18 credit And the credit amount of 520.04. 09:52:18 18 A That's the one thet the customer opted not to
09:48:30 19 Can yeu exxplain what that is? 09:52:20 19  remove?
03:48:32 28 A To. Doyou want me 1o get back o you oo 09:52:22 29 Q. I like the way you stid that, That's the one
09:48:44 21 a? 09:52:26 21  the customer opted not to remove. Yes, sir.
DO:48:44 22 Q. Tell you whet Well regroup at the end. 09:52:28 22 A Okay. If the custormer opled to retain that
03:48:46 23 A Oly. 09:52:34 23 club program, it starts in st month (wo.
09:48:50 24 Q. Balow gt theve's an FCC sibscriber charge of 09:52:38 24 Q. Gota little bit higher taxes now, right?
03:4B:56 25 350. Below that there's 1 USOC arder charge for $1.65. 09:52:40 28 A Ubebah
Page 31 Page 33
09:49:02 1 Dot i kv whvas that USOC arder coarge 0%:32:40 1 Q. So the custorner in movith two pays $63.23 for
08:45:04 ] 09:52:48 2 basic service, right?
DH:49:14 3 A Mo I'd bave to gt back 10 you on that as 09:52:50 3 A Ub-hvh
09:49:22 4wl 09:52:52 L] Q. Now, that's if he payt on time
09:49:30 H Q. There's another service sctivation charge 09:52:56 5 Whet if this is one of those manths that
09:49:32 € line, but below that there's an AAM fee of S5 & month. 09:52:58 6 the customer Bils behind and gets the paymest lase?
09:45:39 7 Doy dnomv what that is? 09:53:02 7 Doos dPi chargs aything sdditiona] to
09:49:40 § A Timf's scoourt sdministration and maintenance 09:53:04 8  thet custorner if he ot she is lase paying in month Twe?
D9:45: 42 9 s, 09:53:12 3 A Bthers nlste foe? Js that what you're
09:49:52 10 Q. And why dows dPi charge thet fee? 09153314 10 asking?
09;50:02 11 A H the nature of u prepsy cuptonwe that we 09:53:16 11 Q. Well, in there any additional churge thet thet
09:50:04 12 huve o do s awiui Lot of sccours admirseration and 09:53:18 12 customer is going to pay if be does not ity oa time in
09:50:10 13 maindemance work. 'We have o reach oot i that 09:53:20 13 muvath two, regandiess of what you call #?
09:50:14 114 remind that of when their p 09:53:24 14 A Td have to get back to you on that. 1
09:50:20 15 grodor, We kave to remind that customer 10 come in 09:53:26 15 undersiand that laie foes vary by siate. And Id have
09:50:22 16 oo ke prymens. We heve 1o do s awfil Lot of reach 09:53: 4 16 tocheck intothat
69:50:28 17 cout work to belp manage thet customer, make s that 09:53:38 17 Q. Olary. The lust column we're going to took e
G9:50:32 18 omtomer dosmt lost BVicE. 09:53:52 1a on this aheat is month thres. Ft's basically the same
09:50: 34 i9 ‘We slasc have 10 be willing to make 09:53:56 13 a8 month v until we gat 1o the promet pay discoum.
09:50:36 20 payIDenl ETangementt with that customer if necded nd 09:54:02 20 A Ubhun
09:50:38 21 peceasary. Sothet we can allow that working poor 09:54:02 21 Q AsTund it, ifyour has paid
09:50: 42 22 ot 1o harve their servi pred. We do 69:54:10 22 oo time in the previous mornth, they pet & 310 credit o
09:50148 23 amuwiil dx of tife manageoent kind of sctvides with 09:34:19 23 the neat montlr's bill.
09:50:54 24 that fior that In exchange fior that, 09:54:16 24 B that accurme?
09:50:%8 25 wecharge and collect an AAM for, 09:54:20 25 A Hthe custgmer pays on time in month two, be
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69:54:24 1 ges s $10 crodit in meonth thres, yes. 05:56:48 1 BelSouth for mbstatially less it can dsin it from
08;541:26 z Q. And 90 if the custtavier had not paid on Time in 09:36:32 2 me, why would he do business with me?
09:54:32 3 muewh two, they would nee get that $10 oredit in manth 09:56:56 3 Q. Let me aak ooy question again. Make sure you
09:54:34 4 thees. Right? 09:57:00 1 heardhright
09:54:36 S A Hehas 10 pay prompdy to get the promp pay 09:57;00 5 My question was, is it MOXRE O My
09:54:40 £  discomt Yes 09:57:04 £ that dPi'p success in the muackes it it has chosen to
09:5¢:42 7 2. Tmnot trying ¥ be &yt aleck. st 09:57:08 7 compete o in North Caroline is not dependent an dPf's
09:54:44 B vmnl 10 make the record clesr, 09:5%:12 & being able to meet tve price shat ATET would offer for
08:54:46 L] A Itz called o prompt pay discount. Right? He 08:57:16 §  besically the sxmo service?
09:54:53 10 e to Pey prcepty o qoality fior de promes py 09157318 a0 MR, MALISH: Tm going to object tothe
D9:54152 11 dissonmt. 09:57:20 11 form of the question.
09:54:52 12 Q. lundersand. 09:57:22 12 Q. (By M. Tumer) You can snsver,
09:54:54 13 A Olay, 09:57:34 13 MR TURNER: Chris, he's locking af yeu.
06:54:54 14 Q. So this cussomer paid proeptly in mesth two, 09:57:36 14 Fheard your objoction. 1esked him to answer myywwy.
09:54:56 15 g0 inmanth three he's paying & total of 53.23 for the 09:57:40 13 MR MALISH: You can answer.
09:55:02 16 besic Mcvice. 09:37:40 16 A Custamers look for the best price. H
09:55:04 17 Right? 09:57:44 17 BellScuthfs price is mibsiantislly lower than my price,
09:55:04 18 A, Ubduh 08:57:50 18 wmmm“wmm
08155204 18 Q. Yougoiosay yes. 03157154 13 My customer wanty i get the best price
09:55:06 20 A Ya 09:57:58 20 that he can get for the same service or for
09:55:08 21 Q. But if that samve customes had ack paid 09:58:02 21 Mﬁemm Ofmmym
£9:55:08 22 prompdy it manth teo, tht custonser would pay 53.23 in 09:58:08 22 parketplece is gning to depend 0 may deing able to be
09:55:14 F£| onth theee, Cormect? 09;:58:08 23 cormpetitive with sl of the verious alternatives that
09:55:16 24 A Correct 09:58:12 #4 that costonser hats wvailable to bim.
09:55:18 25 Q. Asmmne that a custamer with &0 exemplary 09:%8:16 25 Why would you think tht my qustomer
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69:55:22 1 credit recocd, 0o iesaes at ol with sy other utibity 09:58:18 1 wouldaot b sansiiive o your price beng
09:55:28 2 companyis in Cherloms, North Carcline and comes %o 09:58:20 2 miwtarislly lowe thaz mine? Thei doamn't make any
09:355:34 3 dPj and wants t buy basic service. 09:58:24 3 semeepms That doen't make business seme, It
09:55:36 1 Does that custrmér jpet better priciag, o 09:58:26 4 domnt ke econorsic sarwe.
09:55:40 5 ix this the pricing you offer scrous the bosrd for 09:58:24 5 ¥ dony understand why you vl aslc e &
D5:55:44 § basic service? 08:50:32 6 quastion Hike thay. Tt seerns 0 be 8 nonsmsical
09:55:44 7 A This is the product we price — we offer 09:58:36 ? question. OF =y wuccens in the markg
09:55:46 B across the bosrd for basic service. 09:58138 €  guing 1o depand upon my price being competitive:
09:56;00 5 Q. And I bebieve you told us eartier that you 09:158:2§ 9 Q. (By M. Twner) Ms. O'Roaxk, are you - 1
08:56:04 16 don't kuwow what the ILEC tmight charys in the seine area 09:59:28 10 understend, a8 you said, you'ts st swere of the price
09:%6;:08 11 in Norh Cariing for basic service. 08:59:32 1 thet ATET i Chatloth: mey cherie for similer servicst
£9:56:12 1z Is that accurate? 09:509:38 12 Let the ank s Do yoo — a1¢ Yo sare
€9:56:12 13 A That's sccurate, 49:59:42 13 of prices fhat olfer propeid entiies io the Charlot,
09:56:14 11 Q. Solts fur to sy, ixit i, ts &PYy 09:59: 48 14 North Casoline markes charge for their basic sarvice?
09:56:16 15  suecest in the market in which it has cb p 09:59:52 15 A As & otivpdny, we do — we shop the
08156118 16  nNonh Caroline is not based oo baing ahle to compese 09:59150 16 ketplace. A & cowrpansy, we do five shop. We
09:56:22 17 ‘with the price thet the ILEC charges. £or basically the 10:00:98 17 have distribution charrwds thay srvolve kocal agenss,
09:55:28 18 samedarvice? 10:00:12 18 S eepanpin Andthose Local agonts sre siutely sware
09:56:28 19 A Why would you sy het? 10:00:14 15 of what oher prices are svailable ie. the near Jocal
09:56;28 20 Q. Tm asking you the qoestion, r, 10:00:18 20 markeplace.
09;56:32 21 Is that acturate or Boe? 10:00:20 21 You know, sy town, Narth Carolins, 2
09:56:32 22 A No. 1don't think thet's accurate. 16:00:24 22 snwll commmamity in North Carolina, the agens that
09:56:38 23 Q. Oy, ol yous trll ma sy that's ok 10:00:28 23 opurims Ay lowa is gring W be sware of wimt
09:56:42 24 scowste, in your view? 1D:00:32 24 prices and prodh ilabe o b in
09:56:44 23 A. ¥'my customer can obtain service from 10:00:34 25  his jocal mavkeplace. He's gring 10 give ns that
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10:00:38 1 informetion md sy, you kow, were overpriced. My 10:04:28 L Pdhavetogotmck lomy office, campare these prices
10:00:44 2 sales are suffeving because we're not eompetitive. You 10:04:32 2 with ey pricing eatalog to give you an sccuris anfwer
10:00:46 3 kmow, that type of information is going to come butk to 10:04336 3 ot quesiion.
10:00:48 L] u 10:04:40 4 Q. And undersianding wnd scoopting tha, is there
10:00:52 5 ‘We will also reach cut wd shop 10:04:42 5 anything todey St staacs oot as cbvicusty naceurae?
10:00:54 & competitors peciodically just to see whether or not our 10:05:48 L3 A Sobject yo the — my surlier angwer, no.
10:00:58 T prices ane competitive. IMwe see s downwand trend in 10:05:50 7 Q. Oy, Lets take a broek now.
10:03:04 8 oursales, well take 8 look at price aad product, see: 10:05:52 8 (Break taken from 1005 am_ to 10:21
10;0L:08 9 ifthat could be the cmme of it 10:07:08 5 am)
10:01:14 10 So, yes, We're fumiliar with what the 30:21;82 10 Q. {By My, Turmer) Mr. Bollinger —
10:01:18 11 prevailing prices st in cur local marketplaces. 10:21:54 11 MR, MALISH: ORoark.
10:01:22 12 Q. 'When dPi considers the prevailing price in the 10:21:56 12 Q. (By Mr. Tumer) Fm soy. Mr. ORowk?
10:01:26 13 local meckotplace, docs the company look only et other 10:21:56 13 A Yeu.
16:0k:28 14 prepeid companies prices, or do they ook 2 s} 10:21:56 14 Q. Youready?
10:01:32 15 prices? 10:22:00 15 Are you ready?
10:01:42 16 A, 'Well, all is o big word. There's 8,00 CLECs L0:22:02 16 Or do you need » mirute?
10:01:48 17 operating in other states. I think in any given state 10:22:02 17 A Y
10:01:52 18 thars could bo hundrds. Wo dont shop every one of 10:22:02 38 Q Oy, Backfumsdortbraak. Mr. ORewtk,
10:01:56 19 than, e 10:22:00 19 the estimany thet dP} filed in this docket in North
30:01:58 20 Q. Do you shop AT&T's in North Carolina? 10:22:14 20 Carclina was originally subsnited by Mr. Bon Boliinger,
10:02:04 21 Or do you know? 10:22:18 21 BOLLENGER
10:02:04 22 A Occasionally, 10:22:20 22 As | understand it, you are going to
10:02:04 23 Q. Youmentiowed that Srom time 1o time the local 10:22:20 23 appoeratthe hegring in Novth Caroling 43 &7y
10:02:10 24 sales agent wilt corne back wnd if it's accurste sy, 10122124 24 witness in this docket.
10:02:12 25 hey, we're overpriced. 10:22:26 28 T that your understending?
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10:02:14 1 A, Right. 18:22:36 1 A Tdoo't know thet I've discussed that with
10:02:14 2z Q. Haveyou ever received feedback from sy Jocal 1¢:22:40 2 Chrs
10:02;20 3 sales ngent that you were ovenpriced in North Caroline 10:22:46 3 MR MALISH: You're taking over bis
10:02:22 4 wihen compared specificelly to AT& T pfies in North 10:22:46 & temimony end sponscring for 495,
10:02:28 -] Carolina? 10:22:52 5 A Todwy? You
16:02:28 £ A Yea 1received feedback like that before. 1 19:22:54 6 Thwought T wea refersing 10 some fonure
10:02:32 7 don't know specifically if T received it in North 10:22:56 T evenr
10:02:36 8 Corolitu ornot. But I have received fccdback fiom 16;:22:58 ) MR TURNEE: Iem
10:02:38 S agents saying hey, you know, ATET is ~ is offering 10:22:56 ? Q@ (By Mr, Tume) My undersianding is thie you
10:02:42 10 this price or runming this promotion. And we're not 10:22:58 1¢  will sppear st the North Carclina Public Service
10:02:46 11  competitive. You know, that fype of infosmation 10:23:02 11 Commission —~ st the hoaring on this mstter in Nowember
10:03:18 12 (Extsibit 6 macked ) 18:23:04 12 il ooy the wemtinany of Mr. Bollinger as though it
10:03:20 13 Q. Mr ORewk, when you've had e chanee to look i0:23:08 13 were your own
10:03:20 14 s Deposition Exhibit 6 and are ready for me to ask you 10:23:08 14 Ts that 5ot your understanding?
10:0%:26 15 questions, et me loow 10:23:10 15 A Idon't know that that decision has bees made.
10:03:40 1€ A Oy, 1p:23:16 16 MR, TURNER: Iguess vall noed o take 3
10:03:40 17 Q. This s a batit service just like we Jotked 2 15:23:18 17T ek
10:03:56 18 et sgo in Exhibit 5, The only diffence being 10:23:18 18 MR MALISH: Yesh
10:04:00 1%  tha this customer spplies for and receives Lifeline 10:23:20 19 MR TURNER: Lats uke nbréak.
10:04: 04 20 credits 10:23:20 20 (Break taleen from 10223 am. 10 10:23
16:04;:08 22 My fuestion 1o you is simply, if you will 10:28:32 21 am)
10:04:10 22 joak through this mnd let me know if you see anything 10:28:32 2z MR. MALISH: 5o ket ma explain what ar
10:04;:12 23 thet stands out to you s inaccurste show any of the 10:28:40 23 mitmtion i bere.
10:04:16 24 pricing set ot in Exhibit 5. 10:28:42 24 Mr. O'Roark is et 10 metify on behulf
i0ro4:24 25 A, My sywer would be the seme a3 bedore, That 10:28:44 25  of dPi on these procacticn cases heve and oow, In
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10128154 1 Novembe' — gs You've sest from ane of these exbibits, 1C:32:44 i todey oux of defach. Right? Bectuse thers was 20 ono
10:28:58 2 there is & sale of shares. 1f3 thearstically possible 10:32:48 2 dgnto coome. Thet mony well chengs by November. And
10:29:06 3 thatthe new ownat may choose to not Sy with ~ with 10:32:52 3 there mwy be somebody back in Pris's position. Thare
10;29:18 4 Mr ORoark. Or may designate samebody else. And be 10:32:56 4 maybe somwbody shxt: tht — thet - that would be —
10:29:22 5 foterit MV - he woukda't have corgol a that poine. 10:33:00 L) that fys would mare sppeopiniely fall in their soma
10:29:26 & Bt the plan i for bim 10 be the e 10:33:04 € than i e,
10:29:34 7 MR TURNER: We'll contimoe the: 10:33:06 7 5o my parsofial concarn sbout this i that
10:29:36 E:] deposition without waiving way sights we have. 1 10:33:10 ] i the past v shways had the option of me being 2
10:29:42 % undersund by the o-mail syeem the we were here 10333:14 S wites We.opted for me not o be. In tee futore we
10:25;44 19 exprasaly and voluntarily, salely becave: we belived 10:33:16 10 would bave the aption of me being the witnews, b we
16:29:46 11 thet he would be the withoss ~ 10:33:18 11 mowy well ot for re oot 0 ba
10:29:48 12 MR MALISH: Right. 10:33:22 1z And ] just don't waet %0 g0 o record a8
10:29:48 13 MR, TURNER: - that weild be testifying 10:33:24 13  commmitting %o something n Nowerber when thet coold
10:29:50 14 liveonthe sund S0 changes, we're resarving 10:33:26 14 well be puiect o change.
10:29:52 15 all rights we have. 10:33:30 15 Q Olay.
10:29:54 11 MR MALISH: Iunderstand. 10:33:30 16 A H—if—if o = baving ove preference in
16:29:54 17 MR. TURNER: At that point. 10:33:34 17 the pas betwen mysef and Brisn, for ecarple, we
10:30:04 18 Q. (ByMr. Torner) My ORowk, if the new 10:33:30 18 chews Brisn Right?
10:30:06 15 owpcs dooot make & contrary Gecision, do you have any 10:33:40 19 S0 hurving our yrefarenct i the fosary
10:30:12 20 d with appasring and adopting this 10:33:42 20 botwem mysdf snd someone clse tht ey or mey not be
10:30:186 21 wytimemy a2 the honring in North Carclin in this 10:33:46 21 cgloyed with the conpany tadey, we might wall choose
10:30:22 22 docsmot? 10;33;50 22 somebody dle.
20:30:26 23 A Well, agin, jum uking whet Cris said, you 18:33:90 23 And 1 don't want to go om record ag
30:30:30 24 presented a docoment that says the company is fx sale. 10:33:52 24 commnittng W0 yomothing in Nenemiber when tut's — when
10:30:34 25 Obvicusly we're in & limbo stage right now, trying io 10:33: 56 25 there's gring to be powntially lom of chenges betwon
Page 43 Page 45
10:30:36 1~ wyiting for tht sale 1o dose. 10:34:00 1 nowsad then, and we are potentially going 1o heve
10:30:40 2 T have eew ownership, naw stockholders 10:34:04 2 other optians available 1 Us thut we dou't have
10:30:42 2 that Tve never worked with before that T don't know 10:34:086 k) svailable sodey,
10:30: 44 4 gaxchabout Solbwve no— Ieannct pake wry 10:34;06 4 Do you understand my ooncem?
10:30: 48 5 agsuraeces o wWhat's peing to'be going oo with this 10:34:10 5 Q My quastion w you simply is if you voiced it
10:30:52 € companyin Novetmber. I0534:12 6 o the et you need t0 snd are you resdy t move on
10:30:54 7 And ¥ — o § dion't want 10 g0 Do reoord 10:34:16 2 A Okay.
10:30:56 8 committing to saoething thet 1 may o may ool beve sy 10:34:26 ] Q. Foriw purposs of wday, L xm oparating
10:30:%8 S control over. 10:34:30 3 imdetthe asumption thit you will, unlesy something
10;31:00 10 Q. Thar's act my question. 10:34:32 10 changes, appesr in North Carolng in Novercher and adopt
10:31:00 11 A Okay. 10:34138 11 Wir. Bollinger's tatimony.
10:31:02 12 Q. Tunderstand and acceg tht the pew company 10:34:40 12 I that = go you unkersond tht that's
20:31:96 13 mage decide no, Tom CrRoark is act the person to do it. 10:34:42 12 the sesumption Tm working under Yodey?
10:31:10 149 And we'll deal with that if it conve. 10:34:44 14 A T undarstund thet's the: swssyian you're
10:31:12 15 My questicn in, i the new owners do oot 10:34;48 15 workingunder.
10:31:18 18 make that decision and if ity Jeft 10 you, do you e 10:34;:49 16 @ Did] besr you comectly 1o amy that Mr.
iD:31:1R 17 anry Tesscvazions sbout going o North Cayoline in 10;34:59 17 Bellinger is 0o longer with the corpany”?
10:31122 16 Nowember and sdopting this testimorty and prosenting i 10:34:52 18 A Yu
10:31:24 19 oo belulf of dP5? 10:34;5¢4 18 Q. 'Whm did he depart the company?
10:32:18 20 A, Obviously in the past § waorknd fiox o big 10;:34;56 20 A Jaowary.
10:32:22 21 <oxnpanty, ind I was not the witness you chese. Cormect? 10:34:50 21 Q. Of 200,
10:32:26 22 % wesRon Bollinger. Right! Could have been me. 10:35: 06 22 A Yo
10:32:30 23 Waan'tme. R wus Brisn Bollioger, 10:35:04 23 Q. Was hix departure vohotery?
10:32:34 24 Ti heve: 3002y becauras Brinn Belingsr 10:35:08 24 A Ye
10:32: 36 25 dogm't wark for e coompeny aoy koger, T bere 10:35:08 25 Q. Tothe best of your knowladgm, did his
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10:35:10 i deparar: have aything to do with the departune of the 10:F7:46 1 We're locking at the Eirect testimony of
10:38:14 2 CEMM 10:37:48 Z  Brisn Bolfinger thar was filed Noversber 5%, 2008. O
10:35:14 3 A No 19:37:86 3 mes 4 trough — well, oo lime 6, doviously, you
10:35:14 L} Q. Doya: know why Mr. Bollinger Jeft the 10:38:02 4 would have 0 1 in your name snd your position with
10:35:186 5 company? 10:38:04 LI .Y
10:35:20 [ A You'd have to ask him. 10:38:06 ] Beyond tha, could you Hule socuraiely
10:235:28 7 . Have you hed any discossions with M. 10:38:08 T thar you want the one who took the lead with this
10:35:26 & Bollinger reganding why holeft the company? 10:39:32 ¥ dipute over procyctional credit with Bell South sitee
10:35:30 9 A Yeu 10:38:14 ¢ fuipception?
20:35:32 10 Q. Tm pot msking you 1o ks sy inferences of 10:38:22 10 A How tould I say that? Tto not Birien
10:35: 36 11 pasamptions, bat what &d M. Bollinger vell you was 10:38:30 11 Bollinger. Brisn Bollinger aiveady testified that be
10:35:38 12 the resscn be left the company? 10:38:32 12 omsthe one who iook the Jend, and Ouf's oot me S0
10:35:40 13 A To sccept other employment. 10:38:36 13 how could I tesify to thar?
10:35:42 bL Q. With wham? 10:38:36 14 Q. Solundersand, you would not adopt thet
10:35:44 15 A, Tdoa't imow. 10:38:38 15 pextian of the testimeny that says that you were the
10:35:52 16 Q. Door dPi currently have & vice-president of 10:38540 16 cnewhotook the lead in dealing with this dispute over
10:35:56 17 legel and regulmory affairs? 10:38:44 17  promotions] credie?
10:3%:56 pt.} A No 1c:aB:rd4 18 A, No, [did nee.
10:36:02 19 Q. Whois — is anyons wody camying on the 10:38:46 19 Q. Otoy: On knes 8 and 5, 1 indicaes Steve
10:36:10 20 dution and rasporadbilitics that Mr. Brllingor &id for 10:38:54 20 Watsan of Lowt Key Telocom, Inc., which functions 2
10:36:12 21 the compeny whea he was the vice-president of legal and 10:39:00 21 dPis billing and collection agent for pramatinn, Wso
10:36:16 22 regulstory afféin? 10;39:02 22 had - was involved in deating with this dispute.
10;36:189 23 A Well, we've outsourcod the legal work 10:39:04 23 1s that sccurstz?
10:36:22 24 ghviamly. We dan't have an sttomey an cur sinff. 10:39:04 24 A Ibetieve so.
10:36:30 25 And other dutics that he peformed have 10:38:10 25 Q. Hyve you worked with Mr. Watson in desling
Page 47 Page 49
10:36:34 1 Yeen wiocalid 10 ciber people. 10:39:14 1 vaith the disputes that are the subject of this hearing
10:36:36 H Q. Other people within the company? 10:39:18 2 inNoeth Caroline?
10:36:38 3 A Yes 16:39:28 3 Lot me sike that.
10:36:42 4 Q. Do you bave 2 copy of the prefiled testimony 10:39:32 4 Mr. ORosrk, g you sware of mactly
10:36:48 5 of Mr. Boltinger with you? 10:39:34 5 which disputes are &t issue in this hearing in Morth
10:36:52 [ A Bsthat this? 10:39:42 6  Corofina?
10:36:54 7 MR MALISH: Yesh. 15:39:42 7 A Tundeestand these to be the cash backs, 1
10:36:54 L] A Yo 1h:39:46 B ymdersiand thew 1o be the cash backs peior to s certain
10:36:56 [ Q. (By M. Turmer) And, Mr. O'Roark, 1need %o 10:39;48 9 dse. PriorioJune$,'07.
10:36:58 10 s ' going to explain 1o you why Tm shout 10 do what 10:40:02 10 Q. Hawe you spoken to Mr. Watson specifically
10:37:02 11 Tmsbout to do. 10:40:04 11 about eny of thase promotional disputes?
10:37:04 12 At lexst my view is that ATET is entitled 10:40:20 12 A Powsibly. Tve had varioes conversations with
10:37:08 13 to understand what it is you will say on the send, 10:40:24 13 M Watson
10:37112 14 whetitis you wiil not say o the stand so that we can 10:40:32 14 Q. Okay. Tell you what. Let's talk shout the
10:37:16 15  come into the hearing room prepered. Tn ocder to.do 10:40:34 1% pakare of the diwpotes first. 1 just w1 we if o
10;37:18 16 that, I'm going to sk us to go line — ot line by 10:40:328 16  have sn agreement on what we are talking about in this
10:37:22 17 line, but pevagraph by pamgraph through this 10:40:40 17 peoceeding.
10:37:26 18 testimony. 16:40:42 18 Asl d it, this dispule invoh
10:37:26 19 Anvd Trn going to ask You 0ne at a time to 10:40:46 1% the thrwe promotional offerings that are identified in
10:37:28 20 el us if you will sdopt the testimony exactly as is 10:40:50 20 footnote 1 of the prefiled testimony of Mr. Bollinger.
10:37:32 21 written, or pre there sy changes 10 the tostimony that 10:40;54 21 That footnote sppears on page 3.
10:37:34 22 youwould need so mwke in arder for you to get on that 10:40:56 22 & it Your understanding those are the
10:37:38 23 mand undiy osth and give this testimony? 10:40:58 23 Byee disputes &t ispe?
10:37:40 24 So that's what we're going to be doing 10:41:00 24 A Yer
10:37: 42 25  from bere = fior a liale while. 10:41:02 25 Q. Huve you scen Mr, Scont Ferguson's testimany,
13 (Pages 46 to 49)
DepoTexas

214.373.4977




THOMAS O'ROARK

Page 50 Page 52
10:41:06 1 the ATET witness, that describes the nanire of those 10:46:16 1 eoupon than ean be redetmot for a 5100 check
10;41:10 2 thwee promotions] offérings? 10:46:20 H The hypathetical wemmnes that the
10:41:18 3 A Yo 10:46:22 3 tariff'd rate flor thit ttlocomnwmisation sorvice, A, o
10:6i:16 4 Q. Specifically, at pages 6 through 8 of his 10:46:2§ 4 ahundeed dollaes & month xnd that Commission spproved
10:41:22 5 tesimony, Mir. Fernguson gives a0 overview of vkat is 10:46:29 5 wholesale dincount is 20 percent. Doest't have
10:41:28 6 invalved with esch of those three promaticnsl 10:46:32 & ything o do with ty | oursbers heve, Butit's
10:41:32 T offerings. 10:46:34 T juseasy math, 30 we can walk through and see if we
10:41:32 L] Sitting here today, do you have - do you 10:456:326 &  have s understanding of whet we're arguing sbaot.
16341336 5 ke issue witk anything tht he has said there in 10:46:44 L] Now, as Tunderstand it, if this were one
10:41:40 10 lescribing those thre jons? 10:46:46 pU:) of the promotions m isme bore, &P) would order this
10;41:42 11 A Dol taice insue with amything he sxid on pages 10:46:52 11 promotion aad AT&T — Im 5o sying thisisall it
1G:41:44 12 Giwough®? 10:46:56 12 shokd hive done, in your view.
10:41:44 13 Q. Yeu, sr. Jun the wiry he dascsibad the 10:46:59 13 Bzt ] undarstand thet t firet wop thar
10:41:48 14 el offering tealf, 10:47:09 1% happened was it ATET would sell tlocommmynication
16:41:50 15 Do you believe be socurately described 10:47:04 15 servioe Ato dPi and charge dFi $80, which is & hundred
10:41:50 16 g, or doyon have & conorrn with his description? 10:47:08 16 doliere s vceth lows the 20 porcen ok beck amoan.
10:43:30 17 A No. Tdont bave a objection. 10:47:12 17 B tht your uisdevpiandding of the first
10:43:32 18 Q. Okay. And s Tunderstar! it ~ and ' 10:47:14 18 mepinthe procoss?
10:43:38 19 basing this on page 4, lines 11 trough 13 of Mr. 16:47:16 19 A Of bonr it's done ar how it should be done?
10:43:40 20 Boltinger's direct tesimooy. 10:47:18 20 Q. Ofbow it sctally wits done.
10:63:48 21 As T umgderstand it, the complaint thet is 10:47:20 21 A Yoo They ourbiliat me. They billed me 530
10:43:50 22 thesubjoct of this docket in North Carolina anly 10:47:24 22 when thoy should have bilked me zero. Right? They
10:43:52 23 addresses promasional recuests thet 4 subrzitted up 1o 10:47:28 23 ovecbilied me. By admisxion they overbilled me.
10:43;:58 24 June Sth, 2007, Is that sccuraw? 10:47232 24 Owerbillod me $50. Bocmse my customer qualifies for
10:44:02 as A Towts tovrect. 10:47:34 25 the cosb back progrem. Shovid have received the cash
Page 31 Page 53
1044308 1 Q. Esch of the promations that are st ivsue in 10:47:36 1 beck progmm, | should bave beem billed zero. So they
10: 44112 2 this docket, es Lundemmnd f, provide thar 10:47:40 2 overtilled m $50.
10:44:18 3 ATET e user bought certain services, that ead user 10:47:42 3 By their ¢wa sdmisticm By the — by the
10:44:22 4 would receive s coupon for o curtain emount of cash 10147348 4 admision of you tetimony. It yoor — i's you
10:44:24 5 back 10:47:50 5  procedurs and your process to overbill me. And
10:44:24 § Is that wn sccunse staement? 10:47:54 £ foros me them to Ty %0 Tecover £0im you ik accaTe
10:44:36 b] A Thar's whet $cott Fergupon said. They e-madl 10:47:58 T bill afterthe fact Thats what bappos. Thars what
10:45:04 B youthe coupan. 10:48:02 & youdo. That's what your client doos. And they've
10:45:04 ] Q. And that coupom when redesmed woulkd antitle 10:48:06 5 admitted that's what they do.
10:45:10 10 thet ioa certain amount of cash back? 10:48;10 10 Q. Are you finished with your answec?
10:45:12 11 A Yo 10:48:10 11 A Yu
10:4%5:14 12 {Exbibit 7 marked ) 10:48:12 12 Q. Let's go back 10 my question.
19149136 13 Q. (ByMs, Turpe) Mr, ORowrk, what I want 1o 10:40:24 13 Do we agree that the first tap in the
10:45:38 14 donow js use this hypothetical 1 maka sure I 10:48:1¢ 1 process was that ATET would sell elecommunications A
10:45140 15 undersand eacdy whet by and is oot in Gispuse. 10:48:22 1S wo P and charge dPi $80 for thet servics?
1D:45: 46 16 Faow, { understand it thers are bogal 10:48:26 16 A Less any availabls proonotion. Asy avaiisb
10:45:46 17 argunents shout whet it & trlecommunicaiions service. 10548130 17 prosaotion bet ) qualify for. Any evailable promatiots
10:45:50 18 T'm ot asking you &0 gt info that whatsosver, Tm 10:48:32 18 that hes the impect of reducing the remil prica
10:4%:52 1% justtrying 10 ke sare that I know whether there is n 10:48:36 13 Q Mmnoe—
10:45:56 20 dizagressent over whit we'rs really sguing sbout here. 10:468:36 20 A I your emenple this proasotion reduces the
10:46:00 21 A Olay. 10:48:40 21 rouil price o zere. 5o should be billed s,
10:46:00 22 Q. This is & hypothetical ATAT rewsil premaotiona] lo:48:46 22 Q T vying 10 s i we sgree on what
10:46:04 23 cffering And Ive got it thers in Exhibit 7. Saysa 10:48:48 23 heppened I ondestand you are going to acgue wint
181463110 z3 cam purch b iextion service A 10;:48:50 24 siould bave luppenad. Al T'm ssking Girst is what
10:46:12 25 between Jamuary 1st wil Tune 30th and receive 3 10:48:54 2% bappened,
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DepoTexas

214.373.4977




THOMAS O'ROARK

Page 54 Page 56
10:49:54 1 As ] underyand it ~ 10:52:20 1 Q. Tn month two iy understgnding is AT&T would
10: 48:56 2 A And I've aiready snswered thet, Your client 10:52:28 2 charge ¥ 'SBG for telecommunication service A
10:48:00 3 overbiled me 380, Thar's what happened, 10:52:32 3 Comect?
10349302 1 Q. We're going o get facts, and you can 10:52:42 4 T just tryiag to figure ot
10:49:04 S chareowerize them lavr. 19:52:44 ] husically how y o 4 this to work, Al
10:49:08 6 The first step in the process, 43 1 10:52:48 & anderstend you 5o fir -
13:49:06 7 understand it, i you get an 380 bill. Then you 10:52: 48 ? A In month two AT&T would bill me the secsi)
10:49:10 B mibwwitted n yeques for addifional crodit, and ATET 10:%2:56 8 tariffless my disooant.
10:49:16 demiod that recuest 15:53:12 ] Q. And in month two would dPi submit a credit
10:49:18 10 Is that the wiry that it worloed, in your 10:53:16 10 request to AT&T?
10:49:18 11 nderstandding? 10:53:18 11 MR, MALISH: Scery. What? Ididn hear
10148120 12 A Yes. I was overbilled. 1 chsputad e bill 10:53:20 12 you
10:49:24 13 Filed A claim for the — for the additionsd credit 10:53:20 13 Q. {By Mr. Turner) In socewh oo would dF; polsmit
10:49:28 14 Andthen ATET refosod 1o give e e sddiioral credit 10:53:24 14 1 promotions) credt requent in this bypothesical 15
10:49:32 15 That's what bappesed. 10:53:28 15 ATAT?
10:49:34 16 Q. Inthis process after ATT hilled you $80, how 10:53:28 16 A |t was 2 one-time $100 credit?
10:48:42 1T powach of the credit would you have submited w request 10:53:30 17 Is thas the prometion, the bypotherical
10:49:44 18 fo? 10:53:32 18 peomdtion?
10:49:44 13 A Anded ddles, 10:53:34 bt ] Q. Vex. Ont time.
10:49:52 20 Q. AT&ET had already billed yous 80. AT right? 10:53:34 20 A Opetime. Solwould coly apply for it one
10:45:56 21 A Sbould Teve bilied me zera. Right? 10:53:38 21 e,
10:49:58 22 Q. Well, if you were billed 30 and you requested 10:53:34 22 Q. Soin manth two would dP} sppy for any
10:50:04 23 g 5100 credit, woldn't that net out 10 20 back to yoa 10:53:42 23 addtional promotinal tredir?
10:50:08 24 instend of & rero? 10:53:44 24 A. Notunder this hypothetical exampla. This is
10:30:08 %5 A ATXT offcrs the service o the customer — to 10:53:48 25 gone-time 5100 redit. Iweould only spply fir it

Page 55 Page 57
1815014 1 their tustomer, to the end uka customes, & 2o, 10582 1 once.
10:50:16 2 effectively reducing the tariff mte to zere, 10:53:52 2 Q. Allright. In it your understanding during
10:50:20 3 effectively reducing the retail cost of that servics to 10153:58 3 the time frames actually irvolved in this digrte —
10:50:22 4 =y 10:541:02 4 did 3% pay thas 580 pry in month one ar not?
10:50:24 5 For the - if the effactive proven i to 10:54:10 5 A You'rs asking me shout my acoounts paysble?
10:50:26 6 rednee the retad price 19 zoev, then I sbowld be 10:54:12 6 How my accounts paysble finction?
10:50:30 T bilad zevo. 10:54:14 7 Q. Do sking you during the titwe period hese —
10:50:38 ). Gaing back to the way it worked, after you got 16:54:18 8 T wying wundermand sauctly what bagpened, So
10450142 9 hilled for $50 for this service in month one, what wre 10:54:20 5 foom month one, if this were the hypothetical involved
10150:46 10 you sying i the amoumt of credit that A — that dPi 10:154:24 10 .- ifthis were the ofiving involved during this time
10:50:5¢ 11 vas wiong br? 10:54:26 1% period, AT&T sent you s kil for $80. And you sent
10:50:54 12 A The sume promo thet AT&T makes svaiiable io 10:54:30 12 ATET s eredit request for & hundred doliers for month
10:50:58 13 its end user customers it has to make available 1o my 10:54:36 13 poe.
10:51:02 14 end vser sustornans, @ hundred doliers. Right? 10:54:36 14 My questitn is smply in scenh one, did
10:51;04 15 Q. What is the dollar amount — after being 10:54:38 15 dPipay the $80, or did it withhold the $807
10:51:086 16 bitled $80, whae is the dollar smount of the credit 10:54:48 16 A Is 2 bypothetical?
10251410 17 reques thae OP would st in this ypothesical? 10;54350 17 Q. Itsahypothetical.
10251522 H A, In this hypothetioal? 10:54:52 16 A Youre aking me hypodwtically do I - do 1
i0:51:24 13 Q. In this hypothetical, Ather having received & 10:54:54 19 pay my bills, hypothaticaily spesking?
10:51:30 20 bl for $30 in memth ane. 10:54;5€6 20 Q. Na,sir, What Trn making is, durinng the tme
10:51:32 21 For momth ane, what smownt of credit ia 10:58:00 21 period itrvoived in this promotion -
10:51:36 22 dPirequesting? 10:55:¢02 22 A DidIpay my bills?
10:52:08 23 A Ifthe promotionsl offering it & hundred 10:55:04 23 Q - did you pay thet first momth bill and then
10:52:10 24 doliars, then dPi would apply for the full promotion, & 10:55:08 24 yubmit the credit requet you belisve you were entitied
10:52:14 25 undred doliars. 10:55:10 2% w?
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10:55110 1 On i you withhid any paysbles w ATAT 10:38:10 1 whatshould we do?
10:55:14 2 snying you dida't give me my credit; T act peying ym 10:58:12 2 Or weze: they mure convmunications shere
10:55:18 3 fordmt 10:58:12 3 they were tiymp to knep you shresst of what wes
10:55:24 4 A Youre ssking me what wis my accounts payable 10:58:14 4 happening?
10:55:26 5 pctios in the period Fasry Y4 theough huns 07 10:38:14 5 A They wery communications wheye they were
10:55:34 6 was? 10:50:16 6 kooping ATy sbrenst what wis happening.
10:55:34 7 ‘What was happening in acoouats pryahie? 10:5¢:18 1 Q. Tyt fisir tp gy then you were not personally
10:55:36 ] Q N, sir. 10:58:20 8 involved in the inner details sbout how these:
10:5%:38 9 A Whesher or not I was paying my bills? 10:58:32% 9  promotions were — ttuskly worked between 4P and
10:55:40 10 Q. Tm not going to charscterine it that way, 10:58:28 10 ATET?
10:55:42 11 A That's witet you're ssking me though, That's 10:58:38 11 A That was being managed by Brian Bollinger snd.
10:55:4¢ 12 effectively what you're saking me. 10:56:42 17  Steve Walson Right. Twes not irvodved in that
10:55:45 13 Q. Tm asking you, as & practice during this 10:58:04 13 Q. Back to Mr. Bollingar's direct tegtiemoxry a2
19:55:48 14 promotionsl periad, did dPi pay the billing that ATET 10:59:08 14 page 2, lines 10 through 16. Would you adopt that
10:55:52 15 submitted and then subemit & request ft¥ these 10:59:16 15 exactly as written, or it there srryihing you would
10:55;54 16 promotional credita, or &d dPi withhold payment in the 10:59:18 1€ change i onder to mikes that sccrste for you to come
10:55:50 17 amount it chasimed to be entited 1 the pramotionsl 10:59;22 17 wobesring dac?
10:56:02 18 eowlt thet had been deniod? 10:59:22 18 A Wa don't provide service to business
10:5%6:04 19 Or do you Jnow? 10:59:24 13 CUSTOTNANT.
10:56:06 20 A, Td have t0 30 back snd tavestignte my 10:59:34 20 Q. Is there anything else about thet paragraph
10:56: 08 21 acomunts paysbic processing daring dht period. 10:59: 35 21 thet you would want to changs?
10:36:14 22 1 don't think ita a reaschable quasticn 10:59: 40 22 A You know, first facilities based only in the
103565186 23 torxpect me o be sbis 1o sit bere sodiy nd el you 10:59:44 23 szmee of UNE-P. Correct? Ifthat UNE-P —we wete
10:5€:18 24 whemy Ttz were & 2004 wod 2007, 10:55:50 24 daing some UNE-P and therofine considerad 1o be
10:56:26 28 Q. Hits an scourste spswer, "I don't Jmow” is i0:58:54 25  facilitien bawed. 'We don't achwlly cem or operate sy
Page 59 Page 61
10:56128 1 fme ¥0:59:58 1 fucilities in thoas states.
10:56:28 2 A Okay. 11:00:04 2 Q. And when you just qualified that paragraph
16:56:28 3 Q. I thed the amwer? 11:00:08 3 only UNE-P and you dont serve business customen, is
10:56:28 4 A Olaxy. 12:00:18 1 tharthe case oo which ATAT is an ILEC?
10:56:30 5 Q. s tha the: arrwee, *1 douit oo™ 13:00:22 5 A You
10:56:32 6 A 1have to mvestigaze. 11:00:22 & Q. Anything elp¢ you want to change shout that
10;56:34 7 Q Okxy. 11:00:28 1 persgraph oo page 21
10:56:34 (] A, Do you want me 10 got back 10 you on dhat? 11:00:30 L} A No.
10:56:38 9 Q. We'll deal with thei a1 the end of the 11:00:30 9 Q. Begmning 2 line 17 on page 2 going through
10:56:40 10 deposition. 11:00132 10 the linc 2 on page 3, would you adopt that testimony
1035640 1 A, Okay. 11:09:36 11 exutly es witten?
10:58744 12 Q. Prior to June Sth, 2007 whai personal 11:00:48 12 A Through which Line on pege 37
10:56:48 13 mvolvement did you have with the promotional credit 11:00:50 13 @ Line2
10:56:52 14 dispuies that are the sulect of this document? 11:00:56 14 A Yes
19:56:56 15 A Jane 8th, 2007. 11:00:56 15 Q. Okay, Were you persanally involved in
10:56: 58 16 Q. Prarto Jun: 8, 2007. That's oy 11:01:04 16 the inner agr on which
10:57;02 17 understanding of the time frame imvolved in this i1:01:08 17 this languiage appeens?
10:57:02 1B dispute. 11:01:08 18 A ldon't - it's my understanding that there is.
10:57: 40 19 A My d i with these perticul 11:01:30 18 1o negoetistion. s dictated 1o us by BellSouth, and
10:57:42 20 dupates was lindted to commmication with Brian 11:03:12 20  we'rs given the choice to xign it or not sign it. And
10:57:46 21 Bolknger md commamication with Steve Witson. 11:01:146 21 thet v're not allowed 10 make iy changes to it
10;58:00 22 Q. Would you char scati 11:01:18 22 Q. Were you personally involved in the process by
10:58102 23 forus? 11:01:22 23 which thee inner connection sgraements wers entered
19:5B:04 24 Ard where I'm gaing weith this, wese they 11101124 24 intobetewoon dBi and ATET?
10:38:06 25  commumications over here's what we're deaing with; 12:03:30 23 A No.
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11303132 1 QDo you know whether dPi suggested any thanges 11308132 1 wsen” You made reforence sarlisr o the fine
11:01:38 T to'he nguage in the contract before 1 signed it 11;08:36 2 coonectioms srant waived,
13:01:40 3 whATET? 11:08:40 3 Theve was luigation xnd thers xil is
11:01:40 1 A Brian Bollinger told me thet we were nat 11:08:44 4 i 3ome sates between 4P and BellSouth sbout that
11:01:42 5 allowsd to make changas o that agreenon and thet we 11:08:48 5 Joe jon change waiver Correct?
11;01:46 6 were compelled 1o sign it asis. 11:p8:52 6 A, Comect
11:01:50 1 Q. And th was the sorney that 1aid Swt? 11:0B:52 1 Q. In that Etigation dPi has mken the position
11:01:52 ] A Bribe Bollinger sxid that. 11:08:54 8 that ik e the qualifications tiat BellSout's retail
11;01:52 9 Q. Hevwas the sowrney m the ime? 13:08:58 2 end xers would huve to meet and, thevefore, was
13:01:54 10 A Yo 11:09:00 10 entitied 1o thoee lina comncction chargs waiver
11:02:04 11 Q. Othyer han whet s 964 oot hert i thix 11:08:04 11 promoticnal aedits, vight?
11:02:06 12 sestimony, heve you resd kay of those tmer connection 11:09:08 12 A Right
11:02:04 13 ugrecments? 11:09:12 13 €, The Meordh Carthins. Cormmizsion b ruied e
11:02:10 i1 A No 11:09:16 14 dFi was wrong and ATAT was right.
11:02:14 15 Q. On pegn 3, lines 4 through 23, wenkd you sdept 11:09:18 1% Are you sware of that?
11:02:22 16 thet sxacdy s writen? 11:0%:22 16 A, Dakeady told you, I was tot sware of North
11:92:54 17 A Yo 11:09:24 17 Carolins raling
13:02:56 19 Q. You fiel you have the experience snd expertise 11:09:26 18 Q. Wars ¥0u swars thit the Florits Commissiot: Tas
11:02:358 19 w0 testify regarding the retail provisions of federsl 11:09:28 1% uboruled thet ATET was right and JPi was wrong on the
11:03:02 20 pew? 11:08:34 0 enat
11:03:04 21 A No, 11;039:48 21 A On thet specific issue, I don't know, Td
11:03:10 22 Q. Lines 25 through 30 oo page 3. 11:09:52 22 pwvoto golook I'd beve to go look stthe
11;03:14 23 Are you sdopting thar exactly as written? 11:09:54 23 correspondence. Tve seen various pieces of
11:04:12 24 A Well, on line 29 where it says "then being 11:09:56 24 correspandance concarning Florida.
11:04:28 25 crodited the diffarmoe,” we badn't boan credied the 11:09:58 25 Q. Very Iisfly, are you awar the dittrict

Page 63 Page 65
11:04:36 1 diffamnce. That's why we're here. 11:30:00 1 oourts in both Florids and Nerth Caroliog bive fforamsd
11:04:40 2 Q. Anything else you would change in lines 25 11:10:04 2 those respective Commiysion decisions?
11;04:42 3 through 30 of page 3 of the direct? 11:10:06 3 A o scery?
11:04:44 L] A No. 11:10:06 1 Q. ‘Were you sware the federal district ciaots in
11:04:5¢ s Q. On page 3, lines 31 through 33 and footnote 1, 12:10:10 5  Florida and North Carclioa have reviewed and affiemed
11:04:58 6 would you adopt those lines exactly es written? 11:10:14 & those decisions by the North Carcling and Flerids
13:05:08 3 A Yer 11:10:16 T Commiwion?
11:05:16 ] Q. On page 4 of the direct, lines 9 through § ~ 11:10:16 8 A, Regarding LOCW?
11:05122 % Tmsorry. Tmisapoks. 3i310:20 1] Q. Yes 6ir.
i1:05:28 10 Lings (sic) 4 of the direcd, fines © 1i:10:22 10 A Ohkay.
11:05:30 11 through 8, woukd you adopt those lines cxacty 2 11:20:24 11 Q. Wee you mweare of that?
11:05:32 12 oaiten? 11:10:24 12 A Again, I've seen various pleces of
11:05:48 13 A Yes. 11:10:28 13 dorumeation. Thave to go review it
11:05:52 14 Q. On page 4 of the direct, lines 3 tirough 18, 11:10:28 11 Q. Abright
11:05:58 15 would you sdopt thooe lines exactly a3 writion? 11:10:30 13 A Whether it pertains rpacifically to LCCW o
111083502 18 A Well, } dorit see how ] can adopt where it 11:38:32 16 ot Tmnotsure
11:08:908 17  sayz we haven't been notified one way or the other. 11:10:36 17 Q. Dexas dPi have copies, either in paper o
11:08:12 18 Ivehed reanss of communication where you sid you're 11:10:38 18 clestronic or okber form, of the acrusk senvice ordens
11:08:16 19 pot going to pay it, and you don't think youre 11:10:44 1% it mdoceitesd 1o BellSouth or ATET that ere
11:08:18 20 pbligated to pey it 13:10:48 20 aysocisted with each oredit it's seeking in this
11:06:18 21 Q. Aoy other changes you would make to lines 11 11:10:82 21 docket?
11:08:22 22 through 187 11:10:52 22 A Idon't know. You wktt me o check on that?
11:08:24 23 A Yo 11:10:56 23 Q. Well come back to that
11:08:24 24 Q. Online 1} there you sxid, "Although dFf met 11:10:38 24 A Olay.
11:08:28 25 thesame qualifications s BellSouth's retal end 11:10:58 25 Q. Are you ewane of way tecords that we
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113113060 1 ty in dFy's p ther could orntirm £ 11:13:42 1 castifics thit she 1ld Ms. Watson - Mr. Witsce in
11:11:06 2 each cradit dPi iz recuesting i this docket whether 11:13:46 k4 i Teing the theh back promxtions sre noe svailabls
11311:10 3 8 g WS ACtudly oost the satie terms sod 13:13:48 3 for resale.
i1:11:12 4 oonditions the BeliSouth end vser would have t jneet 11:13:50 4 To your imowdedge, did Mr. Watson sver
1l:11:18 ] undar these promotions? 11:13:352 % comwey that information to dPF7
11:11:18 & A Wil T've seen docomentetion of tead 11:1315% 1 A Notto oy knowiedgs
11:21:24 7 documentarion that stid in about 40 parcent of the 11:14:02 7 Q Ocpege 7M. Seagle testifien that she sent
11:11:26 B oo you Beve ynor customess LOCW waivecs whirs they 11:14:06 3 M. ‘Watson an s-roail on Angust 26, 2004 confirming thet
11:11:30 9  only had dwblecks snd Sd wet have any other 11:34:12 5 BellSouth would not resef] cash back offers.
11511334 10 featwws, ADSYkmow B, you kriow, that was the 11:14:16 10 To your incwksdge, tid M. Watscn sver
11:11:39 11 isgae. Thet we ordered these lines with the blocks, 11:24:1% 11 oty thet indoemation wo 47
11:11:40 12 becavse the blacks were called touch-tons blocking 31:14:20 iz A T dont know:
11:11:46 13 fesrores. Touch-tooe blocking famtioes. 11:14:22 13 Q. COnpage B through 5, Ms. Watsn — T'm sorry,
11:11148 34 To shoue 40 percent of the tuses we 11:14:28 14 Ma. Seagle tentifies that Mr. Witson submitied
11:11;50 15 looked s, you gave your clisses thoss cradit. And 90 11:14538 15 promotions] credit requasts for North Caroline cesk:
11:11:156 1% Tty — wod ey are called fasture i your taniff 11:14:32 16 back promotion on July 2005, snd she st him back an
11:12:00 17 Right? 11:14:30 17  e-mai mying dt's not svaiable fix ressle.
Ad:3z:p0 18 Q. I'mnot talking about line comnection. 1 1l:14:42 18 She alec towtifies thet Me. Witson sent &
11:12;02 19 apologim 11:14:44 19 rely el saying that he would let P lnow,
11:32:02 20 A I'msorry. You're jumping back xod forth 1i:1d:48 20 To your knowledgs, &d Mr, Wamon ¢ver
11:12:06 21 betwemn the twa. 11:14:50 21 o i kmowe abous thet semeil?
11:12:06 22 Q Olay. 11:34:52 22 A T don't imenw:
11:12:06 23 A You've got me oonfowed, 1i:14:58 23 Q. And juix o be Cear for e record, have you
11:12:08 24 Q Oky. 11:18%:00 24 had wny conversations with Me. Watvon about any of the
11:12:08 25 A Oksy. 11:18:04 25 moatters weojum de i Ma. Saagie's testimony?
Page 67 Page 69
11:12:08 1 Q. T'm poing back now o the promotional credit 11115:08 1 A No, I havent.
11:12:12 2 reuesz evobved in this docket i Notth Cascking, 11:35:08 2 Q. The face-to-face meeting o the e-mails?
11:12:18 3 A Cmhbece 31:15:140 3 A No, ! haven't.
11:12:18 4 Q Ym 11;15:14 4 Q. Lat's go back to Mr. Bollinger's direct
11:12:16 LS My qusaticn is, doss 3P have records in 11:15:16 S testimotry o page 4. Linet 19 through 22
11:12:2¢ § i possesion todey thit would show what specific 11:15:36 [ Would yoa sdopt thase lines exactly as
11:12:24 7 Pervicas it provided 10 each aoe of the end wers for 11;15:38 T written?
11:12:29 B whichit is seling 8 promotioml eredit request? 11:16:08 ] A Well, I would sey thet BellSouth hag denied
11:12:34 9 A Tdon't know the enswer W that. T'd bive 10 11;16:10 -] Our request.
13212236 18 chedkon et 11:16:12 1D Q. Olmy. Any other chenges you would make?
11:12:44 11 Q. Doyou have ATET wises Kristy Seagle's 11:16:24 11 A No.
11:12:48 12 aeimony in ot of you? 11:16:24 12 Q. On lines 19 through 20 there, you raference
11:12:54 13 ' hooking ut ber diract testimony 11:18:28 13 mmikiple inquicios by dPi about theye promgtional
11:%2:54 14 spocifically. 11:16:30 14 credit requents.
13:13;02 15 A Kristy Seagle? Is this it? 11:16:34 15 What were those ruliigle Equiries fhat
11:i3:08 16 Okay. Yag 1do 11:16:36 le dPi pade?
11:13:12 17 Q. Okay. O the direct tastizomy of My, Seagle 1i:16:48 17 A M Bollinges said thel be — in his testionony
11:13:16 13 onpeges4 snd 5, she discoas ot M- parson mesting 11:16:50 18  that I rend said that he had vent & recond of ¢-maily
11113:22 18  parMr. Watton in Birmingham, Alsharm on August 2004, 11:16:58 13 had gone beck and forth.
11:13:3¢ 20 Weare you in dht preting? 11:17:00 20 Q. Aside fioen that, can you tell us anything
11:13:32 21 A MNa 11:17:02 2]  shon the Dwltiple inquiries by 247
11:13:32 22 Q. Have you dscossed with Mr. Watson whather he 11:17:06 22 A No.
31:13:34 23 vz in thet meating? 11:17:30 23 Q. Wace you personally srvolved in maling those
11:13:36 24 A No 11:17:12 24 poultiple inquiries?
11:13:38 25 Q. On page € of My. Saagle’s tatimonyy, she 11117312 2% A Fo.
18 (Pages 66 to 69)
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11:17:18 1 Q. Back to the diract, page 4. Lines 22 going 11:21:52 1 potoough acouple other things.
11:17:24 2 guoogh page 5, Ene 3. 11:21:54 F4 You want to take & bresk for lunch, or do
11:17:28 3 Wauld you be sbie 1 adopt that exactly 11:21:56 3 youwnt to keep plowing through? Totally up toyou
11:17:30 4 g writin? 11:21:58 4 all
11:17:82 5 A Thet Brisn sscaluted and stempted 10 rescive 11:22:00 5 MR, MALISH: That's just thers the end of
11:17:586 6 this with Pam Tiprea? 11:22:06 6 direct. Sowejus have rebuttal o thet,
11:18:00 7 You want me to take Brian at it ward 1i:22:10 7 MR TURNER: I've got a few thmgs after
11:18:02 B that e &id that? 11:22:12 8 retnital,
11:13:04 9 Q. Well, we'll st with this. 1%:22314 ] MR. MALISH: 1 think — I'm just speaking
11:18:06 18 A. Tdon't have sty direct knowdedgt: be did tha, 11:22:18 10 formyself, I would sather — sounds like you heve
11:18:08 11 He said be did that. 11:22:18 11 sbot, another bour,
11:18:14 12 Q. Other then reading this testimory with his 11:22:20 12 MR TURNER: Miaybe hour end a balf, two.
11:18:16 13 pamedn b, tive you had cotversations with My 11:22:22 13 MR MALISH: | mean, I would rather clear
11:18:22 14 Bollinger shous what iv set forth on this page? 11:22:24 14 the decks and than go — go 10 the mirpon and get
11:18124 15 A Na 11:22:28 15 something to est there rather than ~
11:118:26 16 QT eukee it you did ot personally speak with 11:22:32 16 MR. TURNER: Mr. ORowrk, you're the
11:38:30 17 Ms. Tipeon? E1:22:24 17 witness. W'l take 2 break
11:38:30 ie A No 11:22:38 i8 A 1des't need abreak.
11:18:30 1% Q. Were you thers when Mr, Ballmger spoke to Ms. 11:22:38 14 ME. MALISH: 1think we thould take 3
11:18:36 20 Tipkom? 11:22:40 20 quick beeak right here.
11:18:36 21 A No 13:22:42 23 MR TURNER: That's fine.
11:18:42 iz Q. Page 5 of the divect, Lines 4 dwough 9, 11:22:42 22 (Break taken from 11:22 am 10 11:39
11:18:46 23 Waond yru bo sblé to adopt that exacty 11:22:44 23 am)
11:18:48 24 mawpmen? 11:38:22 24 Q (By Mr. Tumer) Mr. ORoark, do you have
11:19:00 25 A Iy referring to an exiibit tha [ did not 11:38:28 25 before you the rebuttal testimony of Brian Bollinger
Page 71 Page 73
11:18:02 1 prepare and thet I was not invaived in the prepenstion 11:38:30 1 filed November 15th, 20087
11:19:06 2 of Jt's—itf's an axhiibit that | assume wia prepared 11:39;32 2 A You
11:19:1€ 3 Try Steve Watson. 11:39:32 3 Q. Oapage2, lines 1 through 6, would you adopt
11:19:34 4 But I dar't have any rosson o daabt the 11:39:38 4 thet s writien?
11:19:38 - accurscy of it of to question the acouracy of it 11:39:46 5 A Yes
11:39:48 6 Q. Sothe total smoum dPj is seeking in this 11:39:48 ] Q. O the rebuttal, page 2, line 7 theough 13,
11:19:52 T prooseding is $156,500. Right? 11:39:%52 7T would you adopt that exactly as written?
11:19:58 8 A That's the tots] smount thet's an this &5 11:40:08 a A Yeo. Thaty dPi's position.
11:20:02 9 Exbibit 1. 13:40:10 2 Q. Imsomy. You
11:20:08 10 Q. Well, Inyean, what is the total amount thet 11:40:12 1o A Yen. That's dPi's position.
11:20:16 11 4Piis secking ko heve the Commission arder ATET pay 11:40:14 11 Q. Oy, Thuck you,
11:20:18 12 packwdri? 11:40:16 12 On the rebuttal, pags 2, line 14 through
11:20:20 13 A The amoum on the exhibit, 156,500 cxsh back 13:40:20 13 page3,Yine 15, would you adopt thit exactly 4
11:20:28 14  promotos. 11:40324 14 whitten?
11:20:30 15 Q. Ounpage 5 of the direct, lines 1} trough 18, 11:40:28 15 A Again, subject to your earlier clarification
i1:20:34 36 would you sdops thoso exactly a5 wrinen? 11:40:32 16  that Fmnot an anormey and don't consider myselfio
11:20:56 17 A. Agxin, BellSouth sccapesd or denied. 1 think 11:40:36 17 be expert on Soders] Taw, bt that is dP's positioe.
13:21:00 18 ifs clear that BellSouth devied, 11:40:40 18 Q. Oay Fairenpugh
11:21:10 19 Q. When did you first becons: wware that BellSouth 131:40:44 19 Oo page 3 of the rebwtal, line 16
11:21:14 20 would Dot pay thesa promotional credit requests? 11:40:48 20 through page 4, line 16, would you adopt that exactly
11:21:20 21 A Tmnomre 11:40:54 21w written?
11:21:24 22 Q. W it before this testimony was filed by Mr. 13:41:08 22 A 16through 21 on 37
11121128 23 Bollinger in 20087 13:41:12 23 Q Yo sir. And then lines 1 through 16 o0 4.
13:121:30 24 A No. Ibeliewe it —I mean = no. 11:41:24 24 A Yes Subject toyour eardier clarification
11:21:48 25 MR TURNER: Chris, it's 1225, Need 1o 11:41:28 25  that | heven't readt the intzreonnection agreements, snd
19 {(pPages 70 to 73)
DepoTexas

214.373.4977




THOMAS O'ROARK

Page 74 Page 76
13:41:34 1 Fimnotsnostiomey. But thet is dPi's position. 11:44:38 1 period, doesn't mention sy 12-month Kxnitation st all,
11:41:36 H Q. Olay. The rebuttal, paje 4, Enes 18 through 11:44:44 2 There's noreference to it
11:41:40 3 23, would you sdopt thae exactly as writen? 11:44:46 3 And 301 guess my response would be —
11:42:00 4 A 1guess I — Inoed a clarification there. 11:44:88 4 thet cuestion would be cusctly thar. The fmt
11:42:06 5 We've had two differant interconnection 11:45:60 L} agreement Section 2.2 doesn't have any reftrence to sy
11:42:08 6 — inMroonnection agroements with BallSouth Which 13:45:04 6 limitntion t all, anry time pericd for any Emimtion
11:42:12 7 one.of those agreoments was Fergusan refaming to? Do 11:45:08 7 atall Thesecond agreement that tock effect § think
11:42:36 8 yaulnow? 11:45:12 & inApdl of'07 wes oely in effect for two months of
11:42:18 9 Becausa the Sactions 2.2 are different 11:45:16 §  this petied. Brien i seying that from a Jogal
11:42:22 10 between the two sgroemonts. In the latter sgroement 11:45:20 10 perspective a ciser reading of it doesa'’t actually
11:42:24 11 that was cxoamed in April of 07 2.2 does talk sbout a 11:43:24 il impose s 12-manth Emitaticn.
11:42:34 12 12-month submission pericd, In the earlior sgresment 11:45:28 12 T'd have to defer to en sttorney oo that.
il:42:38 13 there is no much refa And this eartier agg 11:45:30 13 But] gooss nry respoass would be difforont.
11:42:40 14 isshe ngrocmens that was in effect for aimost ol of 11:45:36 14 Q. And s D understand it, your response would be
11:;42:44 1S this periad. Correct! Up il April of '07. When 11:45:38 15 consistent with whet you just rated hers in this
13:42:50 16 the second agresment took place. 11:45:40 16 deposiion?
11:42:52 17 So when Fergruon refers w Saction 2.2 11:45:40 17 A Yes, That's sighs.
11:42:38 38 having a Emitation period of 12 months, which 11:45:42 18 Q. On the rebuttal, page 4, lines 24 through 30,
11:42:58 19 pgreement is he neferring %? The aoo thet was in 11:45:48 19 would you adapt that exactly s written?
11:43:02 20 effect for just o few months o the ane that was in 11:45:%8 20 A Right Agsin, that is dPFa position.
11:43:08 21 effect for mast of the period? 11:46:04 21 Fm not an expert o8 Georgia law. But my
11:43:08 22 Q. Al Tean do i ehis point is refer you back 11:46:08 22 undarstanding i besed on Bris's seatonony tht the
11143:10 23 tohis rstimony. 11:46:14 23 Georgia lewris the governing lrw fir this agreement and
11:43:12 24 A Olay. 11:46:16 24 that under Georgia lew the lisitwiion is §ix years.
11:43:12 25 Q. lunderstund your position. 11:46:24 2% Twrould adopy that s dPUs position.
Page 75 Page 77
11583514 1 A Toodiffeent agrsenens in Sechion 2.2, and 11:46:28 1 Q Isit firto say that you would adopt L as
11:43:18 2 both agreements have & Secticss 2.2, Both are roughly 11:46:30 ¢ dPf's position, but when i comes to defending or
11:43:22 3 inthe same section of the agreement, But ~ billing 11:46:34 3 discussing thet position, you're not comfortable daing.
11:43:24 4 disputes. 11:46:38 4 tha?
11:43:24 5 But the earlier agreement that wes in 11:46:36 5 A, When it comnes to discuasing -- Brian was &
11:43:36 §  effiecy for mosk of this period doean't have any 21:45:42 & lmwyer. Tmnot So whon it comes to discussing
31:43:30 7 12-month kmitaion a1 it. Dossn't mentios: sy type of 11:46:46 7 tosttey of Taw, Iwould bave ty defer 1o @0 sttomey,
11:43%:34 8 limitation i teees of monte. The second agrosment 11:46:48 ® Q. On rebuttal, page 4, Fines 31 through pege 3,
11:43:36 9 that took effect, s I understand it, April of 07 - 11:486:54 5 lines 12, would you adopt those lines s weitten?
£1:43:40 10 soitwes only in effect fior o few monthe over this 11:47:38 18 A, That is dPi's position,
11:43:44 11 period - isthe oo thet talks sbowt a 12wmenth 13:47144 11 Q. Tuskr it, however, tha you would not be
11:43:48 12 submission, 11:47:46 12 combwtsble opining on the sppiicstion of the legal
11:;43:50 13 Bo the contract — the first contract, 11:47;48 13 principles on unjust ennchment on the Sach of this
11:43:58 14 the one that was in effect for sost of this period, 11:47:82 14 cae?
11:44:00 15  doesn't provide sry Limi There is no admiss 11:47:54 15 A Would not.
131:44:02 16 ofuny limitation. 11:48:02 1 Q. Rabouttal ues o page 5, lines 13 theough 19.
11:44:04 17 So — and then Ferguson talke about 2.2 11:48:06 1% Would you sdopt that exactly s writian?
11:44:12 18 having 12 months. That's the coe thar wes only ~ tock 13:48:20 18 A Whether or not the discount — this could be
11:44:18 19 effect April of 07, ind that's the one Brign is sxying 11:48:5%0 19 pppliad to g promotion. This sewo o vuggest tat the
11:44:22 20 acloser reading of doesn't actually inclnde the 11:45:00 20 digoount should be epplied to th promotion.
11:44:24 21 12-month finitation be talks sbout. 11:49:02 21 Tin not sure if that's troe or not. And
i1:44:26 22 S0 I'm — not being an sitomey, I can't 11:49:04 22 I snd T think the's a mwtter of some dispute, ]
11:44:30 23 explain why Brim took thes position. Hut the first 11:49:10 23 think that's s matter of debute and dispute, xod its 8
11:44:34 24 ooethet was in effiect f tnost of this time pericd, 11:4%:14 24 praiter of comantion.
11:44:36 25 wes the governing agreement fir most af this time: 11:49:22 25 So It et - I'm not willing to adopt a
20 (Pages 74 to 77)
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11:49:28 1 posifion that yes, the discount should be spplied to 11:52:02 1 cligible for the full promotion, inespective of which
11:49:30 2 the promotion. Tm ant — thet depends upon the natyre 11:52:0& 2 sadey charmed be came through
11:49:36 2 ofthe procsction Tt depends upon the wonding of the 11:52:06 3 Q. Okay.
11:49:38 L] promotiots. & depends upon what the it — the 11:52:00 L] A Asd 80— snd I think ~ I think there's some
11:49:42 5 Fourth Circuit ordered. 11:52:14 5 ciscassion sbout that I think thefe's same dispoie
11:45:44 6 And, again, I'm not an attorwey. 1 don't 11:52:16 € s debate abont thad, shoust what ghe Forth Circuit
11:49:46 7T know exncily what the Fourth Circuif's arder was. But 11:52:20 7 ondered, whether or not the Fourth Circuit ordared you
11:49:50 B myunderstanding is is that ther's — that's » matter 11:52:22 8 togive v full pramotional credit 1 the ILEC or
11:49:54 9 of same &scussion and same dispute. 11:52:2€ 9 whether the Fourth Circait andered you to give it hess
11:49:56 10 Whether or not the Fourth Circuit ondered 11:52:30 10 the wholesale dacouat.
11:49:38 11 the di 10 be mad ilshie to the CLEC sfter 11:%2:30Q 11 1 laxow i’y your practice and your policy
11:50:04 12 disooumt, Cm pot clear on that, 11:52:32 12 o give it ke the dircoont, but T don't know it
11:50:10 13 Q. Tsmnctwying to ejue with you, T just 11:52:36 13 Qe ity ng. a whole i pting of that position
11:50:12 14 frying wounderstend. T pot sure What you mesn when 11:52:40 14 end belioves that that's in keeping with what the
11:50:16 15 you say “sher discom 11:52:42 15 Fourth Circoit ordered.
11:50:18 16 Cam you help me undersusnd whet you're 11:52: 44 16 Q. But befre we explare the mesits of that —
11:50:18 17 talking shaut thes? 11:52:46 17 A Okay.
11:50:22 18 A If—if you offer $50 promotion to yoxt 11:5%2:46 18 Q. T want toiell you what I thiek the
11:50:28 19 customer and you give your - and you give your direct 11:52:52 18 yetntel w2 page S, ines 13 Ewough 19 i3 sdkdressing.
11330122 20 et 2350 p cm, the roul 11:52:86 20 Just descyibe the lspue. And 1w you to s me i
11:50:36 21 that comes 1o you trough e CLEC sakes channel — you 11:%3:00 21  Tveoomecty described the issue thet its
11:50:40 22 hawve two different sales channels. You have direct 11:53:02 22 addressing
11:50:44 23 chunnel end CLECs, Bot are selling BellSouth 11:53:02 23 AsTunderstand it, the issue is —whea
11:50:48 24 services, You'rereaelling You're reselling them 11:53:04 24 there i » cash back camponent of the promatian, the
11:50:52 25 dwoughw 11:53:08 25 isene it Whether the CLEC is entitled w entite cash
Page 79 Page B1
11:50:52 1 K a customer comas to you through your 11:53:12 1 back amount iy hypothetical handred doliars,
11:30:54 2 direct sales channel, gofs » $50 promotion aredit, then 11:53:116 2 A Right
11:50:58 3 the customer that comes through through the dFi sales 11:53:16 3 Q. Oriaa CLEC entitled to the entire mmaunt of
11:51:00 4 cheone] shomld also be eligible for 8 $50 promotion of 11:83:18 4 the promotion lees the wholesle di
11:51:04 5 credit, 11:53:22 H Have I accurately desctibed what the
11:51:04 6 Tm not sure if the discount applies. 11:53:24 6 issue is that is being addromsed hers?
11:51:06 ? Q. When you say duscount, are you talking sbout 11:53:2¢ 7 A That's the issue. Right.
11:51:08 8 the state cammyission — 11:153:28 8 Is it — i the wholesale discount
11:51:10 ] A. The host. The interconnection agreemnent. The 11:53:30 9 applicable to only the retail tariff, or is it ubo
11:51:14 10 di it im the ction sgy 11:53:34 10 applicable to the promotion?
11:81:18 11 Q. Okay. So- 11:53:36 11 Asdt gince the promotion flows tirough to
11:51:16 12 A In other words, in your theoeetical example, 11:53:38 12 the end user customer and since the promotion has an
11:51:20 13 you're ssying & 20 percent wholcsle discount, T nat 11:53:46 13 gffect of reducing retad price, then 1 don't ke thay
11:51:2¢ 14 g thel oy customer wouldn't be aligible for the e 11:53:%2 14 it's— itinan taue. 1€ — that's what we're trying
11:51:30 15 p jonsd & oy s eligible for, 11:53:56 15 1o sxy here, thet there's us issue, that thert's a
11:81:36 16 As-that ~ the sustomer that cofes toough the CLEC 11:54:00 16  debmte. There's s comtemtion aboul that.
11:51:38 17 sales chiied 10 you would be eligible, I baligve, for 11:54:02 17 Yes, T agree there's a contention about
11:51:42 18 amy less discoun than tive cumouner that comes 11:54:04 18 thar Thatis anissue. Bir s not an imsue thet
11:51:4d 19 directly, 11:54:08 19 has booti decided and is still debated and is still
11:51:46 20 They're = both channels feed to you. 11:54:12 20 comtested
11751348 21 We're both sdlling BellSouth prsducts. BeliSouth 11:54:12 21 So1 just wani to make sure ~ in neading
11:51:5%0 22 ‘benedity from both sales. So that promotion that's 11:54:18 22 this, bt says, "Thua, i ths discourk is spplicd befare
11:51:54 23 offered 1o atrect those customers, whethar i comes 11:54:22 23 the promotion, then the proenction should be
11:51:56 24 through your direct sales channel or the CLEC safes 11:54:24 24  dmcounted.” That's not necessarily true.
11:52:00 25 ohwmel, I'm not sure thet customer wouldn't be 11:84:20 25 And so what I do agree with, he says,
21 (Pages 78 to 81)
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11:54: 34 1 Here's — the puty should be sbie to come to some 11:57:16 1 will pay the - they would pay the promolicn less the
11:54:38 2 spplicable dgresment abaut what the two mnbers are. 1 11:57:18 2 wholesale discount.
11:54:40 3 think the would be — T think tha would be sbachnely 11:57:20 3 But the CLEC community. a3 » whole,
11:54:44 1 e 11:57:22 4 et been — ion't accepting of that and has in its
11:54:44 H But 1 don't want %o adopt the positicn. 11:57:26 5 — e s disputing that difference snd i contending

-+ 11:54:50 € shet the discount should be applied to the promotion, 11:57:28 6 thai the cireuit cowrt, the Fourth Circuit, order
11:54:52 7 Becsume ] dorit think tmfs twe. 1 o't know if 11:57:32 7 Tequires you to pess through 100 percent of that
11:54:54 ] fmls rue. Fmongt — thars — tads ap for 11:57:34 -4 Promotion
11:54:58 9 debue, 11:57:34 ] Q. So in thess dockets it it faxr to say that
11:5%:00 10 Q. Olay. 11:57:38 10 dPiy position is that fior thet hondred-dollar
11:55:00 11 A Olay? 11:57:40 11 hypothetical, dPi is seeking the Commission (o say,
11:55:04 12 Q. And 4 rastshell, in the hrypoatical, the 13:57: 44 12  BelSouth, you owe the artine 100, not the 807
11:55:06 13 jasucis whether the CLEC ix wntitded 1o 5100 o 11:57:48 13 Ix that your posiicn of this docket?
11:55:32 14 whether the CLEC in the hypotheiical is entitiad 1o 11:57:56 14 A My position is that thae $20 differance that
11:55:16 15 $30. Right? 11:58:04 15  we're taliing about i still an undecided ismue.
11:55:16 16 A That'szight, yesh 11358508 1% Q@ Tundorstand that.
11:55:18 17 Q. And- 11:58:10 17 A And the it's up for debate snd that I'm not
11:55:18 iB A Toe comomer that comes through the CLEC 11:58:12 18 willing to ~ thet I don't know what the final onteame
11:55:22 19 chennel Right? 11:58:14 19 oftimt — that's a scparxte dispute. And I'm ot sure
11:55:24 20 “Whether fhet customer is entitled 103 11:58:18 20 whet the outoome of thet dispute would be.
11:55:24 1 p om, 2 5100 proswotion, o that i caly 11:58:20 21 But for the purposes of this proceeding,
11:5%:28 22 entitied w0 $80 of a promotion. 11:58:24 22 for the puiposes of this resohaticn, would 1 be contert
13:55:30 23 Q. One thing I do want 10 clarify — and don’t 11:58:28 23 toreoeive the $807
11:55:34 24 take thisan me trying 10 pitch sx:wething now and then 11:58:28 24 I thas what you're aolcing me?
11:55:40 25 irying o wap you. Notthet atall. Twant 10 make 11:58:30 25 Q. No,1ir. Mo, sic.

Page 83 Page 85
11:55:42 1 mmelunderpand what your welimony is today. 11:58:32 1 ‘Wit I'n aking hero is — sssume thet
11:55:44 2 1 thong serlier I nnderstond you 1 sy 11:56:24 2 the parties do nct agree. And essume that the
11:355:46 3 thatdPPs position was that the Sl hundred dollars 11:58:26 3 Commission in i¥orth Carcline is asked 10 decide this
11:55:50 4 shouyld be given o dFL 1 thought | may have heard you 11:58:40 4 cme
11:55:54 5 wxy berw that it's a debase, and you kaveas yet taken 11:58:40 5 My question to you is, if that's whare we
11:55:58 6 aposition on the isme 11:56:44 6 mre, is dPi going to be saying, Commission, you should
11:55:58 T My question simply is, spasking fix JPi, 11:50:46 7 order BailSouth 2o pay the entire 5100, or are you
13:56:02 € canyou or cam you not state the position dP takes oo 11:56:50 8 going toboseying, Comnission, you should order
11:56:06 5 that issne, 100 versus 507 11:%8:52 $  BellSouth to pay the $30, which is the cath back jess
11:56:12 10 A. DPiis taking the position, and I balieve the 11:58:586 10 the wholeasls disccnt?
11:56:16 11 CLEC convnunity as s wholo has taken the poitia — 11:58:5€ 11 ‘Which will you be asking the Commission
11:56:20 12 ifsnof— thisis not a positon unque to 4P - 11:59:00 12 todoin this docker?
11:36:24 12 that the Fourth Circuit ondeced you 1o pass through 11:59:04 13 A I'would be asking the Cocission  comply
11:56:28 14 100 pacent of the pomotion so the CLEC s tat — 11:59:06 14 with the Fourth Cirouit court order. And - snd [
11:56:32 15 that — rhes we're secking some resohution and 11:59:12 15 don't know - not being an sitomey, I do't want o
11:56:16 16  clarification o thel 11:59:14 16ty o inarpost that Foorth Chreic mading — ruling,
11:56:38 17 And s 1 believe that tha itmw thet, 11:5%:18 17 But I know that that is an issoe that's
11:56:40 18 520 thet you're deacribing, b — is up for dispute. 11:58:20 18 upfordebete. And 30 if the Comemiasicn looked a2 vt
11:56:46 19 And is = znd is — and 50, you know, if — in this 11:59:286 19  Fourth Circoit naling s sxid ~ hexe’s what 1
11:56:52 20 caseif you're suggestiog et ATAT would be willing 1o 11:59:28 20 undarood the Fourth Circut to say. Thet if you make
11:56:58 21 pwy — that BellSouth would be willing 0 puy the 330 11:59:30 21 a i ilabie o your you have to
11:57:00 22 but would be urwilling 10 pey the $20, thaf's 11:598:32 22 givethet promotian tathe CLEC. And that if that
11:57:04 23 conxivient with what you've been daing since July 11:49:38 23 promotion had — i -« has sy kength of Bfe 1o it,
11:57:08 26 of'07. That's conistent with what AT&T's prassics 11:59:42 24 which TheBeve is 90 deys or more aod Jees the effact
11:57:12 25 and position hes been since July of '07. Thet they 11:59:44 25  of wxd effectively reduces the retall price ke
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11:59:50 1 customer pays, that you have 1o make that promation 12:03:06 1 Q. Right.
11:59:52 2 availsble to the CLEC. 12:03:06 2 A Right. Okay.
11:58:54 3 That it's opinion, your interpretation, 12:03:06 3 Q. Im going to hand onz tveo peges from the
11:59156 4 that youwould make it xvailable less the wholesala 12:03:10 4 discovery respocees dPi submirted in this docket in
11:5%:58 5 discount. Well, in your example of the 30 and the 100, 12:03:14 5 North Carolina.
12:00:08 & itwould be tough to argue that you would have to take 12:0%:16 5 MR_TURNER: Chris, since they're in the
12:00:10 7 w52 losonthet. Right? Bwould be s tough 12:02:18 T record, 1 don't went o tend S0 make them & deposition
12:00:34 B argament 10 rimke. 12:03:20 ] exhitdt. But if you would like me to, I'm certainly
12:00:14 ] And terainly in that exsple, in yor 12:03:24 9 bappytodothat
12:00:16 10 hypothtioal example, all we paid wag 80. Then ~ then. 12:03:26 10 Q. (By Mr. Tomer) And, Mr. O'Rowrk, ] have the
12:00:22 1l youwould — ifyou would cradit back the 80, gat us to 12:03:26 11 entire set of discovery if you feel the need 1o lock
12:00:24 12 effctivoly the same net retail price that your 12303130 12 thoughit
12:00:29 13 custonwr paid, which in that example would be zero, 12;03;:30 13 A, Oly.
12:00:30 14 then would that be fair and equitable? Yes, it would 12:03:30 14 Q. My questions am going 1o be specifically
$2:00:34 15 be. 12:03:32 15 sbout items 7 #nd then: item §.
12:00%34 16 Q. Olay. 12:03:38 18 50 onoe you've had a chance to review
12:00:34 11 A Does that answer youy qucstion? 12:03:40 17 thet and are ready For me to sk my questions, plesss
iz:oe;3e 12 Q. (Modshead) 12:03;:42 18 et melnow
12:00:40 135 A Okey. 12:03:49 19 A What's the date of this document?
12:00:52 20 Q. Gowith me to Exhibit 1 of the Jeposition 12:03:58 20 MR MALISH: Somctime this year.
12:00:54 21 again Thisisthe flingin Tuxas. Oupage 2 there's 12:04:10 21 Q. (By Mr. Tumer) Mr. O'Roark, on my copy it
12:00:58 22 s affidavit of yours that's dated July 30th, 2006, 12:04:12 22 saysthese were filed on October the 29th, 2008
12:01:02 23 Do you ses that? 12:04:18 23 MR. MALISH: Didn't we supplement since
12:01:08 2¢ e right here, sir. 12:04:20 21 then?
12:;01:10 25 A Oh, this ia the change of ownership document? 12:04:20 25 A October of 2008.
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12:02:12 1 Q. Yes, ur 12:04:22 1 MR TURNER: Ty heve been nipplermented,
12:01;12 2 A Oly. 12:04:24 2 butthe questions ' asking about ars tct the
12:01:34 a3 Q. So dbviously you knew of this p il change 12:04:286 a supplemented mswers.
12:01:36 & inownership as of July 308, 2009, right? 12:04:26 4 A Okay. And. And who signed this document?
12:01:38 5 A Righ 12:09:54 s (Discasion off the record )
12:01:238 [ Q. 'When did you first learn of the potential 12:05:26 6 MR TURNER: This is  gocument that was
12:01:40 ?  chungein ownership? 12:05:26 T prepared and filed by Brisn.
12:01:44 8 A, Oh, my gosh. Sometime in the full of 2008 T 12:05:28 L MR MALISH: Prepared by me.
12:02:02 9 became sware that there might —. that our preseat 12:05:30 9 A Prepared by you.
12:02:04 10 gockholder, Rent-a-Conter was maybe aware — may be 12:05:32 10 MR MALISH: They asked the questions of
12:02;10 11 mtereated i oF oaighe be ope o the ides o somems 12:D5:34 11 me. Yeu put together thess responses and sent tham
12:02:14 12 quiring the Jips ibercat in the campany 12:05:38 12 back
12:92:20 13 I you're asking sbout this particular 12:05:40 13 A Olay. All right
12:02:22 14 purchaser, Amvensys, 1 only became sware of them, you 12:05144 ] Q. (By Mr. Tumer) On page 4 under team 7,
12:02:32 15 know, 6010 90 days ago 12:0%:48 15 D the firpt punagraph reflects i
12:02:34 18 Q. Okxy. So, as of the beginning of July, you 12:05:54 16 baween M. Brisn Bollinger and Pam Tipum?
12:02:40 17 of the sial changy: in dip of 12:08:58 17 A Right
12:02:42 18 these specific entities, right? 12:06:00 is Q. Were you involved in these discussions?
12:02:48 19 A Y 12:06:00 18 A No, Jsmy
12:02:54 20 Q. }wm going 10 ask — actally, Toa not going 12;06:02 20 Q. Have you had any comversations with Ms.
12:02:58 21 10 make this an exhibit, Cheis, unless you ~ 12:06:04 21 Tigton?
12:03100 22 A That — you uderstand this is & posential 12:06:06 22 A No Not—not 1o the bost of my knowiedge.
12:;03;02 23 chityps i owraskip. 12:06;08 23 T've bemn involved in various
12:03:02 24 Q. Ido 12:06:10 24 conversations with pecple from ATET. Idant —{
12:03:04 25 A Haan't happened. 12:06:14 25 dan't remermber necessarily who was an all of those
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12:06:18 1 callsand ] - I don' resnember amy specific 12:06:58 1 MU-R-PH-Y, and Caittyn C-A--T-L-Y-N, Murphy of Lost
12:06:20 2 comversation with Pem Tipuon specificlly, 12:09:08 2 Key OGM with Nicole Bracy, B-R-A-C-Y.
12:06:26 3 Q. Justto be clear, you don't have knowledge 12:08:10 3 A Righ
12:06:28 4 personally of Ms. Tipton sxying the things that &re 12:09:12 L] Q. OTATAT?
12:06:32 5 atiribated to ber in this first paragraph. 12:08:12 3 A Rign
12:06:34 6 Is that accurate? 12:08:12 §  Q Weryouinvolved in my of toee
12:06:36 7 A. That's comect. 12:09:14 T comversations?
12:06:36 ] Q. Did you discuss with Mr. Bollinger the 12:08:14 8 A Doy heve eem.
12:06:40 9 specifics of any conversstion thats refiscted in this 12:09:14 5 Q. Wit doyon recall sbout my of these
12:06:42 10 frst paragraph? L2 0 3% zomvenations you ety have bam mveved ot
12:06: 44 11 A No,ldidnot 12:09:18 u A Woll, Bath Muxpley and Caitlin Murpiry bave been
12:06:48 12 Q. The secand pamgraph reflects 12:09:22 12 mvolved i vaziow converssions Mvabad. Some of
12:06:59 13 between Steve Watsm, Ktisty Seagle, Keith Deason, 12:09:28 13 which ATAT poopie have hean involved in.
12:06:58 14 D-EASON. EEE00RED 2s Aad I— if Fm not mistalis, Nicole
12:07:00 15 A Right 12:09:34 13 Bracy har bomn on the phona on some of ten
12:07:00 16 Q. Were you involved in any of those 12:09:36 16 comversmions that Tvehad with ATAT.
12:07:02 17 conversations? 12109:40 17 Q. Doyourecslt Ms. Bracy sying sything in
12:07:06 18 A No,Twamt. 28] 18 those conversstions Gt you believe would sither
12:07:08 15 Q. Hsve you had smy specific conversstions, to 1z:09:30 1% support PYs position or be corerary 1o ATET's
12:07:10 20 the best of your recollection, with sither Ma. Seagle 12:09:34 20 positions in this docket?
12:07:16 21  or Mr. Deasm? 12:10118 21 A Lat mothink about that.
12:07:16 22 A Na 12:10:20 22 ‘We've bad & number of comrrernstions.
12:07:18 23 Q. Have you dincussed with Mr. Wiison sy 12r10:24 23 Someef the things that heve come wp in thase
12:07:20 24 ions that ave refiected in this pacagraph? 12:10128 24 convervations thes mey 2uppoet oar position, for
12:07:20 25 A No. 12:30:32 25 cumnpls, i thet - the fimling thet this particulsr
Page 91 Page 93
12:07:22 1 Q. The third paragsaph inder itam 7 on page 4 12:16:38 1 group within ATAT was understaffod mnd was somewhat
12:07:32 2 sowets conversations betweem Mr. Steve Watson, Kaith 12:10:44 2 ovorwheimed by the vohane of transsctions thin they
12:07:36 3 Deesonand fm Maziarz, M-A-Z-1-A-R-E, with ATAY. 12:10:46 3 werebeing required to process. They were doing the
12:07:44 4 Ware you involved parsooally in sy of 12:306:50 4 very ben job they could
12:07:46 5 thoss conversations? 12:10:52 5 Kind of sk sve got fivan themn. Bt
12:07:48 1 A No 12:10:54 §  therejust werest enough hours in the day, and they
12:07:30 T Q. Do you recall sy spoific ootversations that 12:10:58 T wereunderstaffed. At one point in some of those.
12:07:56 8 you sy have had with aither M. Degaon of My, Maziarz? 12:11:00 8 conversations about varioas items that was talked
12:08:00 9 A No,Idon', 12:11:02 3 about, you know, diffrent ipsuss then this particular
12:06:00 1o Q. Do you recall having @y specific 12:11:06 10 isme were talking abou wodey xnd whether or not we
12:08:02 11 comversebons with M. Waiaon regacding the 12:31:08 11 wxuild nesd 1o eacalply thoss jnsues to the PUIC,
12:08:06 12 that fectud in this third 12:11:12 12 And in some of thoss corversations came
12:08:08 13 parsgraph of page 47 12:11:14 13 up feedback from that group - I don't know if it was
12;08:10 4 A Tvohat & manber of vomversations with hir. 12:11:18 14 MNicole spacificilly or peaple whbin that group that
12:08:12 13 Wasson over the last four or Bve ymes. But I don't 12:11:20 15 said thet might schmly help us because if you did
12:08:20 15 recall having any conmoon with him sboot thes 12:11:22 16 tha, then wed gat the rescurves we need.
12:08:22 1T spacific comveryations. 12:11:26 17 Alna in these eonverystions there have
12:08:24 18 . Okay. The fifth parsgraph discumcs sirmilar 12:311:28 18 boeniseucs that have come up where they've ssid yes,
12:08:30 319  oonnversations with Sandes Harms 12:11:32 18 “Mpndtmmmhrmnﬂum
12:08:34 20 A Undwh 12:11:34 20 yat Andthey dre hack for months ynd months and
12106134 a1 @ Haveo you ever had soy commrsations that you 12:11:38 21 months, fn some cases over s year. And why haven't
12:08:36 22 recall with Ms. Farria? 32:11:40 22 youpaid them. Because we haven't yet set up the
12:08:238 23 A Dok tad ) recak. 12111344 23 p fing to pr those particuler credite. Our
12:08:48 24 ). The last paragraph ofi P 4 leading over 10 12:11:48 24 . our progremming dep o apphi
12:08:02 23 page references discussions barwes Beth Murphy, 12:11:30 2% development department, base't 1 up the application
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12:11:56 1 #o process those partcular cradits. 12:14:32 1 resurces fo this proces. 1's clear ) uy that, you
12333388 2 In cne corverssiion 1 remember 12:14:28 2 know unless we't  squosky wheed, sor credits go
12112:00 3 specifically | naid, Welt 2 mimrie, you're talling me 12:14:40 3 ‘Tnprocessed.
12:12:02 4 your customer gets those Gredits feonth one on their 12:14:40 4 ‘Wa might get & million dollws i credit
12:12:46 5 bl and My costomes ey betn waiting for sight, rine 12:34142 5 one nomi sad then nothing the next month. T4l e
12:12:08 & monts for those crodits, sad it's because you haven’t 12:14: 46 [ whare the seme i that could be.  Go back to themn.
l2:12:10 T setup the spplication to process those credits? And 12:14:48 7 Whynot? Why dido'f you process oan’? How come o —
12:12:12 B dwysidyes 12134252 B el we were procmsing somebody der's. And then
12:12:14 9 And we have over 510 million in digpuis 12:14:54 9wl « yooknow. o'l raise the isrue We'll -
32:312:18 10 orodit pending with BallSogth. And sbour 6,000,000 of 12:14:56 1¢ el demend actan. And then w/ll got our — and
12:12:22 11 thows are desking with promtioval aredit of coe s 12:15:00 11 then o dirpue wilt get work
12:12:26 12 orooother. Were s littie, tiny, small company. We 12:15:02 12 s just that coxwtent proces. There's
12:12:30 13 don't have resaurcas to be able to fimd $6,000,000 12:15:04 13 norelishly consistent shulity to sxpect hess crodits
12:12:34 14 woth of promotionsl ardit while witing for ATET % 12:18:10 14 w0 come s o mny typs of rdisbie or coxsisternt
12:12:28 15 gt adequise stafl in thr, get sywiems &y there to 12:15:14 15  bazis We gnts big number one mosh, Tove the next
12:12:40 16  process those cleims. 12:15:16 16  momh
12:12:42 17 Best case we wait 50 10 120 dayn before 12335:19 17 Wi sign up in BellSoush tamitory ahow
12:12:46 18 wegn thoss cradits. Give the cusaamer the credit in 12:15:20 18 10,000 cosomery s manth. Even if T gave you the
12:12:48 15 month one, and then we wait 90 10 120 days to get those 12:15:24 19 20 pervant discount off of the proons that are qut
12:12:52 20 ¢redits back from BellSouth. And we don't — yp until 12:15:28 20 there right now ~ thert's the cagh beck promo thafy.
12:12:5€6 21 justrecently, we didn't know whether or not st » level 12;15:32 21 worth $50. Bvan if T geve you 20 pervent off that, it
12:13:02 22 demil a particular line was going to qualify for the 12215138 22 woukd be worth $40 w me todey. Right now sodey Tm
12:13:04 23 omditornot 12:15:38 23 talkingsbout And there's the LOCW waiver, which,
12:13:086 4 ‘We knew thaat we had provisicaed it 12:315:42 24 let's 52y, in wart, juet for discomsicn PUTPORMS,
12:13:08 25 comectly. We knew that we had provisioned it 12:15:46 25 mother $40. B'e warth whatier thaline of thargn

Page 33 Page 97
12:13:10 1 scoording to the promotion. But then when we didn't 12:15: 40 1 i Butlets sy if's spother $40. Thats $80,
12:13:12 2 reocive 100 percent of the credit, we were unshle 1o 12:15:54 2 Tines roughly 2000 linm 3 month. 306,000 » mcnh.
12:13:18 3 pgetout of AT&T the specifics ot & line item lovel of 12:315:58 3 Thave to wasit 90 10 120 days to gt
i2:13:18 L] detail a8 tr which lmes qualificd, which lines didn't 12:16:02 1 aadit By the time the first aodit rola off the
12:13:22 5  qualify and why did they deny the cradit on some of 12:16;04 5 assembly ine, a 120 days, P'm owed 4.8« I'm owed
12:13:24 5  those lines when they were all provisioned exactly the 12:16:08 6 $00,000 oy four monts. $3.2 milfien. And thet --
12:13:26 7 SKDE, 12:316:12 7 and Tve gor promo credit disputes that are outsanding
12:13:26 B s enly been recently, for the last fow 12:16:18 B back for months and months and morths, inchading those
12:13:28 9 mnonths, that we've been: able to start receiving from 12:16:20 3 wu'rg miking about wday that are cutmanding all the
12:13:32 10 BellSouth any type of line item detail on the denied 1213622 10 wayback 30 January of 04
12:13;:3¢ 1l exredit. And reasons for those denials. And jn slmost 12:16:286 31 50 wiwn you: a8k roe hay Nicole Bracy of
12:13:40 12 every case we've disagreed with remsons for those: 12:16:32 12 anybody in that departmant ever said anvthing 1o me
12:13:44 13 denials, and we've — and we've oacalated those 12:18:4 13 twtyupports our position, yet. Thoy bave. Ard ity
12:13:46 14 disputes. 12:16:42 14 cloar 10 ux tht this is not being managed properly
12:13:40 b S0 we've had langthy discmsions with 12:16: 46 i5 within BailSouth. #t's clear to us.
12:13:54 16 this group thet Nicole was part of And Beth Murphy 12:15:48 16 And bare's the otber s, just whik,
12:13:58 17 and Caislin Miaphy have taloen the lead in that And. 12:18:30 17 you koow, we'rs palking about thin  ATAT owns SBC.
12:14:02 18 they'we eacolated R, And they've imvalved my tewn, my 12:16:54 18 Camect? ATAT owns Ameritech AT&T owes Prc Pall
12:14:04 19 s people thet werk for dPi. They've itrvolved me 12:16:58 13 All of those former ATET ensitios. Those othey 13
12:14:08 20 oo various occasions. And there's been lots and loa 12:17:02 20 mmees In thowe sttes wo don't have 1o wail 90 o
12:14:12 21 gfcouversmtions going back and forth. 12:17:06 21 120 day Tnthose vtes we get ow ok waclly
12:34:24 22 But it's clear to us ther this grovp is 12:17:08 22 e theend user cumomer gty their credit.
12:34:22 23 ynder water, gwrstaff — understffed, overvhiclmed. 12:17:32 23 The CLEC gets his credit expctiy los the
12:14:286 24 H'sclew to us they don't have sdequate sysiens. 12:17:16 24 peni— the dirwet customer g bia credit: We spply
121143730 25 's clear 1o us BedlSouth has not devotad adeguale 12;17:20 25 forthe credit st the tine we order the sorvice. We
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12:37:24 3 putapromocodeon the order. 'We make sure that we 12:20:00 1 forBellSoxth that you bave adopted foc the rest of
12:17:26 2 provision that customer on the LSR. in & way that b 12:20:04 2 ATET for the ather 13 ATAT satos. You could do it the
12:17:30 3 qualifies for thet romo, &od we're billed the carrect 12:20:08 3 vume way thet you do it in SBC sarisary. Fmgivana
12:17:34 4 mmomt onthe voice. Were not overbilled  Forced 12:20:12 4 promocode, gt the promo oode on the arder. T recéve
12:17:38 5 iomulit, Forced to diypate. Forced to apply. Forced %2:20:16 5 ubill with the comect smount on i, and I gt tilled
12:17:40 & o wait 90 days. They bill us correctly. 12:20:20 6 the coarect mount.
12:17:44 1 Verizon does it mxactly the ssme way. 12:20:22 7 You could do it the sme wey Verizon does
12:17:48 L] Verizon does it acsctly the same wary. They put & procnd 12:20:28 & it Thewaythe other ILECs doit BeliSouth is the
12:17:50 8 out Gere. They put & product tut theve, You can 12:20:28 ] cnly ILEXC that does it this way, that puts us threugh
12:17:52 10 order thet product and avaid the LCCW. 1 you arder 12:20:32 10 thig grocess. And its the ooly ILEC that we have this
12:17:56 11 thisproduct I you provision that produc correctly, 12:20:36 11 buge dbstantal doller xmaunts of disgutes
12:17:58 12 yousrsnt charged the LOCW. You per billed the 12:20: 40 12 cotsteading.
12:38:02 13 COETRCT, AUt 12:20:48 13 And this payment — | v, tansgement
12:18:04 14 5o, AT&T in your other L3 states does it 12:20:50 14 experience af s customer Here oomes 3 customer. He
12;18:06 13 comecly. They bill us the corect smount. Verizen 12:20:52 15 Hves in BellSonth wervitory. He's s Bell ~ therefore
12:18:10 16 dousit cormectty. Thay bill s the romect amount. 12:20:56 16  he's a BellSouth costomer, captive BellSouth customer.
12:18:14 17 The only [LEC that doss i incorractly is BeRtSouth. 12:20:58 17 Liwes in BellSouth region, Bell South wxritory.
12:18:18 18 Andthe oty ILEC thet we have thess huge doltar 12:21:02 19 BellScuth is the underlying ILEC.
12:18:22 19 smounts outptanding in tenms of disputrs is BellSouth. 12:21104 19 He comes 10 BelSouth thivugh the
12:18:24 20 None of the other ILECs do i that way. 12:21:06 20 directive cales chanid, gets his credit imwnedintely,
12:18:28 21 Wedon't heve thet point of contention with aery of the 12:21:08 21 doesn't have towait for it, apply for it. BellScuth
12:18:32 22 ol ILECs that we do bushessy with. So if's anly 12:21:12 22 locks of the orde, says, yes, this ander qualifics.
12138304 23 DekSouth that's ot of step with fhe rest of the: 12:21:14 23 They give it to him drecdly. He docas’y have o ask
12:18:38 24 industry sad out of step with the rest of ATAT. 12:21:1% 24 foradime, apply frit. Hegemit
12:18:40 25 Tt's clear 1 us that BealiScuth has the 12:21:18 25 Ha comes to BellSoush though the CLEC
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12318142 1 shility to bili & customer sorrecily. Because you do 12:21:20 1 sales charmel, 'Whet's his experience? We give him the
12:18:46 2 it for your direct customers. They don't get 12:21:26 2 ceditupfion, nd then we have 1o go — we get
12:148:50 3 overbilled and have to apply for the credit sfter the 12:21:30 3 owverhilled by BallSouth Then we bave 10 sudit thet
12:18:52 4 ot ond waitto et it They receive it. 12:21:34 1 bill and wpply for thet crodit and wait 50 to 120 days
12:10:56 5 1t's clewr to os that ATET has the 12:21: 40 5 toreceive that andit
12:18:%8 € ability i do i becaoar you do & e other 13 12321342 L3 Comgletely separase trestment. There's
12:16:00 T siaies, You bill it cocrectly. You dont overbill us, 12:21:46 T norhyma or pesson fix it
12:19:04 8 force uk to wudit the bill, foroe v to apply for 12:21:54 L Q. Jesttobe— let's po back end address  few
12:19:06 9 disputes and then wait to receive those credits. It's 12:21:58 9 ofthoesthings Canwe agree that dPi does not flow
12:18:190 10 clear tht AT&T has the shility to do this comrsctly. 12:22:04 10 any promcdonal credit it roay gt fom AT&T co o
1218514 11 Bt BeliSouth bas refosed to do 2 12:22:08 11 Acller-per-doliar basis throughout APi's end user bill?
i2:18:16 12 comectly. BellSouth imists on overbilling, wsists 12:22:12 1z A 'We daleast cost provisicning, and we da cost
12:19:20 13 onputting the omas on s o sudit those bills, dispute 12:22:18 13 basad pricing Sa I there's & promo credit availalie
12:19:24 14 those hills, to fle applications for these credits. 12:22:22 14 tous, e — we seloct that as a redumion of our cost
12:19:28 15 And then we have to weit 5010 120 days before we 12:22:26 15 Andwe il that recackion in cost inte cur peicing.
12119:32 16 receive cur aredit. And in aome cases Wi have o wail, 12:3%:38 16 For exampla, todiry i most BeliSouin
12:19:34 17 yesrs, end wa still havent received our credit. 12:22:32 17 staies 2 cstomer can receive servics with paro
12:19:38 18 And 30 does thit support my position? 12:22:34 18 activation foe. $u fact, I think that's true in all of
12:19:42 19 Yes, I'think it does. I think & supports oy position 12:22:38 15 BellSouth And1think i¢s trueim all of SBC. A
12:19:46 20 chat BeNSouth is engaged in anti-campetitive 12:22:42 20 castomer can TECEiVe service with 3 zero activation
12119:50 21 practices. I think # supports oy powition that 12:22:44 21 foe. Thats s divect pass theough of the bine oot
12:19:52 22 BellSouth hus refused to bill correctly when they 12:22:48 22 waiver
12:19:54 23 glearky would luve the abiliy to do it When the rest 12:22:52 23 I 11, s5ns0s within Bell South snd most
12:19:58 24 of ATE&T doca it 12:22:56 24 s within SBC, & basic sarvice opssomen who
12:13:58 25 You oould adopt the samo billing practice 12:23:00 25

T 10 My service andfor a life-iong customer who
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12:23:02 1 comos o me oim receive first month of service for 12:26:00 1 You said thet — earbier in-org of your
12:23:06 2 free, zeve, That's n direct reflection of a cash hack 12:26:04 2 questions you 1id to e thet do I cumpete with AT&T
12:23:10 3 promo. ¥'sbem paesed through the cusumer. Shows 12:26308 3 wnd does it mhaites 1o me whi ATET price chargss’? Yoo
12:23112 4 upinthe fonm of a zero first month cort 12:26:12 4 lmow, F'm & very snail company. Right? Tve got
12:23:18 5 Any customer tht coavents to me from 12:26:16 5 50,000 subicribers total. Fow many billion of
12:23:20 §  snother CLEC, sy customer Ut — any Lifeline 12:26:18 & cunomers dos ATET have?
12:23:24 T customer comnes 1o me, basically pays a zerp Sirst month 12:26:22 T Iheve & mesturahle shire of the margin
12:23:26 B fer, noartivation fee, reflection of the LOCW and 200 12:26:28 8 Right? s meammable. Very mal) Very gl
12:23:32 s first month cost reflected ig the cazh back 12:26:32 9 compeny. T strugde. 1 stnaggie to morvive. 1
12:23:36 10 That's basically true troughiont all of 12;26;:34 10 struggiewn grow. §eruggh to maks s peafit. Ty
12:23:38 11 SBC and throughout afl of BeliSouth. Those are direct 12:26:38 11 oot if o highly successfid comprcty tht just
12:23:42 12 reflections of those promos, snd 1 wikit 10 see if 12:26:42 12 caphred 3 hoge markel ghars,
12:23: 46 13 ‘BellSouth is going to issue me tat credit or not. And 12:26:44 13 So bow could you imply tat 1 don't —
12:23148 14 Tweilto see what percentage, if sy, of that 12:26:46 14wt your pricing dossn't xffect vy abitity to narvive,
12:23:52 15 BelSouth is goingto dey. And then I fight with 12;26:48 35 oy ability o grow? it didir, woulda't 1 leve
12:23: 36 1§ BallScash 1o get the detalls »t 1 Ene Jevel of detal. 12:26:50 1€ mach bigger market share? Wauldo't 7 have 2 mach
12:23:58 1% W's sy been in roce mouthy Fue been 12:26:52 17 higher custoner base?
12:24:00 18 sble 1o receive thet inft about what deps 12:26:54 ia Dhvicusly it affects me. Obviously I
12:24:02 3% denicd and why it got denisd. 12:26:58 19  smggle Obviously I'a up sgainm siff competiion
12:24:04 20 Q. Do you have Deponition Exhibit 67 12:27:04 20 inthe masketplace. And obrviously if ] weren't, Id be
12124138 21 A, This is the Lifcline customer « 12:27:086 2 much larger then Tam,
12;24:30 22 Q. Yes #ir 12:27:08 22 1o u fittle, iy compeny that hes very
12:24:40 23 A — that gets 7o in the Finst month. 12:27:10 23 fiow mbscribers. And I srugglo 1 make a profit svery
12:24:40 24 Q. Yes, 8if. 12:27:14 24 singismaonth And w0 why in the word woald you
12:24:40 25 A No sctivaion fee. No charge. Month o, 12:27:20 25  suggeet thet your pricing and thut your effact on e
Page 103 Page 105
12:24348 1 Q. Wi does that | ifefime customer pary for basic 12:27:28 1 tplace, the dixrinant ZLEC in thit marketpl
12:24:48 2 servicein mosth trg? 12:27:28 #  thet that pricing doesa afftet my sbility 1o survive,
12:24:54 3 A Thissays $49.73, 12:27:32 3 myability to grow? }t dossn't make any sense.
121241458 4 Q. This being the dPi Telecormect wab page? 12:27:36 4 Why would you sugges: that? Ir'x oot as
12:25:00 5 A. This being this exhibit thet you handed me. 12:27:38 5 T s bugely successfial coxnipany. Tve gor 50,000
12:25:04 3 Q. And ftm oxbibit — ook af the bowom, I 12:27:42 6§ wbscribers petionwide. In all of the 30 phus states
12;2%:06 T dots say that it comes from sexre DPieleconnect com. 12:27:46 7 that] beve customers in, Tve gor 8 grand wotal of
12:2%312 ] Corrent? 12:27:50 ® 50,000, Yoo bave more than that in Birmingham,
12;25:12 L] A Right. 12:28:00 9 Alsbama, Iwould suspect.
12:;2%:12 10 Q. Seacconding to this dP Telecormext websits, 12:28:00 10 Iy ridiculows for you to suggest that
12125:16 11 this Lifeline cosiomer that gets zero s month is then 12:28:02 11 it hasr't impecied me. That your pricing basn't
12:25:20 12 paying 49.73 for basic servics in North Carofina. 12:28:06 12 ienpacted my profitalrility, my ability so grow, my
12:25:24 i) Comect? 12:28:00 13 ability to stiract and retxin customers, That these
12:25:24 14 A, Well this — that'y what this web page says, 12:29:12 14 pycenos thas you offer event sffected my shility 10
12:25:28 1% yoh 12:28:14 15 wiirect customens sdior iy abilicy W Temin
12:25:30 16 1 don't kaxow — Tve alrendy said Td 12:28:18 15 cumomen.
12:2%:30 17 have o check this agxinst my product catalog to tell 12:20:18 17 MR’IWM H'it badn't
12:25:34 18 you if ity acawnte or not, 12:2@;22 18 impacted me, I'd be much larger, much meve suecessfil
12:28:38 1% Q. Doyou heve any clue how thet relates o the 12:28:24 18 TId be grovdng ach oors rapidly than I am, and I-would
12:25:38 20 providers thet u Lifefine customer will pay for basic 12:20:28 20  be a nmach more profizable campany then Lam.
12:25:42 21 service frarn ATAT in North Carolina? 12:28:32 21 Imen, it's clear.
12:25:44 22 A Dnmonthtwo? Noo ] dénit have any ides. 12:20:36 22 Q. Yau've get 50,000 customers.
12:25:%4 23 Q. You mentioned that earty in the disarssitn 12:28:38 23 A Natioewide, All 30 plus states. Right?
12:25:56 24 shot~ 12:28:42 24 Q. And you fust stated that you sign up 10,000
12:25:58 25 A, But let me — let me conmnent oo that. 12:28:44 25 cumamers a month
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12:28:48 1 A Boughly, yah Yeah 12131122 1 welogk st ATAT. Partiilsrlyif our agent baseis
12:28:50 2 Q. 1f you sign wp 10,000 & month, how is it you 12:31:26 2 sxying ATAT is out thers nffaring this. Then we look
12:20:54 3 only got 50,000 customess natiomwide? 12:31:30 3 et
12:28:58 i A Becumne I'n in & ighly competitive marke:. 12:31:30 L] Q. Doyou remember witt my question was?
12:29; 08 5  And astomers chum. 12:31:34 5 A Dowe pass trough those pramutions, And my
12:29:00 6 Q. Where do they chum 19, & your experisnce? 12:31:36 € umtwer is we do coat based pricing.
12:29:04 7 A How would ) knever that? 12:31:40 1 I there's promotions availahle, tek
12:29:08 8 Q. Have you not done any market anslysis to 12:31:42 B ghose into acomunt &8 Comt reductions.
12:28:10 9 determine whits your ahusrs 10 12:31:44 9 Q. My quastion was, does dPi pess throogh the
12:29:12 i0 Whaen I sey you, I mean dPi 12:31:48 10 promational crwdit it seeka of & direct pasa through
12:129:14 13 A How would I know that? 12:31:54 11  basis an a awtomer-by-costomer basis?
12:29:14 12 Q. T'making you. Has dPi ever sttempted to do 12:31:58 12 You cx vo?
12:2%9:138 13 any analygs - 12:31:58 13 A [ there’s promctions svailable, those are
12:29:18 14 A. No, no, no. | den't have my way of knowing 12:32:00 14 reflected in our price o every singh customer: Wi
12:29122 15  wivere those customerns chnen to. My suspition i they 12:32:04 35 dorit charpe diffr prices o Efforenk customery
12:29:24 16  goto BeMSouth directly. They go to other (LECs. 12:32:06 16 dependingupon whather or sot 90 10 120 deys from now
312:29:30 1T  They go 1o wirkss, They do without You know, in 12:32:10 17 BeliSouth is gring to be graciom ncugh to give me the
12:29732 18 some casen thayy 8¢ without Nome phone service. 12:32:14 18 promotionsl crvadit it Fve wsmed and that T've
12:29:36 19 I don't know. T don't know where they 12:32:16 19 applied for.
12:129:40 20 go. ]1don't have soy way of knowing whers they go. 12:32;:18 20 We don't know that for 90 to 120 days o
12:29:42 21 “You would know where they go became you're the 12:32:20 21 alineby-Jine basis. Sowe baveto give & 1o the
12:29:44 22 underlying ILEC. 12:32:24 22 customer upfont oy ooe, wnd then we have 10 walt to
12;29:50 23 Q. Going back 10 these credits that you're 12:32:26 23 seeif periups Bell South will ever give us that crodit
12:29:52 24 seeking and whether you pass them through to your 12:32:32 2 $Sowe anly bwer ce set of prices. Every
12:29:56 25  customers, ip it fRir to say that there is np darect 12:32:34 25 qustamer geas that mme price. &y ~iK'sncta
Page 107 Page 1089
12:29:%58 1 pass through oo & camamer-by-customer basis of the 32:32:38 1 (ifferent set of prices for differoul ctomens. Yoo
12:30:02 2 edit the you're seeking in the dockm? i2:32:40 2 sawsnwxample Youshowsd 2 39.99, Every cumomer
12:30:04 3 A Wedoour prices based cn con based pricisg, 12:32:44 3 paying the mme, 39.95. Dot matier. We don't —
12:30:10 & Ifthere e ILEC promotiam availshle 10 us, we take 12:32:50 4 wearen't abls to Aeterming whether that particular
12:30:12 5  thossk n & ing what opg 71 cost is 12:32:52 S comon i going 10 e ohe ut BallSouth Agress to
12:30:16 6 the on. And then we di our price 12:32:56 6 insoe the credic on or whetber thet particular customer
12:30:18 7 based ona couple of things. 12:32:58 7 igonsthe dosmnt,
12130720 B Oune, we have targeted margina that we try 12:33:00 ;] Tva ilready 103 you ity only been
12:30:22 9 tohitat s gross mangi evel And, two, we Jook at 12:33:02 9 recemly — beause, you Imow, we've ayked for it and
12:230:26 10 the markotpiacs, and wre Jook & whit wr can mArket 12:33:04 10 wsked for b yod asked for it -~ that BeliSoath bes
12:30:20 11 biggerin eerme of what could we possibly charge & 12:33:08 11 begun to provide ne with files that vhow us which oo
32:30:32 12 cusiomer snd sill rmain somewhat campatitive. 12:33:10 12 they denitd the credit on and why. And in almos every
12:30:36 13 We dor't have to be the tenst or lowest 12:33:14 13 cass we've disagrond with that desdal, and we've
12:30:38 14 provider, We oormiinly ca't bethe highest provider. 12:33:16 14 dinputedit :
12:30:40 15 Wehavo 1o have s competitive prica. And 3o we da. We 12:33:18 1% Q. Tm going w show you dPi Teleoonecs's second
12:30:46 16 lock st what can we afford to charge xnd meke a 12:33:20 1€  supplamactal respomses to ATRT Notth Carolina's fiegt
12:30: 50 17  reasonable margin And basically what we trrget within 12:33:24 17 st of interrogrinries wnd recquant for production of
12:30:54 18 @ - in our astome base is 8 very nacrow gross 12:33:2%9 18 documants in this dockst. Specifically quastion No.
12:30:58 1% margin thet allows us %0 make & - enough of & gross 12:33:30 19 14
312:31:04 20 macgin t cover our opertting cost, including our 12:33:32 20 Tt sys, "Plosse provida all documents
12:31:08 21 cosomer scquisition cost, sging commissions that we 12:33:34 21 that denonstrace tat &Pi passed the promoticnal
12:31:12 22 bwveto pay, thet sart of thing, 12:33:38 22 dscount on the snd vser
12:31:14 23 Aad we Jook at what the masket will bear, 12:33;40 23 Tl Like you 1 rend into fhe record the
12:31:18 24 ‘Welook at what competition is charging oot there. 12:33:42 24 wwwer dPi provided, plesse.
12:31:20 25 Tve sy tokd you that yes, samesmes 12:34708 5 A Vel witwer it Tt s that addrassing?
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12:34:10 1 And whet wes it — was this nlative to hark in 2004 12:36:58 1 Do they want an addivions] discounts
12:34:16 2 through 20077 12:37300 2 belownro?
12:34:18 3 T tha what be was talking sbhout in that 12:37:02 3 Q. No, sir. Lok 1w soc thoss anrwers agein,
12:34:20 4 response? 12:37104 4 please, the supplemenal onss.
12:34:20 5 MR. MALISH: You can just tead the 12:37:06 5 A Thsaw? Yeh
12:34:22 6 awer. 12:37:12 6 Surely you — surely you undersiand and
12:34:22 7 A, Onone band you're pulling out whal's going on 12:37:14 7 agree that we coubdn' be charging zero in momth one
12:34:26 8 todsy in tndey's marketplace. On the other hand you'se 12:37:18 8 umlcan we were recriving — passing though those
12:34:28 S  talking about what's going on 2004 through 2007, 12:31:20 9 promotional credits. You don't have any product thet
12:34:32 10 Q. (ByMr. Tumer) Could you read the smyee? 12:37:24 10 youwcl us i oo S0 Cisvect?
12:34:40 11 A The snawer ia, "As theee i no diract pas 12:37:30 1 Q  Today dota 4P submit ny request for
12:34:42 12 through on & customer-by-customer basis, there is no 12:37:34 12 promotional credit in response 10 & dPi end user
12:34:44 13 documents respormive to thiy request.” 12:37:39 13 request for cash huck promotiona credic?
12:34:46 14 Q. Today is there & pess through on a 12:37:44 14 A We provision all of our customers w0 quakify
12:34:50 15 customer-hy-customer basis? Yes of no? 12:37:46 15 for the promotional credits.
12:34:52 16 A Every costomer gets the — gets the same 12:37:50 16 Q. That's oot thequestion. The quastion i,
12:34:54 17 price. And thal price reflects a reduction in com for 12:37:52 11 todey doss 4P submit any request in respanse 10 g end
12:34:5%8 18 oy piometiooal discournts that are wailable to us. We 12:37:58 18 user request for & specific cash back promotional
12:35:04 19 do-cost hesed pricing. 12:37:58 13 ol
12:35:04 20 Q. At the hearing T1] be entitled ¢ u yes ot no 12:37:58 20 A We reflect three promational crodits in e
12:35:08 21 mswer, 12:38:02 21 price wo charge our end wsers,
12:35:08 22 Will you give me & yes o 10 sngwer to 12:38:02 22 Q. I'm going to show you question 9. The awer
12:35:10 23 that question todxy? 12:36:06 23 wquestion 5. And It yox: to el me if that in
12:35:30 24 A Todsy's customer is charged 2ero activation 12:38:08 24 will sccurate today or not.
12:35:36 25  fee. That's o diroct puss thrugh of the LOCW. 12:38:28 25 A Well, it's s word - you're playing 2 word
Page 111 Page 113
12:35:30 1 50y thews Iy vt pass troagh of 12:38:30 1 game You'retrying tosay that uniess sn end user
12:35:42 2 the LOCW. We charge sovo activation Foe, That's 8 12:38:34 2 walla up tmy counter and says, T the cash back
12:35: 44 3 firext puss Gough of the LOCW, 12;38:36 3 promodon B that's not whet happens. End user
12:35:50 4 ‘Today's customer is — is being chorged s 12:38:40 1 walla up jo my coumter, what's your price? I sy my
12135152 5 disconnt in price in month one, You soe here zero, 12:38:42 5 priceiv aeroinmonthone You cay, great, TN whes.
12:35:58 & Andthat's e for any life-long customer. Aoy 12:38:486 6 tutprodct
12:36:02 7 eysooocr that corvents to my service from another C — 12:38:46 ? “That 2ero price reflects the cash back
12:36:06 8 fiomanother GLIC gt & zaro-month long price. That's 12:38:50 ¥ prometion Cuntomer doesat have toask for - for the
12:36:10 % adirect pass through 12:38:54 9 cathback promation, 1 give it to him right swary.
12:36:12 10 Soyes. Today customers we being passed 12:38:56 10 Doosrt heve to ask forit. Iy already reflecied i
12:36:16 11 through thoss promotions dicecsly. Customer by 12:30;:58 11 the zero price. Thire's no resaom for & cuSKOMmer &
12:36:18 32 castomer. Every cosomer thet goaliSes gets that 12:39:00 12 askforit Plus, we'ne oot obligated t0 - to
12:36:22 13 price, 12:38:06 13 rogurgitate the cash back procion (0 s Ler cusiomes.
12:36:22 14 ). When did that stat? 12:39:12 14 Wit we do- 4o s refecs dmtin »
12:36:26 15 A, 1'd bave to get you the arawes 1o that. 12:39:16 15 redoction in com toa end iser in month aoe. The
12:36:28 16 Q. Why did tus start? 12:32:20 16 reduction in cost that & end veer customer pays in
12:36:32 17 A. Bocmuse BellSouth began to relishly and 12:38:22 17 month one. Atd we reducs the price. And in this caze,
12:36:36 18 dependably puy us the credit. As soon as we were shle 12:39:24 10 as you've shown Som our website, we're Chaging 2er0
12:36:40 19 to mablish BellSouth was relisbly pyiig the cmdt, 12:39:30 19 inmanth one.
12:36:42 20 weimmednely begen to pass them through 1o o 12:35:30 20 Q. Mz, O'Roar, tody iy the answer b question ¢
12:36: 44 21 subseribers. 12:29:34 21 differers than the sarwer that in on thet paperin
12:36;46 22 Q. Todey do your end user austomens ask for ¢ 12:39:36 22 foont of wou that dPi suppiied?
17:36:50 23 spedfic promesional coodit? 12:39:38 23 A Tos it o el quesion. B3 — Wsawond
12:36:50 24 A Our pew custorsers who are paying 50 in month 12:35:42 24 geme question
12:36156 25 onel Is thet what you're saying? 12:39:42 25 Dioes the cusiomer walk 1p 10 sy coutser
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12:39:44 1 s ek for s cagh back promio? He doesn't have to. 12:54:12 1 Q. Soyour md user is receiving whatwwer credit
12:39:48 2 Irs alteady reflectud in my price, 12:84:14 2 you wans i gve thet?
12:38:50 3 Q. Soisthe anrwer different? 12:54:16 2 A Thats sxactly sight. Month ene Ax you
12:39:50 4 MR TURNER: Chris, [ will move for en 12:84:20 4 denonstrased when you pulled vp ry website and srw that
12:39:82 5 myweron thiy, Tm entitied to knaw if the anmwer is 12:54:322 S I'mcharging & customer zer0 in month one, snd T
12:39:86 6 different todey than it was when it was swered. 12:54:26 € witing % see if ] over gt that eraciit from AT&T or
12:39:38 7 MR MALISH: Why don't you give me some 12:54:30 7 not
12:39:158 8 time to confir with my cliet, 12:54:40 L] T'm also vaiting o e if AT&T will ever
12:40:00 8 A Oy, 1Z:54:42 9 give rma the dessils as to which cusomers they issoed
12:40:02 10 MR TURNER: Why dont you do that. 12:54t46 10 thecredit for sid which custoeners they dide't. Some
12:40:04 11 (Break taken from 12:40 p.m. %0 12:51 12:54:48 11 of teresponses I read for ATAT, your folls, imply
12:40:04 12 pm) 17:54:50 12 thet they dida sumple and came op with a 30 pearcant
12:51:34 13 Q. {By Mc. Turner) Back on the recond. Mr. 12:54:54 13 errer ove That ssrple applied that S0 percent 1o the
12:51:36 14 ORoark, since you've had & chance 1o contfer with your 12;54:56 14 wtirodaim So they don't — they could't even tell
12:51:40 15 maoeney, Twill ask you the same question, which is, 12:55:00 15 owwhich casmes qualify snd which com don't becsuse
12:51:44 16 s the responsa to item No. 9, the secand sopplonmatel 12:85:04 16  youreusing of sampling techricp
12:51:50 17 respocscs to the finet set of nterrogatories, the same 12:55: 08 7 1 think since than in recent movths thet
12:51:54 18 1oday, o is it different tody than thet which sppears 12:55:10 18 bechanged And I think renponebily todey, like in e
12:51:36 19 on the written document in your hand? 12:55:12 15 last fow mooths. w've begun recsiving spacific TN
12:52:26 20 A It's not n difect responge 1o & 4P eod user 12:55:18 20 love denialy wisth sn expleoation for epch TN that got
12:%2:32 21 pequest. s an indimoct response o & 4Pj end wer 12:55:24 21 demied But hat's ooly bem in recent months.

22 request. 12:85:280 22 Q  Going betk 10 the sapling rate, that's why I
12152:36 23 So it's troe it's 5ot & direct resporse 12:55:30 23 askad sarliar dote &P barve rocrds that reflect the
12:52:38 24 0 fPi's end user response. I's & indinect response 12:5%:04 24 gdwes specific servics thet any customa—s ordered that
12:52:42 2% 1o dPi's end user roquast, because & dPi end ses 12:55:38 25 Jurtecd withs thy icwml dipcxrurd TOQuest

Page 115 Page 117
12:52: 46 1 request was o take & price that's dependent upon uy 12:55:42 1 the wee involved in this docket.
12:52:5%0 2 iving those cost rech that are reflocted in 12:55:44 2 A And ] said — T dou't knorw, end Ll have to
12:52:52 3 the promuos. 12:55:46 3 get back o you.
12:52:54 4 S0 its not & direct roquest. That's 12:55:480 4 Q. Okay,
12:52:56 5 e, 1t's an indiruct request based on & customers 12:55:48 5 A And the only reason thet I don't know is
12:33:00 B adecting a product that reflects the coat recuctions 12:55:50 € because of'the age of those orders.
12:53:04 7 thet those promos represent. So the annves hare &d 12:55:54 7 1 saw in some of your responscs that the
12:53:08 8 not mubmit a direct yesponse to end user recuest is 12:55:56 8 ageof the order had 2 ot to do with whether or not
12:53:14 9  pue. Ifsanindivct response to an end user 12:55:59 §  ATAT could provide details 1 think i's reascnsble
12:53:18 10 recuest 12:36;02 10 that thet same issue maty spply to dPi.
12:53:18 11 Q. Olaxy. 12:56:10 11 So, given the age of these arders, 'm
12:53:18 12 A Olmy? 12:56:12 12 notsare THbave to look. Fllbeve bo imvestigate
12:53:42 13 . ‘When yuy were answering ey question sbout 12:56:16 13 sndsee fwe do. I think we do. 1l have to verify
12:53:44 14 arything tha Ms, Bracy or oters may have raid, you 12:56:20 14 that.
12:53:48 315 maden statcment tong the ¥nes of the ATAT retsl 12:56:20 15 MR, MALISH: T going to object to Your
12:53:154 16 conomer pes & oot immedistely where your amuomer 12:56:22 18 ponse as being ponsi
12:53:38 17  hasbeen waiting sight or rine months becatrse we 12:56:24 17 Conyou try o male an afiont o Esten
12:34:00 18 haven't sat up an application et 12:56:26 18 1o preciscly whet Mr. Tomer is asking you and
12:54:02 19 1 wantad to claeify maie surs [ 12:56:30 19  confining your respomse to spacifically what he's
12:54:08 20 undersend the way it works. 12:56:32 20 asking? Becanse i will shorten this coniderably if
12:54:08 21 Does your casanier ger the credit on the: 12:56:36 Zl you de thet.
12:34:08 22 front end? 12:56:36 22 A Okgy. Allright.
12:54:08 23 A Ya 12:56: 38 23 Q. (By M. Tumer} Mr, QRowk, given what
12:54:08 24 Q. And dP waits might or sine months? 12:56:40 24 you've just said sbout the age of the claim aod the
12:54312 2% A Ye. 12:56+44 25 impact it hes on the ahility 4o find documents, wiy is
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Page 118 Page 120
12:36:50 1 itthet 3P waited 50 Jong 20 Bl & claim with the 12:00:12 1  wery common for dimputes to gothroogh mlvipis
12:56:54 2 Public Strvioe Commission about credit requests. that it 132:00:1¢ 2 jsersiions back and fixth, discussions, escalutions,
12:56:58 3 sy it submisted way back in 2003 or eurfia? 13:00:20 3 coofereaces, tading inforrnutinn beck and forth yud fiv
12:57:12 4 A, Wall, it soents i me that lling & complaint 13:00:24 4 the answer 1o go fhom no to yes.
12:57:22 5 with the UPC wonld be an eacalsiion technigue anly 13:00:26 5 Simply bocause ATET says no 10 8 ditpuse
32:37:28 & afveryou felt i you had exdhasted o effores in 13:00:30 6 doesn’t maan thet the nhinuse oxtoome of i dispare
12:57:30 T receive thove credits on an applicable busiy working 13:00:32 7 sgoingwobeno. And 50 it would be odly afher you
12:37:34 & oty with BallSouth, Right? 13:90:42 B had poticn no it every Jovel and after you hed gotten
12:57:3¢ 2 And 50 that taioes tme. Tt takes time. 13:00:44 §  nowhere, there was ~ there was ho fixther process, 1o
12:57:40 10  There's en cacalstion process within BellSouth. 13:00:42 16 farsher disgsion that coukd be bed, dat you would
12:57:44 11 Therr's = there's n give and take Thew's n back and 13:00:50 11 theo escalate to the hext Ievel.
12:57:48 12 forth. There's » Lot of conversations. There's 2 ot 13:00:54 12 There's stways & good fuith discussion
12:57:50 13 of discuselone thet go back and forth. We need 13:00:58 13 thet takes place, hopafidly & good fuith discussion
12:57:54 14 additional explsnations. You need additional 13:01:02 14 thet takes place, mod ofifimes in cur experience,
12:57:56 3% explanaions. Back and forth. 13:01:06 1% BeliSenh will say 1o initislly s change their erind
12:57:58 16 And st 3000 point shvicusty you get to 13:01:08 16 Ister, IVs not uacommen that disputes get denied the
12:58:00 17 the poim where you feel fike yoove echeusted all 13:01:12 17 first thme they're Sled and Iater get spproved.
12:58:06 18 prospects st resalving dispuse within BeliSoauth, Sy and 13:01:16 18 Q. Understanding what you fust sid —
12:58:10 19 between BaliSomh and 39, and w1 i poiss then yoo 13101118 19 A Olay
12:58:14 20 would — thors would be 2 runl escalation to the 13:01:18 20 Q. = st any point during thet process did sayone
12:58:16 21 pextlevd. 13:01:20 21t BellSouth sy snything > sugges thet BellSauth
12:58:16 22 f you've exhausted the escelation 13:01:24 22 would, in fact, prvide the promotional credit that
12:58:18 23 process within BaiSouth, then you would nevarelly 13:01:28 23 you're secking in this doclos?
12:58:22 24 cither give up on the digpute, or you weould sscalate it 13:01:32 24 A I'm trying to remember af of this tevimony
12:50:26 25  tothe nextlevel, which in thix case is the DPC. 13:01:36 25 et Tresd Whether there was smything in the
Page 119 Page 121
12:58:32 1 That takes time, fight? That's & normal 13:01:40 1 vestioacny that sy of our folks geve that suyy thet
12:58:36 2 dapute rescluton process. Tt takes tinee to work 13:01:4Q 2 yes, BallSouth st some point indicated that they would.
12:58:40 3 through that process. 13:01:48 3 Q. Areyoy gware of any parsomlly, sitting here
12:58:40 4 And piso, whether you can sppreciate this 13:01:52 1 eyt
12;58:44 5 ormn, we'rea vary small company. We dou’t undertalo 13:02:00 5 A Tmvot avets of wy point o which sxybody u.
12:59:00 6 escalating things notil you pee. Ity act samething we 13:02:08 [] BaliSomh said they would pay these cash backs. No.
12:59:06 T cmndoroutinely or capricicusly, We can coly doitin 13:02:14 7 Q Do you know adun the sscalstion proces bagan?
12:59:10 ®  those cirourmstances where we feel ke we bave & very 13:02:22 [} Youtre claiming thit I went throvgh
. 12:59:12 -] srong case wed whiere we fial {ike there's enough: 13:02:24 thase layers of escalation.
12:59:14 1¢  dollws imvolved tha it fugtifies the legal expense. 13:02:2% 10 Do yo have persoral imowindge of when
12:59:18 11 ‘Were & very sali compeny. We don't 13:02:28 11 thet weabntion procass bogen with regard to the
12:59:20 12 have offices full of sttorneys that heve been on cur 13:02:30 12 Promotions thet are &t istoe in o docker?
12:39:22 13 gtafffor years sod years and years. We don't have 13:02:134 13 A Other than Asom comtained in the serimany,
12:39:26 14 that Now, vee bave — we'te & vecy wrall compeny. 13:02:36 M
12:59:30 15 Verylimised resources. 13:02:42 1% Q  You, in your decussion sbout things b, Fmcy
12:59:32 16 S0 the decision 1o ascaliie 10 the PUC is 13:02:48 16 and her tovmr had said, referencedt a process by which we:
12:59:36 17 Dot ane we take lightly. Take some sine 1o wark 12:02:32 17T owehil you, snd then you apply for a cradit.
12:59:40 18 through the process to gel to et pam. 13:02:56 18 A Thturght
12:59:42 19 Q. At amy paint that dPi was working through that 13:02:56 1% Q. Do you bave M. Sangiv's divect costinny in
12:59: 46 20 process, d any ATET represontative do or sty sything 13:¢3:00 20 froo of'you?
12:59:52 21 o makon 8P Delicve thet ATET would valontarily provide 13:03:16 21 A Ya.
12:59:58 22 credit for these cash back promotional offerings for 13:03:16 22 Q. Onpagm 2 through 4 of the testirony under
13:60:02 23 e tioe peviod et lking showt? 13:03:20 213 e hasing “Overview of promotionat crodit Topuest
13;00:04 24 A I vary conman in this dispute process for 13:03:26 24 procesed,” she dascribes dhe process by which AT&T
13:00:08 23 disputes to get derded and then bater to be wan. K's 13:03:28 25 el pomotons) offwings svailahle o CLECs. Whea I
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13:03:32 1 2ay ATET, ] mean a BelSouth sty 13:06124 1 pwoocess apply 4o the promotional credit request for alt
13:03:38 2 Is that the process that you wern 13106;28 2 ofthe ATET offerings that you see?
13:03:38 3 referring to when you were saying we overbill you and 13:06:32 3 A All of the BellSouth offerings.
13:03:40 4 then make you fie for credit? 13:06:34 4 Q Y
13:03:46 5 A Yo Yes That'sthe process. Yet. You 13:06:34 5 A Yesh This w the procem for BelSouth.
13:03:54 & billue the full charge even though you know that that 13:06:38 & Q. Isit the same prooces that was wed to
13:03:58 7 order qualifies for the promo. 13:06:38 7 idantify the line coonection dhrge witver promotional
13:04:06 8 Q. Eaclies | handed yous s te-page document that 13:06:42 8 roquest that dPi submitted to ATAT while BellSouth?
13:04:10 9 w3 aretponse to question 7 and 8. 13:06:48 9 A Ya
13:04:34 10 Do you still have: thet document in front 13:06:52 10 Q. The Birst I of that responwe says Lost Kay
13:04414 11 ofyou? 13306156 11 ¥ CGL
13:04:18 12 A Yes 13:06: 58 12 Whas is COH7
13:04:22 13 Q. Let's now look at the answers to #tem No. 8. 13:07:02 13 A Lost Key is — slash CGH, as 1 undorstand, i
13:04:26 14  T'mgaing to ask you to read that first peragraph to 13:07:08 14 Sieve Witwd's opirktion.
13:04:30 15  younself, snd iben I ask you questions sbout it when 13:07:14 15 Q. Saysihat op reviews the pr Jon 10
13:04532 16  youversdit. 13:07:16 16  ascertain ihe necessary qualificution steps.
13:04:38 117 MR MALISH: Aot read all of 2. 13:07:22 17 1f you don't know, tell me, Buat do you
13:04:46 e | A, Okxy, 13:07:22 18 Imow what thet means?
13:04346 19 Q. (ByMr. Turner) In resporse Lo item 8, not 13:07:26 19 A Tmsory?
13:04:50 20 BA,B, CorD but 8, tiere's a description of o 13:107:28 20 . 1 don's undensnd whet that seatenc is
13:04:54 21 process. 13:107:30 21 supposed 1o mean Iy mking you, can you belp us
13:04:54 22 ‘Was this grocess in place during the 13:07:32 22 understend that?
13:04:56 23 entive time period covensd by the disputes in thia 13:07:32 23 And if you don't know, that's fine.
13:04:58 24 docket? 13:07:34 24 A Woused & prodution lo ; y
13:05:06 25 A Tthink theres sostimony given by Steve 13:07:38 25 qualifications seps.
Page 123 Page 125
13:05:10 1 Watson that destribes how this process was devcioped 13:07:38 1 Q. Ye, sir.
13:05534 2 and the time freme under which be developed this 13:07:42 2 A, Well, » promotion within its four cormees will
13:05:16 3 proces. 13:07:52 3 define whet onders qualify for that promotion sod what
13r05:18 4 Q. M. O'Rouk, TT tall you there it no 13:067:54 4 ordersdon't. And so whet this i ceence is anying 1o
13:05:20 5  testimomy in this docket by Mr. Watson at all Ifyou 13:08:04 5 meinthis sentence is tist I revisw the promotion fo
13:05:26 6 tun show ow what you're referring to — 13:08:00 6 goc under whit toerns md conditions doe this qualify
13:05:30 ? A Hanot Let's — inthe — yimilr 1o the 13:08512 7 for 4 prmotion.
13:05:34 8 SCC casea, 13:08:12 8 For example, SBC is usually vesy clear.
13:05:3%6 ] Q. Okay. 13:08:16 9 s tohawe caller ID, oall forwarding Has to have
13:05: 36 10 MR MALISH: I you dorit know — 13:08:20 10 call waiting. Thet's how SBC does it, Al right?
13:05:38 11 A Yesh Dheve to defer to Steve oo thet. He 13:08:24 11 Hthe user dossrt't have: caller ID an it,
13:05:42 12 developed this process over time. 13:08:26 12 it doesnt qualify. SEC is usualty wiry wecific sbout
13;05:46 13 Q. (By Mr. Turner) And pletse don't takes this as 13:08:32 13 thet Ham to heve this festure or thess two festurrs
13:05:4E 14  mebeing wnart. | just need an answer for the 13:08:236 14  onitorit dosn't quadify.
13:05: 52 15  deposition. 13:08:24 15 And 30 you read the four comers of the
13:05:52 16 Ia the anawer that you donl know if this 13:08:38 16 d You read the p Ity very clew
13:05:52 17 peocess ix in place the entire trma? 13:08:42 17 about how that order hum to be provisioned, what
13:05:58 18 A Idon't knaw if this procem was in place 13:08: 48 18 fawtures, if my, have to be on thet order in onder for
13:06:00 19 during the entive time. I believe thit process was 13:08:50 19 jteo qualify.
13:06:04 20 being developed during that time. 13:08:50 20 And I believe thar's what this seotence
13:06:08 21 Q  Is the process - and if you dont know, 13:00:52 21 says. Read the document 1o see what the torms mad
13:06:10 22 simply tell me you dont know. 13;08:5¢ 22  conditions of the promoticn are and what — how an
13:06:12 23 But i the process described in response 13:09:00 23 order has 1o be provisicned in order to qualify.
13:06:18 24 10 o 8 there, i that proosss ursque to the cash 13;03:04 24 Q. Doss dPi have sy irvohvement in that first
13:06:22 23 back promotions in this docket, of does that same 13:09:06 25 step?
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13:09:10 1 Tt in respinee 10 $A it says, "dPi 13:11:58 1 b product development and activations to make
13:09:16 2 wdps identify the promticns o be spplied for.” 13:12:02 2 wue that the wctvtions provisions the product n
13:09:18 3 My qoosticn i, does it belp Lost KeyCOL 13:12:06 3 mach » manner thet it complies with the promo and that
13:09:22 4 roview it and determing whet the qualifications are, or 13:12:06 4 the order will qualify for the prome. We've already
13;09:26 5 dos itrely solety an Last Koy 1o o ali that? 13:12:16 5 refected tho redoction in coss in the product price
13:09:30 [ A, s — ifs o coopertive wemwork effort 13:12:14 € through the product developmsent process. Now were o
13:09:34 7 ‘petweenus wd Lost Key. And usoally what heppen is 13112:18 T chebackeide, owlking sure fhay we crder the product
13:09:40 8 LostKey will come tous and sy there's these three 13:12:20 8 comectly so than it quaiifies.
13:09:44 9 diffircat promotions tit #r¢ svailable right now 13:12:22 ] ¥ thax ondler rejects for aryy reason, is
13:09:46 10 podey. In those p ions are exchaive of i3;12:26 10 uamcczpmbile 1o the ILEC fiw sny reason, won't go
13:0%:50 11 onesuother. And you have i maks decisions sboat, 13:12:30 11 through the sysiem for ary renscn, there's 8 closed
13:09:52 12 olony, we vant to o for this prometion or we don't, but 13:12:32 12 loop process for that fesdback 10 come back to prodos
13:08:56 13 wedont want to go for this promotion. Right? 13:12:34 13 » Prochct development will changs its cost
13;10:00 114 You: have to souke chices. And i some 13:12:36 16 strocum and change the LER formt so thet it will pow
13:10:02 15  cases the promotion is net comt effective. The 13:12:40 15 qualify. And itwil go beck 1 that westing proses.
13:10:08 16 customner s tobe  cermin way. The promotion is X 13:32:44 16 Qe the order had hs b tested and
13:16:12 17 dallars. The cost of provisioning the customer that 13:12:46 1T we'reassured that it works and we com order the
13:10;:16 18wty vers the savings that weould result from the 13:12:48 18 paredhucy thist Wiy, thes thes dcet, s 8 50 TEviow e
13:10:18 19 promotion are not offselting o ot eufficient, The 13:12:50 19 invoice whem it ccnes in to make sure the cost gets
13:16:20 20 ¢conomicy ar ool sufSicient to justfy the addiGonal 13:12:%4 20 refiected on the invoice, is what way opecied based o
13:106:24 21 effort o chunge oor provision onder 3o th it would 13:12:56 2L how we devioped the product, how we provision the
13:10:26 22 qualify. Sowe bave to make decisions. 13:13:00 22 protuct and the cost is the same, the con — the
13:10:28 23 So when it says dPi helps idenify the 13:13:06 23 acipgl mudit of thet ipvoice, reweals the actual cost
13:10:32 24 promotions 10 be applied for, tat's basically whi 13:13:310 24 we recyived from Hell South manches the axticipatad cost
13:10:34 25 ity tlking sbear are thoss dachiong, 13:13:14 25  that we build the product based upon - which s net of

Page 127 Page 129
13:10:36 1 Q Th d in response 8 says tha 13:13:18 1 the proxsotionl credin. Okay?
13:10: 40 7 Lom Key/CGI writes a program to identify those ordecs 13:13:20 2 So weine slready pessing twough those
13:10:44 3 placed by dPi that meet thone qualifying eriteria, 13:13:22 3 promational credit reflected in the price. The
13:10:48 1 A, Right. Becanwe we have to kit the bills. 13:13:26 4 backside st when we get the sctusd ILEC inveice is
13:10:52 5 And detareoine which onders we got crerbilled on and 13:13:30 S touseif the soml cot mmiched the theoretical o
13:10:56 € which orders we're due credit on, And Lost Key 13:13:32 €  product developtoats cost that was develaped during the
13:10:58 7 develops the programs that do that. 13:13:3% 7 produes development process. It dossat, then
13:11:02 (] Q. Let me micthis s thet 2 e adter the — 13:13:40 8 there's ancther close 10 the yrocess,
13:11:08 after the order has heen submitted by dPi's order 13:13:42 L] Did we provision it wrong, ar did we bill
13:12:12 10 takery, for lack of s better term, the program looks 13:13:44 10 the product wrong? Why did that ordes vot quakify?
13:11:14 11 wnd figures out which omes are subject to which 13:13:48 11 Whet's waong? And then we'll go back tarough the
13:11:18 12 M""‘ 13:13;:50 12 product. WeT go back frough — we'll mudit that
13:11:18 13 T that the oy it works? 33130 33 i) wygee what's wrong. Dhd we axder it wrng? Did
13:11:20 14 Or on the freet end would dPi ~ 13:13:56 11 nctivations ondet it wriog? Did product developrsent
13:11:22 15 A Here's howwe do . We develop a prodoct 13:14:08 15 it it wioog? Why dideft i qualkify?
13:11:26 16  based on the sssumprion that the product is goirg to 13:14:02 16 IF the anwwer conss back activations
13:11:28 17 gualify for the promotion. 'We identify whae our net 13:14:04 17 buitit correcily o pvehuct development bullt it
13:11:34 18 post is going 10 be on thet product after the 13:14:06 18 exactiy or activations ordered it correctly, the ILEC
13:11:36 19  procmotional aredit Waset our prices. Based on tha 13:14:08 13t didet give ve the credit, that then laads to the
13:11:38 20 et .coms after te promotionsl cmdis 13:14:12 20 dispate. Right?
13:11:42 21 That product development process Jeads to 13:14:14 21 Now, Sheve Watson because — because
13:11:44 22 =todeveloping and defining the LSR, how the LSR 13:14:18 22 BellSouth refises thissne the credit paless we fils
13:11:48 23 peads 1o vesd in order for that order o qualify for 13:14:20 23 dsputes, Steve Watson developed a progrem to go
13:11:350 24 fhis promotion. Olay? 13:14:24 24 tough the JLEC bills and idontify 0 go througl the
13:11:54 25 And then theve's 1 — thery's & proces 12:14:28 25

« the bilkng datx we get from the 1 EC and identify
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13:14:30 1  thowe anlers that we should heve gorten credit on i 13:17:02 1 dovolopment process, aad we'd have to sdjust our price
13114134 2 wedidst. That we ordered & comectly. We buikt it 13:17:06 2 sccondingly.
13:14:36 3 ty, provisiomed i correctly, should bave gotien 13:17:06 3 Q. Doss dP} offer anything to its e users in
13:14:40 4  soudibutdidnt Sowe've got s sismaich between 13:17:10 4 the way of s prometional — some type of Mics
13:14:42 5 owrexpecied cot snd actul cost 13:17:12 5 jonontves that iy oo divectly relaed 4 the offering
13:114: 44 § He identifics those anders, and he files 13:17:16 6 thwt ATAT is making 10 its retail ead users?
13:34:46 T those promotional disputes. To say, hey, wait 1 13:17:30 7 A Letme tidek shoot thae,
13:14:50 8 minue, you owed us &credit You didat giveitto 13:17:32 8 Certainly the prampt pay discount would
13:14:82 9 1m Yomoverbilled us. Sowe pesd & cadit on this. 13:17:34 3 e an wxxmple of scynething tart we do that's mot
13:14:56 10  That's what Steve does. 13:17;38 10 ity pelated %0 supything that ATET dons. Thee may
13;15:02 11 Q. On item Exhibit 5, your besic servios 13:37:40 31 Dbeother exampiles. 7just can't think of right now.
13:15:04 12 offaing il me i Tundermond you oorrectly. 13:17:44 12 Q. Porhaps  waiver of the first tobile terma?
13:15:10 13 “Thins bawic service offering is Sesigned, 13:17:46 i3 A, Differcnt term timnes - different times during
13:15:12 14 ifyou will, toqualify for coe or more existing ATRT 13:17:52 14 the history of the comipanry theoe 1y have been
13:15:20 15 Torth Coraling pranoticos, 13:17:54 15 promotions ey we cemed and effered that dide'y have
13:15:20 1§ Tid I bear you right? 13:17:56 18 ything %0 do with uadetying AT&T promotion. But -
13:13:26 17 A I there are coedlicling promotions where we 13:18:04 17 Q. Cun oo ajgroe it the first month free for the
13:15:28 18 bavepopick and chooss betoreen them which is the oo 33:18:06 18  dFi Club Progrem is saother example of an offering that
13:15:32 19  thet's moRt advantagsous sid we il the product and 13:198:10 19 gPi makes 80 inoent customers to buy its sevices —
13:15:36 20 FrOvision a product 5o thet it Will qualifl for the 13:19:14 20 A, Fimmt mcnth free is & direct rflection of the
13:15;38 21 promotion, tt’s comect 13:18:16 21 cashhack promotion.
13:15:38 22 Q. Ofry. K1 heard you oorrectly, the basic 13:1B:18 22 Q. Lt me Ginith oy qasation.
13:15:42 23 servios offering refincied on Exhibit § is built w 13:18:20 23 ME. MALISH: He's asking shoot something
13:13:48 24 qualify for t beast the ne oormection charge watver. 13:18:22 24 e,
13:35:52 25 Right? 13:18;:22 25 A Okay.
Page 131 Page 133
13:19:54 1 A Right That's why it doean't hyve sy 13:18:24 1 Q. (By Mr, Turoer) Gow Exhibit 5. The dPi
13:15:56 2 activation foe. 13:18:28 2 ChbProgem. You see tha which Is described as
13:15:58 3 Q. And ATAT is not sequired to offer its retait 13:18:32 3 jyvobwary amph , ROCErY Coupon
13:18;02 4 cumomers a kine comection changs weiver, is if? 13:18:36 4 avings book and DEC credit counsefing sarvices?
13:16:04 5 A Requirad to offe? 13:1B:40 5 A. Tiats noo-telectan service. That's &
13:16:08 E Q. We're not required o0, wre we? 13:18:42 & non-fegiibesed service
15:16:10 7 A No. You're not required to offer any 13:18:44 T Q. Tharis sameshing that ATET does not provide
13:16:12 & promocions at all, 1318146 & it end men, vight?
13:16:12 L} Q. Soif ATET were to piop the line charge 13:18:50 9 A Tdon't know.
13:16:16 10 i, that line ction waives — 13:18:32 i0 Q. But you're aftering that 0 your and user has
13:16:18 11 A, We'd immedistely havo to start charging 13:18:56 31 pothing to do with anything you pet from AT&T on s
13:16:22 12 activetion fee. 13:18:58 12 roselsbasis. Right?
13:16:22 13 Q. Okxy. Can'we agres that ATET is not required 12:19:00 313 A No ¥s-—it's ¢ different producs. K
13116:26 14 1o provida cmh back offers 1o its retail end vser? 13:19:02 4 s
13:16:30 15 A Yoursenot required to offer thom. That's 13:19:04 1% Q. Okay.
17116532 16 troe 13:19:04 16 A Itsa xguisied product thet ke
13:18:32 17 @ Soif AT&T sinpped providing cash back offers 13:19:08 17 srenilable s gur cusicwers. They can opt w0 take it or
13:16:34 18 toiesewd end users, T take it that dPi will have 13:19:10 18 sottimi
13:16:38 13 ogoin mnd chenge its offerings! 13:19:10 19 Q. So ity fuir to say, isn't it, that dP§ does,
13:16:42 29 A Tha's cxactly right. That's exactly right, 13:19:14 20 inface, offer incentives and trings to its customers
13:16:46 21 Paticulerly in the ot of the xtr0 besed offering 13:19:128 21 thet ate uorelated t aswthing that ATAT is alfetiog
13:16:48 22 that you're talking sbout hare. W ralty have to 13:18:20 22 g7
13:16:52 23 pdjust al) of our pricing. ¥ either the LOCW or the 13:19:30 23 A We do buy products end services o tiver
13:16:56 24 cmsh hack offer went avmy, we'd have 10 Hrmoedisely 13:19:34 24 providers than ATET. So you, some: of owr offerings are
13:16:58 25 melsctthat a8 & change in our cost, in our product 13:19;:38 25 urwelwad to ATRT.
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13:19:42 1 Far ecemple, the Club Program you 13:24:58 1 and 20047
12:19:44 2 mentioned that comes from a third party provider, 13:25:00 2 A Ibefieve in the — well, my und ding ia
13:18:45 3 mwelaied to ATET. Qur issoe net olfering comes from a 13:25:06 a mmmmﬁmum;b
13:19:52 4 third party provider, unrelated 19 AT&T. Our bong 13:25:12 4 tin conjuncion — working with BelSouth, that he
13:19:56 5 distaore offer comes from a third party provider, 13:25:16 5 was going through tie process and developing the
13:19:58 6 mreinted 10 ATRT. 13:25:19 ] methodalogy, the tecimology, how to do it, writing
13:20:00 7 S0 we do offer products and secvices 13:25:22 T software programs on how t da it, developing the
13:20:04 ¥ whare ATST is noe the underying provider. But thar's 13:25:24 8 process, testing that with the BellSauth people
13:20:16 9 mmmmmﬁmm, 13:25:28 3 directly and that once be got that process weeking
13:20:20 1a MEBLMALISH: Hodon. Im goingio 13:25:34 10 where he had the ahility wdo &, which way 3 very
13:20:20 13 ghject Limeen tohis quastion. e asks you o yes 13:25:38 11 Efficult process, by design o vecy difficult process,
13:20:26 12 or oo, seswer with a yes ormo. 13:25:42 12 thew he was sble to rus through all of the pricr dats
13:20:28 13 A Olay. 13:25:46 13 throuigh thet process,
13:21:22 14 {Exthibit 8 marloed ) 13:25:4B 14 Q. Okay. But—
133121:22 15 Q. Mr. O'Roark, when youve had u chance to take 13:25:50 15 A And pew if — whether or not we bad neceived
13:21:2§ 16 4ok xt Deposition Exiibit §, plesse lnt me know. 1312%:.52 1€ he credit thet we were Soe und whether or hot
13:21:28 17 A Okxy. 13:25:54 17 BellSouth had overbilled. And, in fact, it turmed ozt
13:22:08 18 Q. Mr. (YRoark, have you ever seon what we'lve 13:26:00 18 BallSouth had ovesbilled us, 40 we wire due credit for
13:22108 19 markad as Depocition Exisbit § before? 13:26:02 19 thoss prior years.
13:22:12 20 A, T-may have. T dow recall. 13:26:04 20 Q. Hare's tvy question. For thoss priar yoars
13:22:20 21 Q. Onitsficeitappeanstobea—an 13:28:08 21 that you just described, had dP] siready submitted
13:22:22 22 ANEAECIEN lener betwvotn Lost Key Telecom and 495, 13:26:10 22 promofional credit requests t BallSowh, or for those
13:22:28 23 Are you familiar with e werkings o e 13:26:16 23 peior years were those cradit requests Rubmitwd coly
13:22:32 24 relationship between dPi and the Lost Key Telecom? £2:26:20 24 afer thag program had been implamented in 20047
13:22:36 25 A Yes. 13:26:44 25 A 1don' think — I think the answer to that is

Page 135 Page 137
13:22:38 1 €. Does thin better sppesr 0 accurately reflect 13:26: 48 1 Fwaan't directly itvolved whan. You're talking about
13:22:42 2 the way that relsticoship works? 13:26:50 2 atime prioy to oy smployment with the compeny.
13:27:06 3 A Appesrsiobe. 13:26:54 3 But 1 don't bebieve they bave boen iled
13123:08 + Q. Do you — do you know whether theze is 8 13:27:00 ¢ priortoLost Key filing them.
13:23:32 5 signad version of this agreement in effect mrywhere? 13:27+00 s Q. Whon you say “led,” wubemitted to ATAT?
13:23:14 5 A ldont 13:27:04 [ A Sobenitted 10 ATAT, right.
13:23:18 ? Q. Oly. Were you imvulved in negotisting this 13:27:08 ? Nex do | belleve we bad any ability or
13:23:20 4 agreement? 13:27:10 8 anymethod todothet. It was auly after Lost Koy was
13:;23:20 9 A. No, [vaamt. 13:27:16 e whie 10 sork with ATET to develop that process tat we
13:23:52 10 Q. On the Sret page under product objectives, 13:27:18 10 had the ability todo it And then we had the ability
13:23:56 11 thelsst under that peragraph says, "LKT," 13:27:22 11 o subemit ey cata, son ot date trough that procems.
13124502 12 whichis Lost Key Telecom, “will also strategically 13:27:26 12 und detomine whether or not we had been ovesbilled by
13:24:086 13 develop” is the way it reads,” & strategy to send all 13:27:30 13 ATET
13:24:10 14 bck dea marting with 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 12:27:30 14 And it wamed oat we had heen overbifled
13:24:16 15 2000° 13:27:32 15 by ATAT and were due credit thet we never received.
13:24:16 is 'What does that meam, if'you kncw? 13:27:36 16 Q. On the first page wder "Method,* last
13:24:20 17 A What's your question? 13:27:40 17 semenos in that first paragraph saya, “Specifically
13:24:22 8 Q. What does that sentecs mean, if you know? 13127042 1B dPi will provide the following information, access and
13:24:20 19 A Tt says LKT wall submit all qualified data 13:27:46 19 support to LK *
13:24:36 20 fom ing ing promotions and wilt also 13:27:48 20 The Gra e there is the monthly
13;24:40 21  develop strategy to do the sarne for back duts sarting 13:27:50 21 BaliScxath wlash SBC resale date. What does Ot tiean?
13:24:44 22 with 2004 back through 2000. 13;28:00 22 A T think thar means ury billing data thar we
13:24:48 23 Q. Well, help e undectimd. 13:28:06 23 rective from BellSouth or SBC. Tn whateves fovut it's
13:24:48 24 Does thai mean that P bad not subemitted 13:29:14 24 recaived Whother that's billing duta, tape or » PDF
13:24:52 25  promotionsl aedit requests for 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 13:28:18 25 file or whatewer format that's received, it was
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13:28:22 1 reedived 13:32:20 1 Q. Gowith as to the aext page. I's the third
13:28:22 2 Q Oluy. Sothat's the cacchly bill, i you 13:32:22 2 page under fots and expenses.
13:28:28 3 will, thut BadlScasth will wend to &PTT 13:32:28 3 A Y.
13:28:32 ] A, Lthink iy what's commanly called the DAM. 13:32:3¢ 4 . Underhe heading “Corran promotional sod
13:28:36 5 Q. Yesh The second bullet poirs is oo point of 13:32:36 5 dispume foen,” it sy thing from July 1st, 2004
13:28:42 6§  comtact within P} who hes end to sad knowledge of 13:32:42 6 feawand fir 2004 £0d 2005 is § peroant and for 2006 is
13:28:46 7 ourent dPi processes 1o drive any identifid isoes 13:32:50 T Jperces
13528350 & andfor desigrate fiodings and Tesolis intermally within 13:32:52 ] Tet me, in your understanding, what that
13:28;54 %  the orgaoization 13:32:54 9 mexns.
13:28:56 10 ‘What floey that mean? 13:32:56 10 A That the oredit we receive an our iTvoioss
13:29:04 11 A Ose pomt of coneact. | iscas that Shey 13:33:02 11  from BellSonth thet Steve would then get, bill us a fes
13:29:06 12 -wamed v deal with coit peraon. They wanied 0 have 132353310 12 forthe 5 peroent. Effectwcly & mucorsy fox.
13:29:08 13 one parsan todes) with. 13:33:16 13 Q. Okmy, The next heading dowa it szys "Back
13:29:32 14 G Todw e thet you know, coald you el ns 13:33:22 14 promotional snd dispute fees.” "Duration of agreemant
13:29:14 15 ‘who that ane point of contact bms boer? 13:323:28 15 will be 10 perosit of primotionals and Exgras paid.”
13:29:1% ig A, Brimn Bollinger. 13:33:30 16 T talee it that meaas 10 the extert thet
13:28:22 17 Q. After Mr, Bollinger left, who is tae primary 13:33:32 17 oy promoticem] crodits ace provided fr services
13:29:26 18 poist of contact now? 13:33:38 18 rendered before 2004, thet 10 percast mumber applies?
13:29:28 19 A Me 13:33:44 19 A, That's the way ] would read it
13:29:40 20 Q. Lat me umderstand fhe contractus] reistionship 13:33:48 20 Q. Do you know bow much Lost Kay stands to gain
13:29:42 F43 bere. 13133:50 21 if dPi is successfil in this docket in North Caroling?
13:29: 44 22 When Ms, Seagie sent the o-muil to Mr. 13:33:58 22 A Na
13:29:48 23 ‘Watson saying we will it provide s credit for cash 13:34:02 23 ). Back up one parsgraph abave the back
13:29:52 24 back promotions, coukd you etpec M, Wtaon t0 comvey 13:34:05 24 promational and dispuse feeq ine. Paragraph beging,
13:29:156 25 that infornadicn 1o dFi? 13:34:10 25 "All rates plas will change iversary date of
Page 139 Page 141
13:30:00 1 A Yo 13:34:14 1 e sgreement”
13:30:26 2 Q. Onthe pocond page -- and it's mambered on the 13:34:16 2 My question t0 you s, do you know what
13:30:30 3 aecond paee recuiring promesioosl credit kne. b the 13:34:18 3 the cument ree schochis a?
13:3Q:32 4 first bullet point under objecives reads, Primary 13:34:18 4 A 5 pocent.
13:30:36 S ohiective of the rocurying procuntional credht is & 13:34:22 H] Q. Soin 2006 it would bive bewt 3 parcat.
13:30;38 6 ety BTN-WTNs and foatures thet are qualified to 13:34:26 6  Righ?
13:30:48 7 Teceive cradic based oo promotiona] specifications 13:34:30 7 A Right Yes.
13:30:52 B within the Bell Souh/SBC? 13:34:32 L] Q). Toduy s 5 parcent.
13:30:54 ] Is that basically the smne as they're 13134:32 9 Wiy did it jusnp from 3 percent back up to
13:30:58 10 pring to develop this COMPIT Progrim that you 13:34:36 10 S percant?
13:31:00 11 described earfier? 13:34:38 11 A Negotision.
13:31:04 12 A They't take thw billing dals md determine 13:34:40 12 Q. Waere yos invived in that negotistion process
13;31:08 13 ohether or ooe we recoived the credit thar vwe're 13:34:42 13 of the clumge?
13:31:108 14 attitied o receive. And i we didn't, ve ware 13:34:44 14 A Ye Yoo
13:31:12 15 gvechilled, wo apply for the file dispute, genare & 13:34:48 15 Q. What specifically during the negatistion
13:31:16 16 file dispme, 13:34:52 16  process made you go from 1 3 parcent number back up to
13:31:40 7 Q. Bawed on this comtract — bet me just nak it 13:34:54 17 n 3 peroest ramnber’?
13:31:44 39 s way 13:35:00 18 A Tdou't know. If's been a while since I —
13:31:46 18 s it fiir 46 xaty onowt of the mupporting 13:35:12 19 oo wehad the negotiation I have 10 g0 back and
13131:48 20 docunents in the rstimony of Mr. Bollinger were 13:35:18 20 revisit nry notey and ~ and take o Jook t the new
13:31:52 21 scuully prapared by Lost Koy Telooor? 13;35:22 21 contract But—
13:32:00 22 A Idort — I dowt know that B, fox 13:35:28 2z Q. Did you say ke 8 look a the new contract™?
13:3z:06 23 oample, ] think T've slresdy taitified that the daller 13:35:38 23 5 there & new contract?
13:32:10 FL oty weere devaloped by Lost Key Telocom. 1 believe. 13:35:38 z4 A Thia contract covers up through 2006,
13:32:12 23 1w mybelief. 13:35:42 25  Corvect?
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13:35:42 1 Q. Im asking you. That's ol Limve. 13:39:20 1 A Thisis Seagle
13:35:48 H A Olay. 13:39:2¢ 2 MR TURNER: Chtis, do you need » copy?
13:35:46 a Q. 1s ther g penv conmct? 13:39:28 3 Peegtonmbert
13:35:50 4 A Tdos't— ¥ dont know if there's 2 now — | 13:39:32 4 MR MALISH: Hece, Bracy.
13:35:52 3 don't belicve thare is 2 new contract with Lost Key 13:28:39 5 A, South Califortia?
13:35:56 6  Telecon, mo 13:39:48 [ Q. (By Mr. Tanser) Mr. ORowrk, I'm gring to
13:35:56 7 1 think we're paying 5 percent today to 13:39:50 7 hand you & copy of the testimany righe here.
13:36:00 8 Lost — to Lost Xey slash CGT or CGN, 13:39:52 8 A Olay.
13:36:06 2 Q. Is there any documentation, ¢-mails, anything 13:39:52 9 Q. Yo can have your counsel look or with yeu.
13:36:08 10 thet refiects the changs from the 3 perent number in 13:39:58 10 Be asking you sbout page 6 1 begin with.
13:36:12 11 2006 in this docmant to the § percent mmber that you 13:40:28 11 A Otay.
13:36:16 12 just referenced? 13:40:30 12 Q. Onlince 12 through 16, Ms. Besoy tesifies
13:36:18 13 A There muy be. Td have to ook 123:40:34 13 tha ATAT did ot provide 4P sny of the cash back
13:36:22 14 MR TURNER: Cris, tut is one thing 13:40:38 14 promotional credit it requeysod from biffing peviods
13:36:24 15 weie going toneed. 13:40:42 15 priorto huy 2007,
13:36:46 16 Q. (ByMr. Tumer) It's peatty cloar that this 13240144 16 You agree with that textimony, dout you?
13:36:48 17 isnot going to happen, but T trying to use this us 13:40:46 17 A Yoo
13:36:30 18 aneampl ! d the relstionship between Lost 13:40:480 18 Q. The next quession and eswer relects that the
13:36:92 18 Xeysnddbi 13:40:50 1% first time Ms. Bracy becwme sware that &P intended to
13:36:54 20 Mr. O'Roark, Jef's just mssame that dPi 13:40:56 20 goek puyment For cash back p l cradit voguetts
13:36:56 21 docided we're not going o seek this recovery it the 13:41:00 21 that it had previcnely subimitsed 1 ATAT and tha ATET
13:37:00 22  State af North Carglina. 13:41:04 22  pewviously bad not paid wag in early 2008
13:37:04 2 Ix that & decision under the redationship 13:41:08 23 My quettion to you is, do yau know if dP§
13:37:06 24 between Lowt Koy wod dP; thee dP3 alesye con muadce, or is 13:d1:14 24 wold AT&T that it was going to challenge ATA T prior
13137:12 2% thet something thet 3%'s requined 1o consull with Lost 13:41:20 25 duminl of cash back promoticnal requasy pricr to thet
Page 143 Page 145
13:37:16 1 Key bafore grving up that claim? 13:41:24 1 timne?
13:37:36 2 A T — you'te scying o we agres 1o Noandon 13:41:26 2 In other words, 4P subwmitted & reguest.
13:37:42 3 owr cleim ~ 13:4%1:28 3 it had 0ot bewn paid.
13:37:42 [ Q. Just suwume you did not purzas dwe Novth, 13:43:30 4 When i the carbest hat you cmtend dbt
13:37146 5 Carolins clim for 156,900, 13:41:34 5  infrmed ATAT, We ditagree with that, and we're gring
13:37:48 % Is that x daciion solely within JdPi's 13:41:36 § tochalergeit?
13:37:50 T promise to make, of Goes it have 1o connilt with Lost 15:41:56 7 A Ldon't ] doo't imderstand. We dot flle
13:37:54 8 Koy to soe ff Lost Key s williog to do that? 13:42:00 8 rlaims. and we don't ineond v have ceadit. Righe?
13:38:00 9 A [ bodigvs that's 8 decision dPi cin reke on 13:42:04 g We'rs putting you on notics that we
13:38:04 10 itsown 13:42:08 10 inwend o receive that credit
13:28:06 11 And T think that Loss Koy is only paid 13;42:10 11 Q. And then the credit bocomes denied?
13:38:12 12 other then any upfromt foes or Eoced fves om0 13:42:12 12 A Which huppens almost on every claim we file.
13:38:16 13 suocessful eforts basis. 1f we don't recaive crodit 13:42:18 13 Right?
13:38:22 14 from BellSouth, then nothing is due to Lost Key. 13:42:16 148 Uil recentty. Right.
13:38:2% 15 Sa we don’t -~ I dowt believe that 13:42:18 15 Q. And my question was, whon that claim was
13;38:28 16 there's ady approval required from Lost Key fr us to 13:42:20 16 deied and not peid, when &d P finst come to AT&T
13:38:36 17 megotizs in s settlement of & dispate andfor to agres 13:42:34 17 s say, We dispeste the dail, 4nd wefre gring to
13:38:40 18 1o lose a dispute or to abandoe & dispute. 13:42:26 18 escalme?
13:38:48 19 Q. Maoving on to Ms. Bracy's testimony. 13:42:20 19 A Tdon't know. Td bires 1o 50 theck. Prztiwe
13:39:50 20 Do yom hevo ATET witness Micole Bracy's 13:42:24 20 typically donot — we get sousine deninls of disputes
13:38:52 21 testimony, the direct that wes Slsd on Navember 5th, 13:42:40 21 e file, and we typically do nat acoapt those denials.
13:39:02 22 0080 13:42:42 22 Andwe typically and rexstinely sscalase those cltime,
13:39:02 23 A. Ms Bracy's. 13:42:46 23 Q. Well, my question ig dis. Earlier you
13:39:04 24 MR MALISH: It's in here I think. 13:42: 40 24 mentioned thet part of the readon for waiting 80 kang
13:39:18 29 MR. TURNER: I've got & 13:42:52 25 totuing thiy 10 the Comméssion was to go drugh tha
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13:42:54 1 entire dispute escalation process. 12:45:48 1 Agpyesing this informtice; is sccurate, if
13:42:58 2 And ry quertion 1o you is, do you, & 13:45:52 2 itis, & you heve sy way of knowing why &P would
13:43:02 3 dPts witness in this proceeding, know when dPi Brst 13:48:56 3wt thros yums 4o ek fiue promotions] credit ragquest
13:43:06 4 began that oecalation process? 13:46;00 4 inhefirst plece!
13:43:10 5 A I don't kmow when P first began that 13:46:02 5 A Well, we've alrendy tallad about the fact that
12:43:24 € mscalation peocess. Butifs nox o uoileeryl process. 13:46:04 6 wedide't have my shility 10 — to mdit thoae bills
13:43:20 7 Rigt 13:46:10 T %o deermine if we'd boon overdiarged until e
13:43:20 8 I mean, merely - merely bocmne ATET 13:46:12 8@ Watson dovelopod Lis process, developed his program and
13:43:24 % denies & chim dooes't changs the nenws of the claim. 13:46:16 9 v abia i procoss tha dets.
13:43:28 10 Q. Olmy. 13:46:18 149 That was & very difficult process. Stove
13:43:28 11 A Docsn't chunge: the valicity of the claim 13:46:29 11 we theough pultiple iterstions working with AT&T
13:43:32 12 Duoecsno't change sything. In order for thete o be s 13:46:24 12 BeSowh people 1o deveiop that proctss. That takes
13:43:04 13 Tesclueion of dispum, there bas to be & meeting of the 13:46:26 13 i
13:43:38 14 minds. 13:46:28 14 Q. Wik dd be hegin that pmcew?
13:43:28 18 And 5o the fact that we receive a denisl 13:46:30 15 A Nolswe Wecoold look ax s contract.
13:43:42 16 from ATET oo & chaim we fla dosw’t change the nancrs 13:46:36 i& Righn?
13:43:46 17 ofthat clsim. 13:46:36 17 Wimt's e chuse of tha comteeet?
13:43:46 18 Q. Okay. Gowith me 1o Extibit NWB-1 of Ma. 13:46:38 18 Q 2004,
13:43:52 19 Emcy's weimony. 13:45:40 19 A August of 2004,
13:43:54 20 A Ubdub 13:48:82 29 vk e would e et Yo wedd aart
13:44:02 21 Q. Is there anything on that exhibie that yoo 13:46:54 21 with the mopt tevens dets Frst wnd o to go month by
13;44;08 22 perscrally can Wy is inaccurste? 13:46:56 22 smonthonthat deta So he's starking in Angost of 2004
13:44:24 23 A That ! can perscotally sty what? 13:47:00 23 sadworking backwards.
13:44:16 24 Q. Isinaccuse i weong, 13:47:92 24 Ak what poim 43 b fe o Noverrber
13:44:22 25 A This is an exhibit that wes prepared by ATET? 13:47:04 25 of 20037 ‘This says be filed thet - if his is
Page 147 Page 149
13:44:28 1 1ot s e ¥ it 13:47:10 1 scorms, which ! heve no way of knowing fitis o
13:44:40 2 Q. Look ut that first fine of the exhibit. In 13:47:12 2 not, this seys be got to the August of 2003 sometime
1344346 3 ccherm two it indicatas thar the billing period for 13:47:16 3 woued Jamary of 06, T docks o Be got s Angus,
13:44:30 4 that spacific requen was the Novmpber Bth, 2000 13:47:22 4 Decomber, samstimz srovnd theo.
13:44:58 5 bifimg peiod. 13;:47:28 5 Sa, you know, whes - when he — [ guess
13:44:58 6 Doyou ses that? 13:47:30 §  be's working theough this process nd trying to develop
13:44:58 7 A Ubhuh 13:47:32 T this process. It locks liloe acne of these you filed in
13:45:02 8 Q. Column three cn the saac row indicates that 13:47:46 8  2005. Looks torse as if he gor the prodct up and
13:45:08 % Low Key abmitwd that credit request 1o ATAT Jnmary 13:48:02 9 working sonustioas aroumd 12423720065, Looks tile thars
13:45:12 10 of 2006. 13:48:04 10 the carliest date shefs gox heve.
13:45:14 11 Do you see that? 13:48:06 11 And then be's working backwards. Asd he
13145324 12 A Ubub 13:46:08 12 gotbackio 2003 staff an one — 1/206. Looks L he
13:a%:26 13 Q. Why is there 2 thres-year gap in the time 13:48:16 13 did /806 stulf i Augnst.
13:45:20 14 frame fom the ~ your reseling the promation o your 13:48:22 14 $oT'm not sure. Just tock B sane
13:45:24 15  end user wod you're asking ATAT for » credic? 13:48:28 15 prooess. The enrlicst dates — it Jocked Bke the
13:45:28 16 A Tdoo't know tud there oeas, This i your 13:48:30 1€ fus time be filed saytiving heve ix in December
13:45:30 17 docurent that yoo propered. Yau're asking e to defend 13:48:38 17 of2005. Solwcidd ettone that from the time we
13:45:34 18 yow doomnent or eplain your document? 13:48:30 18 signed his ooyl with hom vl 2005 be's working
13:45:36 19 1 don't lonowy that this docurmant i 13:48:42 18 on this process. He's developing this process. And
13:45:38 20 pocurate in smy respect. 13:48:44 20 hes getting to this cider dats, and — he's ring back
13:45:40 n Q. And you don't know that ifs inaccurate, 13:48:48 21 and - and werking through current data and getting
13:45:42 22 right? 12:48:50 22 backtothis aldes S, e he's firally geting back
13:45:42 23 A ldmY,sa 13:48:52 23 W~ tothess dates — o this deta and getting this
13:45:44 24 Q. Lat's sasume. I'imnct asking you to admit it 13:48:56 24 sufffied
FE R LAY 2% Thisis oot atick 13:48:58 25 Ha ka1 lot of data 1o work throogh:
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13:48:30 1 chvioudy. Cument duts atrent nonth dus, i well 13:52:10 1 sucoess it growing our campry and tha we hadp't had
13:49:02 2 3 going back to previous dats. 13:52:14 2 g7t success in this. And we're not — we'rt not —
13:49:08 3 Q. Wa dPi end user came to you and seld, You 13:32:18 3 youlkmow, weve siraggled wosale s profit. Wearen
13:49:14 4 mdean avorom moy bil] tre: yeks g, would &P 13:52:22 4 profd, but we're 2ot — wrre oot bugely 3 profit
13:45:18 5 ontertmin ther request, or do you have a palicy sbout 13:52:24 L1 Q. Mr ORowtk—
13:49120 € oo B ek you go? 13:52:26 [ A Aminims profit
13:49:28 T A Youemade an error oo vy bill theee years ago. 13:82:28 T Q. —amyou serkously conterding thet if ATAT
13:49:34 B Youknow, if - we would centainly comider it We 13:52:30 8 bed providad the $156,000 ix proeaotional credit
13:49:44 9 would takealook atit And if we made s aror on 13:52:26 % requess that sre = itsue in this docket, dPj wid be
13:49:46 10 thobill and i'a valid iod wo could prove tat — & 13:52:28 10 asignificarsly lvger company?
13:49:50 11 costoaver coald prove to s that we had pade an wor on 13152140 1t A Tm - if you're talking sbout 5100 cash back
13149152 12 thebill, we certainly woukds't ~ and we'd comply with 13:52:48 12 shat would have boen availabie 10 & end user subacriber
13:50:02 313 yulesand regulations. 13:152:50 13 backin these yewrs that § could bave pasved that
13:50:06 14 For example, if we were under a Fourth 13:52:52 14 dwzmgh to the new subscribar and offered them 5100
13:50:08 15 Cirous count onder 9 do something, we certainly would 15:52:56 15 disecaunt, would T bve boen able 1o grab additor]
13:50:12 16 doit 13:52:58 16 muekoet shave snd grow much more quickly? Yes
13;50:12 17 Q. Do yoo tave a policy it tells yoor scrvice 13:;53:02 17 Abschniely 'm saying that No question shaut it.
13:50:16 18  pepresemiytives how far back 10 po in resalving 13:53:06 1e Q. That's nol wiwt F'm ssking. You talked sbout
13:50:20 i9 custormes billing ispses? 13:53:08 12 how smal) you arc campared o ATET.
13:50:22 20 Or do you lmow? 13:53:10 20 There's $156,000 at stakce in this
13:80:26 21 A Awninen policy? 13:53:12 21 proceeding, right?
13:50:28 22 Q. Uhduh 13;:53:12 22 A That's u lot of money.
13:50:28 2 A Tdontimow. Td havetolock, I don't know 12:53:14 23 Q. How g would you have gotten if you had
13:50:42 24 iy experiencs thit wi've evar had that sieurion 13:53:16 24 gesten that 156,0007
13:50:46 235 camewp. 13:53:18 25 How matty more custanicrs would you heve
Page 151 Page 153
313:50:46 1 Q. 1Gad of unusual for samenne 1o come in thet 13:53:20 1 today?
23:50:50 2 Lue? 13:53:22 Z A Idon't know. How —~ T eaten how ~ how can
13:50:50 3 A Yesh Would beumisust for g end ner 13:53:28 3 prodict tht? $156,000 of widitood credit must be
13:50:54 4 wibscriber 10 d0 sorvething Jike the. 13:53:32 4 ofered 0 my customers i tenze of reduced poicing in
13:50:56 H Q. Mr. ORoark, Soes S contend the competition 13:53:34 5 Nerth Cxrcline
13:51:00 £ jnNonh Ceroline wes somehow stifled of undoly harmed 13:53:36 6 ‘How much more quickly could [ beve grosm
13:51:06 7 by ATAT not providing the credit yoau're tequesting in 13:53:36 7 inNorth Corcling and how much larger would I be able
13:51:10 8 this dockes? 13:53:40 8  tobein Nonh Caraling
13:51:14 9 A Well, I think it's clear St o growth has 13:53:40 9 Is that what you're asking me?
13:5%:18 10 tbom sifled. Wo cnly have: 50,000 mubscribers 13:53:42 e Q. Yah
13:81:20 11 paticewide, We're & litile, tiny company. We have 13:53:42 12 A How can I predict ter? How do | know thae?
13:51:26 12 immaamurshle markess. 1T wam't for $he beiling 13:53:46 12 Q. Let me agk you this.
13351130 13 mackm condintns, we'd be a much larger company, have 13:53:46 13 H'you huud gouten the $156,000 that's in
13151132 14 ey more gubscribery than we do. 13:53:50 14 ggmoiein this docket, how would that have reduced the
13:151:34 15 ‘We've been in business um years. 5 s 13:53:54 15 cumthet you were experiencig 35 & business?
13:51:36 16 yesrs we've boes sbie 1o scarmulme & grand totl of 13:54:00 18 MR, MALISH: Object o the form of the
13:51:40 17 80,000 subscribars over 30 phus ctaes that we do 13:54:02 17 guestion
13:51:42 10 ‘Dutinessin &' clear that we're no — wet're not 13:54:04 1 Q. (By Wi Turner) You van snsover.
13:51:46 19 smywhere clost 10 YOuT $ize. We're acx anywhere closs 13:54:12 18 A, Wall, for ooe thing those customers that ae
13:5):48 20 w— vory small company. We're vary small, almost 13:54:18 20 wnticed wovay fronn me because they cac go 10 BaliSouth
12:51:54 21 imonveasorsils macket knare in w0y marke: v T We 13:34:20 21 and gt & $100 eredit from BallSauth would heve been
13:51:58 22 don't — we're simost insignificant in termé of our 13:54:24 22 gt s likely 1o have be caticed tome. Right?
13:52;:00 23 peroeomge meriont share n slmost sy stete and clearly 1315428 23 And so while it wouldi't have neccssarily
13:52:04 24 i wny — almost sy local markes, 13:54:32 24 affected my chum, it could clely hive affactat oy
13:52:08 25 1f's clenr that we baven't had hugs 13:84:36 25 shility to outgrow mry chum, And it would heve driven
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Page 154 Page 156
13154140 1 wand it clewdy could have imparted on driving my 13:58:14 1 T'me--my comtis just slighty leas than what your
13:54:42 F TUTFEOWT 48 A D tage of my total Daat. 13:59:18 2 el oustomer pays. Righi? 20 parcent. Right?
13:54:46 3 The fasct that 1~ that you had that 13:58:24 3 So if thw reteil cost of that produoct i
13:54:48 L] cradit out there and available in the merketplace ad 13:58:26 4 525 and P'm gesting a 20 peroent discount off of it
13:54:50 5 you wenedt giving it 10 me put me st s huge 13:38:32 5 —lets say theoreticully 20 percent di You're
13:54:54 € compatitive disadvaniage relative to you and relative 13:58:34 6 selling it to your cusiomer for 325, nd my cost is
13:54:58 7 tosaybody else that you gave that cradit to and 13:59:38 7 poly $Sless 820, Right? En month two, thres, four
13:155: 00 8 clearly drove down the retail -- the effective retail 13:58:46 8 thereafter. Right?
13:55:04 9 price s customer could pay. 13:50:50 9 Are you suggesting that I would caly make
13:55;06 10 And T wps not sble 10 compete with that, 13;:58:52 10 55 per custedner?
13:55:08 13 F'wasnot sble to offer that to my retail customers, 13:59:56 11 Q. Trm aaking you the question, st
13:55:10 12 Surely you're not suggesting that 5100 13:58:5%8 12 A Olary. The question — | gress the question to
13:55:12 13 offin month one is not a Ingely impoctful reduction i 13:59:02 13 me docsn't make any ooonomic sense.
13:55:18 14 the net retail price thil customens were paying. 13:59:04 14 The promoticnal credit i only & mosth
13:55:22 15 Q. Your prices todsy reflected on Exhibit § 13:59:08 15 one isre. You'yo using it to acquire custosmers in
13:55:24 16 refiect the flaw thrmgh of the promotional credit 13:3%:10 16 prwomih ot Yorve boen ordered by the Fourth Cireais
13:55:26 17 request thet is happening todey 13:59:14 17 to pes il through to us es effective reducing retail
13:55:29 18 Cotrect? 13:58:16 14 price. And in month one it clesrly doss.
13:55:28 18 A Zero price. Yeu, it doen. Right? The LCCW 13:38:22 19 Walre not talling sbout a promotionsl
13:55:32 20 credit and the cash baok credit. 13:59:122 20 crwdit that's available in month two, thres, fiur snd
13:55:34 21 Q. And i month three your customner & paying 13:539:26 21 five. Hthers was mach 3 promotional credit
13156106 22 553.23 fior basic service, Right? 13:59:28 22 availsble, we would apply for it.
13:56:1D 23 A Which exhibit are you koking st? 13:59:32 23 Q. Now, you've boen talking sbout how AT&T's
13:56:12 24 Q. Exbubit 3, 13:59:36 24 docision tot to provide these crudits ingacted one
13:56:22 25 A Rght 13:59:40 25 competiser, dPI7

Page 1553 Page 157
13:56:26 1 Q. So when you'rs gatting the promotional credit, 13:59:42 1 A AT of the competitors.
13:56:32 2 yourmoowh three rate, which is really the fist line 13:59:44 2 Q. My question is, do you contend that
13:56:34 3 rute that extends is 53,237 13:59:46 3 coopatiion in North Ceroline, oot e omrpeine but
13:56:36 4 A The promotional credits ar oot recurring. 13:30:50 4  competition in North Carolina, was stifled ar unduly
13:56:40 5 They're cndy month one. 13:59:54 5 hermad by ATAT not providing the credit you're
13:56:40 § Q. Assume with e that the ATET basic service 13:59:56 &  roquesting in this dockel?
13:36:44 7 prioeinNovth Cwoline is around $25. Just make that 14;00:00 1 A 1think ATET nox providing it 90 CLECx in
13:56:48 g earpton for me, 14:00:06 B oo,y it did 1t gave ATET wn unbhir
13:56:52 9 Are you ding thet you're 14:00:12 9 ahantige Tt yeduced the reteil prios, sffctively
13:56:54 10 with ATAT for that customer whan your price is 5323 14:00:14 16 roduced the rotxil prics, by $100. And you dide't prss
13:56:58 11 for month thres mnd beyond? 14;:00:18 11 through tet affrctive reduction of retsil price ko tbe
13:87:00 12 A $13allin, incluling teves, srchargee, 14:00:22 12 CLEC community of which dPiis cne And, theeefire, we
13:57:04 13 everyhing? 14:00:32 13 didn't~ all of s wore st & competitive disadvantige.
13:%%:04 14 Q. Lats ssman it doos. FATET price for basic 14:00:36 14 Q Soyon would agran with me, wou't you, that
13:57:10 15  inmenth thres sed beyood in significantly Lower thas 14:00:40 15  AT&Y North Caroling did noc pass taese cradity 10 some
13:57:12 16  yours, ' trying to understand how you contend that 14100144 16 pewpicd reallers buk ot o cthers?
13:57:16 17 youwere really competing with that customer. 14:00:48 17 MR MALISH: Caiv vou iy that agein?
13:57:30 1s MR MALISFE Object 10 the Sorm. 14:00:32 18 A Tt —i1—yesh Vinire saking me — did you
13:37:30 18 Q. (By Mr. Tumar) You can mswer. 14:00:56 1%  giveit toBudge? Did you give it to Taleconoes?
13:37:40 20 A Idont = lot me think about that. These 14:01:00 20 My understyriing is that — in soeme of
13:57:54 21 promotionsl credits are only sveilable an month coe. 14:03:02 21 e oder sestincrey sic some of the ather enudies I
13:57;58 22 They're not recuming credits. They're not svailable 14:03:04 22 roud et yim did, in fack, give thass gromstioal
id:s8:00 23 in mooth rwe, month three, month B, 214101:10 23 credits 10 Budget, Taburonen, 100 parce slmost.
13:58:04 24 Since I'm buying ary product from you s 3 14:03:12 24 Q (By Mr. Tumer) You maliing sboue lioe
13:58:08 25 slight discxnmt off your retmil tanif, then otrviously 14:03:14 25 camection waiver, or wre you telking sbout the cash
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14:01:16 1 bed? 14:10:26 1 MR TURNER: Sure.
14:01:16 2 A Tmaotsure B just saying the 1know 14:10:28 2 MR MALISH: T think that weedd - Td
14:01:20 3 that you gave kene pramational credit so Budget thet 14:10:30 2 rwher have sort of's checklist 1o work fas.
14:01:22 1 youdidet givetoun 1 imow you gave some 14:10:32 4 MR, TURNER: 1do undersand. Thereare
14:03:26 §  promotional % Telecomnex you didn't give tous. 14:10:34 5 limits to the number of interrogmaries in Merth
14:01:30 6 Whethe it was fioe whiver ar cash back, Trs not sure. 14;10:38 6  Carolice.
14:01:32 1 Tn roading the testimany 1 was reading - 14:10:38 7 MR- MALESH: Olkay.
14:01:34 € in preparing for this betring, I read through the 14:10:38 8 MR- TURNER: Assuming te follow-up is
14:01:36 9 testimony, 15w th those issuns were allowed in 14:10:40 9 within reyson, basad sclely on thix deposition, do you
14:03:42 10 acevw of the tewtimony Tread. Aad 80— and I tink 14:10: 44 10 micipate objecting W it if it goes beyond u toid of
14:01:46 11 sorme of the vestimany [ e from ATAT saic that yes, 14:10:48 11 5|
14:01; 4B 12 youdid dotwt And thee you were giving than 14:10:48 12 MR- MALISH: [-would be suprised if it
14:01:52 13 100 percent. Al poroe poing you stopped doing thet, and 14:10:50 13 potthethigh You thesn—
14:01:54 14 e we were the coes that — that didn't get snything 14:10:52 14 MR TURNER: Intolsl,
14:02:00 15 and didn't get what we spplied for. You stopped doing 14:10:52 15 MR, MALISH: Not 50 more.
14:02:06 16t 14:10:54 16 MR TURNER: Nt 30 more:
14:02:08 17 And 30 | think — I think thar theye {2 & 14:10:56 17 MR MALISH: I woulds's bave & problem
14:02:08 18 very distinct possibility thet you gave these credits 14:10:58 18 withtmt
14:02:12 19 4 pome CLPCa thet your didet give them wyus 1 dont 14:10:58 19 MR- TURNER: And, finally, understansing
14:02:14 20— havenowiy of knowing that How would I know that? 14:11:00 20 and respecting the concems about the wimess appesring
14:02:18 21 Q. Well, Mr. O'Roark, what I'm trying to figure 14:11:04 21t the beating, if there it n changn, if the winess ~
14:02:22 22 con ks wha you can and can't esify . 14:11:08 22w are going to bave some concerms, we will address it
14:02:24 23 A T cam't westify one way or the other when I 14:11:12 23 hopefally wogether and not with the Commission.
14:02:26 24 o'y e way dimect Imowledge of tut. 14:11:34 24 MR MALISH: Right
14:02:28 23 ©. Okay. Alllneed 14:11:14 25 MR TURNER: D't expect tn have tie

Page 15% Page 161
14:02:28 1 A Okxy. 14:11:16 1 discyussion mow, bt 1 did wast to pet you on notics
14:02:30 2 M. TURNER: Let's take s break Let me 14:11:18 2 thet
14:02:32 3 peeifthere's anything else. 14:11:18 3 MR MALISH: Oh, T'm sure.
14:02:32 1 (Broak talom from 2:00 pm. 16.2:09 pm) 14111120 4 MR TURNER: Unbess yors harve agry further
14:09;14 5 MR TURNER: We're back oo the renord. 14:11:22 5 guostions for Mr. O'Roark, | think the deposition is
14:09:16 6 Clyis, fm going to ask the court 14111:24 6 conchded
14:09:18 7 reporter to ok dPi's second sapplemental responses 0 14:11:26 7 MR MALISH: We will reserve ours-
14:09:22 8 imemogatories thet we di d with Mr. O'Roark as 14:11:28 ] MR TURNER: Oy, Thank you
14:09:24 $  the next depowition exhibit. id4:11:29 5 (Deposition conchuded &t 2:11 pm.)
14:09:46 10 (Exchibic & marked ) 10
1¢:09:50 11 MR TURNER: Clwis, while we're on the 11
14:08:50 12 record, there were o mumber of ittms that were 12
14:09:52 13 refersnced s posttial follow-ups. 13
14:08:56 34 MR MALISH: Uh-hub. 14
14:09:56 15 MR TURNER: What I un going to suggest 15
14:09:58 16 s thet the court reporer believes she can tvn sround 16
14110:02 17 % copy of th deposiion within ten business duys. &)
14:10:04 18 What I'm geing to suggest is Jet iz ook 18
14:10:06 13 fhroughi o the time and then wend you cither & 19
14:10:10 20 Jevar or w supplemental, you know, discovery requast 20
14:30:514 21 aad sonuchow find an organized way o gt it afl it 21
14:10:18 22 omce 22
14:10:18 23 MR MAUSH: Right. That's fine. T 23
14:10:20 24 would brief if it with & supplementsl discovery request. 24
14:10:24 25 You can couch it a5 & leater, if you want o 25
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PROCEEDINGS

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Good morning. Let's
come to order, please, and go on the record. I am
Commissioner Bill Culpepper and with me are Commission
Chairman Edward §. Finley, Jr. and Commissioner Bryan E.
Beatty.

The Commission now calls for hearing .at this
time Docket No. P~55, Sub 1744, in the Matter of dPi
Teleconnect, LLC, 2997 LBJ Freeway, Suite 225, Dallas,
Texas, 75234, Complainant v. BellSouth Telecommunications,
Incorporated, Respondent.

On April 11, 2008, Complainant filed its
Complaint against the Respondent seeking to recover cash
back promotional credits that it is allegedly owed
pursuant to the parties' interconnection agreement.

On May 2, 2008, Respondent filed its Answer in
which it denies that Complainant is entitled to the
promotional credits it seeks in its Complaint.

On May 23, 2008, Complainant fil;d its response
indicating that Respondent's Answer is not satisfactory
and requesting an evidentiary hearing.

On September 10,.2008, the Commission issued an
Oxrder Scheduling Docket for Hearing and Prefiling of

Testimony. Pursuant to this Order, this docket was

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

originally scheduled for hearing on December 9, 2008.

On November S5, 2008, Respondent prefiled the
direct testimoriies and exhibits of Nicole Bracy, Kristy
Seagle, and P.L. (Scot) Ferguson. On this same date
Complainant prefiled the direct testimony and exhibits of
“Brian Bolinger.

On November 12, 2008, Respondent filed its
Motion to Compel and Motion to Suspend Procedural
Schedule. On November 19, 2008, Complainant filed its
Response to Complainant's Motion to Compel and the
rebuttal testimony of its witness Brian Bolinger.

On November 20, 2008, Respondent filed the
rebuttal testimony of its witnesses P.L. (Scot) Ferguson
and Nicole Bracy.

! On November 21, 2008, the Commission issued its
Order Canceling Hearing, Suspending Procedural Schedule,
and Ruling on Data Requests. Pursuant to this Order the
procedural schedule that had previously been set in this
docket was suspended pending further Order and Complainant
was directed to fully and completely answer certain
discovery requests that had previously been made upon it
by Respondent.

" On August 27, 2009, the Commission issued its

Order Scheduling Hearing by which this hearing was

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION




tn

=, ]

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

scheduled for this date and in this place. By separate
Order issued October 28, 2009, the starting time for the

hearing was changed to 10:00 a.m.

On November 6, 2009, Respondent filed a Motion
to Compel by which it has requested the Commission to
enter an Order compelling Complainant to respond to
certain interrogatories.

Pursuant to G.S. 138#—15(e) I remind members.of
the Commission of their duty to avoid conflicts of
interest and inquire at this time as to whether any
Commissioner has any known conflict of interest with
respect to this docket?

(No response.)

Let.the record reflect that no such conflicts
were identified.

I now call upon the parties to announce their
appearances for the record, beginning with the

Complainant.

MR. MCDONALD: Good morning. I'm Ralph McDonald
appearing for the Complainant, dPi. And appeariﬁg with me
is Chris Malish of the Texas authority. He's been
admitted for the purpose of this proceeding.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Good mo¥ning,

gentlemen.

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Incorporated, doing business as AT&T North Carolina filed
a Motion to Compel on November 6, 2009. Mr. Rankin, I'll
be glad to hear from you —-- or Mr. Turner I think wants to
argue that; is that correct?

MR. RANKIN: That's correct.

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Be glad to hear from

you.

MR. TURNER: Thank you. Mr. Chairman,
Commissioners, I'm Patrick Turner representing AT&T North
Carolina. We have filed a wgitten Motion to Compel. And
I will not go through it in detail. 1I'd just like to hit
the highlights. But before I do, I would also like to
point out, I have some of the information that we have
gatheréd from publicly available sources that I intend to
use in the cross-examination today, so while I uﬁderstand
the Commission may not rule on the motion today, it may
come up in that setting. So it will be basically the same
issue, 80 I would like to at least walk you through at a

high level our concern.

This docket is about cash back promotions,
promotions in which a -- an AT&T North Carolina end user,
if they met certain qualifications, could receive a coupon

"for some cash back — $50 check, $100 check —-- during the
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time period at issue, which is prior to June of 2007.
During that time periocd, ATAT would sell telecommunication
service to dPi at the resale rate established by the
Commission. 8o we provided the resale discount, but AT&T
would not provide the cash back portion of that offering.
And that's the dispute here.

One of our defenses in the case is that dPi
waited too long to ask for those credits or to dispute the
denial. You'll hear a lot about that on cross, but that
aspect of our defense does not relate to the Motion to
Compel. The Motion to Compel relates to our second

primary defense.

The FCC has said and the Fourth Circuit has
affirmed that a -- an incumbent local exchange company can
place reasonable and nondiscriminatory restrictions on the
resaie of its services. We contend that our denying these
credits is just that, a reasonable and nondiscriminatory
restriction on the resale of these services.

In a prior docket, the Commission entertained
that type of dispute. It went up through the district

court and ultimately to the Fourth Circuit in the Sanford
decision. In the orders that the Commission entered,
which discussed a cash back offering just.like you have in

front of you now, in those orders the Commission gave
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guidance. It said here is some factors we will consider
if a party comes and tries to say this is a reasonable and
nondiscriminatory restriction. One of those factors is
will competition be stifled or unduly harmed if the resale
is not available. The other -- another factor is the
extent to which a reseller offers promotional inducements
that are different than the inducements offered by the
ILEC.

The third factor that is relevant today is the
Commission noted that while it was possible that a
reseller might not pass all the benefit along to its end
user, the Commission said it's unlikely -- and I'm quoting
from your Order —- "unlikely because a reseller's success
is based on being able to sell services at prices that are
competitive with the ILEC's prices in the marketplace."

In discovery, we have asked dPi for information
related to what services do you sell at what prices to
your customers in North Carolina. We believe that
question is directly relevant to the three issues that
this Commission said that you would consider in
determining our defense. It goes to whether competition
is stifled or harmed; it goes to the extent to which they
may offer inducements that are different than ours; and it

also goes to the extent to which they do or do not attempt
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to compete with us on a price basis.

We believe the information that we will present
today and that we will attain through discovery will show
that they do not. Now, dPi can certainly argque ‘the merits
of what that does and doesn't show, but we are convinced
that we are entitled to obtain it in discovery and to ask
that type of gquestion on cross-examination. All of the
questions are designed to get information that is relevant
to those matters and we would request -- respectfully

request that you grant our Motion to Compel. Thank you,

sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Let me ask
you something while I've got it on my mind. And it -- it
may be more toward the case in chief than -- than the

Motion to Compel. TI think you've already alluded to that,
but since you brought it up and it's fresh on my mind, -
before I forget it, you indicate that one of the defenges
that your client would have against the Complainant's
complain -- Complaiﬁt -- Complaint is that it waited too
long to bring this matter forward, make the request and
then bring this complaint.

When you say waited too long, are you talking
about a statute of limitations matter or you talking about

an equitable defense of laches or both or which -- what's
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-- what are you talking about in that regard?
MR. TURNER: Really two things. One, there'——'

we will demonstrate in our cross that there was a

contractual obligation that dPi committed not to dispute

on amount that we had billed more than a year after that
amount was submitted. We'll demonstrate that they did not
comply with that contractual obligation. So in that éensa
we beliéve it is contractual time limitations that they
have failed to comply with.

Beyond that, we will demonstrate that they
waited a long time to ask; they waited a longer time to

dispute, which also, in our view, violates their

contractual obligations, and by the time that they brought
it to the Commission some of the evidence was no longer
available. 8o I believe it is a combination, sir, of
contractual obligations, laches and possibly statute of
“liﬁitations.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Okay. Since you say

statute of limitations, if that were to be sdmething -

and I'm not saying that it will be. We haven't heard the

case. If that were something that we would have to make
some kind of decision on, there's -- there's -- seems to
be indication that the state law applicable to the

interconnection agreement is the State of Georgia; is that
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correct?

il MR. TURNER: I think there is a provision of
that nature, yes, éir. And we concede that that State of
Georgia law would apply to the general terms and

conditions. We do not mean to concede that that means

that the Georgia Commission's rulings on

interconnection -—-

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, I understand that
part. I'm not talking about the Georgia Commission.
MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. But, yes, sir --
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: I'm talking about:
the -- whatever the state law of Georgia, whatever the

limitation of actions law in Georgia is with respect to a

case like this. Is -- do you concede that that is
applicable --

MR. TURNER: Yes,.sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -« if we get to that
point? And it seems to me that it's stated that that
period under Georgia law is -- if we're talking about a

breach of contract -- is gix years; is that --

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. We concede.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Okay. You concede to
that. Okay. Thank you for that.

Now, let me ask you this: Regarding the cash

NORTH CARQLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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back, what form would this cash back take? I mean, was it
a credit to the customer'é bills or was it a coupon for
$50 or a check for $50? What form would it take?

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. Need to answer that in
two ways. One, on the retail side, that we made it
available to our end user customers; and then two, if the
question also was what form did it make —- did we make it
available to dPi, I can answer that as well.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Right.

MR. TURNER: On the retail side, the three
promotions that are at issue here, each involved a coupon
that was sent to the customer after they purchased the
services. And the customer had to turn around and redeem
that coupon within a stated amount of time, usually 90
days. If AT&T's end user customer received the coupon and
did not turn it in within that 90-day time frame, they did
not receive the benefit. .
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: When you say "turn it

in, ™ would it be a credit on their bill? 1Is that what it

was? What was it?

MR. TURNER: So they would send the coupon back
to & designated address. And when that coupon was
Ireceived, AT&T would send a check to the customer. So

actual benefit to the end user customer tock the form of a
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check.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Cash money --
eventually cash money when they cashed the check?

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: So the deal was AT&T
would send the cohpon, the customer would be required to
send the coupon back to AT&T, and if AT&T got the coupon
back within a prescribed time, then the customer would get
a check from AT&T?

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Not a credit on the
bill, but a check?

MR. TURNER: Not a bill credit, no, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Okay. All right.
Thank you.

MR. TURNER: VYes, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Other Commissioners
have guestions?

(No response.)

All right. Thank you very much. You may have a
seat. And, Mr. Malish, I'll be glad to hear from you.

MR. MALISH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Again,
it's Chris Malish here on behalf of dPi. And as I

mentioned earlier during the informal housekeeping
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get-together at the bench, we have a more formal extended
written reply that’'s being filed today.

The first part of our reply to that Motion to
Compel is that in its original Order this Commission set
out a time frame for -- in which discovery was to take
place. And that ended at some point in 2008. Now, in
2009 we agreed to provide some additional information to
AT&T and we answered some questions that they had. We
provided a witness for deposition voluntarily. However,
we did not voluntarily agree to provide information on
things that we consider to be completely irrelevant to the
question that this tribunal must decide. And that's where
we objected to some of the materials that they are asking
from here.

Because the underlying -- the underlying law
here is what -- what drives the inquiry. The Federal
Telecommunications Act requires that AT&T resell the rates
—- resell the services that it provided to its end users
to resellers at wholesale rates. And, of course, the --
you know, when you get $100 cash back from AT&T, that
affects your -- your rate that your -- you know, the net
rate that you're actually paying for that service.

The things that they were asking us for was

information about what we do with those discounts if we
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get them from AT&T. So generally what happens -- and I'll

go over this in my opening statement because it is kind of

at the core case in its entirety -- but at the end of the
day the question is is AT&T providing the same offer to
dPi that it is prowviding its own retail customers. And
that's it. That's the end of the question.

They are allowed to put restrictions on the
offers that they make from retail to resale and there are
examples of that that the -- that the FCC has noted are
reasonable. For example, restrictions that prevent

promotion that's directed primarily at business customers,

that's something that can't be -- if you sell it to one
class of customers, business customers, you can't turn
around as a reseller and sell it to retail customers.
That's the kind of discrimination or restriction £hat is
-—- has been decided is okay. But the kind that they‘'re
talking about is not.

So the end inquiry is simply whether they've
made us the same offer and if they haven't, what they've
done is illegal and it wviolates not just the law, but also
the contract. And so when they ask about our relations
lwith third parties, our customers, that is outside of the

kinds of things that this Commission needs to lock at to

llreach a decision in this case and so that's why we've
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resisted the discovery on those matters.

And there will be more information in our

written response, but that's just at a very high level
where we're coming from. And I am happy to answer
questions.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right.
Commissioners have any gquestions?

(No response.)

All right. Thank you. Ms. Edmonds;n, do you
jcare to be heard on the Motion to Compel?

MS. EDMONDSON: No.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Thank you.
Well, gentlemen, as I indicated to you, I was inclined to
take the matter under advisement with respect to the

motion and I'm going to do that. I'm not going to rule on

it today. I'm going to take the matter under advisement.
Now, it’'s been represented by Mr. Malish on
behalf of his client that they are intending to file a
written response, which is something new that apparently
has not been filed yet. And it is in reply to, I suppose,

the Motion to Compel and per —- and hopefully the

underlying discovery.
And assuming that takes place, Mr. Rankin,

Mr. Turner, of course I know y'all are going to take a
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real close look at that and that may narrow things down
for the Commission to rule on. And I would, therefore,
invite you when they make that filing, after you carefglly
review that, that perhaps you would wish to make a
supplemental filing with the Commission if that, in fact,
narrows things down a little bit and so advise ‘the
Commission of that and then we'll be prepared to -- or
I'll be prepared to rule on whatever your —-- is left that
you're dissatisfied with in the way of a response if
that's okay with you. Does that sound like a satisfactory
way to proceed?

MR. RANKIN: That does, Mr. Chairman.

MR. TURNER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Okay. Fine. All
right. So we'll be on the lookout for the written
response.

Okay. That would conclude the hearing on the
Motion to Compel. That brings us to the evidentiary
hearing. Mr. Malish indicated that youn wonld like to make
an opening statement and I'll be glad to hear from you.

MR. MALISH: Thank you. And Mr. Chairman, I had
prepared a Power Point type presentation so that y'all
could actually see what it is that I'm saying, but we lack

an overhead projector here that we can use and so I have a
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|handout instead.
Generally, gentlemen -- or Commissioners, what

[1've proposed to do is give you -- basically start with a

| recap of the law on resale and the key contract provisions
?in this -case. 1 feel like it never hurts to go back and
:set the stage so that we can remember exactly why we're
talking about what we're talking about.

I'm going to spénd almost no time talking about
%the actual details of the promotions themselves because
lthat's doesn‘'t appear to be the core of the dispute
|between the two parties. And then I will try to take on
some of BellSouth's "yeah, buts.* And by that I mean
that's what they say when we say -- we make cur
| presentation and they-say, yeah, but they're not entitled
:to it for one reason or another. And I'll cover those
when we get to them.

I'm jumping up to slide three there. To go into
some background on the law on resale, that originates, of
course, way back in 1996 with the Federal
JTelecommunications Act. And basically what it says is
that monopolist incumbents like BellSouth, now AT&T, have
the obligation to offer at wholesale rates, rates, any
telecommunications service that‘they provide at retéil to

CLECs like dPi. And they have the -- a duty to not impose
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unreasonable discriminatory conditions in doing so.

The FCC has clarified in its various different
rulings and rule-makings exactly what is expected from
incumbenté like AT&T or BellSouth. And on page 4 you'll
see among other things that 47 CFR says that the incumbent
has the obligation to offer -- and this is the key thing
to focus on -- offer any communications service that the
LEC offers on a retail basis it has to offer to CLECs like
dPi.

There has been a number of cases, rule-makings,
pronouncements by the FCC as to what this means when we're
talking about promotions. And on page 5 you'll see among
other things that they're required to provide the
promotions that they make available at retail, the
promotional offers they make available at retail, to CLECs
like dPi if they're being made for a period of more than
90 days.

And if you skip to page 6, you'll see that they
can impose a restriction only if they go to the Commission
and show that that discrimination or restriction that they
want to impose is reasonable and nondiscriminatory. So
that's something that they're supposed to be doing
beforehand-if they want to do that, not after the fact.

On page 7 there is some additional
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pronouncements from the FCC to make clear that these

obligations to extend offers that are made at retail to
CLECs like dPi are also -- also extend to promotional or
discounted offerings. So the Act makes no exception for
promotional or discounted offerings. Our rules require
the incumbents to apply the wholesale discount to the
special reduced rate.

Again, the rule on offers. You know, the point
is that it has to be the offer that is made to the retail
customer must also be offered to the CLEC like dPi. And,
again, it has to -- if you want to deviate from that, you
have to get permission from the Commission first.

Turning to the contract, which is where the rest
of the obligations and duties of the parties arise.

You'll see that the contract says over and over again that
it's designed or created to basically further set out the
duties between the parties that originate from Sections
251 and 252 of the Act. And so in substantive matters,
the agreement is supposed to be governeﬁ and conformed and
construed in accordance with federal and state
telecommunications laws, including those regulations from
the FCC that we just covered a second ago. And in the
resale attachment it says, again, that BellSocuth is

"supposed to make available to dPi for resale those
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services that BellSouth makes available to its customers.
Page 9 is basically what the bottom line is. If
AT&T makes an offer available to its retail customers, it
[has to make the same offer available to CLECs like dPi.
That's the bottom line. Unless they get permission or

approval beforehand to not do so, which hasn't happened in

this case.

The promotion in dispute is -- is -- there's
three diffe?ent cash back -- and the actual details of
these promotions really aren't in dispute. There's a
couple of promotions in which they give $100 cash back and
another one that's similar in which they give $50 cash
back. The dispute is all about whether we're just
entitled to these at all to begin with, not whether we've
actually qualified them. At least that’'s the way I
believe that the dispute is framed. |

So BellSouth has a number of responses to our
claim here. And this is what I call their "yeah, buts."”

They're like, yeah, dPi, but. Yeah, but a promotion is

not a service and we're only supposed to have to resell

our services at wholesale. And they also say, yeah, but

J|if they don't give it to their past end users, we don't

have to give it to dPi. And AT&T or BellSouth says, yeah,

but dPi's late. They've waived their rights. ‘-And, you
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know, yeah, but when we give -- when we undercut the

pricing, it doesn't hurt competition. When we -- when we

give ocur customers $100 off but we don't give that to 4dri,

that doesn't hurt competition. So those are some of the
“yeah} buts” that BellSouth has.

I responded to these not in any particular
order. Starting with, though, this issue -- this argument
that yeah, but if they don't give it to their past end
users, we don't have to give it to them. That's not in
the law anywhere. The law says nothing about what a --
what a CLEC has to do with -- with the rates that it gets
from ATET. It doesn't say that the wholesale discount,
for example, has to be passed through 100 percent to its

customers or any part of a promotion. That's simply not

part of the law. It's not part of the contract either.

It's simply irrelevant to the guestion of what they are

obligated to do under the law and under the contract.
This issue about the yeah, but we don't have to

offer a promoticn because it's not a service, it's not a

25
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service and all we have to qffer is a service. Well, vyes,
that's true. The promotion is not a service, but whether
the promotion is a service is really not the inquiry here.
[The inquiry is the rate at which the service is provided.

And so if you go back and you look at the federal statutes
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and rules, they have the rate —— the obligation, the duty

to offer for resale at wholesale rates. And this is what

we're looking at, the rates that the service is being
"provided at. And so obviously when you get a kickback of
$100 or $50, the rate you're paying is not the tariffed
rate.

Another interesting thing to look at here is the
SBC, which is -- eventually took over BellSouth, has
resold these kinds of promotions all along. And, of

course, after SBC acquired BellSouth and after the Sanford

decision, BellSouth has been reselling these kinds of
promotions to resellers like dPi ever since.

There is a -- you know, the yeah. Yeah, but
fhey}ve waited too long. Well, you know, that's really
not true either because in this particular instance in the
contract that was in place from 2003 to June of 2007,
which is the period that we're seeking these -- seeking to
recover these unpaid promotion credits, the agreement was
governed by federal law and state substantive
communications law, but in all other respects it was
governed by and enforced in accordance with the state -—-
and with the laws of the State of Georgia. And in Georgia
the statute of limitations for written contracts is six

years. So we're well within that time period.
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So that's sort of the basic legal argument,
right. But the other half of that is the equitable
argument that they're making which -~ in which they say,
well, it's -- they've just waited too long. They waived

their right under the rules of equity.

Equity applies only in situations where there is
not a contract provision addressing the particular issue.
Here, though, the contract does. And the contract
specifically provides that there is no°'waiver of any right
that is accomplished by delay. So this is at the general
terms and conditions Section 16 of the contract between
the parties and it says a failure or a delay of either
party to enforce any of the provisions hereof, blah, blah,
Blah, blah, does not affect a waiver.

So before we even got to the situation when the
contract was negotiated between these parties and signed
back in 2003, there was an agreement that nc delay affects
a waiver. And that trumps any sort of equitable argument
that there might be that there's some sort of waiver going

on here.

The last "yeah, but” is this contention that by
being able to give their own customers $100 cash back but
by not extending such discounts or price breaks to CLECs

that AT&T isn't hurting competition. 1It's not hurting
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competition.

Now, the first thing to remember here is that
the FTA was created with the intention of eliminating the
monopolies like AT&T's, local franchises, BellSouth, for

example. And that has been, you know, stated pointblank

by the Supreme Court. That is one of the policy goals
behind the FPTA, to eliminate the monopolies, for example,
BellSouth, and to promote competition from new entrants
like dPi and other CLECs. The purpose is not to
facilitate competition by ILECs like BellSouth with people
like dPi and other CLECs in their positions.

And, you know, there's no way around it. When
your competitor is selling something to its customers for

$100 or $50 less than you can even get it for from them,

that hurts competition. I mean, we'll get into this

later, but apparently the argument from AT&T'S witnesses

is the fact that dPi is still alive is proof that
competition has not been injured.

So the argument that this kind of restriction is
reasonable is ~-- we find to be not very plausible,
especially when you -~ when you put it up against the
fkinds of restrictions that the FCC has said are

reasonable. And this tends to be the kind of thing that I

mentioned before, the cross-class selling. For example,
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if there's a special deal that's available only to AT&T'Ss
retail customers, a reseller like dPi can't take that and.
spin into something that it offers to its business
customers. So that's the sort of thing that the FCC has
specifically said is okay, and that's obviously not

similar to what we're dealing with here.

So that's our presentation in a nutshell. And
I'm happy to answer any questions if y'all have any.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Chairman
Finley. .

CHAIRMAN FINLEY: Mr. Malish, I believe I heard
you to say that if AT&T contends that the nature of the
restriction on the promotion, whether it's reasonable or
nondiscriminatory, if that is a reascnable and
nondiscriminatory restriction, they've got to make that at
the time of the offer to what -- this Commission and this
“Commission has got to approve it at the time of the offer.
Did I understand you correctly about that?

MR. MALISH: That is -- that is my reading of

the FCC's rules.

CHAIRMAN FINLEY: &And what rule is that

that's —--

MR. MALISH: Let's see if I have that. I

believe that's 47 CFR 51.613(b}.
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CHATRMAN FINLEY: All right. And also I believe
that I ﬁeard you to say both in your opening statement
there and in your addressing of the Motion to Compel that
your ability to compete without the promotion is
irrelevant to the case; is that right?

MR. MALISH: Well, what is irrelevant to the
case, I believe, is our interactions with our customers.

CHAIRMAN FINLEY: Whether you pass that onto
your customers is irrelevant?

MR. MALISH: Is irrelevant.

CHATRMAN FINLEY: Well, I've looked at this<
Sanford case. And I just -- I'm looking at page 452, I
guess. And I'"ll read this paragraph. "BellSouth argues
that N.C. Commission's orders stack the deck against it
denying it the opportunity to compete by using marketing
incentives unless it pays for those incentives twice, once
in paying for the incentives and again in reducing the
retail rate for its competitors. The competing LECs would
respond in like manner, that without the orders they would
have to pay for the incentives twice in order to compete,
once when they pay for the service of the wholesale rate
that was not adjusted for the incentives and again when
they pay for similar marketing incentives to offer their

own customers.”
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Is that type of inquiry not relevant in this
case when we look at whether or not BellSouth's refusal to
pass on this promotion is reasonable and
nondiscriminatory?

MR. MALISH: Commissioner Finley, I don't have
that language in front of me. Of course I have read that
case in the past. But I believe that what they are --
what -- I don't believe the Fourth Circuit is taking a
position. I believe what the Fourth Circuit is doing
there is relaying or restating what the arguments of the
parties are without making a determination one way or the
other. You know -- and so they're not taking a position.

If you're asking me to take a position on that
issue or let you know where I think -- what I see on it,
my point is that this may hurt AT&T. This may not be --
this may make it more difficult for them to compete. And
that is frankly the purpose behind the Federal
Telecommunications Act. It is designed to break the
monopoly and to make competition by new entrants like dPi

easier.

And so when you have a situation where, for
example, the tariffed rate for BellSouth is $50 but they
are giving a kickback to their customers of $100 and

they're selling it at -- to us fof $40, we are getting a
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service that we have to sell at more than $40 in order to,
you know, break even while the customers that we are
competing for are able to buy that service for basically
negative $50. So that hurts competition.

" CHAIRMAN FINLEY: Well, the case talks about the
tipping point. At some point some of these promotions can
be pro-competitive and at some point they become
anti-competitive. And are we not free in light of what
the Fourth Circuit has said about this particular
promotion, the 1FR + 2 cash back, don't we have to look
into the facts of this particular promotion and the impact
that it has on dPi to determine whether or not it is
I!reason-‘:lble and anti-competitive in this case?

MR. MALISH: Well, I think -- I think when it

talks about the effect on competition, I think they are

“talking about the effect on the industry as a whole as
opposed to dPi in particular. You get a -~ you get --
you're looking for a pinhole when you look only at dPi.

So that doesn't -- that doesn't really help as much as

looking at the industry on the whole.

Those are things that you can look at. But you
have to remember that the purpose, again, is to promote
competition by dPi or competition by outfits like dPi to

help them compete with the incumbent monopolists because
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the point is we're trying to break that monopoly and
"replace it with competition, real competition.

CHAIRMAN FINLEY: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Mr. Malish, I think
Chairman Finley hit on the beginning of something I wanted

to ask, and get you to refresh my recollection. What was

the promotional offer in the Sanford case that was the
subject of the Sanford case? What was it -- that offer?
How did that offer work?

MR. MALISH: TIf I recall correctly, this‘had to
do with a slightly different -- it wasn't a cash back like
I!these ones that we're disputing here in this case. If I
recall correctly, it was like gift cards, and I don't
know, maybe to Wal-Mart or Target or something like that.-
So it's something that had a certain kind of monetary
value, one that was not as easily as quantifiable because
it wasn't a check going directly back to the customer.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well --

MR. MALISH: And, again, I don't have the case.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Yeah. That sort of
refreshes my recollection ‘cause I was going to ask --
well, first off, let.me ask you this: Mr. Turner in his
argqument on -- under my questioning while he was arguing

the Motion to Compel described this cash back promotion,
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how it worked, about that the customer would get sent a
coupcn and then the customer would have to send the coupon

Hback to AT&T and if AT&T got it back within a certain

period of time, then they would send the customer a check.

Is that -- is that a fair statement of the way
this -- how this promotion worked in this case?

MR. MALISH: That's how at least one of them
worked. And I don’'t have any particular reason to believe
that the other ones were substantially different from
that.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. So -- well,
let's just say for the purposes of discussion that that'é

the way it works. It's a coupon that must be returned and

then you get your check.

MR. MALISH: Uh-huh.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: 1Is there any difference
between that kind of promotional offer as opposed to if
IIIwhat they sent to the customer was a $50 gift certificate
that they could redeem at Wal-Mart within 90 days? I

mean, is there any difference in the effect of that kind

of promotional -- two differences in those --
MR. MALISH: I would say that it is a -- I would
say it's a clearer cut case when they're actually sending

a check for -- or the equivalent of a check for $50. It's
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much easier to say, well, that's obviously worth $50. And
so it is -- to me it's much more stark when we're talking
about -- instead of a gift card or, you know, T don't
know, you know, a tcaster or something like that. When
you actually give cash back, to me that makes it much more
eaBy to get your mind around. I mean, that's just a
flatout kickback on the price of the service.

And if you're talking about looking at it as a
coupon as opposed to an automatic price adjustment on the
bill, was that perhaps what you were asking about? Does
that --

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well --

MR. MALISH: In any event --

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: No. Obviously and -- I
mean, obviously an automatic reduction on the bill is one
thing. 1It's another thing if they send something. I know
-- I guess -- I guess you can get around to this. Let's
just say you're correct in your case regarding the matter
you've alleged in the Complaint. How would you account --
and you've got a figure -- you know, you've got a figure.
It's a little bit in the -~ I mean the figure's in
dispute, but you cite a figure of $156,000, round figures,
I think, is the amount of the claim.

How would you account for the possibility that
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there might be customers that wouldn't send the coupon
back? How would you account for that in any kind of
laccounting that -- as far as the amount of money that
would be due your client?

MR. MALISH: That's actually easier than you
‘might think. 1If you recall what their obligation under

the rules are, their obligation is to make whatever offer

|they make at retail, they are obliged to make at

:wholesale.

And actually, you know, AT&T makes a lot of
ioffers. They have a whole tariff of different things you
lcan choose from, right? But customers pick and choose
what they want. They don't accept every offer. But
whatever offer that they make they are required by law to
extend to dPi. Which dPi or other CLECs can choose to
accept or not accept. And there —- just like there may be
customers whc are qualified to accept an offer but don't
]get around to doing it, that doesn't change the fact that
—- let me back up.

Just like there are customers that do that,
there are CLECs that may choose to accept or not accept
offers that are available to them, right. But the offer
has to be made. And if the offer is accepted, they must

iperform on the promise. And so as long as dPi is
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accepting that offer over and over and over again, AT&T
has the obligation to make good on it. So -- so it is --
I think from a 1ogica1-standpoint, it is just
fundamentally wrong to try to go and say, well, how much
should we reduce the amount that we're going to pay dPi
for every offer that it does accept because some of our
clients, some of our retail clients don't accept this
offer. Does that make sense?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: We'll see if we can
make some sense of it.

MR. MALISH: Well, sometimes I start ——

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: No, you did fine. You
did fine. Anything else?

(No response.)

All right. Does that conclude your opening

statement?

MR. MALISH: Unless -- unless the panel hss any
more guestions. )

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Okay. We don't have
any more questions. Ms. Edmondson, did you desire to make
an cpening statement —-—

MS. EDMONDSON: Do not.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -- con behalf of Public

Staff?
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Mr. Turner or Mr. Rankin, be glad to hear from
either one of you.

MR. TURNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll be
very brief. I promise you at the end of this proceeding
we're going to write you a good brief and we'll address
all these issues for you in much more detail, but I just
want to give you a sort of a preview of what evidence we
intend to present to you today and then briefly hit on a
point or two that came up during Mr. Malish's opening.

DPi began making these offerings available to
its own end users back in late 2003. We'll present
evidence to show that the first time that they asked AT&T
North Carolina_for any of these cash back credits was in
2005. Why did they wait so long? We'll show you that one
reason is because they hired a third party and paid them a
lot of money to go back in time and dig up disputes that
dPi -- or credit requesté that dPi itself never presented
and present them all to BellSouth. So that happened
around 2005 and AT&T did not pay them. DPi waited until
2007 to do anything that suggested that it was going to
somehow contest not getting paid for that.

Now, you may wonder were they told that they
wouldn't get paid for it. We'll present evidence to show

you absolutely back in 2004 Ms. Kristy Seagle, who will
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take the stand and present her testimony to you, will show
you that she told them back in 2004 we're not making these
available. And they didn't get around to filing the case
with the Commission until April of 2008. Those are the
basic facts that we'll present to you today.

very briefly, I want to go through the slides
just to address a few main points that we'll, as I said,
address more thoroughly in our briefs. On slide number
six of what Mr. Malish presented, this is the federal rule
on restrictions. And it says an incumbent LEC may impose
a restriction only if it pro&es to the state commission
that the restriction is reasonable and nondiscriminatory.

Commissioner Finley, you asked basically when
does that have to be proven. Well, we disagree with dPi.
That is there because the FCC established a pfesumption, a

presumption that restrictions other than the ones they

l1aid out would be unreasonable or discriminatory. This is

simply rebutting a presumption. If the law presumes that

a particular type of clause in a contract will be

unenforceable, parties don't have to come to court, argue

the case, ask the court to sign off on it before they put
that clause in the contract. Parties put the clause in
the contract realizing, realizing that if challenged,

they'1ll have to come to the court and they've got to
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overcome the presumption, but you don‘'t go on the front
fend and have to get pre-approval of it. And we submit
lthat this is the exact same thing in this case.

Also, the Fourth Circuit in the Sanford decision
:referenced several times to the fact that this Commission
in its orders made provisions for companies to be able to
come in and make that proof. And nothing in the FC -- in
the Fourth Circuit's order suggests that the proof had to
be made before the promotion was extended or before the
irestriction was placed.

If you would, please go with me to page 15 of
3dPi's handout. This is the waiver provision in the
icontract. It's quoted in part, but not in full in their

testimony, but it‘s quoted in full here. Here's how we

read that provision. If you look at the very last phrase,'
it begins three lines from the bottom after the comma,
“shall have the right thereafter to insist upon the

performance of any and all of the provisions of the

agreement.”

The way we read that is if AT&T had received a
late request for a credit, if back in 2005 we had paid
those 2003 credits, that would not waive our ability to
thereafter come and tell dpi, wait a minute, this latest

batch is late, we won't accept them. That's what that
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means. That does mean that the fact that dPi never
submitted it within the time frames it committed to by
contract is waived. I submit to you if that's the case,
then what does anything in the contract mean. If their
reading of it is that means that we can’t be held
accountable for anything in the contract because there's
no waiver, that just abrogates the entire contract. So we
believe that it's the way we laid it out.

If you'll flip the page con page 16, Mr. Malish
made a statement that this may hurt AT&T, but that's the
purpose of the '96 Act. That was not the purpose of the
'96 Act. The purpose of the '96 Act was to establish
widespread competition across the entire industry. What
you see here are the exact same arguments made by the
exact same types of resellers back in *'96 as thougﬁ
nothing has changed.

Since the 1996 Act, folks can get their
telephone service from cable providers, wireless
providers, voice over internet protocol providers. You
have more choices than you can shake a stick at because
the Act worked. But what you have here is a reseller --
and remember, the resale provisions of the Act were °
anticipated to be the first step, to let people get the

foot in the door and then Congress and the FCC anticipated
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what happened, that we would shift over to
facilities-based. People would buy commercial agreements;
people would buy their own facilities, use them in
combination with other facilities and the UNEs or the
AT&T's of the world and come out and compete.

What you have here -- that last sentence, “the
anemic state of wireline competition in North Carolina,"
that is simply a reseller who has never moved a foot along
with the rest of the industry and wants to cling to the
1996 Act the way it was written in 1996. We submit to you
that competition is much broader than that and there is
widespread competition in North Carolina.

There is also some questions about dPi’s ability
to compete and attract customers. We're going to show you
some interesting numbers in our case that will show you
the number of customers dPi had back when this started,

the number of customers they had when we started making

"these available for resale and the number of customers
they had today. We think that will tell you an

interesting story.

The final thing that I want to do is flip back
to page -- sorry, bear with me. I thought I marked it and
I didn't. To page 9, please. This goes to the heart of

the case that I hope we don't ever have to go to, but
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should you decide that this was not a reasonable and
nondiscriminatory restriction and shoulé you decide that
dPi is entitled to some of its claims, we believe that dPi
is asking you to order us to provide the entire face value
of the 550 cash back to them, not discounted by the resale
discount rate. That's the way we read their request.

If that's the request, and I intend to clarify
that on cross, if that's their request, we'll have some
numbers tc show you as to why that's wrong and that if
they're entitled to anything, it's the cash back. The
most that they're entitled to, the absolute most would be
the face value of the cash back less the.resale discount.

We look forward to presenting our facts to you
and I'll be happy to answer any questions you have at this
point.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Thank you, Mr. Turner.
Let me ask you thig: You've alluded to a lZ-month -- I
guess not a statute of limit -- but a 12-month contract
provision that would establish a 12-month limitation on
presentation of such claims as this. What section of the
interconnection agreement, if you have that --

MR. TURNER: 1 do.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -- would you refer us

to in that regard?
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. TURNER: I do.
MALISH: Mr. Chairman, I can -- that's in —-

TURNER: T have it.

55 5 3

. MALISH: You've got it.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, there are two things.
First of all, this would be in Mr. Ferguson's direct
testimony, Exhibit PLF-2. The actual provision is én
attachment 7, page 9. 1It's attachment 7, page 9, Section
2.2. The second sentence says, "dPi agrees not to submit
billing disputes for amounts billed more than 12 months
prior to the submission of a billing dispute filed for
"§mounts billed.*

Another provision that is related to that

appears on -- in the same exhibit. This is the general
terms and conditions, page 20. The third sentence of
Secticn 30.1, Section 30.1 on page 20 of the general terms
and conditions. I won't read it because it’s long, but it
basically says that the parties agree that any orders that
had been placed under prior interconnection agreements are
governed now by this interconnection agreement. So that
12-month window applies to all the claims that are at
issue here.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right., Thank you.

Thank you very much. That would bring us to -- the case
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is with you, Mr. Malish, on behalf of your client.
MR. MALISH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We'll
call Tom O'Roark to the stand, please.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Mr. O'Roark, come

around here to the witness stand.

TOM O'ROARK; Being first duly sworn,

testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. MALISH:

Q. Mr. O'Roark, you are here today on behalf of dPi
and you're actually adopting the testimony that was filed

back in 2008 in this case by Brian Bolinger; is that

correct?

iA. That's correct.

I

Q. And Mr. Bolinger has left dPi to start his own

business; is that correct?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And generally speaking, you have been over

Mr. Bolinger's testimony and except for where it says "I,"
for example, when he's talking about himself, you adopt
that testimony?

A. Right.

Q. So where it says "I" it should be Brian Bolinger
said such and such, correct?

A. Yes.
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Q. And the only correction that we had to make was in
the rebuttal where we're re -- where we're referring to —-

well, where Mr. -- where Mr. Bolinger is referring to the

Georgia Statute with the limitations on written contracts,
which is on page 4, line 30, and the correction we talked
about before is that should be -- a couple of typos in the
citation. It should be 0.C.G.A., Official Code of the

Georgia Annotated, and then the section should be 9-3-24

and not 25, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Typically I believe the Commission appreciates it
if you can give a brief summary of dPi's position as

outlined in the testimony --

COMMISSTONER CULPEPPER: Well, let me ask you
this before you get to that. Mr. O'Roark, if Mr. Malish
asked you today the questions that were asked of
Mr. Bolinger in his prefiled testimony, would the answers
that ﬁr. Bolinger gave at that time be your answers today?

THE WITNESS: That's our company's position and
I'm adopting that position.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Right. And other than
the correction that Mr, Malish has pointed you out to with
respect to the citation of the statute on page 4 of the

fwitness' rebuttal testimony, would you have any other
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corrections to the answers that Mr. Bolinger gave to the
questions in his prefiled testimony?

THE WITNESS: No.

COMMISSIONER CULPEFPER: All right. And
Mr. Malish, I take it that you are moving that Mr. O'Roark
be allowed to adopt the prefiled direct and rebuttal
testimony of Witness Bolinger and that that testimony be
received into the evidence and copied into the record as
if had been given word for word orally from the stand?

MR. MALISH: I am, Mr. Chairman.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Thank you.
All right. You may proceed now.
A. DPi Teleconnect is [sic] been in business for
about ten years. We're licensed in about 40-plus states.
We have -- actually have éustomers in 30-something states.
North Carolina is one of the states that we have --

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Let me -- let me
interrupt you there. Just housekeeping measure here. Mr.
Malish's motion is allowed and the testimony is copied
into the record as if it had been given orally from the
stand.

(Whereupon, the prefiled direct and rebuttal

testimony of Brian Bolinger was adopted by Tom

O'Roark and will be reproduced in the record at
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this point the same as if the questions had been
orally asked and the answers orally given from

the witness stand.)
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF BRIAN BOLINGER
Q. Please tell us who you are and give a little background sbout younrself.

A My name is Brian Bolinger. I am dPi’s vice president of legal and regulatory affairs. 1
am the one who has taken the lead in dealing with this dispute over promotion credits with
BellSouth since its inception, along with Steve Watson of Lost Key Telecomn Inc., which
functions as dPi's billing and collections agent for promotions.

Q. Plcase give a little background on dP] Teleconnect and describe the history of dPi
Teleconnect’s dispute with BellSouth.

A dPi Teleconnect is a competitive facilities-based telecommunications company authorized
to provide intrastate locai exchange and intetexchange telecommunications services in North
Carolina. dPi provides telecommunications services to residential and business customers. This
case involves only dPi Teleconnect’s resale operations and relationship with BellSouth.
BeliSouth is required by law and by contract to make available for resale any promotion
that BellSouth makes available to its customers for an extended period of time,
Among other things, the parties’ contradt provides in relevant part the following:

a. That the parties wish to interconnect “pursuant to Sections 251 and 252 of the
Act” GTC p.1;

b. Parity: “When DPI purchases Telecommunications Services from BellSouth
pursvant to ... this Agreement for the purposes of resale to End Users, such
services shall be be ... subject to the same conditions... that BellSouth provides to
its ...End Users.” GTCp. 3

c. Govemning Law: *“... this agreement shali be governed by and conmstrued in
accordance with federal and state substantive telecommunications law, including
rules and regulations of the FCC...." GTCp. 15.

d. Resale Attachment’s General Prbvision sections 3.1: p. 4: “...Subject to effective
and applicable FCC and Cormmission mies and orders, BellSouth shall make

2
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available to DP{ for resale those telecommunications services BellSouth mokes
available...to customers who are not telecommunications carriers.”

Federal law provides, among other things, the following:

e. 47 U.S.C. § 251(c)}(4)(A). ILECs have the duty to “offcr for resale at wholesale
rates any lelecommunications service that the camier provides at retail to
subscribers who are not telecommunications carriers.”

f 47 US.C. § 251(cX4)(B). ILECS have a duty not to “prohibit, and not to impose
unreasonable or discriminatory conditions or limitations on, the resale of such
telecommunications service.”

g 47 C.F.R. § 51.613(2)(2). “The following types of restrictions on resale may be
imposed: Short term promotions. An incumbent LEC shall apply the wholesale
discount to the ordinary rate for a retail service rather than a special promotional
rate only if}

(i) Such promotions involve rates that will be in effect for no more than 90
days; and .

(ii) The incumbent LEC does not use such promotional offerings to evade
the wholesale rate objigation, for example by making available a
sequential serics of 90-day promotional rates.”

This dispute arises because BellSouth has over the past months and years sold its retail
services at a discount ta its end users under various promotions that have lasted for more than 90
days. dPi Teleconnect is entitled to purchase and resell those same services at the promotional
rate, less the wholesale discount. As a pragtical matter, dPi Teleconnect has bought these
services at the regular retail rate less the resale discount, then been credited the difference
between that rate and the promotional rate purscant to “promotion credit requests.”

Q. What promotions are involved in this.case?
A. Of concem in this particular case, BellSouth has provided a number of “cash back™

promotions to its retail customers going back to late 2003.'

"The three promotions involved through July 2007 are designated by BellSouth ay Cash Back §100 Two Features;
Cash Back $100 Discount Complete Choice $100; and Cash Back $50 2 Pack Plan (PAMAS)- CBP&
3

SO
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Q. What is the effect of these promotions?

A. BellSouth’s retail customers qualifying for these promotions get cash (or cash equivalent)
back from BellSouth in the stated amount. Essentially, these are rebates. Obviously, the
practical effect of these promotions is to reduce the effective retail rate qualifying customers pay
for telephone service. The size of the promotions is so Jarge that the end result is that the net
amount BellSouth’s retail customers qualifying for the promotions pay for service is far less than
the wholesale amount.

Q.  What bappened when dPi applied for these promotion credits?

A. Although dPi met the same qualifications as BeliSouth’s retail end users, and applied for
these promotional credits, it has to this point not been notified one way or the other that
BellSouth would pay the credits requested for the periods ending June 8, 2007. BellSouth has,
however, paid the credits requested for service rendered after June 2007. The timing appears to
coincide with the 4” Circuit’s decision in BefiSouth Telecommunications Inc. v. Sanford et al.,
494 F3d 439 (C.A. 4 — N.C., 2007), in which the 4® Circuit upheld the North Carolina
Commission’s decision that promotions that tend to reduce the retail price. paid '
by retail customers must be made available to CLECs.

Although BellSouth has failed to either deny or accept dPi’s promotional credit requests
despite multiple inquiries by dPi, at this point it scems unlikely that BellSouth will make the
promotion payments unless compelled to do so by the judiciary or the state commissions, making
the filing of this case necessary. 1 escalated and attempted to resolve this issue with BellSouth’s
Pam Tipton, but according to her, the BellSouth/AT&T lcgal department has instructed her that

they do not owe any cash back promotions prior to the date of the appellate court’s ruling.

S\
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Obviously that is not accurate and I cannot imagine any attorney actually providing that advice. 1
tried to cxplain the senselessness of that line of thinking and the response I received was “that is
just what | am being told.”

Q. How much money in promotions is at stake?

A The amounts at state arc shown in Exhibit dPi 1, attached, which includes a spreadsheet
showing the totals in North Carolina, and another with the totals for the nine statc region. Here
in North Carolina, dPi qualificd and applied for, but was not paid, approximately $156,500 in
cash back promotions. Across the nine state Be{lSouth region, the total figure that dPi qualified
and applied for, but was not paid, $465,950, in cash back promotion credits.

Q. Has BellSouth paid any requests for cash back promotions?

A Yes. BellSouth has admitied dPi is entitled to these kinds of promotional credits on these
telecommunications services dPi has purchased from BellSouth by paying these credits from July
2007 forward. However, BellSouth has neither formally accepted nor denied dPi’s claims for
identical credits for carlier periods; this, for all practical purposes, must now be treated as a
denial or refusal to pay these credits to which dPi is entitled. dPi accordingly requests that this
Commission enter an order directing BellSouth to pay the credits together with interest at the
contract raie.

Q. Does this conciude your testimony?

A It does, for now. But ] reserve the ability to change or modify it as new information

makes doing 50 necessary.
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Q. Mr. Boliager, have you considered the direct testimony from BeliSouth’s witnesses?
A I bave. Generally, BellSouth attempts to claim that (1) it ncver had a legal obligation to
provide the cashback promotions to dPi or other CLECS; (2) that even if it did, dPi has waived its
right to seck those amounts by its “delay” in attempting to recover the overpayments it made; and (3‘_)
the amounts requested are incorrect because of faulty mathematical calculation.
Q. What is your response?
A. Generally, contrary to its asscrtions, BeliSouth (1) has had, since implementation of the FTA,
a legal obligation to provide the cashback promotions to dpi or other CLECs; (2) that dPi has never
waived its right to recover overcharges by any “delay” in secking to recover these amounts; but (3)
that there may be some merit to BellSouth’s concern that some of the amousts requested are
incorrect because of faulty mathematical calculation.
Q. Is BellSouth required to provide resale services at the promotional price?
A Yes. BellSouth is plainly required by law and by contract to make available for resale any
promotion that BellSouth makes available to its customers for an extended period of time. Federal
Jaw provides, among other things, the following:
47 U.S.C. § 251(c) (4) (A). ILECs have the duty to “offer for resale at wholesale raies any
telecommunications service that the carrier provides at retail to subscribers who are not
telecommunications carriers.”
47 1).8.C. § 251(c) (4) (B). ILECS have a duty not to “prohibit, and not to impose
unreasonable or discriminatory conditions or limitations on, the resale of such
telecommunications service.”
47 C.F.R. § 51.613(p) (2). “The following types of restrictions on resale may be imposed:
Short term promotions. An incumbent LEC shall apply the wholesale discount to the
ordinary rate for a retail service rather than a special promotional rate only if:
(i) Such promotions involve rates that will be in effect for no more than 90 days;
and ’
(ii) The incumbent LEC does not usc such promotional offcrings to evade the

wholesale rate obligation, for example by making available a sequential series of
90-day promotional rates.”



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
13
19

20

a1

M

When BellSouth issues a cashback promotion, the net effect of that promotion is to reduce the retail
price its customers are paying for telephone service. Essentially, these are rebatcs. The amount of
the cash returned to the end user is so large that the net amount BellSouth’s retail customers
qualifying for the promoticns pay for service is far less than dPi could otherwise buy the service,
even taking into account the wholesalc discount dPi otherwise receives. It seems sclf evident that
allowing the incumbent to effectively charge its retail customers less than the wholesale rate
BellSouth extends to CLECs like dPi completely eviscerates the resale portions of the FTA.
Conseq;lently. BellSouth’s parent, AT&T, never took a position as specious as BeliSouth’s claim in
this instance; AT&T always extended promotional pricing (inchiding cashback promotions) to
CLECs like dPi. And presumably that is why BellSouth has paid the credits requested for service
rendered after June 2007, although the timing appears to coincide with the 4th Circuit’s decision in
BellSouth Teleccommunications Inc. v. Sanford et al., 494 F3d 439 (C.A. 4 -N.C,, 2007), in which
the 4th Circuit upheld the North Carolina Commission's decision that promotions that tend to reduce
the retail price paid by retail customers must be made available to CLECs.

Q. Does the parties’ contract excuse BeliSouth from coruplying with the federal
mandate to extend promational pricing to CLECs like dP1?

A No -- in fact, the oppasite is true. The contract clearly indicates support and compliance with
federal law — including the requirement that BellSouth make available its promotional pricing to dPi.

Among other things, the partics’ contract provides in relcvant part the folfowing:
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a That the parties wish to interconnect “pursuant to Sections 251 and 252 of the
Act” GTC p.1;

b.  Parity: “When DP] purchases Telecommunications Services from BellSouth
pursuant 10 ... this Agrecment for the purposes of resale to End Users, such services shall
be... subject to the same conditions... that BeflSouth provides to its ...End Users.” GTC p.
i

c. Goveming Law: “... this agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with federal and state substantive telecommunications law, including rules
and regulations of the FCC....” GTC p. 15.

d. Resale Attachment’s General Provision sections 3.1: p. 4: “...Subject to effective
and applicable FCC and Commission rules and orders, BellSouth shall make available to
DPI for resale those telecommunications services BellSouth makes available...to
customers who are not tcleccommunications carriers.”

' Q. Does the parties’ contract provide a limitation on dPi’s abillty to recover the

overpayments BellSouth has extracted from dPi?
A, No. Again, the opposite is truc. Scot Ferguson suggests that Attachment 7 (Billing), section
2.2, provides a limitation period of 12 months. But if you actually read that section, it does not
include the 12 month limitation period he discusses,
Q. So what Is the limitations period? -
A, The contract provides at Section 18 of its Terms and Conditions that the Agreement will be
govemed federal and state substantive telecommunications law, but in all other respects the
“Agrecment shall be govemned by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of Georgia without regard to its conflict of laws principles.” In Georgia, the limitations period
for a breach of contract is six years. 0.G.C.A. section 9-3-25,

Q. What about BellSouth’s claim that dPji has nonetheless waived s right to recover
the overpayments that BellSouth extracted?

A, This appears to be some sort of equitable argument, i.e., that dPi has taken too long to bring

these claims. Without even going into the facts, ] note that this should be swept aside because the
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contract clearly provides at General Terms and Conditions section 17 (16 in the iater contract) that
“A failure or delay of cither Party to enforce any of the provisions... or to require performance of any
of the provisions hereof shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions....”

Second, BellSouth cannot rely on' principles of equity to protect it in this case because
BeliSouth has unciean hands. The conduct which BellSouth secks to protect is its own incquitabie
conduct of overcharging dPi for the services at issue. To allow BellSouth to retain these funds would
result in its umjust enrichment at the expense of dPi.

Finally, BellSouth’s claim that it should be allowed to keep the overcharges that it extracted
from dPi because it has not refunded similar overcharges to other CLECs is likewise an argument
that perverts the concept of equity. Equity requires not that BellSouth keep the overcharges it
extracted from its competitors, which results in BellSouth’s unjust enrichment, but that BellSouth
disgorge those overcharges to a]l CLECs who were wrongfully overcharged.

Q. ‘What about BellSounth’s contention that some of the cashback amonnts requested by
dPf are too high?

A, There may be some merit in this concern. This has to do with when the retail price is
calculated, and the when the corresponding wholesale discount is applied. Thus, if the discount is
applied before the promwotion is taken, the promotion should also be discounted. The converse is
also true, The parties should be able to reach agreement on the true numbers at issue.

Q. Does this conclude your testimony?

A It does, for now. But 1 reserve the ability to change or modify it as new information makes

doing so necessary.
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COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: How do you want to
identify the exhibits that were attached to that prefiled
testimony, Mr. Malish? Do you want to identify them as
0'Roark Hearing Exhibit No. 1, consisting of nine pages?

MR. MALISH: That would be acceptable.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Well, then,
the exhibit will be so identified.

(Whereupon, O'Roark Hearing Exhibit No. 1 was

marked for identification.)

Now, I apologize for interrupting you, Mr.
0'Roark. You may proceed now.

A. Thank you. We're a small company. We compete in
an industry of giants. We compete against BellSouth,
multi-billion dollar company. They owe us $156,000 for
fcash backs. They gave those cash back promotions to their
customers, didn't give them to us.

In June of '07 when the Sanford ruling came out,
they started giving the cash backs to us and all the
CLECs, but they never went back and gave them for the
prior pericds. We've applied to them to get those cash

backs for the private -- for the prior periods. They've

refused to give them, $156,000 for North Carolina, about
465,000 total across all the BellSouth states. And

obviously what happens to North Carolina is going to

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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affect all of those.

They clearly have a contractual obligation if they
give a cash back to their customer; that they have to give
it to us. That's law not in dispute. Federal law says if
you give it to your customer and it has more than a 90-day
life, you have to give it to CLECs; it's not in dispute.
We're owed that money. We've asked them to-give it to us.
They won't give it to us. We've come to the North
Carolina PUC asking North Carclina PUC for justice to
force this massive giant to do the right thing for our
small company and for our customers.

We service low-income customers. Seventy percent
of our customers are Lifeline customers, meaning they're
on some type of federal subsidizé& program. They're in
federal housing; they're receiving food stamps; they‘'re
elderly; they're getting aid to dependent children, on
some federal program, and they are the working poor of
this country. .

We are a prepaid provider, meaning that they can
pay as they go. They can come and pay cash. We have
nationwide about 6,000 payment locations where those
customers can come and make a payment. And most of our
customers don't have bank accounts and don't have credit

cards, don't have debit cards. They deal with us because

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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we are convenient for them in terms of making easy payment
available to them in terms of working with them to make it
easy and convenient for them to retain their phone service
and we work with them to help provide life management
skills, frankly, that they lack to remind them to make
payments.

We do an awful lot of account administration work
with them to remind them to make payments to try to keep
their phone service active and that type of thing. We
also allow them to come back if their phone serviée gets
interrupted because they have to make a decision between
diapers and phone service, we allow them to come back. We
don't require them to put up deposits; we don't charge
them penalties, that type of thing for leaving service,
coming back to service. We're very friendly to them in
that regard.

Those customers need us. And -- and we feel like
that we provide a valuable and needed service in our
prepaid niche that's not served by BellSouth ;nd it's not
served by any prepaid -- any postpaid provider. So we
feel like to a certain extent that we're here representing
those customers.

The -- we do business with all of the major ILECs.

And in most cases when we deal with an ILEC, they offer a

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION




ot

N

w

-9

[¢]

10

11

12

13

14

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

60

promotion. They provide either a code or a universal
service ordered code or some code that we can put on an
order -- -

MR. TURNER: .Mr. Chairman, I object.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: I'm going to sustain
the objection. Mr. O'Roark, I appreciate what you're
having to say here today, but y'all are getting beyond the
words that were in the prefiled direct testimony of
Mr. Bolinger and that's really what we're limited to
receiving at this particular time.

Now, we have received into evidence all of those
words, and unless you have something that you want to
recite that's in those words, I'm going to have to sustain
the objection.

Mr. Malish, do you want to ask him any other
questions?

MR. MALISH: No, Mr. Chairman. And Mr. O'Roark,
I think, has done a pretty fair job of incapsula@ing
what's in there --

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right.

MR. MALISH: -- and perhaps going a little bit
beyond and he may have a chance to speak about those

things in response to cross.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, he‘ll be subject

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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to cross—examination. Okay. That will be fine.

Ms. Edmondson, do you have any questions of the

Jlwitness?

MS. EﬂHONDSON: If I may, I would like to go
after the --

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: That's fine. No
problem about that. Cross-examination --

MS. EDMONDSON: AT&T, sorry.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -- BellSouth?

MR. TURNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Morning, Mr. O'Roark.
A. Morning.
Q. I'd like to start our discussion by getting to

know dPi and you a little better. I believe you'll agree
with me that dPi is exclusively a prepaid provider?

A. That's correct.

”Q. And for the most part, dri‘'s customers are what I
believe you describe in your summary as the working poor
of the country?

A. I'm sorry?

0. For the most part, dPi customers are what you

described in your summary as the working poor?

A. That's correct.

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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Q. DPi is a reseller?
A, That's correct.
|Q. You'll agree with me that dPi does not actually

own or operate any teleccmmunications facilities in North

Carolina?

A. Well, to the extent that we do offer UNE-P
services, we're considered to be facilities-~based. 1Is
that your question?
Q. No. I'm asking you do you own and operate your
own facilities in North Carolina?
A. No.
Q. Go with us to page 2 of the direct testimony that
you just adopted. 1I'll be asking you about lines 13
through 15. Tell me when you're ready.

THE WITNESS: Chris, I'm not sure what I'm
supposed to be looking at here.

MR. MALISH: He's asking you to look at the

direct testimony of Brian Bolinger. What was the page and

line?

MR. TURNER: It's page 2, lines 13 through 15.
A. Okay.
Q. There it says dPi Teleconnect is a competitive

facilities-based telecommunications company, right?

|A. Because we have a UNE-P relationship with

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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BellSouth or what's today considered a wholesale
relationsh%p with BellSouth. That's consigered to be
facilities-based.

"Q. That's what you mean by facilities-based there in
your testimony, then?

A. Yes.

Q. You mentioned that -- in your summary that there

Iare nearly 6,000 payment locations for dPi nationwide. Do
you remember that?

A. Yes.

Q. Are those locations run by dPi employees or by

third parties?

A, Those are run by third parties.

Q. Does dPi have any employees in North Carolina?
A. No.

0. When you and I last spoke during your deposition

in August, dPi was then owned by a publicly traded company

called Rent-A-Center, do you remember that?

A: Yes.

“Q. And Rent-A-Center was a rent-to-own company?

A. Yes.

0. And that rent-to-own company had owned dPi since

November of 2007, right?

A. Correct.

NORTH CARQLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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Q. And at the time of your deposition, dPi was
undergoing a change in ownership. Has that change in

ownership been finalized?

A. No.

Q. So you're still owned by Rent-A-Center today?
A. Yes.

Q. When we spoke during your deposition in August,

you were responsible for being vice president of finance
for dPi. Are you still today responsible for being vice
president of finance for dPi?

A, Yes.

Q. And are you still responsible today for acting in

the capacity of CE0O for dPi?

A. I'm acting CEO, CFO for dPi at the moment, yes.
Q. Okay. Now that we've gotten to know you and dPi a
little better, I want us to talk about the dispute before
the Commission today, really the amounts at issue and the
time frame iﬁvolved.

First, the dispute in general. Go with me to page
j of your direct testimony. I’}l be asking about lines 31
through 33. Tell me when you're ready.
tA. Okay. I'm ready.
Q. All right. We can agree, can't we, that this case

involves cash back promotions that AT&T North Carolina

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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provided to its retail customers?
A. Yes.
Q. And in footnote 1 on page 3 of your direct
testimony there, you identify the three cash back
promotions that are at issue in this docket. Let's talk
about that term “cash back.™

Under these promotions, if an AT&T end user
qualified when she bought the services involved in one of
these promotions, she received a coupon that she could

redeem for a certain amount of cash. Can we agree to

that?
A. Okay.
Q. And that's generally what we mean when we say

"cash back" here, right?

A, Okay.

Q. Do you agree with that?

A. Yes.

Q. And during the time frame relevant to this

proceeding, dPi bought the services that were involved in
those cash back offerings from AT&T and it resold them to

its own end users in North Carolina, right?

A. Yes.
Q. All right. Go to page 4, lines 11 through 13.
A. Okay.

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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Q. We can agree that dPi has asked AT&T North
Carclina for promotional credits for these cash back
promotions and that AT&T has not given dPi the credits

that it asked for that are in dispute in this proceeding,

right?
A. Correct.
Q. So for example, if AT&T's retail offer said buy

gservice A and get a coupon that you can redeem for a check
in the amount of $50, if that's what had happened, then
1dPi is asking AT&T for bill credits to address that $50
cash back aspect of the promotion, right? That's what
we're arguing about?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. ©Now, that we've sort of identified the
dispute, let's talk about the amount in dispute and that
lshould be easy. We can agree, can't we, that the total
amount that dPi is seeking in this proceeding is $156,500?
A. Yes.

Q. All right. Now, let's talk about the time period.
And, again, that should be pretty easy. Can we agree that
[ the most recent bill period for which dPi is seeking cash
back promotional credits here in North Carolina is June of
20072

A. Yes.

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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Q. And the earliest bill period for which dPi is
seeking cash back promotional credits in this docket is

November of 2003, right?

A. Yes.

Q. So the time frame that we're talking about here is
from November of 2003 through June of 2007, right?

A. Right.

Q. Let's move to another topic. I want to talk a
little bit about when and how dPi started applying for the
hpromotional credit requests that are at issue in this
proceeding. To get us started, let's go to your direct
testimony at page 2, lines 6 through 9. Let me know when
you're there.

A. Yes.

Q. First of all, we can agree that you were not the

person who took the lead in dealing with this dispute over

promotional credits since its inception, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. That was Mr. Bolinger,.right?

A. Right.

Q. ) You also mention in that same line 8 a Steve
Watson with Lost Key. Mr. Watson —- well, Lost Key was

dPi’'s billing and collection agent for the promotions that

are at issue in this proceeding, correct?

NCRTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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lA. Correct.

| MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I have an exhibit

that I would like to mark for identification purposes at
this point. I may want to move it in at a later point.
hI'm going to ask permission to hand it to opposing counsel
and the court reporter.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: How do you want it

marked?

MR. TURNER: For now I'd like to mark it as, if
it -- if it suits you, as AT&T's Cross-Exhibit 1.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. I tell you

what, let's identify —- identify the exhibit as O'Roark
Cross-Examination Exhibit No. 1 if that's okay with you?
MR. TURNER: Yes; sir. |
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Let the
exhibit be so identified. And if you want to pass it out,
that will be fine.
(Whereupon, O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit
No. 1 was marked for identificatiomn.)
Q. Mr. O'Roark, tell me when you've had a chance to
look at that and when you're ready to begin.
A. Go ahead.

Q. Can we agree that this is the contract between dpPi

and its billing agent Lost Key Telecom, Inc.?

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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A. Yes.

Q. And the date on the front page of that contract is
August the -- the 2nd, 2004, right?

"A. Correct.

[+ Flip to the last page. And we see that it was

signed by dPi's president and CEO on August the 23rd,

20047
“A. Right.
Q. Now, I understand that dPi's been unable to

produce a copy of this that was signed by Lost Key, but

based on your deposition testimony, we can agree, can't

we, that this is the contract that Lost Key and dPi
operated under beginning in August of 2004?

A, Correct.

Q. One of the things that Lost Key, dPi's billing
agent, agreed to do under this contract is to submit
promotional credit requests and disputes to AT&T on behalf
of dPi, right?

A. Right.

Q. Go with us to page 3 of this contract. It*s not
numbered, but it's the third page in. We'll be looking
|under *Current Promotional and Dispute Fees." It’s about
a third of the way from the top. Tell me when you're

ready.

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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A. I see it.

Q. Does that accurately depict the amounts that dPi
agreed to pay Lost Key for submitting credit requests and
disputes on a going-forward basis from July 1lst, 20042
A, Yes.

Q. Another thing that Lost Key agreed to do in this
contract is ﬁo develop a strategy to send all back-data
for requests and disputes from 2000 to 2004 to AT&T on
behalf of dPi, right?

A, Correct.

Q. And if you're still there on page 3, go down one

heading, "Back Promotional Dispute Fees." Do you see

that?
A. Yes.
Q. Can we agree that dPi agreed to pay Lost Xey twice

the amount for back promotional credits as it did for

going-forward promotional credits?

A. Ten percent.

Q. At the time it was the five percent going-forward,
right?

A, It says duration agreement will be 10 percent of

promotions and disputes paid.
Q. I'm sorry. I didn't ask my question clearly. At

the time you entered the contract for promotional disputes
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submitted on a going-forward basis, dPi agreed to pay five
percent, right?

A. 2004, five percent; 2005, five percent; 2006,

three percent.

0. And for backward disputes it was 10 percent,
right?

A. Ten percent, yés, backwards,.yes.

Q. Parking back to your deposition in August, can we

agree that as of the date this contract was entered into,
dPi had not submitted any cash back promotional credit

requests to AT&T North Carolina?

A. Prior to entering into this agreement with Lost
Key?

Q. That's my gquestion.

A. That's correct.

Q. So just to clarify for the record, as of August

2nd, 2004, dPi had not submitted any promotional credit

requests toc AT&T North Carolina?

A, Correct.
Q. And in this August of 2004 time frame, AT&T
specifically told dPi -~ I'm sorry, AT&T specifically told

Lost Key that these cash back promotions were not
available for resale, right?

A. I'm sorry, would you ask that again?
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Q. Yes, sir. In the August 2004 time fram?, can we
agree that AT&T specifically told Lost Key that cash back
promotions were not available for resale?
A. I don't know what AT&T told Lost Key.

MR. MALISH: We're willing to stipulate that.

MR. TURNER: Thank you. That makes it much °
“easier.
Q. Can we also agree that A -- that Lost Key did not
submit any requests for promotional credits to AT&T North
Carolina on behalf of dPi until December of 2005?

MR. MALISH: We can stipulate to that for cash
backs.
“ THE WITNESS: Yes.

. MR. TURNER: For the cash backs that are

involved in this docket?

MR. MALISH: Right.

MR. TURNER: That's acceptable to us if it's

acceptable to the Chair.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, if it's

acceptable to you and it y'all's case.

MR. TURNER: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: I understand what --
i

there have been two stipulations that have been entered

intoc and they're a part of the record.
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Q. And can we agree that in June of 2005 dPi
linstructed Lost Key to get the cash back promotions
submitted in North Carolina "because it would be worth a
.ton of cash to both of us"?

MR. MALISH: We'll stipulate to that, too.

MR. TURNER: That's fine.
Q. All right. Now, let's talk about what happened
when dPi first asked AT&T for these credits. Once Lost

Key actually began submitting these cash back promotional

credit requests to AT&T North Carolina, AT&T North
Carolina did not pay those requests, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And the first time that AT -- that dPi disputed
AT&T's denial, AT&T's decision not to pay those requests
was in 2007, correct?

A, I heard you say that and -- in your opening
statement. I don't -- I don't have that date in front of
me. I don't know.

MR. MALISH: Yeah, we can stipulate to that,

too.

MR. TURNER: I'll accept the stipulation,
Mr. Chairman. I would also ask that under the rules of
civil procedure, dPi Teleconnect's First Supplemental

Response to AT&T North Carolina's Second Set of
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Interrogatories be submitted as an exhibit to the -- to
the testimony here.

MR. MALISH: No objection.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Well, let's
identify it. Tell me again what it is.

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. This is dPi
Teleconnect's First Supplemental Response to AT&T North
Carolina's Second Set of Interrogatories in this docket.
And I can present a copy to the court reporter, the
Commissioners and opposing counsel.

. COHMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Well, for
purposes of this proceeding, we're going to identify that
as AT&T Hearing Exhibit No. 1.

{Whereupon, AT&T Hearing Exhibit No. 1 was

marked for identification.)

And if you'll get a copy of that to the court
reporter.

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: And of course Mr.
Malish needs a copy of that. And Ms. Edmondson, excuse
me.

0. Last question before I move to another point,
Mr. O'Roark. In light of the timing we just discussed,

can you tell us this: Does dPi have any of the actual
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service orders that it submitted to then BellSouth that

are associated with the cash back promotional credits it

seeks in this docket?

A. I don't believe so. I don't think we keep those.
MR. TURNER: Did you get that?

0. Mr. O'Roark, I'm going to ask you to speak up just

a 1ittie bit to help the c¢ourt reporter out some.

Now, let's move to another topic.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Before you

do that, Mr. Turner, this would be a good time for us to

take a 1l0-minute morning break, so we're going to take
that break and we'll resume in about 20 minutes till the

hour of 12. Stand in recess.

. [RECESS - 11:27 A.M. TO 11:40 A.M.]

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Let's go
back on the record. Mr. Turner, before you resume your
cross-examination, let me go ahead and reflect for the
record that there has now been filed in this docket a
filing entitled "dPi Teleconnect's Response to AT&T North
Carolina's Motion to Compel." And indicates that a copy
of that has been served on AT&T by hand delivery.

And I just suggest that that's the document that
“Mr. Malish referred to earlier today in our prior

discussions. And it would appear to be that perhaps -- of
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course I'm not going to tell you how to try your case —-
that AT&T may wish to file a reply to that response, and
"then that should tee the issue up for a ruliﬂg sometime
subsequent to -- tec this hearing. So I'l; just note all

of that for the record.

With that having been noted, Mr. Turner, you may
resume your cross—examination.

MR. TURNER: Thank you.
Q. Mr. O‘*Roark, now that we're back on the record,
during your summary I believe you stated that -- well, let
me ask you this: You don't have a written copy of the.
summary you delivered, do you?
A. A written copy of the summary?
Q. Yes, sir. When you gave your summary of your
testimony, it looked to me like you were just giving it
without reading any document. Was that accurate? You

don't have a copy of what you were reading from or

anything?
A. I wasn't reading.
Q. Okay. So there's no document that has your

summary written out, right?
A. No.
0. Okay. I believe I heard you say in your summary

that dPi serves a prepaid niche that is not served by
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BellSouth. Did I hear that right?

A. I don't have it in front of me.

Q. Well, do you remember saying that or does that -
A. Haven't committed to memory.

Q. Does that sound accurate, though? Will you agree

with me that dPi serves a prepaid niche that is not served
Fby BellSouth?

A. BellSouth's a postpaid provider, cgrrect? Are you
-- are you in the prepaid business? I don't —— I'm not

familiar with every aspect of your business. Do you offer

prepaid services?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Okay. Now,
Mr. O'Roark, you're here to answer his questions. If you
don't know the answer, the answer is I don't know.
A, I don't know.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Okay.
A. I don't know about BellSouth.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Ask him another
question.

TEE WITNESS: Okay.
Q. Now, you're aware from having read the testimony
Iof AT&T's witnesses that AT&T views its decision not to
make these promotions that are issue in this docket

available for resale as a reasonable and nondiscriminatory
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restriction on resale? You're aware that's AT&T's
position, right?
A. Yes.

MR. TURNER: In that context, I'd like to ask
the Chair if I may present AT -- or mark for
identification O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit No. 2.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right, sir. Let
the exhibit be so identified.

(Whereupon, O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit

No. 2 was marked for identification.)

MR. MALISH: Was not the response to the
interrogatories exhibit -- Cross-Examination Exhibit No.
2?

MR. TURNER: No.

COMMISSICNER CULPEPPER: That was
Cross-Examination Exhibit No. 1. This is
Cross~Examination Exhibit No. 2, whatever it is.

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Can you identify it?

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. I have not identified it
yet. Mr. Chairman, I have O’Roark Exhibit 1 was his
testimony -- his exhibit to his direct testimony. I have
O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit No. 1'as the contract.

I have AT&T hearing -- I'm sorry, AT&T Hearing Exhibit No.
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1l being the supplemental discovery.

MR. MALISH: Oh, okay.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: That's correct. And
now we're talking about O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit
No. 2, which is what, Mr. Turner?

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. This is a page from
dPi's website that sets forth pricing information for its
services here in North Carolina.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Let the

document be identified as previously stated.

Q. Tell me when you're ready, Mr. O'Roark.
A. Okay.
Q. Mr. O'Roark, at the bottom of this document there

is an indication that this comes from the dPi website and

was printed on November the 10th, 2009, two days ago,

right?

A. Okay.

Q. I'm sorry, Mr. O'Roark, I didn't hear your answer.
A. Yes, that's what it says.

Q. On the first page of the document, at the top

left, this is a gquote for basic service for dPi. Could
you give us the price that appears for dPi's basic service

there?

MR. MALISH: Excuse me for a moment. I
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understand that the Commission is -- sort of allows broad
cross-examination, but I -- you know, in the interest of
“conserving time, I would move to object to this line of
questioning as.irrelevant.

Again, they're going intoc the pricing that dPi

has with its retail customers and ‘I don't see how that

could possibly be related to the basic question of whether

AT&T is obligated to provide the offers that it makes
available at retail to resellers like -- like dPi. 1It's
just -- it's just inquiring about matters that -- entirely
extraneous to that decision.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Well, I'm
going to overrule your objection, Mr. Malish. You may

proceed.

Q. Mr. O'Roark, on page 1 at the top left under

"Quote," tell us the price for basic service that is
quoted there.

A. You want me to read from this thing you've handed
me? Basic Total 39.99, is that what you want-me to read?
Q. I'm asking you the price that‘'s indicated on this
exhibhit for the basic service that dPi provides in North
Carolina. What is it?

A. It says Basic Total, 39.9%.

“Q. Go with me to page 3 of the document. This is an
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order summary that is, again, taken from the dPi website.
If you look at the top right corner, you'll see that ZIP

code there.

A . Uh-hUh -

Q. Will you accept subject to check-that that is a

ZIP code for Charlotte, North Carclina?

A. 282027

Q. Yes, sir.

A, If you say S0. Okay.

Q. In the middle of thg page under product name,

there is a chart that goes from month cne to month nine.

Do you see that?

A.’ YES.

Q. As I read this chart, the -- today the total
amount that a dPi end user pays for basic service in North
Carolina is $55.60 in month one; is that correct?

A. That's what it says.

Q. Well, Mr. O'Roark, you're the CEO of this company.
I asked you these questions in your deposition in August.

Is that an accurate number or not?

A, I don't have my product catalog in front of me. I

don't have access to that database from this desk and we
have -- we operate in 30-plus states. We have different

prices, different products for every ILEC in every state.
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Q. Do you have any reason to believe sitting here on
the stand today that the information set forth on dPi’'s

website in that exhibit is inaccurate?

A. I don't have any reason to believe it's not
accurate.
Q. Go with us to month two and tell us the price that

dPi’'s end user pays for basic service in North Carolina in

month two.
A. This says the same 39.99.
Q. Look at the product name under total where you

just said on month one the total was 55.60. What's the
total for month two?
A. The total amount for all of the above, 64.56,

including taxes, fees, surcharges and all of the other.

Q. Including an A.A.M. fee, correct, of §3 —- §5?
A. Right.

0. Including a dPi Club Program of $3, right?

A. Correct.

Q. What's the total amount that the dPi end user in

North Carolina pays in month three for basic service?

A. 39.99.

Q. The total amount --

A. The total for all of the above _
Q- Yeah.
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A. ~-- 54.56.
MR, TURNER: Mr. Chairman, may I have one moment
Ito confer with co-counsel?
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Certainly.
(Brief pause.)

Q. Mr. O'Roark, those total numbers for month three

and beyond, we can agree that those numbers assume that
dPi's end user pays on a timely basis, correct?

A. That's right. There's a prompt pay discount.

Q. And if the dPi end user does not pay on a timely
basis in month three forward, how much gets added to their
bill?

A. Well, they wouldn't qualify for the prompt pay
discount if they didn't pay promptly, right, so it's $§$10.

Q. $10 additional. Are there any late fees that

would apply as well?

A. There may be. Late fees vary by state by ILEC. I
would héve te look that up.

Q. Is it fair and accurate to say that-essentially
every single one of dPi's new customers is someone who was
formerly a customer of AT&T or another provider and who
left after getting into trouble over their phone bill?

A. Is it -- is it true that every customer of ours

was formerly your customer or somecne else’'s customer who
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left after getting in trouble over not paying their bill?
Q. Is it fair and accurate to say that essentially
“every single one of dPi's new customers is someéne who was
forﬁerly'a customer of AT&T or ancther provider and ;ho
left after getting into trouble over their phone bill?

"A. A lot of -- yeah. I mean, a lot of our customers
that would be true about, yes. Not 100 percent, but,

yeah, that would be true about a large percentage of our

customers, yes.

Q. I believe the phrase you used in your prefiled
testimony in Georgia was "essentially'every single one.”
Does that refresh your recollection?

A. That's the testimony that Brian Bolinger gave that

I've adopted, is that what you're quoting? Yes. Okay.

Q. Does it refresh your recollection?

A, Okay.

Q. That's a yes?

A. Yes.

Q. Let's move to the next topic. Let's talk about

the number of customers dPi serves in North Carolina. The
promotions at issue go back to late 2003, right?

A. Right.

"Q. Can we agree that in September 2003 dPi served

2,896 customers in North Carolina?
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JA. September of 2003 dPi had 2,896 cuséomers in North
Carolina.

Q. How many in June of 20097

A. 3,966 as of June 2009.

Q. And AT&T began giving cash back credit requests on

a going-forward basis in June 2007, right?

A. Correct.
Q. How many customers did dP have -- dPi have in
June 2007?

A. 5,139 customers in North Carolina as of June 2007.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I would like to mark
as O'Roark Cross;Examination Exhibit Ne. 3 a chart
depicting the numbers we just described and ask that it be
handed out by my colleague to the witness, his counsel and
the Commission and other attorneys.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Let the
document be so identified. Get a copy to the court

reporter, please.

{(Whereupon, 0O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit
No. 3 was marked for identification.)
Q. Mr. O'Roark, the midpoint on that chart is June of
2007, right?
A. Yes.

Q. So from September of '03 through June of '07 when

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION

85




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

86

AT&T was not providing cash back credits to dPi, the
number of customers in North Carolina increased from 2,896
to 5,139, right?
A. Right. ]
Q. And from the time that AT&T began giving these
credit requests to dPi in North Carolina, your number of
customers in North Carolina dropped from 5,139 to-3,966 in
June of 2009, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Now, let's talk about the amounts that dPi is
seeking in this docket. I want you to assume that AT&T's
promotion provided its retail customer a coupon that could
be redeemed for a $50 cash back check, okay?

A. Okay.

Q. If that is the request at issue in this docket, is
dPi asking the Commission to order BellScuth or AT&T to

pay $50 in credits or $50 less the promotional discount

and credits?

A. I believe that we've asked for $50, right?
Q. I'm asking you, sir.
A. I'd have to go back and revisit the calculation,

but I believe it's based on $50.
MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I have a four-page

exhibit that I'd like to walk through in hypothetical form
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with the witness. and I'd like that —— to ask that it be
marked as O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit No. 4.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Let the
document be so identifieq.
(Whereupon, 0O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit
No. 4 was marked for identification.)
Would you tell us again what this document is?
MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. The first page is titled
"Pelecommunications Service A Retail Price of $75."
Mr. Chairman, what I intend to do is walk through the
document and compare a price reduction to a cash back and
see.the dollar amounts that would be at issue there.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Well, let's
let the exhibit be identified as O'Roark Cross-Examination
Exhibit No. 4.
Q. Tell me when you‘'ve had a chance to look through

that, Mr. O'Roark, and are ready for me to ask you

guestions.
A, I've looked at it.
Q. In order to explore dPi's position that it's

entitled to a credit for the full face value of a
promotional offering, I want you to assume, as depicted on
page 1 here, that AT&T has a retail telecommunications

service A that has a retail price of $75. I also want you
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to assume that the residential resale discount in North
Carolina is 21.5 percent. Will you assume that with me?
A. Sure.

Q. Now, if A —- if dPi purchases service A for
resale, we can agree, can't we, that dPi would pay AT&T
the §58.88 price that's set out on the last line of page 1
of Exhibit 47

A, ﬁypothetically, yes.

Q. That's simply the $75 retail price less
21-and-a-half percent resale discount, right?

A. Right.

Q. Now, you've testified that the net effect of a
cash back promotion is to reduce the retaii price that
AT&T's custaomers are paying for telephone service, right?
And if you want to look at your rebuttal, page 3, lines 1
through 2, it could refresh your memory.

A, You giving $50 to your customer reduces the price

that your customer pays, is that your question?

Q. My -—- ) '
A. Yes, it does. Yes, it does.
Q. So let's assume that -- I said 50. I want you to

do 25. Let's assume that there's a $25 price reduction.
And let's assume that instead of taking the form of a cash

back offer, AT&T simply decides to reduce its price for
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Telecommunication Service, here A, by $25. Will you make
that assumption with me?

A. Okay.

Q. Go to page 2 of Exhibit 4. We see a retail price

of $50 there, right?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. That's a yes?

A. Yes.

Q. And that is $25 less than the price on page 1,
right?

A. Right.

0. If dPi purchased this service now with a $50

retail price, it would pay the 39.25 depicted at the
bottom of Exhibit 2, right?

A. Right.

Q. Now, flip to page 3. When the price of the
service was $75 dPi paid to resell the sgrvice, it paid
58.88, right? |

A. Correct.

Q. And after the $25 reduction of the face wvalue of

the price,.dPi paid 39.25, right?

A. That's right.
Q. That's a difference of 19.63, right?
a. That's right.
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Q. So a retail price reduction of $25 resulted in a
price reduction for dPi of 19.63, correct?
FA. Correct.

Q. And you agree that if that's the way that this was
laid out, the 19.63 would be the difference that dPi was

entitled to, correct?

A. Do I agree that the difference between 58.88 and

39.25 is 19.63, yes, I agree.

Q. That's not quite what I asked. 1I'll clarify.
A. Okay.
Q. Do you agree that if AT&T reduced its retail price

from $75 to $50, that would inure to a benefit of $19.63
to dPi? 1It's not a $25 price reduction for dpPi, it's a

19.63 price reduction, isn't it?

A. Yes. Yes.

0. Let me ask you --

A. If you reduce the retail price, yes, that's
correct. ‘

Q. If when we reduce our resale price 5y $25 you're

only entitled to 19.63, how is it that you claim to be

entitled to more than that when the reduction takes the
form of a cash back offer as opposed to a retail price

reduction?

A. Well, my understanding is that the law is and that
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our interconnection agreement is that any promotion you
make available to your customer you have to make available
to my —- to my customer. And that if a customer comes to
you through the CLEC sales channel, you can't treat that
customer different than you treat a customer who comes to
you through your direct sales channel. So that when -- if
you give $25 to a customer that comes to you through your
direct channel, that you're obligated by contract and by
law to give that same $25 to the customer that comes to
you through the CLEC sales channel.

So, you know, that's my understanding of it. If
I'm -- I guess the Commission will decide what the actual
rule is, but, you know, we've -~ we've asserted what we
believe to be the law and what we believe to be yocur
contractual obligation, that any promotion you make
available to your customer, you're obligated to make
available to my customer. If you give your customer $25,
you're obligated to give that same $25 to my customer.

You know, it's -- they're -- they're both
BellSouth customers. They just come through different

sales channels. They're still both BellSouth customers.
So we understood that the rule was that any promotion you
made available to your customer you had to make available

to my customer. You couldn't treat the two customers
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differently just because one came through the CLEC sales
channel and one came through your direct sales channel,
that you had to treat them both the same; and that if you
didn't do that, that was -- that was unfair and that that
wasn't the rule. So that's part of what, I gquess, is
going to be decided.
Q. Yes, your understanding of the law. I take it
that you rely in part on the Sanford decision in
determining whether it complies with the law or not?
A. I think the Sanford decision ~- in my mind the
only —- the significance.of the Sanford decision was that
it says that any promotion that tends to réduce the retail
price paid had to be passed through, had to be made
available to the CLEC. That didn't deal -- my
understanding was -- and I'm not a lawyer, but my
understanding was it didn't deal with this specific cash
back, but it just dealt with general principle that if a
retail promotion had the effect of -- tended to have the
effect of reducing the price that a customer paid, that
that retaillpromotion had to be made availabie to the
CLEC.

And the only other significancé was that for some
reason you began issuing credits to CLECs about the same

time that that ruling came down. So -- but you never went
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back and corrected the prior, so...
MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I would like to

explore that a bit. Band what I'd like to propose is that

I use the blackboard and ask my colleague, Ms. Phillips,
to copy what I'm putting on that blackboard. We'll
probably make it a --. move to make it a hearing exhibit at
the end so that the transcript can reflect what's on that

board.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: That will be fine. Go
right ahead.
Q. See if we can make the hypothetical jibe with the
"Sanford decision. Let's assume that the retail price is

$120. Assume that the coupon involved is §100. And to

make the math the same as the Fourth Circuit made it,
let's assume that the discount, resale discount, is

20 percent, right? If fcu take the service of 120, you'll
agree with me that 20 percent of 126 is 24, right?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And that leaves -- if the CLEC bought the $120
service at a 20 percent discount, it would pay $96 for the
sgrvice, correct?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Take the coupon. Coupon has a face value of $100,

|
1right? You've got to say yes or --
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A. Oh, I'm sorry. Yes. Sorry.

0. That's all right. And if you take 20 percent
discount off the coupon, you come up with 80, right?
A. Uh-huh.

Q. Well —- so if AT&T charged dPi %$96 for the

service, then credited it $80, how much does dPi end up
paying for the service?

A. 16, right.

Q. Do you have a copy of the Sanford decision in
front of you?

hA. No.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: He doesn't have a copy

of it, Mr. Turner.

MR. TURNER: Oh, I'm sorry. I didn't hear him.

I'm trying to think of the least painful way to do this.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: That's all right.
MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman —- and I'm going to

ask counsel to agree to this so we can speed the process

up —- what I would like to do is to read into the record a
paragraph from the Sanford decision to show how it applies
to this.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Do you have a copy of
the Sanford excision -- decision that you want to present

to the witness?
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MR. TURNER: I don't have it -- I have one copy,
Your Honor, and that's the problem.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: You have one copy of

it, okay. Well --

MR. MALISH: I don't have —- I don't have an
objection to him reading it into the record. I don't have
an objection to him putting a copy in and he'll just add
it -- you know, actually give the court reporter --

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, I --

MR. MALISH: -- a hard copy later. I mean, this
decision -~ excuse me, the decision speaks for itself.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: I understand that,

Mr. Malish. I understand that. So I tell you what, let's
-~ let's do it this way. Mr. Turner, you hand Mr. O‘'Roark
a copy of the Sanford decision and you ask him to read
into the record whatever part of that decision you would
like for him to do so.

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. O'Roark, just to save tihe, I would like you
to read from “suppose" down to this 20 percent number
here.

A, Subbose -- “"Suppose BellSouth offers its
subscribers residential telephone service for $20 a month.

”Assuming a 20 percent discount for avoided cost, see Local

|
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Competition Order PP [sic] 931-33. BellSouth must resell
thié service to competitive LECs for $16 per month,
enabling the competitive LEC to compete with BellSouth's
$20 retail fee. Now suppose that BellSouth offers its

subscribers telephone service for 120 a month, but sends

the customer a coupon for a monthly rebate for $100.
According to the North Carolina Commission's orders, the
appropriate wholesale rate is still $16, because that is
the net price paid by the rgtail customer ($20) less the
wholesale discount. According to BellSouth's position,
however, the appropriate resale rate" —- :

Q. That's fine.

A. -~ "the appropriate wholesale rate would be §$96,
the nominal rate of 120, less the 20 percent discount for
*451 avoided cost.”

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Stop right
there, Mr. O'Roark. Do you wish him to read any more of
the --

MR. TURNER: No.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -- of the decision?
All right. Thank you, Mr. O'Roark.

"Q. Mr. Q'Roark -

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Ask him another

guestion now.
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MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.
Q. Mr. O'Roark, we can agree that in that passage the
Fourth Circuit said that if you had a $120 retail price
and a $100 coupon, the appropriate price that a reseller

should pay is 16, correct?

A. According to the North Carolina Commission orders,

the appropriate rate is still $16, yes, that's what it

says.
Q. In our hypothetical here when we took the coupon

and discounted it by the percentage that is there in that

order, we came to $16, didn't we?
A, Yes.

Q. If we gave the full value of the coupon, we'd come

up with a negativé four, wouldn't we?

A. Right.
Q. And that's not the number that's in that Sanford
decision —-
2. No, it's not.
Q. -- 1is it? .
Could I have the decision back, please?
A. Yes.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, may I give a copy of
Ms. Phillips' notes on the board to opposing counsel so he

can agree that it's an accurate depiction of what was on
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the blackboard?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: You can do that. Do
you want to ﬁark it as an exhibit?

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. I'd like -- thank you.
"I'd like to mark it as O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit

No. 5.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Let it be

so identified.

{Whereupon, 0'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit

No. 5 was marked for identification.)

And state again for the record what O'Roark
Cross-Examination Exhibit No. 5 is.

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir. It is the -- it is a
copy of the information that I was using on the blackboard
as I was cross-—-examining Mr. O'Reoark on the Sanford
ﬂdecision.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Wwhy don't
you present that to the witness and ask him if that's not
Ltrue.

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. O'Roark, do you have in front of you O'Roark
Cross-Examination Exhibit No. 5?2

A. Yes.

Q. Is that a fair and accurate depiction of what is
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on the blackboard that I used as I was asking you

questions about the Sanford decision?

A. Yes, it is.
Q. Just a few housekeeping matters and I'll be done.
a. I remind you that I said I didn't know the amount

that was used in cominé up with the 156. I would have to
go back and revisit that calculation.

0. Mr. O'Roark, can we agree that your personal
involvement with the disputes before the Commission was
limited to communications with Brian Bolinger and
communications with Steve Watson?

A. Yes.

Q. Can we agree you have no personal involvement in
the process by whicp the interconnection agreements were
entered into between dPi and AT&T?

A. Yes.

Q. You did not prepare Exhibit 1 to your direct
testimony, did you?

Al - No.

Q. You were not involved in the preparation of
Exhibit 1 to your direct testimony, were yéu?

A. No.

Q. Go to your direct, page 4. -- 4, line 22, 1I'll

ask you about that through page 5, line 3. Tell me when
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you're ready.
A. Okay.
Q. That- testimeony addresses conversations with AT&T

employee Pam Tipton, correct?

A, Yes, it does.

0. You did not speak with Ms. Tipton, did you?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Mr. Bolinger spoke with Ms. Tipton, didn't he?
A. Yes, he did.

Q. You were not there when Mr. Bolinger and Ms.

Tipton spoke, were you?

A. No, I was not.

Q. - And you have no-personal knowledge of anything
that was said between Mr. Bolinger and Ms. Tipton, do you?
A. No, I don't.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I have a brief
motion. Rule 602 of the North Carolina Rules of Evidence
requires a witness to have personal knowledge, and Rule
805 provides that there are multiple layer; of hearsay in

a document, each has to meet an exception. And I will

Iconcede that the statement by Ms. Tipton meets a hearsay

exception. However, there's an additional layer of
hearsay here, that is that Mr. Bolinger told Mr. O'Roark

what happened. Mr. O'Roark was not there. This is a
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direct statement by an ATsT employee that we cannot have
any way to cross-examine him on or explore. I'd ask to
strike that portion of his testimony.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Motion denied.

MR. TURNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have
nothing further.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Ms.
Edmondson, do you have gquestions of the witness,
cross-examination?

MS. EDMONDSON: I do have a few questions.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. EDMONDSON:

Q. Mr. O'Roark, what does LCCW stand for?

A. It's the -- and on the exact LCCW line cost, it's
basically the waiver of the non-recurring charges
associated with activating a new customer.

Q. And are those waived for customers in North
Carolina currently?

A. Currently they are, yves. And BellSouth, yes.

Q. Okay. Looking at 0'Roark Cross-Examination 2, do
you have that before you?

“A. Remind me of which one =

Q.. That was the printout from, I believe, the dPi
website.
iA. The website -—-
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whoever printed this out did
leligible for either Lifeline

This -- this

A. Right.
customer, I don‘'t believe we
because if it were you would

and you don't.

102

Q. Yes.
LA. -- yes.
0. Is it correct —- is this indicating that the --

not indicate they were

or Link-Up?

is not a Lifeline or Link-Up
—— well, I'm certain it's not

see Lifeline credits on here

Q. And I'm on the second page of this exhibit, it --

at the —— toward the bottom it says Lifeline credit of

13.50 and a Link-Up America credit of $30?

a. Right.

If a customer is Lifeline eligible, we

pass through 100 percent of the credit that we receive

from USAC to that customer and then that -- and in this

case the website is representing that that's 13.50

recurring and $30 non-recurring one-time Link-Up credit.

0. And so the one -- the Link-Up credit would come
out the first month; is that correct?

A. That's right.

0. And then the Lifeline credit would come out each
month?

A. Monthly, right.

0. And that would be reflected in the bottom line?
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There may be some variation for --

A. That's right.

Q. -- taxes --

A. That's exactly right, yes.

Q. Okay. And you testified that about 70 percent of

“your customers are Lifeline customers are in --

A. Yes, ma'am.
0. -- over —-- over your entire area?
A. Over our entire customer base, about 70 percent

are Lifeline.

Q. And does dPi have customers participating in
Lifeline and Link-Up in North Carolina?

A. Yes, we do.

Q. How is it determined these customers qualify for
these programs?

A. The customer certifies to dPi that they are
eligible for Lifeline and they sign a self-certification
form and then depending upon the various state rules and
USAC rules, we may or may not require supporting

documentation.

Q. And you said USAC. 1Is that Universal Service

Administrative Company?

A. Universal Service Administration Company --

Q. Corporation, corporation.
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A, -- yeah, I think it is, USAC. Corporation, USAC,
yes.
Q. *All right. And do -- does dPi receive support

from the low-income proqram of USAC?

A, Low income, yes.
Q. And do y'all apply monthly for that support?
A. Right. We file a 497, I believe it is, with them

on a monthly basis, right.

Q. All right. And you -- do you pass the entire
amount of the savings to your customers?

A. We're obligated to do that by law, yes.

0. Okay. All right. And you currently waive the
line connection cost for all customers regardless of being
Lifeline/Link-Up or just anyone?

A. Well, what we currently do is we have a $60
activation fee, which we receive $30 from USAC for that
activation fee. For a non-Lifeline customer, we defer
that activation fee and collect it over a period of months

into the future.

Q. Okay. So if I'm looking on the third page of
0'Roark Cross-Exhibit 2 -- and we determined this was for
someone who is not Lifeline or Link-Up -- seeing the

service activation charge is $60 --

A. $60, right.
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Q. ~- and then a payment deferral of 69 —-—

A. T 69.68.

Q. —— i --

A. S0 we offer a payment deferral and then we -~ and

then we collect that payment deferral into the future. If
a customer leaves prior to the end of the deferral period,
we charge them for the balance of that. .

Q. And is that $60 service activation charge
reflected as a portion of that 69 payment deferral?

A. Not -- not specifically. I mean, it's not
séecifically associated with the activation, it's just a
payment deferral option that we offer to our customer.

Q. So how is that waiver reflected in this month one?
Because right now it looks like --

A. Well, this is not a Lifeline -- this is a
non-Lifeline customer, right, so we're charging them the
full $60 service activation fee and then we're offering
them a payment deferral option of 69.68, which they can
pay, I believe, over some period ——.I'd have to get you
the specifics on that, but some period of months into the
future.

Q. But you said that you waive the LCC -- you pass
through the LCCW waiver to your customers; is that

correct?
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A. To a Lifeline customer, yes, we do. So if this
were a Lifeline customer, we would have passed through

both the 13.50 and the $30.

Q. But you also waive that for other customers as
well?

A. We don't waive it. We don't waive it for a
non-Lifeline customer. We don't —-- we offer this payment

f
deferral option.

Q. Okay. Can I show you a page from your deposition?
A. Yes.
Q. Let me approach. Referring yoﬁ to page 28 of your

deposition, you testified, I believe, that you passed

through the -- this line waiver charge --
A, Yes.
0. -- to your customers. Can you explain that a

littlie further?

A, There's a difference between -- North Carolina is
a state where we are an eligible telecommunications
provider, ETC. In BellSouth, in general, we're not

necessarily ETC in every sate. We're not an eligible

telecommunications company in every state, so how we do
business and how we operate obviously is different in
Ithose states where we are an eligible telecommunications

company than the states where we're not an eligible
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telecommunications company.

So North Carolina happens to be one of those
states where we are an eligible telecommunications company
and where we have a very heavy concentration of Lifeline
customers. So in North Carolina we -- we have a $60
activation fee, which we charge to all of our customers;
and then we pass through the $30 Lifeline credit to a
Lifeline customer and then offer this payment deferral
option to all of our customers.

So in BellSouth states where we're not an eligible
telecommunications company, then we would tend to do
things differently and this indicates basically.how we do
it in BellSouth, generally speaking, if we're not an ETC.
Q. But the question that was asked in the deposition,
line 16 and 17, you were asked does dPi charge any service
connection charges to its customers in North Carolina.

And what was your answer in lines 18 through 23?

A. We pass through the LCCW waiver to our customer.
So since we're able to qualify for promotional credits
from BellSouth, we're able to net charge a customer
activation fee. Were it not for the LCCW waiver, we.would
have to charge the customer an activation fee.

Q. All right.

A, And that -- I guess I would --
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Q. Thank you.

A. -— I would clarify that to say that --

Q. That's all the gquestions I have.

A. Okay. Were it not for that activation fee,
Ithough, we would -- we wouldn't be able to offer this

payment deferral option.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Does that conclude your
questions, Ms. Edmondson?

MS. EDMONDSON: Yes. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Redirect
examination, Mr. Malish?

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. MALISH:

Q. Mr. O'Roark, do you have the little graph in here
that's AT&T Cross-Examination 3?

“A. Yes.

LQ. That’'s plotting three points over a course of six
years, true?

A. Yeah. From '03 to *09.

Q. And is -- what would this graph look like if you

plotted it out every single month? Would it trend exactly

like that?

A. No.

Q. Would it go up and down in between?
A. Yep.
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Q. Do y'all have -- what's the best explanation for
when y'all have a big increase in customer count?

A, The best explanation is prior to MCI coming out
with their friends and family program. When MCI came out
with their friends and family program is when we took a

huge hit in customer base.

Q. Do y'all ever --

A. Generally --

0. Do y'all ever --—

A, Generally speaking, dPi peaked at around, I don't

know, 80-something-thousand subscribers at our peak
nationwide and then afterx MCI'came out with their friends
and family program, our customer base declined
dramatically.

Q. And here in 2007, do you -- were y'all -- do y'all
also acquire other companies?

A. Huh?

Q. Do you acquire other companies that are customer

bases of other companies?

A. We did -- we did -- we have done acquisitions of

other companies, yes.

Q. And would Vertex be one of them?
A. - Right.
Q. One of the cases where we applied for that here in
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North Carolina?

A. Yes.

Q. Did that result in a spike in your customer count
for North Carolina?

A. It resulted in, yes, significant growth in our
customer count, right.

Q. Can I turn your attention to dPi Cross-Exhibit No.
2. Looking at page -~ I guess page 3 of that exhibit. At
the top of mine it says page 1 of 1. But this is the list
of the total prices from month to month where it says

55.60, 64.56 and SO cn across ——

A, Right.

Q. -- the board. Do you see that?

A, Right.

Q. That's higher than AT&T's basic service packages,
isn‘t it?

A. I don't know.

Q. Do you suspect that it is?

A. I suspect that it is.

MR. TURNER: Objection. Speculation.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Overruled.
Q. Does it cost y'all more per line to operate than
it does AT&T? Is your cost per line higher than theirs?

A. I —— I --yes. I would -- I would assume that it
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is. Now, we're —— our -- our basic costs from ATAT is a
discount off of their retail tariff.

Q. Okay.

A. I'm assuming they're not discounting it below

their cost.

Q. All right.
A, Is that your question?
Q. How much -- how much personal attention does your

average customer require?

A. A lot of personal attention.

0. All right.

A. Right.

Q. It's not the situation that you have sort of a

long-standing embedded customer base that just sends you
checks month after month; is that --

A. That's right. Prepaid customers typically require
a lot more attention, a lot more high touch service than
do postpaid customers. And, you know, we do an awful lot
of reaching out to that customer, helping that customer to
maintain his service, stay on service, doing everything we
can to retain that customer, make sure that he doesn't get
disconnected for nonpayment. So we do an awful lot of
what T tend toc refer to as life management, you know,

trying to help that customer to remember to make his
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payments and remember what his obligations are and that
type of thing.
[

Q. Do you -- even though A -- even though dri

operates on a prepaid basis, do y'all still have the

possibility of losing money or not getting paid for
service that's provided to customers?

A. Well, we don't provide service to customer until

I —— until it's —-- he's paid for it. So the risk that we
would run would be that a customer would somehow manage to

rstay on service for a time frame that he hasn't yet paid

for.
Q. And that happens from time to time?
It occasionally happens.
dQ. All right. What is your customer turnover?

A. We have a much higher turn than does a postpaid

provider. The prepaid customers, the turn rate for

and -- but generally speaking, it ranges from a low of 10

hprepald customers is -- varies by state and by company
”percent turn every month to a high of 30 percent turn.

All right. And do you have any idea of what it is

in North Carolina?

JA. I don't know what it is in North Carolina

1

specifically.

JQ. Okay. So you're constantly having to spend money

|
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to replace those customers —-

A. Yes.

IQ- -- or —-

A. Right.

Q. -- that affects your cost per line?

A. Yes. That's -- that's much higher than what a

typical postpaid provider would experience.

MR. MALISH: We're trying to break at 12:30,
right?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: We're going to go a
little bit longer than that.

MR. MALISH: I'll pass —- I'll pass the Qitness.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Are you concluded with
your redirect examination?

MR. MALISH: Yes.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Questions
by the Commission?

{No response.)

All right. Appears that there aren't any
questions by the Commission. ﬁ}. 0'Roark, that would
conclude your testimony and you may stand down from the
witness chair.

(Whereupen the witness was dismissed.)

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, is now the
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appropriate time to move the cross-examination exhibits
into evidence?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Going to get right --
right to that in just a second.

Mr. Malish, do you wish to move the admission of
O'Roark Hearing Exhibit No. 1?

MR. MALISH: I -- I do. I do move to admit,
yeah.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: I thought.so.

MR. MALISH: I thought I already had, but I'm
wrong.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: No. We've identified
it for purposes of this hearing, but we haven't received
it into evidence yet. So I know you wish to move it into
evidence.

MR. MALISH: I do. And also the rebuttal, I
believe. There's one in the back of rebuttal too, is
ithere not? Maybe I'm wrong.

f COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: I didn‘t have an
exhibit --

MR. MALISH: No, there's not.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -—- attached to the

rebuttal.

MR. MALISH: So you're -- you're correct.

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Just have the one —-
MR. MALISH: Just the one --

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -~ exhibit consisting

of nine pages?

MR. MALISH: Just the one.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Any

objection to that?

MR. TURNER: No, Your Honor.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Well, let

that exhibit be received.

you.

{Whereupon, O0'Roark Hearing Exhibit No. 1 was
admitted into evidence.)

And now, Mr. Turner, I'll be glad to hear from

MR. TURNER: .Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We would

move into evidence AT&T Hearing Exhibit No. 1, which was

the dPi first supplemental response to North Carolina's

second set of interrogatories.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Let it be received.
(Whereupon, AT&T Hearing Exhibit No. 1 was
admitted into evidence.)

MR. MALISH: No objection.

MR. TURNER: We would also remove -- move into

evidence AT&T Cross-Examination Exhibit Nos. 1 through 5.
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COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, they're
identified as O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit Nos. 1
through 5.

MR. TURNER: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: And you have no

1objection to that, do you, Mr. Malish?

MR. MALISH: I had the objection already
articulated to Cross-Exhibit No. 2, whiéh was the -- you
know, the pricing that dPi provides to its end user, but
no objection to 1, 3, 4 -- and 5 was the blackboard,
right?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Yes. Well, I'm going
hto overrule your objection to the one exhibit you've
objected to. And that being the case, 0'Roark

Cross-Examination Exhibits Nos. 1 through 5 are received

into eéidence.
(Whereupon, O'Roark Cross-Examination Exhibit
Nos. 1 through 5 were admitted inte evidence.)
MR. MALISH: Do y'all have the -- the yellow

page?

\ MR. TURNER: I think he still has it.

’ MR, MALISH: He took it with him. Oh, we're

trying to recover the -~

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Yeah. lLet's --
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MR. MALISH: -- the yellow page.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Let's let the coﬁrt
reporter have that. I believe that's the one and only
copy of that we have. If you'll pass that to the court

reporter, that will clean up that housecleaning matter.
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Now, Mr. Malish, does that conclude your case at

this point in time?

MR. MALISH: That concludes our direct.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Be glad to

hear from you, Mr. Turner or Mr. Rankin.
MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, at this time AT&T

calls its first witness, Ms. Seagle.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Ms. Seagle, if you'll

come forward.

MR. MALISH: Mr. Chairman, is it possible to
dismiss Mr. -- Mr. O'Roark?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Are there any
objections to that?

MR. TURNER: No, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Without objection,
Mr. O'Roark may be excused.

MR. MALISH: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Thank you very much,

Mr. O'Roark. Appreciate your coming.
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1 KRISTY SEAGLE; - Being first duly sworn,

2 testified as follows:

3 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. TURNER:

4 COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Mr. Turner, you may
5 examine your witness.

6 Q. Ms. Seagle, could you state your name, your

7 employer and your business address for the record?

8 A, Yes. My name is Kristy Seagle, AT&T. I work for
9 AT&T. The address is 3535 Colonnade Parkway in

10 Birmingham, Alabama.

11 *Q. And did you file -or cause to be filed in this

12 Iproceeding direct testimony dated November 5th, 2008, and

13 “consisting of 14 pages?

14 As Yes, I did.

15 Q. Do you have any revisions that you need to make to
16 that testimony?

17 A. No, I don't.

18 Q. If I were to ask you the same gquestions that

1% appear in your prefiled direct testimony, will your

20 answers be the same as they appear in that prefiled direct
21 testimony?

22 A, Yes, they would.

23 0. And you had five exhibits to your direct testimony
24 labeled KAS-1 to KAS5-57?

|
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A. Yes, I do.

0. and do you need any revisions to those exhibits?
A. No, I don't.

Q. and I do not believe you had any rebuttal, did
you?

A, No, I did not.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I would ask that Ms.
Seagle's prefiled direct and pre -- testimony along with
the associated exhibits be entered into the record as if
given live from the stand.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. The
witness®' prefiled direct testimony will be admitted into
evidence as if it had been given word for word orally from
the stand. The witness' five exhibits are identified as
marked when filed.

(Whereupon, the prefiled direct testimony of

Kristy Seagle will be reproduced in the record

at this point the same as if the questions had

been orally asked and the answers orally given

from the witness stand.)

{Whereupon, Exhibits KAS-1 through KAS-5 were

marked for identification.)
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FILED
NOV 05 2008
AT&T NORTH CAROLINA wc Glaeotice

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF KRISTY A. SEAGLE
BEFORE THE NORTH CAROLINA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
DbCKET NO. P-55, SUB 1744
NOVEMBER 35, 2008

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, YOUR EMPLOYER, AND YOUR

BUSINESS ADDRESS

My name is Kristy Seagle. I am employed by AT&T Operations, Inc. in the arca
of wholesale operations. My business address is 3535 Colonnade Parkway, Suite

N3C, Birmingham, Alabama 35243.

PLEASE PROVIDE A BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR BACKGROUND

AND EXPERIENCE.

I received my Masters of Business Administration degree from the University of
Alabama in Birmingham in 1982. I have ten years experiencc in the
telecommunications industry. My career with AT&T/BellSouth began in 1998 as
a Small Business Service Representative. Since then [ have worked as a Systems
Designer, Resale Product Manager, and Lead Interconnection Agreements
Manager.
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WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

The purpose of my testimony is to: (1) provide an overview of the process
Competing Local Providers (“CLPs") like dPi Teleconnect, L.L.C. (“dPi") use to
request promotional credits from AT&T North Caroling (“AT&TY); (2)
summarize conversations | had with dPi representatives regarding this process; (3)
discuss how 1 informed dPi representatives in 2004 and again in 2005 that AT&T
would not make the cashback portions of promotional offerings available for
resale; and (4) discuss the timing of the promotional credit requests at issue in this

docket.
L OVERVIEW OF PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUEST PROCESS

PLEASE GIVE A GENERAL SUMMARY OF HOW AT&T GOES ABOUT

RESELLING PROMOTIONS TO CLPS LIKE DPI?

The CLP purchases the services that are required in conjunction with a2 promotion
from AT&T and pays the standard resale rate (the tariffed rate less the resale
discount) for those services. The CLP then submits & promotional credit request
seeking any additional credits to which it claims to be entitled pursuant to the

promotion.
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For example, assume that AT&T North Carolina ren & promotion that waived a
tariffed $40 installation charge when an end user ordered a lin¢ with e tariffed rate
of $20 per month during the promotional period. Assume further that the resale
discount is 20%. If a CLP resold that promotion to one if its end users that
qualified for the promotion, the CLP would be billed $32 ($40 less the 20% resale
discount) for the installation charge and $16 per month ($20 tess the 20% resale
discount) for the line. In order to receive the benefit of the promotional waiver of
installation charges, the CLP would then submit a request to AT&T for a $32
credit. If the request is valid (i.e. if the promotion is available for resale and if the
CLP’s end user meets the criteria that an AT&T North Carolina end user would
have to meet to qualify”ﬁ)r the promotion), AT&T North Carolina provides the

CLP a $32 credit.

HAS THIS PROCESS BEEN IN PLACE THROUGHOUT THE 2003 TO 2007
TIME FRAME AT ISSUE IN THIS DOCKET?

This general process has been in place throughout that time period, but the

process hag become more mechanized over time.

At the beginning of that time period, for instance, these promotional credit
requests were received and processed manusily. Beginning in the Fall of 2005,

the process became inerea.iingly mechanized. Today, the submission, validation,

o,
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and processing of these promotional credit requests is almost entirely
mechanized.'

II. DISCUSSIONS WITH DPI REPRESENTATIVES REGARDING
THE PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUEST PROCESS

Q N RESPONDING TO AT&T'S DISCOVERY REQUESTS, DPI HAS
IDENTIFIED STEVE WATSON OF LOST KEY TELECOM INC. AS DPI'S
BILLING AND COLLECTIONS AGENT FOR PROMOTIONS. HAVE YOU
HAD ANY DISCUSSIONS WITH DPr'S BILLING AGENT, MR. WATSON,
ABOUT THE PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUEST PROCESS?

Q. WHEN WAS THE FIRST TIME YOU DISCUSSED THE PROMOTIONAL
CREDIT REQUEST PROCESS WITH MR. WATSON IN HIS CAPACITY AS

DPI'S BILLING AGENT?
A. During a face-to-face meeting in Birmingham, Alabama, in August of 2004.

Q. WHAT WERE YOUR JOB RESPONSIBILITIES AT THAT TIME?

! As oxplained by AT&T North Carolina witness Nicole Bracy in her Direct
Testimony, AT&T North Carcling manually reviews cashback promotional credit
requests that are related to promotions that allow an end user to request the cashback
offer only once in a given period of time.
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In August 2004, 1 was the resale product manager. My job responsibilities at the
time included processing promotional credit requests submitted by CLPs.

HOW DID YOUR AUGUST 2004 MEETING WITH DPI'S BILLING AGENT

COME ABOUT?

dPi’s billing agent, Mr. Watson, asked me to meet with him and his son Chris.
Mr. Watson said that he had recently left his position with another carrier and was
starting a new business, Lost Key Telecom, Inc., that would work with a number
of CLPs to submit promotional credit requests to AT&T. Mr. Watson said he
wanted to discuss the format he intended to use in submitting these requests in
order to ensure that the proposed format included all of the information AT&T

needed to process the requests.

DID YOU DISCUSS THE PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUEST PROCESS
WITH MR. WATSON DURING YOUR AUGUST 2004 MEETING?

Yes. 1 explained the form that needed to be submitted to seek promotional credit
requests, and Mr. Watson and 1 discussed how best to format the backup
information that would need to be submitted to support the request.

an
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IIl. INFORMING DPI THAT CASHBACK PROMOTIONS WERE NOT
AVAILABLE FOR RESALE

WHAT TYPES OF PROMOTIONS DID YOU DISCUSS WITH MR. WATSON
DURING THE AUGUST 2004 MEETING?

Most of our discussions addressed promotions that did not involve cashback
offers. During the meeting, however, Mr. Watson specifically asked about

cashback promotions such as the ones at issue in this docket.

WHAT DID MR. WATSON ASK ABOUT CASHBACK PROMOTIONS LIKE
THE ONES AT ISSUE IN THIS DOCKET?

Mr. Watson agked if cashback promotions were available for resale.
HOW DID YOU RESPOND TO THAT QUESTION?

I told Mr. Watson that cashback promotions were not available for resale, and 1
agreed to send him an email to that effect when I got back to my office.
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DID YOU SEND DPPI'S BILLING AGENT, MR. WATSON, AN EMAIL
STATING THAT CASHBACK PROMOTIONS WERE NOT AVAILABLE

FOR RESALE?

Yes. Exhibit KAS-1 is a copy of the email | sent Mr. Watson on August 26,
2004, stating that AT&T (then known as BellSouth) would not resell cashback

offers.

AFTER THIS MEETING, DID AT&T BEGIN RECEIVING PROMOTIONAL

REQUESTS FROM DPI'S BILLING AGENT?

Yes. The following month, September 2004, [ began receiving and processing
promotionat credit requests submitted by Lost Key on behalf of various CLPs,
including promotional credit requests that Lost Key submitted on behalf of dPi.
WERE ANY OF DPI'S PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUESTS FOR
CASHBACK PROMOTIONS?

No. None of these promotional credit requests were for any cashback promotions,
including those involved in this docket In fact, I did not receive any promotional
credit requests for cashback promotions from dPi until July 2005.
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WHAT HAPPENED IN JULY 2005?
On July 21, 2005, Mr. Watson submitted a request on behalf of dPi for
promotional credits for a cashback promotion. Exhibit KAS-2 is a copy of an

email string that includes that request.

WAS THE REQUEST REFLECTED IN EXHIBIT KAS-2 RELATED TO A

NORTH CAROLINA PROMOTION?

Ycs. That request was related to a promotion in the State of North Carolina.

HOW DID YOU RESPOND TO THIS REQUEST FOR PROMOTIONAL
CREDITS FOR A CASHBACK PROMOTION?

Consistent with my prior conversation and email, I sent Mr. Watson an email on
August 2, 2005 that the promotion was not availablo for rosale. See Exhibit KAS-
2.

DID MR. WATSON RESPOND TO YOUR EMAIL?

Yes. The next day, Mr. Watson sent me an email stating, among other things, that
“f will let DPI Teleconnect know about this promotion.” See Exhibit KAS-2.
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That was the last time I heard anything on the issue from Mr. Watson or dPi until

January 2007.

IS THIS THE WAY MR. WATSON AND DPI TYPICALLY RESPONDED
WHEN THEY DISAGREED WITH AT&T'S HANDLING OF A

PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUEST?

Not at all. As I mentioned earlier, dPi submitted a number of promotional credit
requests for non-cashback promotions. On several occasions, and for various
reasons, AT&T did not believe that' dPi was entitled to some or alt of the
promotional credits they requested and, therefore, AT&T did not provide the
requested credits to dPi. On several such occasions, dPi quickly informed AT&T
that it did not agree with AT&T’s decision not to provide the credits, Exhibit
KAS-3 is an example of correspondence between AT&T and dPi addressing dPI’s
disagreement with AT&T's decision not to provide varions non-cashback
promotional credits that dPi had requested.

ARE YOU AWARE OF DPI'S SUBMITTING ANY OTHER REQUESTS FOR
PROMOTIONAL CREDITS FOR CASHBACK PROMOTIONS?

No. I continued to receive promotional credit requests from Lost Key through the
Fall of 2005, when Keith Deason (who is no longer employed by the company)

took over the role of processing these resale promotional credit requests. With the
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sole exception of the July 2005 request discussed above, I never received any

request for credits for a cashback promotion from dPi.

WERE YOU INVOLVED IN THE RESALE PROCESS AFTER MR. DEASON
TOOK OVER THE ROLE OF PROCESSING PROMOTIONAL CREDIT

REQUESTS IN THE FALL OF 2005?

Yes. 1 was still the resale product manager, from the Fall of 2005 until he lef the
company in October 2007. ] worked closely with Mr. Deason to monitor and
assist his handling of promotional credit requests and to help resolve any
questions or issues he had. Although Mr. Deason brought various questions and
issues to me, none of them involved any request by dPi for promotional credits for
cashback promotions. Based on my experience and dealings in working with Mr.
Deason, he would have advised me if dPi had disputed AT&T's denial of
promotional credits for cashback promotions.

WHEN DID YOU FIRST BECOME AWARE THAT DPI INTENDED TO
SEEK PAYMENT FOR CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL CREDIT
REQUESTS THAT IT HAD PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED AND THAT
AT&T PREVIOUSLY HAD NOT PAID?

As discussed below, in January 2007, dPi sent AT&T a spreadshect listing

what it purported to be “open disputes.” Some cashback promotional credit
requests were included in these purported disputes. This was the first

10
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indication I had that dPi intended to seek payment for cashback promotional
credit requests that it had previously submitted and that AT&T had not paid.

ARE YOU AWARE OF DPI HAVING DONE ANYTHING PRIOR TO
JANUARY 2007 TO INDICATE THAT IT DISPUTED AT&T NORTH
CAROLINA’S NONPAYMENT OF CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL
CREDIT REQUESTS PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED BY DPI?

No.

IV. TIMING OF THE PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUESTS AT
ISSUE IN THIS DOCKET.

WHAT IS EXHIBIT KAS-4?

Exhibit KAS-4 is a summary that, in part, demonstrates: (1) the time between the
billing periods associated with dPi’s cashback promotional credit requests and the
date dPi submitted these requests to AT&T North C-arolina; and (2) the time
between the billing periods associated with dPi's cashback promotional credit
requests and January 2007, which is the first time AT&T North Carolina became
aware that dPi intended to seck payment for cashback promotional requests that it
bad previously submitted and that AT&T North Carolina had not paid.

PLEASE EXPLAIN WHAT THE VARIOUS COLUMNS IN EXHIBIT KAS-4

DEPICT.

il
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TURNER:

Q.

Ms. Seagle, have you ever testified in front of a

commission proceeding like this before?

A. No, I have not.

Q. ‘Are you nervous?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. It will be fine.

A. Thank you.

Q. Do you have a brief summary of your testimony?

A. - Yes, I do.

Q. Could you please present that summary to the
Commission?-

A. Yes. My testimony today will address two things:

First, it's the discussion I had with dPi's billing agent

about cash back promotions; and second, the timing of the

promotional requests at issue in this proceeding.

" My discussions initially took place with the

billing agent in August of 2004. The meeting was about
non-cash back promotions and at the end of the promotion
the billing agent asked if cash back promotions were

available for resale. I told him no and that I would send

him an e-mail confirming that answer, and I did when I got

back to the office.

I did not hear anything else from dPi regarding --
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or Lost Key at the time regarding cash back promotions
until Jul& of 2005. At that time I received a request for
a cash back promotion, which I emailed back and said this
is not available for resale at this time. Did not hear
anything else from the billing agent or dPi in -- until
January of 2007 when I was on a conference call dealing
with non-cash back promotions and other disputes and they
had included at that time cash back promotions.

The timing of the requests are outlined in my

Exhibit 4. It summarizes dPi's credit requests that are
issue in this docket and it shows that in many cases dPi
waited at least a year to submit the request after
purchasing the service and even more -- in even more cases

dPi waited more than a year to even suggest that it

disputed.

Q. Does that complete your summary?

A. Yes, it does.

Q. Ms. Seagle, I'm going to ask you to slow down just

a little bit --

A. Okay.

c. -- for our court reporter because she's got to get
down everything you say.

A, All righty.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, Ms. Seagle's ready --

NORTH CARQOLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
"22
23

24

available for cross-examination.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right.
Cross-examination, Mr. Malish?

ﬁR. MALISH: Thank you, Ms. Seagle —— or Mr.
Chairman.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. MALISH:

Q. Ms. Seagle, I don't know if you're the right
Iqperson to ask this question, but I'm going to ask it
anyway and you can tell me if you're not.

Do you understand the purpose of the wholesale
"discount that resellers like dPi get to be —-- the purpose

behind that to be to lower the wholesale price below the

retail price that BellSouth charges its retail customers?

A, Would you clarify that, please?

Q. You understand the difference between retail and
wholesale?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Ckay. And you understand that the purpose behind

having the wholesale discount is to lower the wholesale

price below the retail price, correct?

A. To lower the -- yes. Yes, that's correct.
Q. Okay. Did you give any testimony about these
calculations of what the retail price -- I guess what the

wholesale price should be taking the promotions into.

u NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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effect or was that only Mr. Bracy?

A. I gave testimony as to what the resale rate would

be and then if you apply the wholesale discount, what that

rate would be.

Q. Okay. So something like what's up here on the
board?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. I'1ll come back to that in a second.

One thing I do want to clarify with you, I.think I
understand from your testimony that you had conversations
with Steve watson of Lost Key on behalf of dPi. And what
you were saying to them is that BellSouth does not offer
these cash back promotions at resale, correct?

A. Yes. In August of 2004, Steve Watson asked me if

cash back promctions were available for resale and I told

him no, they were not.
Q. Okay. So -- and that it is consist =-- you consist
~-- whenever this came up, you said the same thing, they're

not available; we are not making that offer at wholesale?

A. Yes, that's true. .
Q. Okay. Now, do you know —- have &ou looked at
Ms. Bracy's testimony? Do you know -- does she also

testify about this issue, the wholesale versus the retail

price and how the promotions are supposed to work?
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A. I have read Ms. Bracy's testimony. I'm not

familiar with that part.

0. I know that -- I know that one or both of you did,
and I don't know if it was both because I'd like to visit
with it a little bit, but I -- with one of y'all about it.

And I don't mind if it's you or her, but ——

A, If we can find it in my testimony, I'll be happy
to --

Q. Yeah. If you'll --

A. - tel% you --

Q. -- show it to me. I'm sure you know your

testimony much better than I do.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I want to make sure
everybody's on the same page. Can we get a little
clarification on exactly what Mr. Malish wants to discuss
S0 we can direct him to the right witness?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, I tell you what,
Mr. Malish, why don't you ask her some questions and she
either knows the answer to the questions or she doesn't
know the answers to the questions. And that -- maybe
we'll get —- get -- get the answers that you're looking
for or if she doesn't know, maybe they've got another
witness. But I think -- I think the thing to do right now

is start asking her some questions and let's find out what
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she knows.

Q. I tell you what, let me do this. Let me -- I'll
be happy to do that. If I may use the blackboard, I'm
going to go over some stuff with you, all right?

A. Sure.

Q. I would have left that up there, but I'm not going
to have much space. Let me try to fi;st off start with
the big principle. I believe you agree with me that --
that the main idea is that wholesale will be smaller than
retail, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. That's the -- that's the purpose that we're trying
to accomplish, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And -- so if I've got W, that's going to stand for

wholesale, okay?

A, Okay.

Q. And then R is retail.

A, Okay.

Q. You with me?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And when we apply the -- these cash back
promotions, that's basically a —- at the retail level,
it’s basically the tariff price less a —- less a
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promotional discount, right?
A. That's not my understanding of a cash back
promotion, no.

0. Well, is that not the net effect?

A, No.
Q. Tell you what, let's -- just assume something with
me, if you will, okay. All right. 'Cause this is -- this

is -- this is what they were demonstrating on the board
with the -- with how the cash back promotional is supposed
to work, all right?

A, All right.

Q. The way I got it is that wholesale is basically
equal to 80 percent or .8 times the retail price. We're
going to do some algebra here.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And then they were -- AT&T was trying to
explain how that really should be 80 percent applied first
to the tariff price and then also 80 percent applied to
the promotion.

A. If cash back promotions were available for resale.
Q. Yeah. We assume that. So we're going to say over
here that R, retail, equals tariff minus promotion. Looﬁ
appropriate?

A. Would you please repeat -- retail equals tariff
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minus --

Q. Minus promotion.

A. -~ promotion?

Q. When we're going through ——

A. Yes.

Q. —- this hypothetical, ckay. So that means that
wholesale equals .8 times -- we're going to replace —-

because R is equal to T minus P, we're going to replace
it. So we're going to replace the bottom with T minus P.
Following me so far?

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, could I ask that he
clarify whether he's just asking if she's following the
hypothetical or if she's agreeing that that's the right
way to do it because I think his questions are a little
hard to understand.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, he's just going
to have to ask a question and she's going to have to
answer it. Either she knows the answer or she doesn't
know the answer. So go ahead and ask her a question,

Mr. Malish.

Q. Do you —-- first of all, do you agree with the

algebra here?

A. It would be easier for me if we were using

numbers.
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Q. Well, we'll -- qe‘ll get to some numbers.

A. Okay.

Q. We'll get to some numbers.

A, Tariff minus -- no. That is not necessarily
true —-

Q. Well --

A, —-— no.

Q. -- if we assume that —- that the retail -- well,
this is the process that we went through when we were

trying to decide ——

A. Right.
Q. -- if the promotion applies. Assuming that the
appotion -- promotion applies and it's available for

resale, the retail price is going to be the T minus the P,

tariff minus® promotion.

A. Right.

Q. You're assuming that with me?

A. Right.

Q. Okay. So then we do the algebraic substitution

and we have -- we substitute T minus P for R, right,
because it's the same idea?

A. See, I'm trying to work this out in my mind
because it's the tariff price minus the promotion for

retail and that's true.
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Q. Okay.

A. In -- but when we give -- like if the retail price
is $40 and we give a ~- a resale discount makes it -$32,
then for the promotion --

0. Yes.

"A. -- and in addition, if the promotion is $20, the
.resale -- the resale value of that would be $16.

Q. Right. We'll get to that.

lA. So ~- ékay. It's easier for me when we use monéy.
Q. And we'll get to the money.

A. But your letters look right to me right now.

Q. We'll get to the money, but let's do the —- let's
do the --

A. Okay.

Q. -- let's do the analysis, the logical analysis
first, okay?

A. Okay.

Q. I mean, what was on the board before was, I think,
a retail of a hundred minus a promotion of -- excuse me,
of 120 minus a promotion of a hundred.

A. 100.

Q. That was what was on the board earlier. Remember
that?

A. Yes, I do.
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Q.

A. So that would be --

Q. I'm just ~~ I'm just --

A. -=.20 -- yes. That --

Q. —- substituting variables, okay?

A. Okay. Yes, that's true.

Q. 'Cause it doesn't matter what numbers that we put
in, the -- the logic is the same.

A. Okay.

0. Would you agree with me on that?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And so wﬁat wé get to here is the idea that
what y'all are saying is that -- well, really, when -~ if
we're going to give a —- if we're going to get the

promotion, it needs to be .BT minus .8P, right? We

expand.

First we give 80 percent of the tariff price.

And if we give 80 percent of the tariff price, we only

have to give 80 percent of the promotion.

A.

A.

Q.

right?

Yes.
Right?

Right.

Okay. And what tﬁe s you asked for dellars,

You asked for dollars. And when we were talking

about dollars earlier —-—
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COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: I tell you what,
Mr. Malish, before we get to the dollars, we're going to
take odur iunch break. And when we come back after that
lunch break, we'll talk about your dollars at that point
in time.

| But we're going to take our lunch recess now.

And as I told you earlier, we will reconvene at 2:30 this
afternoon.

MR. MALISH: Okay.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Stand in recess.

[LUNCH RECESS - 12:50 P.M. TO 2:30 P.M.]

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Well, let's
go back on the record. Ms. Seagle, if you'll come on back
up to the witness chair, please. And Mr. Malish, you can
resume your cross—examination of the witness.

MR. MALISH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
0. Ms. Seagle, are you ready to do some more math?
A. If you insist. This is not really my tes£im6ny,
but I;ll be happy to answer your quest -- what I can.
Q. Ms. Seagle, I'm going to give you a copy of this
0'Roark Cross-Examination No. 5 that has the math that Mr.
Turner was doing with Mr. O'Roark before, so that might
help you.

Earlier you said you would like to do this —-
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easier for you to look at this analysis with real numbers,

remembexr?

A. Yes, I remember that I work with numbers better.
Q. All right. Now, when -- when Mr. Turner was doing

this with Mr. O'Roark, they were looking at a tariff price

of 5120 here and $100 here, remember that?

A. . Yes, I do.
Q. Okay. And so that comes out to a situation I
think where this is, what, 96, and that is -- and the

promotion would be, what, 80?

A. Yes.

Q. For a net of 16?

A. Yes.

Q. And so it was -- as I understand it, it's -- it's

BellSouth's contention that this is the way the analysis
ought to work if we're going to give the promotion to the
CLEC.

A. That's -- you'd have to ask my attorney. I don't
know what BellSouth's contention is. I see what you wrote
on the board and it matches what was written on the board
previously.

Q. Okay. So -- so you don't have any opinion about
how this is supposed te.work out or play out?

A. No, I really don't. I don't —- I don't know how
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the numbers go. People smarter than me work.on that.
Q. Okay. And who -- who should we talk to about
that? Would it be Ms. Bracy?

A. I don't know.

Q. But you're definitely not the one?
A. I'm not the one.
Q. All right. That's fine. We'll come back and

we'll visit about this with somebody else then.

A. Okay .

Q. All right. You know, I know it's your first time
and I'm —-

A. It is.

Q. -— sorry to make you do algebra and math on your
first time, but thank you nonetheless. And we'll just --
we'll take this up with somebody else then.
A. Okay.
Q. Ckay. Thank you.
MR. MALISH: I'll pass the witness.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right.
Ms. Edmondscn?

MS. EDMONDSON: Okay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. EDMONDSON:

fo. Ms. Seagle, good afternoon.

A. Good afternoon.
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Q. On page 9 of your testimony I wanted to ask you
about -- if I can get to it myself. Line 9 through 12 you
testified that for various reasons AT&T did not believe
that dPi was entitled to some or all of the promotional
credits requested and then, therefore, AT&T did not
provide the requested credits to dPi?

A. Yes.

Q. I was wondering about AT&T's practice. If a CLEC
makes a request for promotional credits and AT&T
determines that they're entitled to part of them, but not
all of them, do y'all issue them the part to which you
determine they're entitled or do you deny the entire
request?

A. We issue as a bill credit the part that they are
entitled to.

Q. Okay. And in your Exhibit KAS-1, which is an
e-mail from you, I believe, to Steve Watson --

A. Yes.

Q. -- you state that BellSouth is not required to

resell cash back promotional offers?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was BellSouth's policy at that time?
A. - Yes, ma'an.

Q. And do you know exactly when the BellSouth and
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AT&T merger occurred?
A. At the end of 2006.
Q. Okay. And is it correct that there was

subsequently a change in the policy regarding cash back

promotions?

A. Yes. That's my understanding.

Q. And do you know when that went into effect?

A. I don‘t know.

Q. And is it correct that the BellSouth policy was

changed and there was an adoption of AT&T's position to --

to grant the cash back promotions, the wholesale discount,

wholesale discount portion?

A. I was not resale product manager at the timé, so I

don't know the details.

Q. Okay. But is it your understanding there was a

change in policy?

A. Yes. There definitely was a change in policy.
Q. Okay. And you were with BellSouth prior to the
nerger?

A. Priacr to the merger.

Q. Okay.

MS. EDMONDSON: That's all I have. Thank you.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Redirect examination?

MR. TURNER: Very briefly.
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Ms. Seagle, does your direct testimony talk about
how the resale discount should be calculated when cash
back promotions are involved?
A. No, it does not.

MR. TURNER: That's all I have.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Questions
“by the Commission?
(No response.)
All right. The Commission has no questions.

Ms. Seagle, thank you very much. You may stand down from

the witness chair. And you may call another witness, Mr.
Turner.

(Whereupon, the witness was dismissed.)

MR, TURNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. AT&T
North Carolina calls Nicole Bracy.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Ms. Bracy.

NICOLE BRACY: Being first duly sworn,

testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Ms. Bracy, please state your name, your employer

and your business address.

A. My name is Nicole Bracy. I'm employed by AT&T

Operations. And my business address is 675 West Peachtree
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Street. That's Atlanta,.Georgia, 30375.
Q. Did you file or cause to be filed in this

Jproceeding direct testimony dated November 5, 2008,

!
consisting of nine pages?

A. Yes, I did.

"Q. Do you have any revisions that you would like to
make to that prefiled direct testimony?

A. No, I do not.

Q. If I were to ask you the same questions that
“appear in that prefiled direct testimony, would your
answers today be the same as they appear in the testimony?
A. Yes, they will.

Q. And you had one exhibit to that direct testimony

labeled NWB-1?

A. That's correct.

Q. Do you have any revisions to that exhibit?

A. . No, I do not.

Q. Moving now to your rebuttal testimony, did you

file or cause to be filed in this proceeding rebuttal

testimony dated November 19, 2008, and consisting of four

pages?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. Do you have any revisions that you would like to

make to your prefiled rebuttal testimony?
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A. No, I do not.'

Q. And there was no exhibit to your rebuttal,
correct?

"A. That's correct.

Q. If I were to ask you the same questions that

appear in your prefiled rebuttal testimony, would your
|answers be the same as they're set forth in that
testimony?
A. They will.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask
that Ms. Bracy's prefiled direct testimony and single
exhibit along with the prefiled rebuttal testimony be

inserted into the record, along with its exhibit, as if

given live from the stand.

MR. MALISH: No objection.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Basis of
your objection?

MR. MALISH: Oh, I said no objection.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: No objection. Okay.

Didn't hear the "no."” Sorry about that. Well, then, that
request is allowed and the witness’ prefiled direct and
rebuttal testimonies are copied into the record word for
word as if given orally from the stand. The witness' one

exhibit is identified as marked when filed.
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(Whereupon, the prefiled direct and rebuttal
testimony of Nicole Bracy will be reproduced in
the record at this point the same as if the
questions had been orally asked and the answers

orally given from the witness stand.)

{Whereupon, Exhibit NWB-1 was marked for

identification.)
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AT&T NORTH CAROLINA NOV 05 2008
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF NICOLE W.BRACY g Gigksofics

BEFORE THE NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. P-55, Sub 1744
NOVEMBER 5, 2008

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, YOUR POSITION, AND YOUR BUSINESS
ADDRESS.

My name i3 Nicole Bracy. 1 am employed by AT&T Operations, Inc. as a Sr.
Product Marketing Manager. My business address is 675 West Peachtree Street,

Atlanta, Georgia 30375.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE.

I received a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Auburn University in

1989, and [ received a Masters in Business Administration from Nova.

Scutheastern University in 1994. 1 joined BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
(now doing business as ATRT Southeast and AT&T North Carolina) in 2000 as a
Contract Negotiator in Interconnection Services. In 2005, I became a Subject
Matter Expert for Contract Negotiations. In 2008, [ joined the Business
Marketing Organization as a Senior Product Marketing Manager.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?



The purpose of my testimony is to present facts regarding: (1) the amount of
cashback promotional credits dPi has requested from AT&T North Carolina for
billing periods prior to July 2007 (when, as AT&T North Carolina witness Scot
Ferguson discusses in bis testimony, AT&T North Carolina operated under its
pre-merger policy on cashback promotions); (2) the amount of cashback
promotional credits dPi has requested from AT&T North Carolina for billing
periods from July 2007 to date; and (3) the amount of cashback promotional
credits requested from AT&T North Carolina to which dPi is entitled for billing
periods from July 2007 to date.

L FACTS REGARDING THE AMOUNT OF CASHBACK
PROMOTIONAL CREDITS DPI HAS REQUESTED FROM AT&T
NORTH CARQLINA FOR BILLING PERIODS PRIOR TO JULY
2007

IN YOUR CURRENT POSITION, DO YOU HAVE ACCESS TO AT&T
BUSINESS RECORDS THAT REFLECT THE AMOUNT OF CASHBACK
PROMOTIONAL CREDITS DPI HAS REQUESTED FROM AT&T
NORTH CAROLINA FOR BILLING PERIODS PRIOR TO JULY 2007?

Yes, 1do.
HAVE YOU REVIEWED THOSE RECORDS TO DETERMINE IF THEY

ARE CONSISTENT WITH DPI's CONTENTION THAT DPl HAS
SOUGHT $156,500 IN CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL CREDITS FROM

S,
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AT&T NORTH CAROLINA FOR BILLING PERIODS PRIOR TO JULY
2007?

Yes, I have.

DO AT&T'S RECORDS SUPPORT THE $156,500 AMOUNT CLAIMED
BY DPI?

No, they do not.

COULD YOU EXPLAIN THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE
AMOUNTS REFLECTED IN AT&T'S RECORDS AND THE AMOUNTS
CLAIMED BY DPI?

Yes. Exhibit NWB-1 {0 my testimony reflects those differences. Among
other things, my Exhibit shows whether or not AT&T has any record of the
promotional credit requests that dPi is seeking in this casc.

In its discovery responses, dPi identified the promotional credit amounts it is
secking in this case, See Exhibits A and D to DPI’s Responses 10 AT&T
North Carolina’s First Set of Interrogatories and Request for Production of
Documents (“dPi Exhibits A and D”). The first column of Exhibit NWB-1 is
the “Invoice#" information (or promotional credit request description) for the
North Carolina accounts identified in dPi Exhibits A and D.
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The second column of Exhibit NWB-1 is the billing period for which the
credit was requested. This information is also taken directly from dPi
Exhibits A and D.

The third column of Exhibit NWB-1 is explained by AT&T witness Kristy
Seagle in her Direct Testimony.

The fourth column of Exhibit NWB-1 is based on my review of AT&T’s
records of cashback promotional credit requests submitted by competing
local providers (“CLPs”) like dPi. A “no” in that column indicates that
AT&T North Carolina has no records indicating that dPi submitted the
promotional credit request identified in the first column of Exhibit NWB-1.

The fifth and sixth columns of Exhibit NWB-1 are explained by AT&T
witness Kristy Seagle in her Direct Testimony.

The seventh column of Exhibit NWB-1 is the amount of cashback
promotional credit dPi claims to have sought in the request identified in the
first column of the Exhibit That information is taken directly from dPi
Exhibits A and D. The eighth column is the sum total, by promotion type, of

the amounts set forth in the seventh column.,

ACCORDING TO AT&T'S RECORDS, WHAT AMOUNT OF
CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL CREDITS HAS DPI REQUESTED FROM

\SY
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AT&T NORTH CAROLINA FOR BILLING PERIODS PRIOR TO JULY
20077

AT&T’s records indicate that for billing periods prior to July 2007, dPi
submitted $154,550.00 in cashback promotions in North Carolina. .

HOW DID YOU CALCULATE THIS $154,550.00 AMOUNT?

[ added the “amount submitted” figures in the seventh column of Exhibit
NWB-1 for each of the requests that AT&T has a record of having been
submitted (as indicated in the fourth column of Exhibit NWB-1).

PLEASE REMIND US WHAT THE $154,550.00 AMOUNT
REPRESENTS?

That amount represents the total amount of cashback promotional credit
requests, according to AT&T's records, that dPi has submitted for billing
periods prior to July 2007.

DOES THAT $154,550.00 AMOUNT REFLECT THE RESALE
DISCOUNT PERCENTAGE ADOPTED BY THIS COMMISSION?

No, it does not.

PLEASE EXPLAIN WHAT YOU MEAN BY THAT.
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Assume that the cashback amount of a promotional offering was $50. dPi
has requested a credit in the full amount of $50. If dPi were entitled to any
cashback promotional credits for billing periods prior to July 2007 (and it is
not), it would not be entitled to the full amount of the cashback component of
the offering ($50 in this example). At best, and assuming AT&T adopted its
current practice to review and validate czedit requests that were submitted
years ago, dPi would only be entitled to the amount of the cashback
component of the offering after that amount has been reduced by the resale

discount percentage adopted by this Commission.

DID AT&T PROVIDE DP! ANY OF THE CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL
CREDITS IT REQUESTED FOR BILLING PERIODS PRIOR TO JULY
20077 B

No.

WHEN DID YOU FIRST BECOME AWARE THAT DPI INTENDED TO
SEEK PAYMENT FOR CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL CREDIT
REQUESTS THAT IT HAD FREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED AND THAT

AT&T PREVIOUSLY HAD NOT PAID?

In early 2008.
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II.  FACTS REGARDING THE AMOUNT OF CASHBACK
PROMOTIONAL CREDITS DPI HAS REQUESTED FROM
AT&T FOR BILLING PERIODS FROM JULY 2007 TO DATE.

WHAT AMOUNT OF CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL CREDITS HAS DPI1
REQUESTED FROM AT&T NORTH CAROLINA FOR . BILLING
PERIODS FROM JULY 2007 TO DATE?

For billing periods from July 2007 through October 2008, dPi has requested
$202,676.17 in cashback promotional credits from AT&T North Carolina.

OI. FACTS REGARDING THE AMOUNT OF CASHBACK
PROMOTIONAL CREDITS FROM AT&T NORTH
CAROLINA TO WHICH DPl IS ENTITLED FOR BILLING
PERIODS FROM JULY 2007 TO DATE.

IS DPi ENTITLED TO ALL OF THE $202,676.17 IN CASH BACK

PROMOTIONAL CREDITS IT HAS REQUESTED FROM AT&T NORTH

CAROLINA SINCE JULY 2007?

No. At this time, AT&T has reviewed $175,454.27 of these cashback
promotional credit requests' to determine if they should be granted. This
review revealed that dPi was eatitled to $117,803.79 of these requested
credits and that dPi is not entitled to $57,650.48 of these requested credits.

1
Tevicw
that dPi

As

dPi has submi the billing period from July 2007 to October 2008.

of the date of the filing of this testimony, AT&T North Carolina has not yet
cwed the ranmtt::ln?onTQZI .90 of the $202,676.17 in cashback promotional credits
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Thus, dPi is entitled to approximately 67% of the $175,454.27 of cashback
promotional credit requests, and dPi is not entitled to approximately 33% of
these cashback promotional requests.

PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW AT&T NORTH CAROLINA REVIEWS THE
CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL REQUESTS SUBMITTED BY
RESELLERS LIKE DPI FOR BILLING PERIODS AFTER JULY 2007.

For most of these requests, AT&T’s mechanized systems extract information
(including service order number) from the cashback promotional credit
request submitted by the reseiler (or the reseller’s billing agent). The systems
then compare the contents of the service order submitted by the reseller to
requirements of the promotion to determine if the service order meets all of

the promotional requirements.

For some cashback promotions, an end user may request the cashback offer
only once in a given period of time. When a CLP like dPi resells these types
of promotions, a manual (as opposed to mechanized) review is conducted to
determine if the end user has satisfied the same criteria an AT&T North
Carolina end user would be required to satisfy.

WHY WERE $57,650.48 OF THE REQUESTS THAT HAVE BEEN
REVIEWED TO DATE DENIED?

\S%
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These cashback promotional credit requests were denied either because dPi
requested the full (as opposed to the discounted) amount of the cashback
component of the promotion or because the dPi end user did not meet at least
one of the requirements that 2o AT&T North Carolina end user would have to
meet to qualify for the promotion,

HOW HAS DPI RESPONDED TO AT&T NORTH CAROLINA’S DENIAL
OF THESE $57,650.48 IN REQUESTS?

dPi’s billing agent has requested audit information for some (but not all) of
the cashback promotional requests that dPi has submitted since July 2007 and
that AT&T North Carolina has not paid. To my knowledge, however, dPi

" has done nothing to suggest that it disagrees with AT&T North Carolina’s

decision not to pay any of those requests.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

Yes.

'S5
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AT&T NORTH CAROLINA
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF NICOLE W. BRACY

NOV 2 0 2008

BEFORE THE NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. P-55, Sub 1744
NOVEMBER 19, 2008

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, YOUR POSITION, AND YOUR BUSINESS

ADDRESS.

My name is Nicole Bracy. 1am employed by AT&T Operations, Inc. as a Senior
Product Marketing Manager. My business address is 675 West Peachtree Street,
Atlanta, Georgia 30375,

ARE YOU THE SAME NICOLE BRACY WHO FILED DIRECT TESTIMONY
IN THIS DOCKET?

Yes.
WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

The primary purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to respond to dPi witness Brian
Bolinger’s unsubstantiated assertion that dPi is entitled to 100% of the
promotional credit requests it seeks in this proceeding. As explained below, even
if the Commission agreed with dPi (which it should not as cxplained by AT&T

erk's Office
§.C. Uik Commisslon
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witness Scot Ferguson), AT&T is unable to validate the oldest promotional credit

requests submitted by dPi.

IN HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY (PAGE 5, LINES 7-8), DPI WITNESS
BRIAN BOLINGER STATES THAT “IN NORTH CAROLINA, DPI
QUALIFIED AND APPLIED FOR, BUT WAS NOT PAID,
APPROXIMATELY $156,500 IN CASH BACK PROMOTIONS
[SUBMITTED PRIOR TO JULY 2007]." DO YOU AGREE WITH MR.
BOLINGER'S STATEMENT?

No. As an initial matter, AT&T has no record of a $§1,950 promotional credit
request that was purportedly submitted in April 2006 and is associated with
an April 2005 bill period (see Exhibit NWB-1 to my direct testimony).
Although AT&T has records for the remaining $154,550 in promotional
credit requests that dPi seeks in this case, a substantial portion of such
records ($33,900) are essentially worthless because AT&T would be unable
to validate such requests if ondered to do so0 by this Commission.

CAN YOU DESCRIBE THE PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUESTS
THAT AT&T WOULD BE UNABLE TO VALIDATE?

Yes. If ordered to do so, AT&T could not use its current process for
validating promotional credit requests to validate. the oldest promotional
credit requests involved in this matter (i.e. the promotional credit requests
that are associated with billing periods from November 2003 through
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November 2005).! The oldest promotional credit requests involved in this
matter were submitted on a billing adjustrocnt request (*BAR™) form.
Validating a promotional credit submitted on a BAR form was a manual
undertaking that would have required, among other things, a review of certain
service order information to ensure that the dPi customer qualified for the
promotion in question. (see the direct testimony of AT&T witness Kristy
Seagle). Of course, no such validation took place because at the time when
these BAR forms were submitted, AT&T did not offer cashback promotions
for resale.

Q. WHY CAN'T AT&T MANUALLY VALIDATE THE OLDEST

PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUESTS SUBMITTED BY DPI TODAY?

A. In addition to being extremely time-consuming, the service order information

necessary to manually validate the vast majority of these extremely old
promotional credit requests is not available. Specifically, AT&T no longer
has service order information for the¢ North Carolina promotional credit
requests that are associated with billing periods that pre-date April 2005.
This means that of the $39,900 in promotional credits requests that were
submitted using a BAR form (and cannot be validated using AT&T's current
validation process), AT&T would be able to manuatly validate only $6,000 of

' Specifically, AT&T cannot use its current cashback promotional credit validation
process to validate any promotional credit request that is associated with a monthly
billing period that pre-date January 2006 (see Exhibit NWB-1 to my direct testimony,
column 2 - “Biling Period For Which the Credit was Requested'”). These old
promotional credit requests total $39,900. All these old promotional credit requests were
submitted on BAR forms.
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such credits requests (this is the sum total of the promotional credit requests
that are associated with billing periods from April 2005 through November
2005). From a practical perspective, this means that even if the Commission
agreed with dPi (and for the reasons set forth by AT&T witness Scot
Ferguson the Commission should not), AT&T would be unable to manually
validate $33,900 of the promotional credit requests dPi is seeking in this
matter. Stated differently, this means that using the current process for
validating promotions, AT&T could validate only $114,650 of the
promotional credit requests dPi seeks in this case.” Of course, and as I noted
in my direct testimony, even under today’s current process, only about 67%
of dPi’s cashback promotional credit requests are validated. As such, it is
reasonable to assume that dPi would not be eligible to receive all of the

promotional credits it seeks in this case.

DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

Yes.

This amount is derived by taking the amount dPi is seeking in this case
($156,500) and subtracting: (i) the promotional credit requests submitted via BAR form

(539,900); and (ji) the promotional credit request that AT&T has no record of ($1,950).

o3
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BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Ms. Bracy, have you ever testified at a Commission

hearing before?

A, No, I have not.

Q. Have you prepared a brief summary of your
testimony?

A. Yes, I have.

Q. Would you please present it?

A. Yes. My testimony adqiesses the amounts in

dispute in this docket. First, I explain that while dPi
claims it submitted $156,500 in cash back promotional
credit requests, AT&T's records reflect that dPi only
submitted $154,550 in cash back credit requests.

Second, I explain that dPi requested credit for
full -- for the full face value of the cash back component
of the promotional offerings instead of requesting credit
for the face value of the cash back component less the
resale discount established by this Commission.

Third, I explain that even after AT&T began making
the cash back component of the promotional offerings

available for resale in mid-2007, AT&T has rejected nearly
one-third of dPi's cash back promotional credit requests

because dPi's end users did not satisfy the qialifications

of the promotion.

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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Finally, I explain that because of the age of
these claims, AT&T is unable to validate the oldest
promotional credit requests submitted by dPi.
| MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, Ms. Bracy is
available for cross-examination.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right.

Cross-examination, Mr. Malish?

MR. MALISH: Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. MALISH:

Q. Ms. Bracy, how are you?
A. I'm good. How ére you?
Q. Good. And I'll try not to be mean to you, okay,

'cause I know it's your first time doing this.
First of all, looking up at the board, do you
remember -- you've been here the whole time and you saw

the -- and listened to the testimecny of Ms. Seagle,

correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And also of Mr. O'Roark beforehand, right?

A. Correct. |

Q. And you heard the openings and all of that, right?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And you heard me visit with Ms. Seagle

about the purpose behind the wholesale discount, right?
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A. Right.
Q. And the -- and she agreed with me that the purpose

of that is to bring the wholesale rate below the retail

rate?
A. I don't know that I understocod her to say...
ﬂQ. Do you understand that that's the purpose of

having a wholesale rate is that it will be less than the

retail rate?

A. Well, I don't address the purpose of -- but
restate your question.

Q. Well, do you understand the purpose of having the
wholesale rate, the réte for resellers, is to bring that

wholesale rate below, in other words less, than the retail

rate?
A. I think in most cases.
0. Okay. And would you agree, as Ms. Seagle said,

that prior to 2007, prior to June of 2007, BellSouth did
not offer the same promotional cash back offers to dPi and
CLECs like dPi that BellSouth made to retail customers?

A. T recall her saying that BellSouth's position was

that cash back offerings were not available --

Q. Right.
hA. —- for resale.
Q. Besides her saying that, do you alsoc agree that
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that's what --

A. That's my understanding.
Q. All right. Okay. And you saw me start to go
through the math here with -- or the -- or the logic?

MR. MALISH: If I may approach?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Sure.
Q. You saw me start to go through the analysis here
of how the promotion is in theory supposed to work if we
first assume that CLECs like dPi are supposed to get the
benefit of the promotion?
A. I saw that, ves.
Q. All right. And would you agree with me generally
that if you first assume that dPi is supposed to get the
benefit of that promotion that we -- we're looking at a

situation where the retail price is the tariff minus the

promotion?
A. Say that again.
Q. Well, let's start -- let's go back to this.

Wholesale, that's the price that resellers pay, right?
And that's approximately a 20 percent d;scount from
retail, coirect?

A, Well, I'm -- I'm having trouble because my
testimony does not address that.

Q. Your testimony addresses how the promotion should

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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be calculated, whether it should be all of the hundred

dollars or a fraction of it, rigqht?

A. No.
Q. No.
A. My testimony only addresses the credit requests

that dPi submitted and that they do not reflect the resale

discount, not how.

Q. So you don't have an opinion on how -- if dPi is

entitled to a promotion, what the amount is; is that

correct?
A. Restate that again.
Q. You don't have an opinion or you're not offering

any testimony about how the promotion credit should be
awarded to dPi if we assume that dPi is entitled to it; is
that correct?

A. Not how it was calculated, no.

Q. Okay. So this business that Mr. -- that Mr.
Turner went through with Mr. O'Roark where they did the
calculations, right, you have -~ you have nothing to say
on that one way or the other? You have no idea whether
that's correct or incorrect; is that true?

A. Not the calculation. I don't get into the

calculation. Like I said, I -~ my testimony addressed

that they requested the full face value without deducting
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the discount.

Q. And you -~ but you don't have an opinion as to
whether that was correct or incorrect; 'is that true?

A. Well, it's our -- our -- our position that at best
that's what they are entitled to.

0. All right. So do ybu understand where that
position comes from?

A. I've heard the discussion during the hearing, yes,
but as far as getting into the details and --

Q. Is there somebody -- so basically are you telling

us that you're just requrgitating what you were told the
way that this is supposed to work, but you don't have any
independent appreciation or understanding of how it's
supposed to work and I should ask those kinds of questions
to somebody elsé?
IA. I believe that is —-

MR. TURNER: I cobject to the characterization.

1 don't think that's at all what the witness said.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, it could have
beeﬁ asked a little bit better maybe, Mr. Turner, but I'm
going to let the witness answer the question if she has an
answer for it.
A. I mean, I think that gets into some of the legal

issues, but I do -- like I said, I understand that that's
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AT&T's position, that at best that dPi is entitled to the
face value less the discount. -
Q. But you don't necessarily know why that might be,
why that happens to be? 1Is that something I should ask
Mr. Ferguson instead?
A, I don't know. Either -- maybe our legal counsel.
Q. Okay. Let me double check my notes then if you
can't offer on this subject.

And Ms. Bracy, I would like to direct your
attention briefly to your rebuttal testimony.
A. Okay.
Q. Specifically page 3. And you have a footnote
there at the bottom of page 3 and I would like to visit
with you about. And I'm not going to read it to you, I'm
just ~- generally you say that the submissions that dPi

made to try to get the benefit of these credits were made

on bar forms; is that correct?

A. Yes, that's correct.
Q. And I just want to make sure that isn't that the
-- wasn't that the procedure at the time? Is that -- when

you want to make a request, it's supposed to be on a bar
form, right?
A. That was the procedure at the time.

Q. Okay. So there's nothing wrong with them using
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that procedure? That's the -- that's the procedure that
BellSouth has created for doing this, correct?
A. They submit it on bar forms, yes.
Q. Okay.

MR. MALISH: Mr. Chairman, I think I don't have
any more questions for this witness because my

understanding is that she's not prepared or offering any

testimony on how this -- on héw they get to their position
on what the —- on how the promotion should be calculated
for éPi if, in fact, dPi is entitled to it. And it may be
that Mr. Ferguson can talk about that, the next witness
up.

I would like to be able to recall Ms. Bracy if,
in fact, he cannot do that. Is -- is that something that
we can arrange here?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Absolutely we can
arrange it.

MR. MALISH: All right. In that case, I will —-
I will pass the witness.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Ms.
Edmondson, you have any guestions of the witness?

MS. EDMONDSON: Yes, please.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. EDMONDSON:

"Q. Good afternoon, Ms. Bracy.
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A. Good afternoon.

Q. On page 9 of your direct testimony -- let me turn
to it myself -- you mention that dPi's billing agent has
requested audit information. Has that been provided by
AT&T to dPi's billing agent?

A. Yes. We -~ we -- we've provided some and we've

started providing detailed information this year.

"Q. What's the time frame? How long does it take
y'all to respond to those requests?

A. Well, now it takes us less than a month.

Q. Okay. In your rebuttal you discus how you ~- how
-- about validating promotional credit requests. 1Is it
true you cannot validate promotiocnal credit requests

associated with billing periods that predate April 2005?

A.  Yes, that's correct.

Q. And why is that?

A. Because the service order information is no longer
available.

Q. And where is it?

A. We don't have it on the systems anymore.

Q. Is it destroyed or been deleted?

A. One or the other, yes.

Q. What is the retention policy for AT&T as far as

records, electronic or hard copies?
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A. I don't know that, ma'am.
Q. Were these electronic or paper requests?
A. From what I understand, these were the paper

requests that came in on the bar forms.

Q. Do you know how long you retain them?

A. No, I don't. Because we don't -- we don't use
those bar paper forms. We have electronic mechanized
systems now.

Q. Okay. When did -- okay. So you -- and so you
were requested -- dPi asked for them in 2008 for 2005
promotion credits?

A. From what I understand in -- in 2007 or 2008.

Q. So that maybe you had records going back about
three years?

A. Yes. Maybe a l%ttle more than three years. Maybe
four years.

Q. So if you can’'t validate it, then it's your policy

that it -- it should be denied?

A. Yes.
Q. Are you aware of anything in the interconnection
agreement that requires you -- that deals with how long

records should be retained?
A. I'm not aware of anything.

0. All right.
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MS. EDMONDSON: That's all I have.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Redirect examination?
MR. TURNER: Very briefly.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Ms. Bracy, I'm concerned that there may be a

little confusion there and I would like us to try to clear

it up.
A. Okay.
Q. The records that you would need to man -- to

validate these service orders, is the bar form, the paper
bar form the record that you would need?
A. No. It's the service order information.
Q. And the service order information that you would
need, in what form is it generally kept?
A. Electronicaily.
Q. So having the bar forms is not thé issue, it's
having the electronic data that show the service order
information that’s the issue. Do I understand it right?
A. That's correct.

MR. TURNER: That's all I have.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Questions
by the Commission?

(No response.)

Thank you very much, Ms. Bracy. You may stand
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down from the witness chair.

MR. MALISH: I actually have some recross on
some of the things that -- is that permissive —-
permissible?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: On --
| MR. MALISH: On this issue of the bar forms and

the —-

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Is it based on

Ms. Edmondson's gquestions?
MR. MALISH: It —- it flows from them.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. I'll permit
it. Go ahead.

RECROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. MALISH:

Q. Ms. Bracy, how long have you been in the section

that handles the processing of these credit -- of these

credit requests?

A. I started in January of '08.

Q. Of '08. So you were not there back in *'07 and
before when these would have been submitted —-

A. That's correct.

Q. —— the first go-round?

Do you know what information is contained on the

bar form?

A. In general, yes.
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Q. And I'm talking about back in '07 before you got
there.

A. In general, not in detail, no.

Q. My understanding is that the bar form is basically

we have a claim and then dPi has to go through and itemize
that by telephone number, laying out in significant detail
what it is for that telephone number that allows them to
say that we want a credit based on service provided to
this telephone numbér. Is that your understanding of how
it works or how it did work?

A, Yes.

Q. All right. And -- yeah. Does -- does BellSouth
or AT&T retain the billing records as opposed to the
service order records that go back and cover the time in

question from 2003 to 20057

A, I don't know.

0. Okay. You didn't look for those, did you?

A. Billing records, no.

Q. All right. And your testimony is from -- is from

2008, correct?

A. That's right.

0. And if dPi provided some materials since then,
billing records and stuff like that, you have not reviewed

those? If they provided those in discovery, you haven't
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reviewed those, have you?

A. No, I haven't reviewed them.

0. Okay. So as of 2008 is when you're saying you did
not have the stuff going that far back for you to
double-check and make sure that what they asked for was

correct or incorrect; is that true?

A, Say that again, I'm sorry.
“Q. I'll ask a different question. You don't have the
—- I guess — I guess y'all don’'t have the information to

say that billing adjustment requests made by dPi were
linvalid either, do you?
A. For the time periods that I state in the -- in my

testimony, we don't have the service order information to

-- to validate --

Q. All right.
A. -- whether they are eligible.
Q. So you have no way of saying whether they're valid

or invalid, one way or the other?
A. Not unless we have the service order.
Q. All right. Okay. Do you know what is on the

billing records that are provided by AT&T to dPi, which is

used by dPi or by its agent to create the request for
credit?

A. No. I —— I haven't seen that.
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Q. Okay. So you don't know what the information is
that they are -- you did not look at the billing
information from AT&T which was used by dPi to create the
request for credit? .
A, No.
Q. Okay.
MR. MALISH: 1I1'l1l pass the witness.
COMMISSTIONER CULPEPPEﬁ: Okay; Ms. Edmondson,
do you have any questions'based on that cross-examination?
MS. EDMONDSON: No, thank you.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Any redirect based on
that cross—-examination?
MR. TURNER: Verily briefly.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER:_ Go right ahead.

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Are you familiar with the line connection waiver

charge docket?
A. Briefly.
0. Did dPi in that docket submit requests for line

connection waiver charges and get them denied by ATET?

A. Yes.

Q. Did the Commission find that those requests were
invalid?

A. Yes, from my understanding.
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Q. And as I understand it, you don't have the
information that you need to validate whether or not -it's
entitled to these cash back promotion requests for the
time period you testified about, right?

A. Correct.

MR. TURNER: That's all I have.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. That now’
appears it does conclude your testimony, Ms. Bracy, and
you may stand down.

All right. Call another witness.

MR. TURNER: AT&T calls Scot Ferguson.

SCOT FERGUSON; Being first duly sworn,

testified as follows:

HDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Mr. Ferguson, would you state your name, your
employer and your business address for the record, please?
kA. Yes. My name is Scot Ferguson. I work for AT&T
'0perati$ns, Incorporated. My office address is 675 West
Peachtree Street, Atlanta, Georgia, 30375.

Q. And did you file or cause to be filed in this
proceeding direct testimony dated November the 5th, 2008,

and consisting of 25 pages?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Do you have any revisions that you would like to
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make to your prefiled direct testimony?

A, No.

Q. If I were to ask you the same guestions that
appear in the prefiled direct testimony, would your

answers today be the same as they appear in the prefiled

testimony?
A. Yes.
Q. And you had two exhibits to your direct testimony

labeled PLF-1 and PLF-2?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you need to make any revisions to either of
those exhibits?

.

Q. Moving to your rebuttal testimony, did you file or

cause to be filed in this proceeding rebuttal testimony

dated November the 19th, 2008, and consisting of 8 pages?

A. Yes.
Q. Do you have any revisions that you would like to

make to your prefiled rebuttal testimony?

A. No.
HQ. And if I were to ask yocu the same questions that
appear in your prefiled rebuttal testimony, would your

answers be the same as they appear in the testimony?

A. Yes.
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1 Q. You had one exhibit to your rebuttal testimony
2 labeled Rebuttal Exhibit PLF-12
3 A, Yes.
4 Q. Do you have any revisions to that exhibit?
5 A. No.
6 . MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask
7 that Mr. Ferguson's prefiled direct and prefiled rebuttal
8 testimon&, along with their associated exhibits, be
9 inserted into the record of these proceedings as if given
10 wlive from the stand.
11 COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. The
12 witness' prefiled direct and rebuttal testimonies are
13 admitted into evidence as if given word for word orally
14 from the stand. The witness' direct exhibits and rebuttal
15 exhibits are identified as marked when filed.
16 (Whereupon, the prefiled direct and rebuttal
17 testimony of Scot Ferguson will be reproduced in
i8 h the record at this point the same as if the
19 questions had been orally asked and the answers
20 orally given from the witness stand.)
21
22 {Whereupon, Exhibits PLF-1 and PLF-2 and
23 Rebuttal Exhibit PLF-1 were marked for
24 identification.)
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AT&T NORTH CAROLINA NG UK Cmeaiasion
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF P.L. (SCOT) FERGUSON
BEFORE THE NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. P-55, SUB 1744 '
NOVEMBER 5, 2008

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, YOUR POSITION WITH AT&T
OPERATIONS, INC. (“AT&T"), AND YOUR BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is Scot Ferguson. I am an Associate Director in AT&T Operations’
Wholesale organization. As such, 1 am responsible for certain issues related to
wholesale policy, primarily related to the general terms and conditions of
interconnection agreements throughout AT&T’s operating regions, including
North Carolina. My business address is 675 West Peachtree Street, Atlanta,
Georgia 30375.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE.

I graduated from the University of Georgia in 1973, with a Bachelor of
Journalism degree. My career spans almost 35 years with Southem Beil,
BellSouth Corporation, BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., and AT&T. In
addition to my current assignment, I have held positions in sales and marketing,
customer system design, product management, training, public relations,
wholesale customer and regulatory support, and wholesale contract negotiations,
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BRIEFLY SUMMARIZE WHAT IS AT ISSUE IN THIS COMPLAINT
PROCEEDING.

The issue is whether dPi Teleconnect, L.L.C. (“dPi™) is entitled to retroactive
credits for cashback promotional offerings dating from November 2003 through
July 2007. AT&T North Carolina (*AT&T™) believes dPi is not entitled to these
credits because: (1) AT&T’s decision not to offer the cashback portion of the
promotions at issue for resale is reasonable and nondiscriminatory; (2) AT&T's
decision not to offer the cashback portion of the promotions at issue for resale did
not (and does not) harm competition in North Carolina; (3) dPi's request is
discriminatory and, if granted, would disadvantage dPi’s competitors; and (4)
dPi’s request is not timely and is not in compliance with the terms of the
Interconnection Agreement (“1CA” or “Agreement’™) between the parties.

PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW YOUR TESTIMONY IS ORGANIZED.

My testimony explains AT&T’s position with respect to cashback promotions and
discusses specific policy reasons why the North Carolina Utilities Commission
(“Commission”) should deny dPi’s Complaint. 1 begin my festimony with a
general overview of AT&T’s resale obligations pursuamt to the federal
Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the “Act”) and how AT&T and dPi have
incorporated such obligations into their Agreement. Next I discuss the details of
the promotions at issues in this complaint Then 1 discuss AT&T s general
position on the resale of the cashback portion of its promotions prior to July 2007
and after July 2007. Next, 1 discuss why AT&T’s decision not to resell the
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cashback promotions at issue in this docket is reasonable and nondiscriminatory.
Finally, I explain that dPi’s complaint is untimely and does not comply with the

terms of the parties’ Agreement.

L AT&T’S RESALE OBLIGATIONS

COULD YOU BRIEFLY EXPLAIN THE SOURCE OF AT&T'S RESALE
OBLIGATIONS?

Yes. 1 am not a lawyer, and our attomeys can address the specific details of
AT&T s resale obligations in post-hearing briefs and, if necessary, during oral
argument. In order to put the remainder of my testimony in perspective, however,
I will provide & high-level overview of AT&T's resale obligations, subject to

further explanation by our attomeys.

In general, the Act requires AT&T, subject to certain conditions and limitations,
to offer for resale at wholesale rates any telecommunications service it provides at
retail to subscribers who are not telecommunications carriers. See generally, 47
U.S.C. §§251(b)(1); 251(c)(4).

The FCC issued an order and adopted rules implementing these provisions,’' and
this Commission has issued an order establishing resale wholesale discount rates
that apply when AT&T is obligated to offer services for resale in North Carolina.?

In the Matter of Implemeniation of the Local Competition Provisions in the

Telecommunications Act of 1996, CC Docket No. 96-98, First Report and Order, 11 FCC
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Q. AS A PRACTICAL MATTER, WHAT DOES ALL OF THAT MEAN?

A, That means that when dPi makes an appropriate request to rescil

telecommunications services that AT&T sells to its own end users and that are
available for resale, AT&T must sell those teleccommunications services to dPi at
discounted wholesale prices so that dPi, in tum, can resell the services to dPi’s

Customers.

For example, assume that AT&T’s tariffed installation charge for a particular
telecommunications service that is available for resale is $40 and that AT&T’s
tariffed monthly rate for the service is $20. Assume further that the resale
discount is 20%.} If dPi purchases the same service to resell to one if its own
qualifying end users, AT&T would bill dPi §$32 for the installation charge (the
$40 tariffed rate less the 20% resale discount) and $16 for the monthly rate (the
$20 tariffed rate less the 20% resale discount).

}10"71 15499, 9Y 863-984 {“Local Competition Order”). See also, 47 C.E.R, §§ 51.601-51-

2 In the Matter of Petition of AT&T Communications of the Southern States, Inc. for
Arbitration of an Intercomnection Agreement with BellSouwth Telecommunications, inc.,
Dockg No. P-140, Sub 50, Recommended Arbitration Order, dated December 23, 1996,
atp. 43.

3 These rates arc hypothetical. The actual resale discount rate adopted by this
Commission is 21.5 % for residential services and 17.6 % for business service. In the
Matter of Petition of AT&T Communications of the Southern States, Inc. for Arbitration
of an Interconnection Agreement with BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., Docket No.
P-140, Sub 50, Recommended Arbitration Order, dated December 23, 1996, at p. 43. |
am using these hypothetical rates in this instance for illustrative purposes.
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[I. THE PARTIES’ INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENTS

HOW DO AT&T AND DPI WORK THESE RESALE OBLIGATIONS INTO
THEIR BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP?

Like other obligations that arise under Section 251 of the Act, these resale
obligations are addressed in interconnection agreements into which the parties
entered pursuant to Section 252 of the Act.

DID THE PARTIES ENTER INTO ONE OR MORE AGREEMENTS THAT
WERE IN EFFECT DURING THE NOVEMBER 2003 - JUNE 2007 TIME
PERIOD AT ISSUE IN THIS DOCKET?

Yes. In fact, because the time period covers almost four years, there were two
different agreements in effect during that time period, both of which were the
result of voluntary negotiation (as opposed to arbitration).

The first of these two interconnection agreements was executed in March 2003,
The agreement is available on the web at the following address:
The relevant
provisions of that Agreement (i.¢., the General Terms and Conditions Section, the
Resale Attachment, and the Billing Attachment) are set forth in Exhibit PLF-1.

The second of these two agreements was executed in April 2007, and remains in
effect. The agrecment is available on the web at the following address:

\$lo
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The relevant

provisions of the parties’ current Agreement (i.c, the General Terms and
Conditions Section, the Resale Attachment, and the Billing Attachment) are set
forth in Exhibit PLF-2.

fIl. THE PROMOTIONS AT ISSUE IN THIS PROCEEDING

Q. WHAT PROMOTIONS ARE THE SUBIJECT OF THIS COMPLAINT
PROCEEDING?

A. This case involves the following three AT&T cashback promotions:

AT&T’s $100 Cashback for IFR + 2 Custom Calling or TouchStar

Features*;

AT&T’s $100 Cashback for Complete Choice, Area Plus with Complete
Choice and Preferred Pack; and

AT&T's $50 Cashback 2-Pack Bundie Plan.

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE $100 CASHBACK FOR 1FR + 2 CUSTOM.

CALLING OR TOUCHSTAR FEATURES PROMOTION,

‘ In North Caroling, the promotion was entitied “Community Caller Plus and Two
Vertical Features,” It allowed eligible residence subscribers who ordered and subscribed
to Community Caller Plus and two (2) qualifying vertical features to receive a $100
coupon redeemable for a check.

3
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This promotion was available to qualifying AT&T end users from August 25,
2003 to January 3!, 2005. The promotion was offered to new residential end
users who did not currently subscribe to AT&T"s local service and who purchased
basic residential service plus at least two (2) qualifying Custom Calling or
TouchStar features. When an AT&T end user ordered and qualified for this
promotion, AT&T mailed the end user a $100 Cashback coupon. The end user
had to redeem the coupon within 90 days of receipt in order to receive a $100
check.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE $100 CASHBACK FOR COMPLETE CHOICE,
AREA PLUS WITH COMPLETE CHOICE AND PREFERRED PACK
PROMOTION.

For the time period involved in this complaint, this promotion wes available to
qualifying AT&T end users from June 1, 2003, and continued past July 2007.
The promotion was offered to returning AT&T end usgers who did not currently
subscribe to AT&T's local service and had not had AT&T local service for at
least 10 days prior to their service request. In addition, the end user qualified for
the promotion when he/she purchased AT&T’s Complete Choice service offering,
Area Plus with Complete Choice service offering or PreferredPack Plan service
offering. When an AT&T end user ordered and qualified for this promotion,
AT&T mailed the end user a coupon for $100 cashback. The end user had to mail
in the completed coupon, along with the end user’s first month’s bill showing the
purchase of eligible services, in order to receive a check for $100.

\8%
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PLEASE DESCRIBE THE $50 CASHBACK 2-PACK BUNDLE PLAN
PROMOTION.

For the time period involved in this complaint, this promotion was available to
qualifying AT&T end users from December 15, 2005 to April 30, 2007. On May
1, 2007, this promotion was modified to reduce the cashback reward to $25. The
promotion was offered to reacquisition end users who purchased AT&T's 2-Pack
service offering plus an affiliate service (such as long-distance, DirecTV,
FastAccess DSL, or Cingular wireless service). Such customers received the $50
cashback coupon and optional voicemail service. AT&T's 2-Pack service
offering is a packaged offering that combines AT&T’s basic telephone service
with specific features, When an AT&T end user ordered and qualified for this
promotion, AT&T mailed the customer a coupon that the customer had to redeem
in order to receive a $50 check (or, after April 30, 2007, 2 $25 check).

DO THESE THREE PROMOTIONS HAVE A COMMON CHARACTERISTIC
THAT IS RELEVANT TO THIS PROCEEDING?

Yes. The primary component of each of these three promotions is a cashback
offering. That is, if an AT&T end user purchased certain services at the tariffed
ratc and met other eligibility criteria (such as the end user's having left AT&T and
is now a retuming customer), the end user could receive a specified amount of
cashback from AT&T, provided the customer returned the reguisite coupon
within the allowable time period.

\39
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IV. AT&T'S POSITION ON RESALE OF CASHBACK PROMOTIONS

WHAT IS AT&T'S POSITION ON THE RESALE OF CASHBACK
PROMOTIONS?

That depends upon the time frame involved. As explained in more detail below,
prior to July 2007, AT&T's position (which originally had been BellSouth’s
position) was that the cashback portion of a promotion was not available for
resale. Asgume, for example, that AT&T offered a cashback promotion between
January 1, 2007, and May 1, 2007 by which an end user who purchased a
particular service with 2 tariffed monthly rate of $40 would get $20 cashback
from AT&T. AT&T’s position was that a reseller could purchase the service for
$32 (the $40 tariffed rate less the hypothetical 20% resale discount discuss earlier
in my testimony), but AT&T would not provide the reseller any portion of the $20
cashback amount.

From July 2007 forward, AT&T will make available the cashback portion of a
promotion to requesting CLPs, assuming the CLP3* end users purchase the
requisite services and meet any other eligibility criteria associated with the
promotion. Assume, for example, that AT&T offered a promotion between
January 1, 2008, and May 1, 2008, by which an end user who purchased a
particular service with a tariffed monthly rate of $40 would get $20 cash back
from AT&T. AT&T's position is that a reseller can purchase the service for $32
(the $40 tariffed rate less the hypothetical 20% resale discount), and that AT&T
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will provide the reseller a $16 cashback credit (the $20 retail cashback amount
less the hypothetical 20% resale discount), assuming of course that the services
involved in the promotion are telecommunications services that are subject to the
resale requirement and the Competing Local Provider's (“CLP") end user met the
same qualifications an AT&T end user would have to meet to participate in the

promotion.

IT MAY APPEAR THAT ATA&T CHANGED ITS POSITION IN JULY 2007
BASED ON A FOURTH CIRCUIT COURT OPINION THAT AFFIRMED
ORDERS ISSUED BY THIS COMMISSION. IS THAT WHAT HAPPENED?

No, as explained below, the change in position in fuly 2007 was not the result of a
court decision that affirmed two promotion-related orders issued by this
Commission in Docket No. P-100, Sub 72b. Instead, it was the result of a
decision by the recently-merged AT&T to standardize its resale position across
the 22 states in which it operates as an incumbent local exchange carrier
(“ILEC™).

A. AT&T'S POSITION ON RESALE OF CASHBACK
PROMOTIONS PRIOR TO JULY 2007

WHAT WAS THE BASIS OF AT&T'S POSITION REGARDING THE

AVAILABILITY FOR RESALE OF CASHBACK PROMOTIONS PRIOR TO
JULY 20077

i0
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As | mentioned before, I am not a lawyer and cannot address the details of the
legal basis for the position, and AT&T’s attorneys can address those details in
post-hearing briefs and, if necessary, during oral argument. At 2 high level,
however, AT&T’s position was that the cashback portion of such promotions was
not a telecommunications service that is subject to the resale obligations of federal
law because only “telecommunications services™ are subject to the Act’s resale
obligations, and that the “cashback™ component of such promotions was a one-
time marketing expense that did not reduce the retail price of the of the
telecommunications service. The customer continued to be billed the full retail

price for such service.

HAS THIS COMMISSION OR ANY COI:!RT ADDRESSED AT&T’S
POSITION THAT CASHBACK PORTIONS OF PROMOTIONS ARE NOT
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES THAT ARE SUBJECT TO THE
RESALE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT?

Yes. As alluded to carlier, the United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth
Circuit addressed this issue while reviewing orders issued by this Commission in
Docket No. P-100, Sub 72b.° At a high level, the Court affirmed this
Commission’s determination that, unless a reasonable and nondiscriminatory
restriction on resale applies, while the promotion itself need not be provided to
CLPs, the velue of incentives such as gift cards, checks, coupons for checks, or
similar types of marketing incentives extending for more than 90 days must be

s

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. v. Sanford, et al., 494 F3d 439 (4® Cir.

2007)("BellSouth v. Sanford™).

11
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reflected in the retail rate used for computing the wholesale rate that is to be
charged to CLPs. AT&T’s attorneys will address the specifics of the rulings, and
how it applies to the dispute at issue in this docket, in post-hearing briefs and, if
necessary, in oral arguments.

WHAT IS AT&T’S POSITION ON THIS RULING?

Although AT&T docs not agree with the BeliSouth v. Sanford decision, AT&T
certainly will comply with this ruling in North Carolina and South Carolina — the
two states within the Fourth Circuit in which an AT&T entity is an ILEC. In
states that are in other judicial circuits, however, AT&T maintains its position that
the cashback portion (i.e. non-telecommunications service portion) of a
telecommunications service promotion is not subject to the Act’s resale

requirements.

DID' THE FOURTH CIRCUIT ADDRESS ANY OTHER ASPECT OF
CASHBACK PROMOTIONS WHEN IT REVIEWED THIS COMMISSION’S
ORDER?

Yes. In reviewing this Commission’s Orders, the Fourth Circuit noted that this
Commission did not decide how to treat any particular incentive or promotion. It
also noted that this Commission indicated that it was inclined to allow AT&T to
wmictﬁl'ermleofﬁxecashbankprmnoﬁonal offering that was addressed in the

12
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Commission’s Orders.® Again, AT&T’s attorneys will address the specifics of
these rulings, and how they apply to the cashback promotional credit requests at
issue in this docket, in post-hearing briefs and, if necessary, in oral arguments.

B. AT&TS POSITION ON RESALE OF CASHBACK
PROMOTIONS FROM JULY 2007 FORWARD

WHY DID AT&T, IN JULY 2007, ADOPT A NEW POSITION REGARDING
CASHBACK PROMOTIONS ON A GOING-FORWARD BASIS?

Before the merger between AT&T and BellSouth was completed in December
2006, AT&T provided service to a 13-state region and BellSouth provided service
to a 9-state region. For ease of discussion, 1 will refer to the AT&T 13-state
region company as “pre-merger AT&T” and the BellSouth 9-state region
company as “pre-merger BellSouth.”

As noted above, pre-merger BellSouth did not make cashback and other non-
telecommunications portions of promotional offerings available to resellers. Pre-
merger AT&T, on the other hand, did (although it was not obligated to do s0). In
short, the two companies had different positions regarding the availability of
cashback promotional offerings to CLPs.

Those different positions presented operational issues in the post-merger AT&T.
One of the company’s Merger Commitments, for instance, allows CLPs to “port”
an interconnection agreement from one state in the merged company’s 22-state

BeliSouth v. Sanford, 494 F.3d at 453.

13
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ILEC territory into another state in the territory. Rather than allowing a CLP to
port a California agreement into North Carolina but not providing a cashback
promotion that wes available in California to the same CLP in North Carolina, the
merged company made a business decision to adopt the pre-merger AT&T resale
position throughout its 22-state ILEC temitory. This adoption of a unified
position was not & suggestion that the pre-merger BellSouth position was not
legally permissible. Instead, it was a voluntary change that reflected the need to
modify business practices to facilitate operation as one corporate entity.

V. AT&T’S POSITION ON THE REASONABLE &
NONDISCRIMINATORY NATURE OF ITS CASHBACK POLICY

HAS THIS COMMISSION ADDRESSED WHAT MIGHT CONSTITUTE A
REASONABLE AND NONDISCRIMINATORY (AND, THEREFORE,
PERMISSIBLE) RESTRICTION ON THE RESALE OF A CASHBACK
PROMOTIONAL OFFERING?

Yes. This Commission provided some guidance as to some factors that should be
considered in determining whether a given restriction on resale is reasonable and

nondiscriminatory.

WHAT ARE SOME OF THE FACTORS THIS COMMISSION DISCUSSED?

14
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A This Commission noted that reseliers remain entitled to the wholesale discount on
the telecommunications portion of a promotion and are free to offer, at their own

expense, promotional inducements to their own customers.’
Q. IS THAT TRUE IN THIS CASE?

A.  Yes. As explained above, AT&T made the telecommunications portion of the
promotions at issue in this docket availeble to dPi at the wholesale discount rate
established by this Commission. dPi is free to provide or not provide additional

inducements to its own end users at its own expense.

Q. WHAT ELSE DID THIS COMMISSION SAY ABOUT RESTRICTIONS ON
RESALE? '

A This Commission observed that if resellers did not complain about a resafe
restriction, then such disinterest or indifference would tend to indicate that a8 given
resale restriction was reasonable and nondiscriminatory.®

Q. HAS ANY RESELLER OTHER THAN DPI FILED A COMPLAINT WITH
THIS COMMISSION REGARDING AT&T'S DECISION NOT TO MAKE

y Order Ruling on Motion Regarding Promotions at 13, Docket No. P-100, Sub
72b (Dec. 22, 2004).

¥ Order Ruling on Motion Regarding Promotions at 13. Docket No. P-100, Sub
72b (Dec. 22, 2004).

15
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THE CASHBACK PORTION OF PROMOTIONAL OFFERS AVAILABLE
FOR RESALE?

No.

WHAT ELSE DID THIS COMMISSION SAY ABOUT RESTRICTIONS ON
RESALE?

The Commission suggested that the pro-competitive effects of restricting the
cashback portion of a telecommunications service promotion outweighed any

alleged anti-competitive effects.’
IS THAT TRUE IN THIS CASE?

Yes. Promotions clearly are pro-competitive, and consumers clearly benefit from
such offerings. Further, AT&T’s promotions are generslly not targeted for dPi’s
primary customer base which, as I understand it, is typically a high-credit-risk
customer that prepays dPi for service. Thus, any perceived anti-competitive
effects would not apply to dPi’s customer base anyway.

In any event, dPi is secking a little over $156,500 in this case, and the amount
sought covers about a four-year period (2003 to 2007). dPi has served customers

$

Order Ruling on Motion Regarding Promotions at 13. Docket No. P-100, Sub

72b (Dec. 22, 2004).

16
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in North Carolina since 2003, and is still serving customers in North Carolina at
the end of 2008. Further, dPi has presented no cvidence that it has lost business
or has been unable to compete with AT&T. This suggests that the pro-
competitive aspects of the promotions involved in this docket outweigh any
alteged anti-competitive concerns raised by dPi. If dPj is concerned about its
ability to compete in light of AT&T’s promotions not having been avzilable to
CLP;, it is curious why dPi waited ycars to file a complaint.

ARE THERE ANY OTHER FACTORS THAT THE COMMISSION SHOULD
CONSIDER IN DETERMINING WHETHER A RESTRICTION ON RESALE
OF THE PROMOTIONS AT ISSUE IN THIS CASE IS (OR WAS)
REASONABLE AND NONDISCRIMINATORY? '

Yes. With promotions of the type at issue in this case, where the end user is
offered an incentive in the form of a coupon redeemable for a check, AT&T must
consider various eligibility criteria —~ some objective and some subjective — to
determine if the promotion is available to a particular end user. For example, the
$100 Cashback for 1FR + 2 Customer Calling or TouchStar Features promotion is
available only to new residential end users not currently subscribing to AT&T

service.

As I understand it, for a CLP that primarily serves the pre-paid market, it is
typical for its customer bese to prepay for service for several mounths, discontinue
payment for some period of time, then resume its payments, To the extent dPi’s
customerss are prepay customers, dPi could claim that any such customer is a

17
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“new” customer eligible for the promotion, when such an end user would not be
considered eligible for AT&T's retail promotion. For the $100 Cashback for
Complete Choice, Area Plus with Complete Choice and Preferred Pack promotion
and the $50 Cashback 2-Pack Bundle promotion, the AT&T end user must be a
retuming end user that AT&T has reacquired.

With & prepay customer base, it is virtually impossible for AT&T to determine
with any certainty whether 8 CLP’s end user meets that requirement. Again, a
CLP could claim the promotion for those custorners that fail to prepay for service
one month and resume payment the following month, when those customers are
not “reacquisition” customers intended to be eligible for the promotion. In sum,
the difficulties in determining promotion eligibility is another reason why
AT&T's prior position was reasonable and nondiscriminatory.

IN DOCKET NO. P-100, SUB 72b, DID THIS COMMISSION DETERMINE
WHETHER AT&T'S DECISION NOT TO RESELL THE CASHBACK
PORTION OF ANY OF THE PROMOTIONS AT ISSUE IN THIS DOCKET
WAS OR WAS NOT REASONABLE AND NONDISCRIMINATORY?

No. That said, this Commission observed that if it were asked to determine
whether AT&T’s (then known as BeliSouth) restriction on the resale of the
cashback portion of its $100 Cashback for IFR + 2 Custom Calling or TouchStar
Features was reasonable and nondiscriminatory, it would be inclined to find that

18
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the restriction was indeed reasonable and nondiscriminatory and, therefore, that
the cashback portion of the promotions was not subject to resale.’®

DOES THIS COMMISSION’S PRIOR RULINGS OFFER ANY GUIDANCE
REGARDING THE CASHBACK PROMOTIONS THAT ARE AT ISSUE IN
THIS CASE?

In my view, they do. dPi seems to suggest in its Complaint that the BellSouth v.
Sanford decision invalidated pre-merger BellSouth's position regarding cashback
promotions, but that is not the case. After reviewing extensive comments from all
interested parties, this Commission made clear that restrictions on resale of
promotions offered for more than 90 days were not per se prohibited. Rather, this
Commission made it clear that if called upon to review a resale promotion
yestriction that was alleged to be unrcasonable and discriminatory, it would
require an ILEC to demonstrate that such restriction was reasonable and
nondiscriminatory.'!

Additionally, without deciding the issue, this Commission observed that it would
be inclined to find that the pro-competitive aspects of restricting the resale of a
cashback promotion tended to outweigh any asserted anti-competitive aspects of
restricting the resale of such a promotion. The Fourth Circuit affirmed that

Order Ruling on Motion Regarding Promotions at 13. Docket No. P-100, Sub

72b (Dec. 22, 2004).

Id.; Order Clarifying Ruling on Promotions and Motions jfor

Reconsideration and Stay at 3 Docket No. P-100, Sub 72b (June 3, 2005).

19
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DID AT&T’S DECISION NOT TO RESELL THE CASHBACK PORTION OF
THE THREE PROMOTIONS AT ISSUE IN THIS DOCKET HARM
COMPETITION? '

No. Again, the total amount of cashback promotional credits (without being
reduced by the wholesale discount) that dPi purports to have requested in North
Carolina in the nearly four years between November 2003 and July 2007 is
$156,500. dPi is still doing business in Nosth Carolina. dPi, therefore, cannot
credibly claim that its inability to obtain cashback promotional credits years ago
somehow impeded its ability to compete in the local market in North Carolina,

IS DPI'S REQUEST DISCRIMINATORY IN ANY WAY?

Yes. Pre-merger BeliSouth applied its policy not to resell the cashback
component of promotions across the entire CLP community (and no member of
the CLP community other than dPi has initiated a complaint with this
Comemission regarding that policy). dPi is now requesting special treatment to be
paid credits that no other CLP has been paid. Such a request obviously bencfits

only dPi.
Tellingly, dPi has refused to answer any discovery requests regarding whether or

not it intends to pass on the monies it seeks from AT&T to its end users. This
strongly suggests that dPi is simply looking for windfall profits from AT&T in

20
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this case. Such a windfail would not benefit any dPi end user or promote any
form of competition in the local marketplace in North Carolina.

VL. AT&T'S POSITION ON THE SPECIFIC DPI CASHBACK
PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUESTS AT ISSUE IN THIS
DOCKET.

ARE THERE ANY ADDITIONAL REASONS THAT THE COMMISSION
SHOULD DENY DPI'S REQUEST FOR PROMOTIONAL CREDITS IN THIS

DOCKET?

Yes. In addition to the reasons sct forth above, the Commission should deny
dPi’s request for cashback promotional credits because dPi waited too long to
request these credits.

PLEASE EXPLAIN WHAT YOU MEAN BY THAT.

For one thing, as AT&T witness Ms. Seagle shows in her Direct Testimony, in
many cases dPi waited two years or more from the time it purportedly resold a
promotion to an end user to request a credit from AT&T for the cashback portion
of that promotion. Additionaily, dPi was aware that AT&T would not pay dPi’s
cashback promotional credit requests years before it filed its complaint in this
docket,

2]
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IN ITS COMPLAINT, DPI CLAIMS THAT AT&T DID NOT TELL DPI THAT
IT DID NOT INTEND TO GRANT DPI'S CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL
CREDIT REQUESTS. DO YOU AGREE?

No. As AT&T witness Ms. Seagle shows in her Direct Testimony, in August
2004, AT&T informed Lost Key, dPi’s billing agent, that AT&T did not grant
credits on cashback promotions. Ms. Seagle’s Direct Testimony also shows that
AT&T specifically rejected dPi’s requests for cashback promotional credits in
200S.

DID DP1 TIMELY DISPUTE THE DENIAL OF CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL
CREDIT REQUESTS AS REQUIRED BY THE PARTIES'
INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT?

No. As the testimony of Ms. Seagle makes clear, dPi knew that AT&T had
denied dPi’s cashback promotional credit requests. If dPi was dissatisfied with
not receiving its requested cashback-related bill credits, then dPi had a contractual
obligation to dispute the denial of its previously submitted cashback-related bill
credit requests. The billing portion of the parties’ current Agreement requires dPi
to electronically submit all billing disputes to AT&T using the form specified by
AT&T."?

n

Atftachment 7, Section 2.1. See Exhibit PLF-2.
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Likewise, dPi’s prior Agreement also required dPi to submit billing disputes on a
form specified by AT&T and to clearly explain the basis for submitting a
dispute.”” Further, the current Agreement makes clear thet if dPi is not satisfied
with AT&T’s resolution of a submitted dispute, or if no response to the billing
dispute has been received by dPi, then dPi has a contractual obligation to escalate
the matter by following the cscalation process outlined on AT&T's
interconnection services website or the matter shall be considered denied and
closed. AT&T's wholesale website has extensive gnidelines regarding how a
CLP should submit a billing dispute and what steps a CLP should take to escalate
a billing dispute, These guidelines can be viewed at the following address:

DID DPI FOLLOW THIS PROCESS?

To my knowledge, no. That is, dPi has never disputed the denial of cashback
promotional credit requests in the manner required by the parties’ Agreement. As
AT&T witness Ms. Seagle shows in her Direct Testimony, the first time AT&T
was made aware of dPi’s concemn with its cashback policy was in January 2007.

DOES THE PARTIES’ INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT ADDRESS
WHEN DPI IS REQUIRED TO SUBMIT A BILLING DISPUTE?

i3

Attachment 7, Section 2, attached hereto in Exhibit PLF-1
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Yes. The partics® Agreement requires dPi to submit a billing dispute within 12
months of an actual amount billed that is subject to dispute.'¢

DID DPI COMPLY WITH THIS REQUIREMENT?

Not for the majority of the credit requests at issue in this docket. dPi filed its
complaint in April 2008. dPi’s discovery responses indicate dPi submitted three
cashback promotional credit requests in North Carolina within 12 months of April
2008. These three credit requests total $32,900. This means that the remainder of
the credit amounts dPi is seeking in this case ($123,600) relates to allegedly
disputed billings that are older than 12 months. Under the parties’ Agreement,
dPi is barred from pursuing such credits. To allow dPi fo pursue such credits

would be tantamount to re-writing the parties’ voluntarily executed Agreement.

IS THERE ANY REASON FROM A COMPETITIVE PERSPECTIVE WHY
DPF'S REQUEST FOR CREDITS DATING BACK TO 2003 SHOULD BE
GRANTED?

No. From a competitive perspective, there is no benefit to the
telecommunications market or to the consumer to go back in time and consider
giving special treatment to dPi. Prior to July 2007, AT&T applied uniformly
across all CLPs its policy of not granting cashback promotions. Granting dPi the
relief it seeks in its complaint does nothing more than give dPi an after-the-fact

14

Attachment 7, Section 2.2. See Exhibit PLF-2.
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cash windfali that: a) it does not deserve; b) AT&T is not obligated to provide;
and, c) apparently will not benefit dPi’s customers. dPi does not need such a
windfall to compete in the local market because dPi has been competing with
AT&T for a number of years. dPi has every incentive to try to gain promotion
credits wherever it can (including for non-qualifying customers) because it has no
expense in offering the promotion. Bestowing dPi with a windfall would only
serve to line dPi’s pockets and docs not benefit dPi’s customers.

Under AT&T's new unified resale policy, dPi is receiving cashback pmmotiom_ll
credits today based upon current cashback promotions. Thevefore, dPi’s current
customers can benefit from any credit dPi receives, if dPi chooses to pass it on to

its own customers.

IS THERE ANY OTHER POLICY REASON TO DENY DPI'S REQUEST FOR
CASHBACK PROMOTIONAL CREDITS IN THIS DOCKET?

Yes. The highly competitive telecommunications market moves at a very fast
pace, and investors demand that companies competing in that market move
quickly and decisively. AT&T cannot meet those demands if its competitors can
wait almost half a decade after becoming awarc of a policy to challenge that

policy and seek monetary relief as a result of that challenge.

DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

Yes,

25
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CoRY FILED

AT&T NORTH CAROLINA NOV 2 0 2008
TESTIMO L. ‘a Office
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF P.L. (SCOT) FERGUSON _ cleksOfies g,
BEFORE THE NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. P-55, SUB 1744
NOVEMBER 19, 2008

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, YOUR POSITION WITH AT&T
OPERATIONS, INC. (“AT&T"), AND YOUR BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is Scot Ferguson. 1 am an Associate Director in AT&T Operalions’
Wholesale organization. As such, | am responsible for certain issues related to
wholesale policy, primarily related to the general terms and conditions of
interconnection agreements throughout AT&T's operating regions, including
North Carolina. My business address is 675 West Peachtree Street, Atlanta,
Georgia 30375.

ARE YOU THE SAME SCOT FERGUSON WHO FILED DIRECT
TESTIMONY IN THIS DOCKET?

Yes.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

The primary purposc of my rcbuttal testimony is to respond to dPi’s requested

relief as set forth in the direct testimony of dPi witness Brian Bolinger. As
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explained herein, if the Commission agrees that dPi is entitied to retroactive
promotional credits (and for the reasons stated in my direct testimony it should
not), then the Commission should order the parties to negotiate in good faith in an
attempt to mutually agree upon the benefit that the cashback promotions involved

in this case may have had on the retail rate of telecommunications services resold

by dPi years ago.

IN HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY (PAGE 5, LINES 16-18), DP1 WITNESS
BRIAN BOLINGER STATES THAT THE NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES
COMMISSION SHOULD “ENTER AN ORDER DIRECTING BELLSOUTH
[AT&T] TO PAY THE [PROMOTIONAL] CREDITS TOGETHER WITH
INTEREST AT THE CONTRACT RATE [FOR THE PROMOTIONAL
CREDIT REQUESTS SUBMITTED BY DPI PRIOR TO JULY 2007).” DO
YOU AGREE WITH DPI’S SUGGESTED RESOLUTION OF THIS MATTER?

No. For the reasons set forth in my direct testimony, the North Carolina Utilities
Commission (“Commission™) should deny dPi’s request for retroactive cashback
promotional credits. Exhibit 1 to Mr. Bolinger’s testimony shows that dPi is
seeking cashback promotional credits for billings that occurred as far back as five
years ago (specifically, for billing periods ranging from November 2003 through
June 2007). Mr. Bolinger offers no justification for dPi’s request for an after-the-
fact monetary windfall.

Further, dPi has refused to answer any discovery request regarding whether it

intends to pass on 1o its customers any amounts it receives from AT&T in this
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case. This leads to the clear implication that dPi intends to pocket whatever
monetary relief it may be awarded in this matter. In short, no basis front either an
ability-to-compete or a pro-consumer perspective has been offered by dPi for the
Commission to award dPi a cash windfall for billings that took place years ago.

That said, if the Commission agrees with dPi (even though it should not), the
Commission should not require AT&T simply to pay the promotional credits dPi
seeks in this proceeding, plus interest. As AT&T witness Nicole Bracy explains
in her rebuttal testimony, the records nccessary to manually validate a significant
portion of the promotional credits dPi secks in this case are not available. To state
the obvious, AT&T should not be required to pay out promotional credits it

cannot validate.

Further, in addressing promotions, this Commission has ruled that gifts or
incentives that are offered for more than 90 days effectively lower the retail rate
that is subject to the wholesale discount,' and therefore are subject to resale unless
an ILEC can demonstrate that a restriction on resale is reasonable and
nondiscriminatory.” The Commission recognized that determining the “real”
retail rate of a telecommunications service (i.e. the retail rate less the value or
benefit of a promotional gift) is a matter upon which an ILEC and a CLP should
attempt to mutually algree.3

Order Clarifying Ruling on Promotions and Denying Motions for

Reconsideration and Stay, Docket No. P-100, Sub 72b, at page S.

2
3

Id. at 2.
Id. até.
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Accordingly, if the Commission rules that dPi is entitled to retroactive
promotional credits, then the Commission should direct the parties to negotiate in
good faith in an attempt to mutually agree upon the benefit (or value) that the
cashback promotions at issue in this docket had on the retail rate of the
telecommunications services resold by dPi years ago. If the parties are unable to
reach an agrecment, then the Commission can resolve the matter. Such an
approach is completely consistent with the Commission’s rulings in Docket No.
P-100, Sub 72b.

BUT ISN'T THERE AN EXISTING METHODOLOGY UNDER WHICH
PROMOTIONAL CREDIT REQUESTS ARE SUBMITTED, REVIEWED,
AND, WHERE APPROPRIATE, PAID?

Yes, and that process by which AT&T currently reviews and validates (approves
or denies) cashback promotional credit requests is not in dispute. Again, we are
talking about promotional credit requests associated with billing periods that are
scveral years old and which were submitted at a time when dPi was fully aware
that AT&T did not resell such promotions. Accordingly, any comparison
between how cashback promotions are handled today {(which is not in dispute)
and dPi’s requested relief is an “apples-to-oranges™ comparison.

DID THIS COMMISSION OR ANY COURT RULE THAT AT&T WAS
UNDER AN OBLIGATION TO RESELL THE SPECIFIC PROMOTIONS
INVOLVED IN THIS CASE DURING THE TIMEFRAME AT ISSUE?

ANO
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As I explained in my direct testimony, no. Additionally, during the relevant time
period involved here (2003 through 2007), AT&T (then known as BellSouth)
filed many promotions, including cashback promotions, with the Commission. In
approving several such promotions, the Commission advised AT&T that any
conclusions reached in Docket No. P-100, Sub 72b would be applied on a
prospective basis only. To be consistent with such approvals, the Commission
should deny dPi’s request for retroactive promotional credit requests. An
example of a promotion approval letter is attached 10 my rebuttal testimony as

Rebuttat Exhibit PLF-1.

MR. BOLINGER STATES (PAGE 4, LINE 6) THAT “THE SIZE OF THE
PROMOTIONS [WAS] SO LARGE THAT THE END RESULT IS THAT THE
NET AMOUNT [AT&T’S] RETAIL CUSTOMERS QUALIFYING FOR THE
PROMOTIONS [PAID] FOR THE SERVICE IS FAR LESS THAN THE
WHOLESALE AMOUNT.” DO YOU AGREE?

No, and Mr. Bolinger offers no support for this unsubstantiated claim. Further,
the fact that dPi continues to compete in the local market makes this claim
dubious at best. In any event, the Commission does not need 10 engage in such
speculation regarding the “real™ retail rate of services provided years ago. Again,
if the Commission rules that dPi is entitled to retroactive promotional credits
(which it should not), then the Commission should direct the parties to negotiate a
mutually-agreeable value of the impact that the cashback promotions involved in

this docket may have had on the price of retail telecommunications services resold

by dPi years ago.
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MR. BOLINGER ASSERTS (PAGE 2, LINE 17) THAT “BELLSOUTH IS
REQUIRED BY LAW AND BY CONTRACT TO MAKE AVAILABLE FOR
RESALE ANY PROMOTION THAT BELLSOUTH MAKES AVAILABLE TO
ITS CUSTOMERS FOR AN EXTENDED PERIOD OF TIME” DO YOU
AGREE?

No, because Mr. Bolinger’s statement is incomplete. I am not an attomney, and
AT&T’s attorneys can address AT&T's resale obligations to the extent necessary
in AT&T’s post-hearing brief. That said, I am familiar with this Comsnission’s
orders in Docket No. P-100, Sub 72b. As I understand those orders, the
Commission decided that a restriction on the resale of cashback promotions is
permissible so long as an ILEC demonstrates that such a restriction is reasonable

and nondiscriminatory.

In my direct testimony, I cxplained why AT&T’s decision to not offer for resale
the promotionsl credit requests involved in this case was reasonable and
nondiscriminatory. Regarding the parties’ contract, Mr. Bolinger failed to cite
any portion of the parties’ interconnection agreement which states that AT&T (or
BeliSouth) would make retail cashback promotions available for resale. The
reason is simple — no such language is contained in the parties’ current or prior

interconnection agreement.
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MR. BOLINGER IMPLIES (PAGE 4, LINE 14) THAT AT&T CHANGED ITS
PROMOTIONS CREDIT POLICY BECAUSE OF A DECISION BY THE 4™
CIRCUIT COURT. IS HE CORRECT?

No. As I described at length in my direct testimony, in 2007, the recently-merged
AT&T* made a business decision to standardize its position reganding the
availability for resalc of cagshback promotions where it operates as an incumbent

local exchange carier.

MR. BOLINGER DESCRIBES AN OCCASION IN OCTOBER 2007 (PAGE 4,
LINE 22) WHEN HE “ESCALATED AND ATTEMPTED TO RESOLVE THIS
ISSUE” WITH AT&T. EVEN IF TAKEN AT FACE VALUE, DID THE
EFFORT DESCRIBED IN HIS TESTIMONY CONSTITUTE AN
ESCALATION FOR DISPUTE RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
TERMS OF THE INTERCONNECTION A_GREEMENT BETWEEN THE
PARTIES?

No. As | explained in my direct testimony, the parties’ interconnection agrecment
establishes a formal process that dPi must follow to escalate a dispute. That
process is applicable to disputes over denied promotional credit requests and can
be found in both thc intcrconnection agrecment and on AT&T’s wholesale
website. The scenario described by Mr. Bolinger (mentioning the denial of
cashback promotional credit requests in connection with settlement discussions

4

The AT&T/BellSouth merger was approved by the Federal Communications

Commission on December 29, 2006.

PAY



20 -~ O W B W N

Y

regarding other disputes between the parties) simply does not constitute a
submission of a dispute (or an escalation of a dispute} under the parties

interconnection agreement.

DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

Yes, but I reserve the right to supplement my rebuttal testimony if additional
information becomes available.



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

215

BY MR. TURNER:

0. Mr. Ferguson, have you prepared a brief summary of

your testimony?

A. I have.
Q. Please present it.
A. Certainly. Good.afterncon, Commissioners. My

testimony addresses a number of policy matters. In my
summafy, however, I'm going to focus on only two of —- two
aspects of my testimony.

“ First, in the interconnection agreements between

the parties, dPi agrees not to submit billing disputes for

amounts billed more than 12 months earlier. In many

cases, dPi did not honor that agreement.

Secondly, AT&T's decision not to make these cash
back offerings available for resale during the time period
addressed by dPi's complaint was a reasonable and
nondiscriminatory restriction on resale that is permitted
by federal law. AT&T Norfh Carolina made the
telecommunications portion of the promotion available to
dPi at the wholesale discount rate established by this

Commission. It simply did not also provide the cash back

portion of those offerings to dPi. Significantly, ATSET
North Carolina did not make the cash back portion of these

offerings available to any other reseller in North

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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Carolina, yet dPi is the only reseller to file a complaint
with the Commission.

Additionally, not receiviﬁg the cash back
component of these offerings did not hamper dPi‘'s ability
to compete. DPi does not compete with AT&T North Carolina
for customers because dPi targets a higher credit risk
customer base that typically cannot receive service from
anyocne other than another prepaid provider. And while dPi
does compete with other prepaid providers, dPi is on an
even playing field with those providers because no
reseller received cash back promotional credits from AT&T
North Carolina at‘:— during the time periocd at issue here.

And that concludes my summary.

MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Ferguson is
available for cross.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Mr. ﬁalish,
cross-examination of the witness.
~MR. MALISH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CROSS—EXAMINATION BY MR. MALISH:

Q. Mr. Ferguson, I'd like to start off with I guess
some basic questions. Do you understand the FCC has —-
has stated that retail offers that are made by AT&T in

general are supposed to be made available to resellers

like dpPi?

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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A. In general and under certain limitations and
conditions, yes.

Q. All right. An& so the key examination here is the
fact that the offer has to be made, right?

A. At a high level I will agree with that.

Q. All right. Now, lcoking at the offers that AT&T

makes, . AT&T makes lots of offers, lots of different offers

available to its resale -- or retail customers, doesn't
it?

A. That is co;rect, yes.

Q. And T don't know how many, but the tariff is

fairly extensive and there's different things that people

o
can choose to accept?

A. That's correct. And I couldn't tell you how many
either.
0. . Right. And the fact that some people choose to

accept offers does not preclude other pe;ple from making a
different choice; is that correct?

A. That is true.

Q. All} right. BAnd so the fact that if you make an
offer available to some retail customers and some retail °
customers accept that offer, but other retail customers
don't accept that offer, that does not affeét AT&T's

obligation to make that same offer available in general to
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CLECs, does it?

A. Again, at a high level, that's generally correct.
Q. Okay. Now, talking in specific about these cash
back promotions, would you agree with Ms. Bracy and Ms.
Seagle that prior to 2007, prior to June of 2007,
BellSouth simply did not make those promotions -- did not
make those promotional offers available to resellers like
dpi?

A. I agree with that. I think I've seen that it’'s
pre-July of '07. I don't know that that's a -- maybe a

distinction without a difference, but let's just say

for --

Q. Pre-July is fine with me.

A. Okay.

Q. Now, as I understand it, since 2007, since July of

2007, BellScuth or AT&T doing business as BellSouth has
made these cash back offers available to CLECs like dPi?
A " That's correct. That's my un&erstanding.

Q. All right. And at some point in your -- in your

testimony you say that that's something we do, but we

don't ——- we're not obligated to do that; is that true?
A, Yes, I said that and I think we still believe
that.

Q. Okay. And so are y'all giving these away for --

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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just because you're nice people or why is this now being

done if it's not required to be done?

A. Well, I think I explained in my testimony tha£
after the merger of AT&T and BellSouth, we simply made a
business decision to consolidate the promotions processes,
and because one party was doing it one way and another
party was doing it the other way, we consolidated and
created one -- one process whereby we do now give the
promotions on cash back offerings.

g. And for all of the -- all of the CLECs out there,

this adds up to millions of dollars a year, doesn't it?

A, I haven't'seen any -- you know, any total huﬁbers,
but based on what I've seen regarding dPi's request and
what théy think they are entitled to, I can imagine that
it could, yes.

Q. Okay. I'm looking at page 15 of your testimony

right now. And specifically lines 15 through 17.

A. May I join you there?
Q. Please.

A. Page 15 —--

Q. Uh-huh.

A. -- line 15?

Q. Line 15 through 17 --
A, Okay.

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION
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0. -- where you're noting that the Commission
observes that if resellers did not complain about a resale
restriction, then such disinterest or indifference would

tend to indicate that a given reseller restriction was
reasonable and nondiscriminatory.

And what I would like to ask you is it appears to
me that what you're doing there is -- is making an
observation about what the Commission may have said at one
point in time. And what I would like to know is ask if
that's AT&T's position also?

A. I believe we could -- I believe I could agree that
that is one of the -- one of the tests that AT&T would use
to discuss with this Commission the fact that the
offerings at issue here are reasonable and
nondiscriminatory. I think that's one of the tests.

Q. Might it also not be a -- 'is the fact that
somebody doesn't come to the Commission complaining with a
icase like dPi has brought here, might that also be an
indicator of just a lack of resources to —- to start a

legal proceeding?

A, I won't agree that it is, but I could say that it
might be,.
Q. Okay. If it is true that the lack of complaint

indicates that a given resale restriction is reasonable
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and nondiscriminatory, if we accegt that at face value and
that's a proposition that AT&T also adopts, wouldn't the
converse also be true? In cother words, if someone does
bring a case, wouldn't that tend to indicate that the
restriction is unreasonable and discriminatory?

A.  .Well, in this case I think that's what you've done
and we're here to defend that it is -- continues to be
reasonable and nondiscriminatory. So I think if nobody
has brought one, that's an indicator; and if somebody does
bring one, that puts it upon us to prove that it's
reasonable and nondiscriminatory and that's why we're
here.

Q. Okay. I'm looking generally at your testimony on
page 16 and it's lines 14 through 20. And you're talking
there about how promotions are pro-competitive.

A. Yes.

0. Are you aware that one of the purposes of the
Federal Telecommunications Act was to eliminate
monopolies, for example, like the one that BellSouth had
in wireline telephone service here in North Carolina?

A. I don't think I'll agree with it the way you've
characterized it. I will say that I would tend to think
that the '96 Act, the purpose of it was to develop

widespread competition within the telecom industry.
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Q. I1f the Supreme Court of the United States has said
that that was one of the purposes, would you disagree with

the Supreme Court then?

A. I don't believe I would disagree with them. I
just have a different characterization of it that I think
probably gets to the same point.

Q. Okay. You understand that when the FTA was put

into effect in areas in which BellSouth provided service,,

|
nit was basically the monopoly for wireline services?

A, I'm sorry, please repeat that.

Q. You understand that when the FTA was enacted, the

Federzal Telecommunications Act of 1996 was enacted in
those areas in which BellSouth was doing business or had
the territorial jurisdiction, it was the monopolist in
that area?

A. We were —— I think there was a time when the Bell
system was éonsidered a monopoly. And I would say that
after the breakup of the Bell system back in the mid '80s’
even the remaining ILECs were considered to be -~ to have

certain amount of market power.

H Were they still monopolies? I don't know if they

were considered to be monopolies in the sense that
monopolies have previously been characterized. They were

a dominant ILEC.
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Q. Do you have any idea what -- what BellSouth's --
in North Carolina what BellSouth's line count for wireline
gservices is?

A, I do not.

Q. all right. Do you have any idea what the CLECs®

Mline count is in those areas in which BellSouth is the --

provides service?

A. In the State of North Carolina?
0. Yeah.
A. I do not. I know that there are reports that are

done every month that provide that information. I believe
they're publicly available.

Q. Okay. Do you have any idea whether there are more
CLECs or less CLECs than there were in -- what is this,
2000 —- 1999 versus 20092

A. Are you talking about actual CLEC companies or

CLEC lines? We were talking about lines --

0. Now I'm talking about CLEC companies.

A. Actually -- actual companies. I would -- I don't
know. I don't know for a fact, but I would-suspect there
are fewer —-

Q. Okay.

A. -- with all of the mergers, acquisitions, et

cetera, that have taken place in the last ten years.
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Q. Okay. Okay. Mr. Ferguson, I would like to visit
with you about the math now ‘cause --

A. Let's do math.

Q. Third in line. All right. Third times the charm.
First of all, do you agree that the basic premise beside
-- behind the -- AT&T having the obligation to offer
services to resellers at wholesale is that the wholesale
rate will be less than the retail rate?

A. I can agree with that generally.

Q. -All right. And would you agree with me ——-if we
first assume that dPi is entitled to the promotion, that
the -~ we'll calculate the retail rate by taking the

tariff minus the promotion?
A. As long as we factor in discounts and up to this

point I can agree with that.

Q. Okay. And so what -- what I've done here is I've
said there's a wholesale -- a wholesale rate is generally
-- or what yon used in your -- in your direct testimony, a

|| figure of 20 percent. We know that's basically

rounding --

A. Yes.

Q. -- the 20 percent.

A. It's 21 and a half here in North Carolina.

Q. Sco when we're calculating, the wholesale rate is
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basically .8 times the retail rate. Have I got that

roughly good there?

A. I'll agree.
Q. all right. And then -- so now we're talking about
a situation because we can -- we can interchange the

resale rate with the tariff rate by promotion, we can
express that as a wholesale rate equals .8 times tariff
minus promotion, right?

A. I can -- so far I can agree with you to a -- at —
at a high level.

Q. All right. And then you -- when you do the
extrapolation and you do the math and the algebra, that's
a situation where -- where the wholesale rate is going to
be .8 —- 80 percent of the tariff rate minus 80 percent of
the promotion, right? .

A. Yes.

Q. This is the math that Mr. Turner went through with
Mr. O'Roark.

A. Yes. And I -- and I fully agree with the way

Mr. -- Mr. Turner went through that exercise, yes.

Q. Okay. And this is a situation where -- where
we're saying that the monthly rate is $120 and the
promotion is $100, and so if we're going to be fair about

this, we've got to apply the B0 percent to the tariff to
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bring it down to 96. And we're not going to apply --
we're not going to give the CLEC the entire §$100, we're
going to give them 80 percent of the $100 cash back to get

it to 80, so that their net price is 16, right?

A. Yes.

Q. That's how that's working, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And that's how y'all are saying it should work,

y'all being AT&T?
A. Well, I think we're saying that's the way it
should work because that's the way the Fourth Circuit and

this Commission said it should work. That's -- that's our

understanding cf it. .
Q. That was the example that they gave, particular
example- that they gave in -- in éanford?

A. Yes, it is. And --

Q. And it's based on this sort of analysis, right?
A. To the best of my knowledge it is. Subject to

check, I'll agree with that. But this -- this calculation
here and those fiqures that were used and our
%understanding is that that represents, in AT&T's -opinion,
a worst-case scenario. That's how much -- the max that we
would have to provide. There was room left in -- in all

«of these rulings about other calculations, about other
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1 values, about whether or not the parties should negotiate

2 whatever that meaningful value was ~--

3 Q. Right.

4 A. -- and it could be something different than that.

5 Q. Okay. I understand.

6 A. But in AT&T's opinion, that would be --

7 Q. The worst case?

8 A. -- the worst-case scenario.

9 “Q. And I wanted to go through this analysis because
10 this is the analysis that Mr. Turner brought from Sanford,
i1 right?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. All right. This is actually making assumption

14 that your monthly rate is going to be about $120, right?
15 A, Well, those were the numbers that we;e used. T
16 don't know if I --

17 Q. What I'd like to --

18 fa. -- would call it an assumption or not.

19 "Q. What I would like for you to do with me is let's
20 assume some different numbers, all right, because I think
21 in your direct testimony you use an assumption of monthly
22 service costing $40 a month. Do you remember that in your
23 direct?

24 A. Yes. I think it was the same one we used in
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somebody else's testimony. Just a general —-
Q. Okay. We're just going to use $40 to make the

math easier, all right? We're just --

A. For you or for me?

Q. For all of us.

A. Okay.

Q. All right. Let me change it. So let's assume now

“that the monthly service charge is $40, cokay. The
promotion we know is —- we'll use the $100 because we know

there's a $100 cash back, right. And ylall still want to

apply —- you're saying worst-case scenario is if we owe
anything, it's going to be $40 times, you know, the resale
discount. And the same thing to the 100, correct?

We're going to reduce the 100 -- you want to

reduce the 100 by the wholesale discount?

A. You can keep on. I'll -- I'll say -- I°'l1l say
when.

Q. That that's what you want to -- that's what y'all
are suggesting -- this should be the wﬁrst—case scenario,
right?

A. At this -- at this point, I'll go with it. But

I'll tell you this, Mr. -- I am sorry.
Q. Okay.

A. I’1l]l tell you this, if it -- if it doesn't end up
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being along the same lines as what we've already worked
out here, then there's some fuzzy math and I'm not going
to agree with it.

Q. Okay. That’'s fine. First of all, let's see what
happens when the monthly rate is $40 minus 100. Would you
agree with me that that ends up with a credit going back
to the customer of $60, a net effect?

A, That's what it looks like.

Q. Okay. If we do the math here though, I have .8

times 40 as being 32. Would you agree?

A. Sure.

Q. All right. And this is easier, right? This is
80, right?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And y'all want to pay 32 minus 80. Yes?

A. Again, the numbers don't work out -

0.° Well, now this is just math, right? This is --
A. Now it's Jjust math.

0. Yeah.

A. But I'm not going to --

0. So.this results in a situation where the net is

minus $48, right? See what's going on here? 1In other
words, the retail customer is getting a net benefit of

basically a $60 credit, right? We just did this. This is
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-— when the -- when the monthly service charge is $40 but
the cash back kickback is 100, the net to the customer is
minus 60, right?

A.. By the math, that's what it appears to be. I

don't know how that would possibly be applied in --

Q. " Well, if --
A. —-— real life,
Q. —— if you apply the formula over here the way

y'all want to apply it, that results in a situation where
drPi is getting only a credit of $48 on the bill, a net of
|minus 48. Do you see how that's playing out?

A, I see the math.

Q. So that that's a situation -- you would agree with
me that the customer is getting back more money than dPi,
qwouldn't yoﬁ?

A, As I said earlier, there is discussion out there
Mthat maybe this isn't the way to go, that there are other
ways to figure this, and that was allowed by both the

Fourth Circuit and thiq Commission as to look at true

value in negotjating that. We're not -- we're not sure
that 100 percent or even 100 percent discounted is tne
actual value. It could be something different than that.
Q. All right. I mean, you would agree with me that

basically what's happening in this scenario, if we apply
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it the way that y'all were talking about having it apply
earlier, is a situation where bottom line is that dFi, the
reseller, is-effectively paying $12 more per line than the
retail customer is?
A. I see what the math has shown. I don't agree with
what you just said as a characterization of what is really
taking place. Because, again, this is a hypothetical.
Q. So this is supposed to be the worst-case scenario,
though. This is the worst-case scenario where --
A. I've already -- sorry.
Q. -- the worst-case ‘scenario where —- where the
wholesale rate is now $12 more than the retail rate.
A. I understand what the math shows under those
circumstances. I'm just telling you that under practical
application -- I don'; believe it's been decided yet and I
believe that something like this, that anomaly there
compared to what we've seen earlier from Mr. Turner, I
believe that would be taken into consideration when we
made our case.
Q. Okay. What —- let's just do the math and see what
it would lcok like, this just 32 minus --

MR. TURNER: I'm going to ask you to leave

that —-

MR. MALISH: Oh. Let me leave that.
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Q. I'1ll just come over here. We can do -- if we do

32 minus 100, that's, what, 78?2

A. 68.
Q. 68.
A. But you céuld -- you can keep doing math and you

can keep making it lock worse and you can go the other
way, make it loock better, so -

Q. Sure.

A, -- again, I'm not going to agree that this is the
way that we would agree to handle it. Again, open for
negotiations and whatever else comes of it to determine
what we might --

Q. Can you agree with me that the formula, the way
that y'all propose to make this work, only works in
situations where the amount of the kickback is less than
the amount of the service?

A. . I don't know that -- again, if you want to do more
math, you can. I don't know off the top of my head how
that would work. So no, I won't agree with you that

that's the case.

Q. All right. Looking at -- let's say the customer
is getting this $60 kickback, right? Presumably the
wholesale rate in general is supposed to be 20 percent

less than that, right?
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A. That's the theory, yes.

Q. So 20 percent of 60 would be -- what would that
be? Another 12, right?

A. 20 percent of 60 is 12.

Q. All right. So if we're going to make this

20 percent lower for dPi, they really should be ge£ting a
credit back of $78 instead of 68?

A. or 72.

Q. 72, excuse me --

A. But --

Q. -- rather than 68.

A. But again, you know, I mean, we can do this until,
you know, much later --

Q. Yeah.

A. -- but it's not going-.to change the math and it's
not going to change our position that in a circumstance
where we are supposed to give the promotion, it has not
been determined what that is. It is open for discussion.
Q. Okay.

A. And that things like this would certainly be
factored in --

Q. Okay.

A. -- so, yes, the numbers are funky.

Q. Now, you've given some testimony about the timing
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and the appropriateness of the timing of dPi‘'s putting in
for the credits. And I want to talk about th;t a little
bit. And this has to do with the two contracts that are
involved between the parties.

So first I want to clarify. You agree with me
there were two contracts during -~ between dPi and AT&T
between the period of 2003 to the present?

A, Yes, I do agree with that.

Q. And -- and you've got both of them as attachments
to your testimony?

A. Relevant parts, yes.

Q. Right. And we have -- one basically goes through
2003 up through —- up to the point in time that it's
replaced by the second one, correct?

A. Somewhere in 2007, I believe.

Q. Right. Now, would you agree with me that the
first contract does not contain a one-year limitations
period for submitting disputes?

A. I will agree that in the billing attachment and --

there is no l2-month regquirement.

Q. All right. The 12-month requirement that you
discuss in your testimony comes in the second contract,
which is Exhibit PLF-2?

A. That is correct. And it's roughly in the same
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attachment seven, Section 2.2. And as we've heard earlier
I believe from our attorneys over here, there are also
provisions in that current agreement that say that that is
the ruling agreement. So in our mind the 12-month -- the
12-month requirement is in place and has been in place and
rules over all orders and -- issued prior to that
agreement going into effect.

0. Okay.

MR. MALISH: And Mr. Chairman, I would like to
approach the witness.

MR. TURNER: May I approach as well?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Sure. You want to tell
us what you're going to show him?

MR. MALISH: VYes, I am. I'm going to look at
the second exhibit, which is PLF-2. If you don't mind
looking at this with me.

Q. Okay. So first of all, I want to verify that
we're looking at Exhibit PLF-2 to your testimony, which is
the -~ which is the resale agreement between dPi and
BeliSouth, right?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. And this -- I‘'d like to direct your
attention to page 2, the paragraph that -- that starts

with "Effective Date." Do you see that?
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A. I do.

Q. And I'm going to read that out loud and I want you
to tell me if I've read it correctly, okay?

A. All right.

Q. “Effective Date is defined as the date that the
agreement is effective for purposes of rates, terms and
conditions and shall be (30) days after the date of the
last signature executing the agreement. Future amendments
hfor rate changes will also be effective (30) days after

the date of the last signature executing the amendment.”

Did I read that correctly?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, I'd like for you to look with me at the
signature page so we can find out what the actual
effective date is. And I'm looking here at what is
labeled just signature page. At the bottom there is a
notation that says CCS -- CCCS250421., And I don't know if
this is actually page 21 or what it is, but I'm showing
the last date that this was signea as being signed on 4/12
of '07 by Ch¥isten Shore [phonetic] from BellSouth. Do
you agree?

A. Yes.

Q. So that would make the effective date 30 days from

April the 12th or May the 12th of 2007, correct?
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A. Yes.

Q. All right. Now, I'd like to direct your attention
to page 3 of your Exhibit PLF-2. And particularly under
"Term of the Agreement” I'd like for you to look on with
me as I read from Section 2.1, which is talking about the
term of the agreement, all right?

A, Okay.

S

Q. Says, "Notwithstanding any prior agreement of the
Parties, the rates, terms and conditions of this Agreement

shall not be applied retroactively prior to the Effective

Date."” Did I read that correctly?

A. You did.

Q. Now, generally speaking, the 12-month period that
you're referring to and in which the -- for the

limitations period, that is found in attachment seven of
the second -- of the second contract?

A. Yes.

Q. And I have up here —- the notation that I have up
here is that is attachment seven, page 9. And I assume
that you're looking at this language in Section 2.2?

A. That is correct.

Q. All right. And that's just generally saying that
you have 12 months from the time something happens to file

a dispute and so on and so forth?
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A. Twelve months from the time that it —-- something
is billed, vyes.

Q. All right. And the other information -- the other
part that y'all are locking at as saying that, well, now,
this changes the —- the limitations for everything that
ever happened, you're looking at the language under
Section 30 of page 20.of the general terms and conditions;
is that true?

A. Section 30.1, yes.

Q. All right. Where it talks about orders placed
under prior agreements between the parties shall be
governed by the terms of this agreement and so forth?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. When this agreement, the second
agreement was signed, were there still orders that were
pending —-- I mean, let's say this was signed on a

Wednesday, right?

A. Okay.
Q. Hypothetical. Doesn't matter which particular
day. There were -- or let's say it went into effect on a

Wednesday, right?
A. Okéy.
Q. There would be orders from the Tuesday before that

would not necessarily have been processed, correct?
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A. Based on what I think I heard Ms. Bracy say, it's
within a month, but -- are you talking about processing

credit requests ~-

Q. No. I'm talking about --

A. -- or talking about the actual orders being
worked?

Q. Orders being worked.

A. That's possible.

"Q. And likewise, there may be —-- there may be

services that are being rendered the day before this new
contract went into effect, the basic nature of which do
not change when the contract changes, right?

A. Gene?qlly I can agree with that.

Q. In other words, if dPi is buying a service to
resell to John Doe on Wednesday, that service is going to
coniinue —- excuse me, on Tuesday -- that's going to
continue on Wednesday, even though the contract has
changed, right?

A. That is correct.

Q. And similarly, there may be changes in the pricing
structure, other bits of the non-recurring costs, for
example, that may change between the day before this goes
into effect and the day that it does go into éffect?

A. It’s my understanding that the pricing folks would
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make such changes in the rate tape and —-

Q. Okay.

A. -- make that happen effective with some certain
date.

Q. All right. Generally speaking, how would you
characterize —- what would you say that this second

contract does? Just the terms and conditions under which

AT&T will provide service to dPi for it to resale?

A. Yeah. Generally speaking, it‘s the one that's
currently in effect and has been since the -- oh, I
believe, it was —-- or early to middle 2007.

Q. Okay.

A. Supercedes the previous one in all aspects.

Q. Okay.

(Brief pause.)
Q. I would like to clarify s;mething that I see on
page 25 of your direct, basically lines 1 through 3.
MR. TURNER: Mr. Malish, could you repeat that
page number?

MR. MALISH: 23, lines 1 through 3.

Q. And are you with me?
A, Yes, I am.
Q. You're talking there about dPi‘s being required to

submit billing disputes on a form specified by AT&T and to
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1 explain the basis for submitting the dispute.

2 I'm assuming you're talking about the bar form,

3 the B-A-R form there?

4 A. | Yes.

5 Q. All right. And I -- it's unclear to me, but I'm

6 assuming you're -- you're not saying that that wasn't

7 done, are you?

8 A. Excuse me, let me back up just a minute. I don‘'t
9 believe I'm saying that it was not done. I believe I'm

10 IIjust stating that this is the process.

11 Q. Okay. That's -- I just wanted to clarify that. I
12 thought you might be saying that AT&T -- or dPi is not

13 entitled and cne reason is because they didn't submit this
14 on a bar form. But that was done?

15 A. Yeah. And --

16 Q. Okay.

17 A. -— again, I don't believe that's what I'm

18 saying --

19 Q. Okay.

20 A, -- because I'm not the process person as far as
21 actually having been there to see what was truly submitted
22 or not submitted. I'm just talking the process.
23 Q. Okay. And then further down-in that paragraph,

24 basically lines 4 through 9, if you want to read that and
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then let me know, I'll ask my question. And read that to

yourself.

A. Four through nine?

Q. Yeah. Well, that sentence that --

A. Okay.

Q. -= starts on 3, line 3.

A. Okay. Okay. I've read it.

Q. Okay. And I'm taking that that you're -- that

you’'re making the argument or you're taking the position
that, you know, dPi shouldn't be allowea to recover
credits because they didn't follow the escalation process.
Is that a fair characterization of what you're attempting
to say there?

A. I would say that the timeliness of how they —- the

timeliness and how they proceeded through the dispute

process was —- was probably not within the guidelines.

Q. And that's a reason to deny their claim?

A. That's part of the reason, yes.

Q. All right. The escalation process, that's just if

you're unhappy you talk to somebody higher up in the chain

of command and -- until you get to an impasse or you get a
deal?

A. Yes. 1In general, that's the truth.

Q. And you're saying that they didn't follow that?
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A. Well, again, I -- I think others have said that.
I —-

Q. Okay.

A. -~ I'm just sort of referring to other people's

testimony after I have said what the basic requirements of
the process were according to the interconnection
agreement.
0. Yeah. But from ouxr perspective we think we did
that, but we're hearing you to say that you didn't do
that. But I want to just say let's assume -~ let's assume
that they didn't do it the way that AT&T would have liked
for it to have taken place, the escalation process.

What I'd like to get to is why would that matter?
Because as I understand it, in 2004 your position was
we're just not making cash back promotions available for
resale period, correct?
A. That is correct.
0. In 2005 your position was we're not making resale

—- making available for resale cash back promotions

period?
A. Correct.
0. In 2007 you're position was -- AT&T's position was

for periods prior to June of 2007, we are not making

resale promotions available. period?
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Q. And that position hasn't changed, right? I mean,
you're still making that claim here now; AT&T is still
making that claim?

A. well, that's -- that's kind of, again, a little
misleading. We're making the claim now about the credit

requests in the time period prior to June -- or prior to

July of '07.

Q. Right.

A. Since July of '07 we have been giving --

Q. Right.

A. -~ the credit requests when they qualified for
it --

Q. And I —-

A. . = after they weré validated.

Q. And I was talking just about the period before

June 2007, that your position has remained constant up to
this day that for amounts and credits that were requested
prior to June of 2007, y'all just aren't going to make it

available for resale period?

RA. I -- I think we've given an awful lot of good

reasons why we shouldn't have to, yes.
Q. And so0 no amount of escalation would have changed

the answer to that, wounld it?
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A, I don't believe that we would have changed policy
for one CLEC's -- one CLEC's request., That would be
discriminatory to other CLECS.

Q. Okay. And so the -- the -- you know, the fact
that if we -- if we —~ if the Commission were to find
that, yes, the escalation process wasn't done correctly,
that really wouldn't have changed the outcome, whether
they had followed it or not? The outcome would be the
same, y'all would say no?

A. Well, we might have said no, but ﬂad you followed
it correctly, your next step way back Ghen might have been
to be here before the Commission.

Q. Okay.

A. You had that -- you had that going for you in the
interconnection agreement. You had that capability were
you not satisfied.

Q. Okay. I'd like to turn your attention now to page
3 of your rebuttal.

A. I'm there.

Q. All right. I'm going to try to paraphrase you
there reading what you have in the first four lines. I
guess we can go back to page 2, last two lines on page 2,
lines 24 through 25, and then that idea continues on to

the next page.
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I —- I see your contention as being that if -- if

we -- if AT&T is forced to pay this -- these promotional
credits to A -- to dPi, dPi is not going to go back and

refund that to the customers from that time frame and
therefore we shouldﬁ't have to do this -~ do -~ shouldn't
ﬂhave to m&ke the payment to dPi. Fair paraphrase?

A. That's what it says from about a year ago. And I
believe you're aware, as I am, that in Mr. O'Roark’'s

deposition back in August with Mr. Turner, we asked him

guestions about that and I think we have come to
understand that things have changed with dPi and since his
testimony was filed.

Q. Okay. So do you -- does that mean you want to
change your testimony here?

A. I don't want to change it. I just want to say
that we are -~ while we don‘t -- it's not conclusive what
dPi plans to do, we are aware that with the prompt payment
offering there are ways that you folks -~ or that your

client attempts to get some of the money back into the

hands of the consumer. But regardless of whether they're

getting any of the money back inte the hands of consumer,
I will say that they're still not pricing their service
anywhere near what AT&T does and leads us to the

conclusion that we're not competing with dPi on either
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price or its market, target market, that we're -- that
we're going for.

Q. Well, to return to my lipne of inquiry, there's
nothing in the law that says that any discount that dPi
gets from AT&T it has to turn around and give right back
to its own customers, is there?

A. I'm not a lawyer. I'm not aware of any law that
says that. I know that that's what AT&T deces is to get
the money and back in the hands of the consumer. And
whether or not dPi does, has to, should, that's -- that's
inconclusive to me.

Q. I'm looking at generally page 3 of your rebuttal,
the middle paragraph. And -- and the complaint here I
take it is that, you know, our records are incomplete for
time periods that far back and it makes it hard for us to

validate the requést that dPi has made. Is that a fair

characterization?
A. Yes. I think generally that's what we're talking
about here. If you -- if you'd gone so far past our

retention time frame and we don't have records, how in the
world could we be expected to pay out money that we can't
validate and pay it out on one of our competitor's say-so
with nothing else to show for it? They don't have the

records either.
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Q. Now, that statement sort of basically assumes that
it's a situation where AT -- where dPi is entitled to —-

to get the promotion to begin with, right?

A. What I just said, is that what you're —-

1 ;

Q. Yes.

A. -— referring to?

Q. Because if AT —- because if dPi is just not

entitled to it to begin with, doesn't matter if the

records are there or not, right?

A. Well, I tell you, that's one of the reasons we —-

we never were real good about -- or wanting to keep the
records. We weren't planning to give promotions for cash
back and therefore didn't have a process and didn‘t
maintain the records beyond our normal retemntion time
frame.
Q. Okay.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Okay. Hold on just a
second, Mr. Malish.

{Discussion held off recoxd.)

Well, T think this would be a good time to take
that break.

MR. TURNER: Here, here.

MR. MALISH: I'm pretty close to being done.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: So -- well, that's
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.okay. We're going to see about that when we come back
after this 10-minute break. So we're going to take a --
be in recess now for 1¢ minutes and start back at
approximately 4:00 p.m.

(RECESS - 3:52 P.M. TO 4:00 P.M.)

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Let's go
back on the record. Mr. Fergquson, if you'll come on back

Lup to the witness chair., And Mr., Malish, when he gets

!

il

situated, you may resume your cross-examination.

MR. MALISH: Thank you, Mr, Chairman.
Q. wWhen we left off, Mr. Ferguson, we were looking at
page 3 of your rebuttal and paraphrasing, I think, that
what you're saying there at the end of the middle

I
Fparagraph on the page is that even if AT&T is otherwise

required by law to pay these promotional credits, iﬁ
shouldn't be required -- it shouldn't be required under
these particular circumstances because of its difficulty
in validating the numbers?

A. Yes. 1In general, I think I was saying that we

shouldn't have to pay what we can't prove.

0. Okay. Now, let's take a lock at the reason why

this is so delayed. And would you agree with me that the
reason that these didn't get processed more fully earlier

is because y'all refused to extend it; AT&T refused to
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extend it?

A. When you say "“extend," please explain.
Q. Extend the promotional cash back credits to dPi.
A. Well, I would assume that if we tell dPi that

we're not going to accept their credit requesits, then
that's the answer. And that when they finally decide that
that's not an answer they want or their third-party
billing company decides that's not an answer that they
want dPi to have, then all of that comes together at some

point in time, which is well after they were told they

weren't going to get the promotional credits granted to

them.

Q. okay .

A. And that's where the beginning of the delay began,
I assume.

Q. All right. But in any event, AT&T knew, I gquess,

at least in 2004 and 2005 that dPi wanted these, right,
because dPi asked for them back then?

A. Well, what I recall is that I believe Ms. Seagle
testified that they were told they weren't going to get

them when they asked about them.

0. Right.
WA. And that's -- that's all I know. That's what I
know.
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Q. And there were some that were actually submitted

in 2005, right?

A. I would have to look at somebody else's testimony

on that one. I didn't --

Q o Okay »

A. I didn't really discuss that. I don't recall.

|

0. All right. I'm going to skip down to page 5 of

your rebuttal. We're talking about the value of the
impact of the cash back promotions.

HA. Which line?

Q. You're -- you actually mention the value issue in

lines 22 and 23, but just generally speaking, I want to

talk about the value of -- of the promotiocn.
A. Okay.
o. Now, the promotion, of course, is an offer,

correct, of $100 cash back under certain circumstances,

right?
A Yes.
Q. All right. That's the offer., And if the offer is

accepted by the person to whom its offered, then we can

figure out what the value of that is, that's $100 if they
accept the offer, right?
A. Generally, yes, I can agree with that.

Q. Okay. So as long as the offer is accepted or once
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the offer is accepted, we know what the value of that
+Iparticular offer was?

A. Again, generally I can agree with that.

Q. Okay. On your rebuttal on page 6, the paragraph
from lines 16 through 22 --

A. Yes.

“Q. -- I read that to suggest that because there’'s no
language in the party's interconnection agreement, which
-- where it specifically states that we're entitled to
cash back promotions, that somehow that indicates that
they're not available for resale?

A. Well, generally I would agree with that. And this

being rebuttal, I was responding to Mr. Bolinger's claims

to the contrary.

Q. Okay.
A. He brought it up, I responded to it.
Q. Okay. But, you know, that's -- cash back

promotions are still not in the contract that's in place
from 2007 forward, correct?

A. To the best of my knowledge, yes, you're right.
HQ. And nevertheless, AT&T is paying those as
promotions as we sit here today, right?

A. Yes. Because of change in policy as to whether we

will pay them out, but yes.
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Q. For whatever reason, the fact that that specific
language -- there's no specific language in the contract
about cash back proﬁotion doesn't change the fact that
y'all pay them, right?

A. It doesn’'t, but it also -- but it does give us
support to a degree to not have to pay it because we're
not bound by the interconnection agreement to pay them.
Q. All right. But no —- none of your promotions are
specifically mentioned in tﬁe language of the contract --

IA. No specific promotions are mentioned, but

promotions are discussed.
Q. All right. You also spoke at some point in your

testimony about we can't pay dPi because if we did that,

that would be discrimination against everybody else,
right?

A. Well, that's talking around what I -- what I
believe I said, yes. I -- I think I did say that for the
Commission here to grant dri some special circumstances
would be in effect discriminatory cother -- to other CLECs

{in that it might be not supported by the interconnection

agreement --
Q. All right.
A. -- that was voluntarily negotiated and entered

into between the parties.
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Q. This —- this goes back to the sort of -- the
offers are out there and some people may choose to accept
them and some people don't and if the people that don'‘t
choose to accept them aren't really being discriminated

against, right?

A, That would be correct. The offer is out there for
everyone --

Q. Right.

A. -- that qualifies.

Q. So if AT -- so if dPi is the person who steps up

and says I want it and I'm entitled to it and I qualify
for it and you should pay me and you do and nobody else
steps up and says the same thing so you don't pay them,
that's not discrimination, is it?

A. Legally I can't answer whether that would be
construed as discrimination. But I would say this, that
if it was brought to this Commission and this Commission
decided that the language of the interconnection agreement
between these parties, which is fairly standard language,
allowed them to get what we don't believe they're entitled
to, I think just by definition that decision may have a
whole lot of ramifications with other interconnection
agreements that are already in place.

Q. Okay. Well, if the law suggests that these cash
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back promotions should have been made available to CLECs,
then -- then is the fact that you follow the law in soqg
cases, for example, by paying them to dPi somehow a
justification for not paying them in others?

A. I'm not a lawyer. I'm not going to speculate on
-- on how -- what you just talked about relates to us
according to law. I'll let my attorneys do that.

Q. Okay.

A. But it would be my opinion as a lay person that
the law and the orders that we have seen up to this point
allow for certain restrictions on cash back offerings if
they can be proven to be reasonable and nondiscriminatory.
S50 that's why we're here and that's what we are trying to
put forth to this Commission is that AT -- BellSouth, now
AT&T, in restricting the certain cash back ocfferings was
well within its rights because they were reasonable and
nondiscriminatory under the circumstances of those

particular promotions.
Q. Okay. Okay. Do you think that having a higher
price of service -- dPi's having a higher price of service

than AT&T's prices that it makes available at retail makes

it harder for dPi to compete for the -- for customers in
general?
A. Well, I don't -- I don't beliave that dPi is
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competing for customers in general. I think dPi is
competing with a very -- as described earlier, a niche
market. And they are not pricing their services to be
priced competitive or less than AT&T's. And because the
pricing isn't even close and because the target market
base that they're seeking isn't even close to what AT&T
can support, then I think that meets the test -- one of
the tests of i£ being reasonable and nondiscriminatory.

We're just simply not competing —-

Q. Mr. Ferguson -—-
Q. ~~ if you don't mind, I'd like to direct your

attention back to the question that I asked, which is does
it make it harder for dPi to compete for those customers
that -- you know, the reqular customer -in the world?

A, The reqular -- let me help -- you're going to have

to help me clarify. The —-

Q. Sure.

A. -— reqular customer, is that --

Q. You're average Joe.

A. -— a non-credit challenged customer?

0. Yes.

A. I don't believe, again -- I think I did answer

this question. I don't believe that dPi does compete for
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that customer.

Q. I -- well, you're —-

A. So you're talking a hypothetical, aren't you?

Q. Yeah. Well, we can call it a hypothetical if you
want, but --

A, Well, I would rather'not ——

Q. -- if we're going to call it —- if we're going to.

call it a hypothetical, that's fine. You're disagreeing

with me as to whether they compete for average Joe, that's

fine.
A. Yes. And at a -- at the price --
Q. And so let's say -- and let's say -- let's assume

as a hypothetical that they are or would like to, okay.
With that as the hypothetical, isn't the fact that y'all
are selling at a retail rate that's lower than what dPi
can provide, you know, at wholesale, if you accept that as
the hypothetical as well, doesn't that make it hard, if
not impossible, for them to compete for that customer?

A. If they kept thei? pricing structure the same,
absolutely. But I would ask dPi were they to get into the

non-credit challenged customer, would they not take our

North Carolina 1FR local residence line for $19.%5, which
they would get at 21.5 percent less, would they not sell

to that market at a different rate than what they’'re
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selling their -- their credit challenged customers with.
pr they did that, then they could certainly compete with

jus because other resellers are competing daiiy with us at

that lower rate, not the credit challenged market.

Q. Okay.
A. They would have the same opportunity as any other
reseller CLEC and certainly they would be compete -- able

to compete against AT&T and other ILEC providers.

Q. So it sounds like the answer to ﬁy hypothetical
trying to compete for average Joe, if they are -- if dPi
is paying more for the service that it gets from you than
you are charging your customers at retail, it makes it
hard for dPi to compete for those customers? Within the
boundaries within that hypothetical, I think the answer
has to be yes.

A. Well, I'll just -- I'll just say this: You are
getting the 1FR line from us for 19.95 that you are
bumping up to your $39.99 basic rate. And I'm just
suggesting to you that if you were selling to a different
market, the same one that AT&ET is able to sell to, then
you would be competing. I don‘t believe you're going to
be able to compete ---using the same price line, but
charging a higher price, you're only going to get the

customers who need to come to you because you are the
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pfovider of choice for that niche.

Q. Well, I'm going tc go around here and go around
the circle one more time. If y'all are providing the 1FR,
whatever you're calling it, for 19.99 at retail, but then
you're giving $100 cash back so that these folks are
getting it for, you know, basically negative $80 --

A. That's a one-time -- that's a one-time deal.
That's not an ongoing monthly rate --

"Q. But --

A. -- effecting thing.
0. But we don't get that, dPi doesn't get that and

|so, you know, at best they're getting $20 minus 20
percent, or whatever, 14 —-- §14. The competition —— the

price point at which we're competing is negative 80 for

AT&T versus l4 for dPi, right, even in this best case
scenario that we're talking about?
A. Well, when you're talking about entirely different

markets --

Q. All right..

A. -- that you're -- that you're dealing with —-
0. All right.

A. -- I just don't think it's apples to apples.
Q. Okay. Thank you.

MR. MALISH: I'll pass the witness.
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COMMISSTONER CULPEPPER: Ms. Edmondson, you have

any questions of the witness?

MS. EDMONDSON: Yes, a few.

CROSS—-EXAMINATION BY MS. EDMONDSON:

0. This is just -- I —— in your -- at the end of your
testimony before Exhibit PLF-1 there was a bill from the
Grove Park Inn. Was that supposed to be in there? To
Candace Finley. Is that an error?

MR. TURNER: We were hoping somebody would pay
it.
A. I am -- I am totally unaware of what you're
talking about.
Q.‘ Okay. It's on the Commission website. I thought

it was, but I looked really hard to find the significance

of it.
A. Subject to check, that ain't mine.
Q. Okay. Just checking. All right. Good afternoon,

Mr. Ferguson.

A. How are you?

Q. You are associate director in AT&T's operations
wholesale organization?

A. AT&T Operations, Incorporated, in the wholesale
department of that, yes.

0. How long have you been in that position?
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A.: I guess I've been in that position about five
ye;rs, but for the five years leading up to that I was in
a very similar position involved in virtually the same
kind of thing.

Q. And you were -- that position was —- it would have
been BellSouth operations wholesale --

A. BellSouth Telecommunications, Incorporated, up
till the merger in late '06.

Q. And you discussed in your direct and rebuttal how
AT&T made a business decision to standardize its position

regarding payment of these promotions?

A. . Yes.

Q. And what was your involvement in that decisioﬁ?
A. None.

Q. And so when you -- how do you -- what's the basis

of your knowledge to testify whether' the Sanford decision
had any bearing on that decision?

A. Well, as a policy witness with AT&T, it's my job
to understand what the policies are, how they were
developed and yet not get a law degree at the same time.

I just - I —— I -~ I discuss with my attorneys. I
discuss with. others who have been in a similar position or
were involved in the development of policy and just learn

my way through it that way.
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But again, as policy, it's not as if you had to be
there, in our -- in my opinion, you don't have to be there

to understand what it is and where it came from and to

Jtalk about it.

Q. The decision to standardize this policy occurred
in July 2007?

A. I -- you know, I don't know that that was the
exact date. It was -- but leading up -—- from somewhere
between the end of '06 when the merger took place and

July '07, that was one of a list of items on the merger

list of things to do to -- to get done within the first
year.

We had -- we had a number of initiatives to
accomplish in the first year after the -- after the

merger. And on the wholesale side, that was one of a list
to be done. And it was accomplished in about six months.
0. And you agreed, I believe, with Mr. Malish that
the decision to go with the AT&T position would probably
cost more to AT&T overall than adopting the BellSouth
position not to pay?

A. Well, I think that was -- that's, yes, a fairly
good conclusion.

Q. Do you know the basis for that decision?

A, Not really. Not to talk about it, do not. I

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

n 263

mean --
Q. Besides standardizing for the 22-state region.
A. A business decision and all that goes —- you know,

I've been part of business decisions and I know what goes
winto making decisions like that. I would just

characterize it as whatever was going to take place, it

was all determined, you know, what's the best way to go.
All the factors were considered and determined -- that was

the final determinatien.

Q. But.you don't know what the factors were?
A. Not totally, no.
Q. Were you familiar with the retention policies of

BellSouth and then AT&T during the time of the claims
involved in this matter?

A. Generally I am. In terms of service orders and
local éervice requests that CLECs submit to BellSouth and
AT&T and how long they're kept in the systems, yeah, I

have general understanding about the fact that we don't

{|save everything and two years seems to be roughly a

general retention policy based on a recent search for --
for informaticn that I did in a similar docket to this
,one.

I think I discovered that two years in general.

Sometimes you get lucky. Sometimes you find it more, but
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Q. Now, are you familiar -- Ms. Seagle's testimony

had an e-mail from 2004 attached to it; isn‘'t that

correct?

A. Do you mind if I look? I have --

Q. Sure.

a. I have her testimony right here.

Q. T think it was number one.

A. KAS-17

io. I think so. Now, I am doing that from memory.
A. I have -- I have her exhibits.

Q. Okay. I'm doing that from memory, so it could

weil be faulty.

{Brief Pause.)
Q. You -- that does look like it's from 20047
A. I'm sorry. I was -— was KA -- I thought you were
trying to determine whether KAS-l1 was the one I was --
0. I'm sorry. Is that -- that is from 2004 or it
appears to be?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you generally involved with the -- are you
involved with the negotiation of interconnection

agreements?

A. I used to be directly involved with certain
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sections of negotiations. I was later involved with
settlements based on issues related to interconnection
agreements. And the fact that I sit among all of the
negotiators doesn't -- doesn't give me negotiating
involvement, but I'm aware of an awful lot of -- about the
negotiation of interconnection agreements.

Q. I've been involved with them some too, but -~ and
I'm trying to recall, is my recollection that generally
the agreements of BellSouth and then AT&T generally have a
choice of law provision that says that Georgia law will |
preﬁail? Is that your recollection? 1In general. 1I'm not
saying for each and every one.

A, Yes. I mean, I -- that would not be one of my
areas of expertise, choice of law, but I know that the --
I know that there's a paragraph in there about State of
Georgia in terms of contract law. And if I'm wrong there,
I would say subject to check, but that's what I recall
that it's mostly pertaining to.

Q. Are your record retention policies for both

electronic and written documents, are they maintained in

writing?
A. Yes. We have retention policies based on
different types of -- it's not so much the medium, but

it's the subject, whatever the subject of the record is.
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For example, interconnection agreements, we maintain them

for a certain amount of time, past the time that they
expire just for historical -- just for circumstances like
this because sometimes it does take a while to get to
court or to get to a Commission hearing, and sc you -~ we
typically hold onto those settlement documents or
confidential settlements that we sometimes have with our
CLECs or other customers. We have a retention time for
them. Service orders, LSRs, billing records, everything
“has its own guideline and a policy.

Q. Do you know if they take into account the statute

of limitations applicable to that particulér

interconnection agreement?

A. I don't know that for a fact, but I -- as
extensive as those policies are, I have a hard time
believing that the legal department did not have a huge
hand in developing those guidelines and was very cognizant
of the appropriate statute of limitations.

Q. Do you know whether any record retention policies
are.provided, either given to CLECs or available on your
interconnection website?

A. I do not know.

Q. Would you be willing as a late-filed exhibit to

provide the retention -- record retention policies for
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electronic and written documents that were applicable to
the billing records in this dispute?
A. I would defer to my attorneys to answer that. I'm
not familiar --
MR. TURNER: We will provide it as a late-filed
exhibit.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Thank you.
MS. EDMONDSON: That's all I have. Thank you.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Redirect examination?
“ MR. TURNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Mr. Ferguson, I have a few topics; but I think we

can get through this in a rather short and sweet manner.
You were asked —- early in the cross, Mr. Malish
talked to you about your testimony, the lack of complaint

was noticed by the Commission as a potential factor that

Iis reasonable and nondiscriminatory. Mr. Malish asked you
if the converse would be true. I want to follow up on
that.

I know you might not know the actual numbers, but
just as a ¢general percentage, what would you say the one

CLEC dPi is as a percentage of the CLECs that are

authorized to do business in North Carolina?

A. As a company, one out of 100, one percent.
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Q. Thank you. Mr. Malish asked you some questions

about the number of CLEC lines in North Carolina and the
number of AT&T lines in North Carolina. Even if we limit
ourselves solely to wireline local exchange services, are

CLECs and AT&T the only ones that provide that service in

“North Carolina today?

A. No, they are not.

0. Give us some examples, just a couple, of other
types of providers that provide those services in North
Carolina today.

A. There is -- there's another ILEC who provides in a
goog part of North Carolina -~ and pardon me if I don't
know who they are today, but they originally were Carolina
Telephone and I think they later became EMBARQ maybe.

0. How about cable companies?

A, There are cable companies. Can't name them, but I
know there are cable companies in North Carolina and then

there are independent companies.

Q. How about VoIP providers?
A. There are VoIP providers.
Q. Did the cable companies and VoIP providers provide

local exchange service in North Carolina back in 1996 when
Mr. Malish was asking you a lot of questions about the

inception of the Act?
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A. I don't believe that you could categorize them as
-- either they didn't -~ they either didn't exist or they
certainly weren't enough of a major player to be
recognized,

Q. Given that, does AT&T have a monopoly in North
Carolina anymore?

A. Well, I.never felt like they had a total monopoly
to begin with, but certainly no more.

IQ' Mr. Malish asked you some questions about
validation. Do you remember that?

A. Generally.

Q. When you were referring to validation in your

testimony, I want to make sure I understand that. Are you
wanéing to validate -- are you talking about validating
the fact that dPi asked for a credit or are you talking
about validating something more than that?

A, It starts with understanding that they're asking
for ; credit on a given account and then it's taking a
look deeper into it to see whether the end user qualifies
as if they were an AT&T end user. And because they have
to qualify under norma; circumstances under promotions,
they would have to qualify as if they were an AT&T end

user.

Q. Mr. Malish asked you some questions about value.
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And he asked you if the offer is accepted, if the cash
back offer of $100 is acéepted, its value is 100. If the
offer is denied, not accepted, what's its value?

A. Still $100.

Q. If I'm a customer and I just don't want the cash
back, what’'s the value of that cash back to me?

A. As the end user customer, it apparently means

L]

nothing to you.

Q. If I'm a customer that receives the coupon, do all
1]

of our customers turn that coupon in?

A. No, they do not.

Q. Are those the types of things that you need to
consider in determining the value of the coupon?

A, Yes, it is. That's one of the things. And I
think as I mentioned, that I would be ~-- I assume that as
-~ that would be just one of the tests that we yould use
to determine what the value would be, jﬁst one of the

tests.

'MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman; for my final round of
questions, may I approach the witness-and give him a copy
of what has already been marked as O'Roark
"Cross—Examination Exhibit No. 4?

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Yes, sir. You may do

80.
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0. This is the chart that talks about if a $25
reduction is given in the form of a price reduction, how

that plays out. Take a look at it and tell me when you're

ready for me to ask a question.

A. Mr. Turner, which page are we starting --

Q. Look at the whole chart and we'll ge£ to it.
A, OCkay. All right.

Q. We're going to come to that, but I want you to

look at the board here. This is the algebra that Mr.
Malish worked through. And at the end of the day on the
board here, we have a retail customer getting a §60 price
break, right?

A. I believe he called it a credit.

IlQ. Well, I'm calling it a price break. Yo; got a $60

price break right here on the retail side, all right?

A, Okay.

Q. And you got a $48 price break on the wholesale

side, right?

A. Okay.
Q. Go with us to Exhibit 1.
A. Wwhat was the value of the price break that the

retail customer got in Cross-Exhibit 4 that you have in
your hand?

A. On page 17

NORTH CAROLINA UTILITIES COMMISSION




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

272

Q.- Well, when we went through this, between page 1
and paée 2, how much of a price break did the retail
customer get? Retail price went from 75 to 25, right?

I'm sorry, 75 to 50, so what was the retail price break
that customer got?

A. $25.

Q. Okay. And then the next page on 3, what was the
amount of the price reduction or price break that the CLEC

"got as a result of that $25 reduction for the retail

customer?

A. $19.63.

Q. So on a face value, the retail customer got a
greater pass —— cash -- price break than the wholesale
customer, right? o®

A. Just by pure numbers, that's what it appears.

Q. And when we look on the board what's happening is

the retail customer is getting a greater price break than
the wholesale customer, right?

A. That's what those numbers would appear to

indicate, yes.

Q. The difference in 60 and 48 is the 20 percent
wholesale -~ resale discount, right?

A. $12, ves.

Q. And our example on this page, the difference
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between the price break that the whole -- retail customer

got and the wholesale customer got was the same 20 percent

of retail discount, right?

A. Subject to check, I would say that the difference

between 19.63 and $25 is, you know, roughly 20 percent.
MR. TURNER: That's all I have. Thank you, sir.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Questions by the

Commission?

| CHAIRMAN FINLEY: A couple of questions.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Chairman Finley.

CHAIRMAN FINLEY: Let's see here.

EXAMINATION BY CHATRMAN FINLEY:

"Q. Mr. Ferguson, with respect to the cash payment
that AT&T makes under the 1FR + 2 cash back, is that
payment in your view a promotion or a credit or do you

have an opinion on that?

a. And let me clarify. You said that what AT&T pays

its retail end users,. it's a —-- it's a promotion, but it's
-- I think we've categorized it more like a marketing

incentive as opposed -- it credits nothing. It has no

effect on the AT&T retail end user's bill. WNo credits for
one-time charges, no credits for monthly charges. It's
just me walking over to you and handing you a check for

$100; has nothing to do with your phone bill.
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Q. Okay. The algebra and the math that the various
lawyers have taken the various witnesses through on the
blackboard over there, my understanding is that the cash,
$50, $100, whatever it happens to be, is a one-time
payment to the retail customer, right?

A. That is correct.

Q. And it's not a recurring monthly credit or
promotion; is that right?

A. That is correct. None of the cash back promotions
at issue here are anything other than a one-time payment.
We -- we have other obviously non-cash back promotions
that might credit a bill, might do away with a monthly
charge for a month or two or whatever. All kinds of
variables. But on cash back, it has nothing to do with
phone bill. It's simply giving a check for $100 for them
to use however they see fit.

Q. Does that make any difference in the calculations
and the various positions of the parties in your opinion?
I think you alluded to it once in one of your answers

earlier.

A, Well, it's a one-time thing and, you know, some of
this math can get to the point where it looks like it's an
ongoing benefit month after month after month. It really

doesn't work out that way because it's a one-time
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situation.

And again, value, we would -- you know, it's
subject to -- subject to open discussion, I think, further
down the road as to what value compared to -- you know,
for a retail end user of AT&T who's typically going to
have phone service for a longer time than maybe the type
of customer that dPi has, you know, there's -- economists
need to be called in for a discussion of that sort of
overall value as far as I'm concerned.

Q. All right. Have you read the Sanford case from
the Fourth Circuit by chance?

A, Yes. I've —— to say I've read it totally and
understood it would not be the case, but I have -- I have
gone through the relevant parts that I‘'ve used in my
testimony.

0. Well, if I wanted AT&T to explain to me the
difference between the opinions of Judge Niemeyer and

Judge Williams, I take it you would defer to somebody else

on that?
A. Most rapidly.
Q. Okay.

CHAIRMAN FINLEY: That's all I have. Thanks.
COMMISSbeER CULPEPPER: Questions based on

Chairman Finley's gquestions, Mr. Turner?
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MR. TURNER: No, sir. Thank you.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Mr. Malish?
MR. MALISH: No, Mr. Chairman.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Ms. Edmondson?
MS. EDMONDSON: No.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. That would’

‘|conclude your testimony, Mr. Ferguson. You may stand down

from the witness chair.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, sir.

(Whereupon, the wifness was dismissed.)

MR. MALISH: Mr. Chairman ——

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Mr. Malish.

MR. MALISH: -- the -- we talked or there's been
talk about AT&T submitting a late-filed exhibit about
retention policies. If it is -- if it is helpful to the
Commission making its decision, we could submit a
late-filed exhibit also on -- on the -- how the —- how the
-- how dPi submits those requests for credit on the bar
forms as well.

It's actually already before the Commission in
an earlier case, so, I mean, you could take judicial
notice of -- I could give you the cite, I just don't have
that at my fingertips. But, you know, how they -- how

they fiqure out what to ask for has been addressed at the
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Commission before.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Well, Mr. Malish, you

can tender any kind of late-filed exhibit you would like

to the Commission. AT&T may or may not have any
objections to that. You can tender your exhibit, they can
tender their objections. We'll handle the matter as we
see fit after we have all of that or you can address ——
you will have the opportunity to perhaps address whatever
matters you wish to address in your post-hearing filings
that you will have an opportunity to file sometime
subsequent to today.

" MR. MALISH: Very good.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. All right.
MR. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, that concludes our

case. I would like to ask to move the admission of all of

our direct and rebuttal testimony and exhibits to the

extent I haven't already done so into the record.
COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: That motion is allowed.
(Whereupon, Exhibits KAS~1 through KAS-5, NWB-1,

h PLF-1, PLF-2 and Rebuttal PLF-1 were admitted
into evidence.)

h Anything further from the Respondent?

MR. TURNER: No, sir. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Any showing from the
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Public Staff?

MS. EDMONDSON: No.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. That would
appear to conclude the evidentiary hearing then. Appears
that we will be on the lookout for the late-filed exhibit
regarding the retention records that was requested by
Public Staff. And you've indicated, Mr. Turner, that you
have no problem with your client filing that late-filed
exhibit --

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -- as well as any of
the late-filed exhibits that you might wish to file on
Behalf of your client. If you want to do that, we'll
consider them. And, of course, Mr. Malish, you have the
right -- and Public Staff —-- to file any responses to any
such filings at that time.

We've talked about AT&T filing a reply to dPi‘'s
November 12, 2009, response to the —- I think it was
November 6, 2009, Motion to Compel. Certainly you're not
obligated to do that, but we've talked about that and that
might be a way to bring the issue of our ruling on your
Motion to Compel --

MR, TURNER: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: -- might further guide
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us in how we should rule on that.

The only other matter that I know abeocut that we
need to talk about would be the -- a date for the filing
of post-hearing filings in the form of either briefs
and/or proposed orders. And I'm not going to set a time
for that at this point in time because I want to see about

what late-~filed exhibits might be filed; I want to see the

reply, if any, to the response about the Motion to Compel
and then the ruling on that may affect a subsequent ruling
or Order on the post-hearing filing deadlines. So we'll

—— we'll reserve that matter to a future date.

Now, does anybody know of anything else that we

would need to consider at this point in time before I
would adjourn this docket, Mr. Turner?
MR. TURNER: No, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: Mr. Malish?

MR. MALISH: No, sir.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Ms.
Edmondson? '

MS. EDMONDSON: No.

COMMISSIONER CULPEPPER: All right. Thank you
very much, counsel. We stand adjourned.
MR. MALISH: Thank you very much for y'all’'s

consideration.
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